

Spatial precarity, gentrification, and the arts

Part 4

Bibliography

Jessa Agilo, Series Editor



ArtsPond / Étang d'Arts 225-38 Abell Street Toronto, ON M6J 0A2 https://artspond.com hello@artspond.com

© 2020 ArtsPond / Étang d'Arts. Licensed under a Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International License, CC BY 4.0.

Preview edition (Sep 12, 2020)

CITATION

Agilo, J (Series Ed). Part 4: Bibliography. In What Space: Spatial precarity, gentrification and the arts. Toronto: ArtsPond / Étang d'Arts, 2020. https://artspond.com/whatspace

ON THE COVER

Image + Design by Agilo Arts 1150 Queen Street West, Toronto: A construction crane supports expansion of the Drake Hotel in Toronto's West Queen West in 2020.

- https://www.thedrake.ca/hotelexpansion/
- https://www.toronto.com/news-story/7022360-drake-hotelexpansion-raises-questions-in-queen-west-community/

CONTRIBUTORS, FUNDERS, PARTNERS



















Preface

What Space: Spatial precarity, gentrification, and the arts is a research series summarizing insights from **Groundstory Phase 1 (2017-2020).** For more information about this series, please visit https://artspond.com/whatspace.

Incubated by ArtsPond, **Groundstory** is a collective impact effort seeking to boost spatial justice for the arts in the Greater Toronto to Hamilton Area in Ontario, Canada.

Rooted in Davenport's West Queen West (one of the fastest gentrifying areas in Toronto), the mandate of **ArtsPond** is to nurture healthy human ecosystems that promote social, spatial, economic, digital, and equity justice in Canada and beyond by fostering cooperative actions fusing values and practices of social innovation and the arts.

Groundstory Phase 1 was funded by Ontario Trillium Foundation's Collective Impact Fund, Employment and Social Development Canada, and Canada Council for the Arts' Sector Innovation and Development Program in association with **Roseneath Theatre**, a theatre company for young audiences.

Capturing stories and solutions to the effects of spatial precarity and gentrification on the arts, Groundstory Phase 1 research featured an international literature review, national survey, regional human-centered design workshops, focus groups, educational podcasts, and more. Major goals were to better illustrate the root causes, ripple effects, and responses to gentrification in the arts in the Greater Toronto to Hamilton Area plus other rapidly gentrifying communities in Ontario, Canada, and internationally. Reports in this series include:



Groundstory.ca



ArtsPond.com



Roseneath.ca

Groundstory: Round the Block (Part 1)

Prepared by ArtsPond and Groundstory Founder **Jessa Agilo** in Spring and Summer 2020, Part 1 provides an overview of the stories, activities, resources, and knowledge gathered on spatial precarity, gentrification, and the arts as a part of Groundstory Phase 1 research (pre-coronavirus pandemic) from Spring 2017 to Winter 2020.

Groundtrust: Primer on Community and Cultural Land Trusts (Part 2)

Prepared by ArtsPond Associate Youth Researcher **Niko Casuncad** in Summer 2020, Part 2 explores prepandemic concepts and examples of social purpose real estate solutions to gentrification and spatial precarity for equity-seeking groups in the arts. This youth-led resource serves as an introductory guide to creative and cultural community land trusts for Black, Indigenous, and other racialized groups in arts and culture.

Annotated Bibliography (Part 3)

Part 3 provides summary annotations for prioritized resources selected from Part 4 Bibliography. Annotations were prepared by ArtsPond Associate Youth Researchers Felicity Campbell, Cheryll Case, Michael Pereira, Monique Cheung, and others, edited by Jessa Agilo. Most annotations were written between Fall 2018 and Summer 2019. They are grouped according to Groundstory's three overarching research themes: uncovering root causes, ripple effects, and responses to spatial precarity and gentrification in arts and culture.

Bibliography (Part 4)

Gathered by Jessa Agilo, Felicity Campbell, Cheryll Case, Michael Pereira, et al, Part 4 is a compendium of 2,000 public and academic resources applicable to spatial precarity and gentrification in arts and culture communities in Canada and internationally. Two separate bibliographies are provided: rated by relevance to Groundstory research themes (selected sources), and alphabetical (all sources). While older sources have been included for comparison, most were published between 2015 to January 2020. All sources were accessed between Spring 2017 and Winter 2020. The complete bibliography with interactive filtering by category is also available online as a free Zotero public archive. New resources will also be added to the Zotero library on an ongoing basis, accessible at: https://www.zotero.org/groups/1784394/groundstory/library.

Acknowledgements

Team

Founder, Research Lead

Youth Associate Researchers

Jessa Agilo (ArtsPond)

Felicity Cambpell

Cheryll Case Niko Casuncad Michael Pereira

Researchers Kelly Hill (Hill Strategies Research)

Alix MacLean (Hill Strategies Research)

Interns Aylin Akyol, Brennyn Bauer, Monique Cheung,

Sheriza Anne De Guzman, Vicki Hargreaves, Natasha Iqbal, Matt Learoyd, Katrina MacKew, Kendra Miller, Kamila Seitkhanova, Rachel Vrecic,

Megan Wilk

Translators (English to French) Alma Boukhaled

Francesco Spagnolo Ayesha Veerasuntharam

DesignAgilo ArtsResearch VolunteersAnonymousRoundtable ParticipantsAnonymousGroundtrust Youth CircleAnonymous

Fiduciary Partner Roseneath Theatre

Special thanks to Andrew Lamb, Annemieke Wade (Roseneath Theatre), Jeremy Freiburger (Cobalt Connects), Michael Vickers, Oliver Pauk (Akin), Kendra Fry (Creative Collissions, Faith & the Common Good), Groundstory's 85 research volunteers, 150 roundtable and survey participants, Yolanda Ferrato, Patrice Mitchell, Elise Antoniadis, Darian Razdar (Reflex Urbanism, Bricks & Glitter), Joshua Brandt (Parkdale Neighbourhood Land Trust), Yves Blais, Gordon Seabright (Creative Land Trust), Anne Frost (Humber College Institute of Technology & Advanced Learning), WorkInCulture, Mass Culture, 221A, Ryerson University, and University of Toronto. Additional thanks to ArtsPond's staff Parul Pandya, Margaret Lam, Jean Macpherson, Lynn Briand, Cynthia Lickers-Sage, Jai Djwa, Inga Petri, Cate Proctor, Perry Voulgaris (DigitalASO), Katerina Fuller, and Rob Boyd, Jose Gutierrez, Kate Hollett, Daniel Kligerman, Arthur Yeung (ArtsPond board of directors).

Land Acknowledgement

ArtsPond is rooted in Toronto, the traditional territories of the Huron-Wendat, the Anishnabek Nation, the Haudenosaunee Confederacy, and the Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation.

Tkaronto (Mohawk word meaning "the place in the water where the trees are standing") is home to many First Nations, Métis, Inuit, and Afro-Indigenous people from across Turtle Island.

With regards to land use, housing, and urban planning, it is vital to acknowledge the necessity for non-Indigenous people to recognize and uphold Indigenous sovereignty and Land Back.

The arts and culture sector has an important role to play in reconciliation and decolonization in so-called Canada through engagement, practices, compensation, and programs. It will be crucial for non-Indigenous people to avoid the tokenization of Indigenous arts and culture. Instead, the arts and culture industry must prioritize meaningful relationship-building with Indigenous artists, and to respond to the historical, local, and systemic realities and struggles with the impact of settler colonialism on our cities and communities.

WHAT SPACE | 4

We must continuously reflect on our role to play as settlers on Indigenous land. It is essential to consider how we foster and take care of the land, how we live together, and to help those who are underrepresented and underprivileged due to settler colonialism, capitalism, and white supremacy.

Equity, Access, and Inclusion

In Canada, there are systems of power that grant privilege and access unequally such that inequity and injustice result, and that must be continuously addressed and changed. Cultural equity is critical to the long-term viability of the arts sector to thrive.

At ArtsPond, we believe we must all hold ourselves accountable through acknowledging and challenging our inequities and work with our community partners to make collective change. Everyone deserves equal access to a full, vibrant creative life, which is essential to a healthy and vibrant society. Through social, cultural, economic, physical, and digital spaces and platforms, artists can challenge inequities and encourage, imagine, and realize positive alternatives.

ArtsPond + Groundstory aim to embody equity in our values, policies, and practices to ensure all people are represented; including, yet not limited to, those who have been historically underrepresented based on age, ancestry, colour, ethnic origin, race, citizenship, creed (religion), disability, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, and socioeconomic status.

We value and prioritize the voices of Indigenous, 2SLGBTQ+, Black, Brown, and other racialized people, people with disabilities, youth, elders, women, New Canadians, official and other language minorities, rural-remote communities, and other equity-seeking groups. We do so with the intention of developing more equitable arts policy, to better empower underserved artists and cultural workers, and to nurture more accessible spaces and the fair distribution of social, physical, economic, cultural, digital, and informational resources.

Addressing Anti-Black Racism

At ArtsPond, we believe the arts and culture sector has an important role to champion anti-racist practices in solidarity with the Black Lives Matter movement and in response to the growth of anti-Black racism and police brutality in Canada and around the world. As Toronto-based placemaker Jay Pitter states in her Call to Courage (June 2020) to Canadian urbanists, "urban design is not neutral, it either perpetuates or reduces social inequities".

Current and future work by the arts and culture industry must center equity and actively minimize and eradicate power imbalances and struggles faced by Black communities in Toronto through equity-based placemaking in both real (IRL / on-the-ground) and virtual (URL / in-the-cloud) communities.

In real spaces, Jay Pitter defines equity-based placemaking as "community knowledge and vision to the forefront of public realm design processes, historically going beyond the urbanism status quo and hierarchy. Equity-based placemaking builds on pluralism and recognizes power relations within communities and the place-based histories of exclusion and socio-spatial dynamics that shape the character of public spaces".

Artists and arts and culture workers must stand against white supremacy, racism, and police brutality.

Youth-led Social Change

At ArtsPond, we believe youth play a vital role in both enabling and leading positive social change. We are forever inspired by youth who are actively fighting for healthy, sustainable, equitable human ecosystems in brick and mortar neighbourhoods on-the-ground, and in digital communities in-the-cloud. We dedicate ourselves to empowering the dreams of young Canadian changemakers including artists, creators, designers, producers, entrepreneurs, technologists, thought leaders, urban planners, sustainability practitioners, architects, environmentalists, economists, politicians, researchers, educators, and more. Listen well to our youth and be changed. We are, for the better, every day.



COVID-19 Pandemic

The first edition of *What Space* was published during the global coronavirus pandemic in September 2020. However, most of the activities and resources featured in this series stem from Spring 2017 to Winter 2020, prior to the emergence of COVID-19 pandemic.

What Space, therefore, may be most effectively applied as a baseline review of pre-pandemic issues on spatial precarity, gentrification, and the arts. Further research is required to examine whether, and how, the themes and topics discussed in this series may be thwarted, transformed, or sustained by the ripples of COVID-19.

Queen West @ Dovercourt, Toronto Pandemic café street closures, Aug 2020

Contents

Preface	Error! Bookmark not defined
Acknowledgements	3
Bibliography	8
Selected by Rating	8
R11	9
R10	10
R9	14
R8	18
R7	26
R6	34
R5	42
Full Alphabetical	52
#	52
A	53
В	57
C	64
D	71
E	76
F	78
G	81
H	86
l	92
	93
K	95
	99
	103
	112
O	114
	116
	121
	126
	134
	138
	141
	146
Profile	1/10

Bibliography Selected by Rating

The following is a rated compendium of 2,000 public and academic resources related to spatial precarity, gentrification and the arts, including social, cultural, political, economic, and other root causes, ripple effects, and responses in Canada and internationally.

This selected bibliography features prioritized resources accessed between May 2017 and January 2020 (prior to the COVID-19 pandemic). Resources were rated by the authors using a cumulative point system with a maximum rating of 11. Resources with ratings between 5 and 11 are included in this bibliography in descending order, highest rating first.

The point system employed for ratings was as follows:

11 points	Maximum rating
+1 point	Extra boost when the reviewer is inspired by the resource
+1 point	Resource provides recommendations for further research that are relevant to the arts
+1 point	Resource offers practical tools and resources, or is solutions focused
+1 point	Resource has a Greater Toronto to Hamilton Area, Ontario, or Canada focus
+1 point	Resource has an overall arts focus
0 to 5 points	Overall relevance to issue of spatial precarity, gentrification, and the arts, including evidence of the root causes, ripples effects, and responses in the arts

- Barmak, S. (2010, November 20). The art of the (condo) deal. The Star.
 - https://www.thestar.com/amp/entertainment/2010/11/20/the_art_of_the_condo_deal.html
- Community Arts Stabilization Trust. (n.d.). CAST Community Arts Stabilization Trust. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://cast-sf.org/
- Courage, C., & McKeown, A. (Eds.). (2018). *Creative Placemaking: Research, Theory and Practice* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Creative tensions: Optimising the benefits of culture through regeneration. (2017). London Assembly: Regeneration Committee. https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/london_assembly_regeneration_committee___creative_tensions.pdf
- Culture Urban Future: Global Report on Culture for Sustainable Urban Development. (2016). UNESCO: United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization.
 - http://unesdoc.unesco.org/images/0024/002459/245999e.pdf
- Druka, K., Kamgari, A., MacNevin, J., Orasch, A., Peters, C., & Porter, M. (Eds.). (2019). *Gentrification Glossary*. Hamilton Artists Inc / GAGED Hamilton. http://www.theinc.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/HAI_GAGED_Gentrification-Glossary-Web.pdf
- Flaxman, K. (2017, May 27). Garage becomes a working art studio. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2017/05/27/garage-becomes-a-working-art-studio.html
- Gehl, J., & Rogers, L. R. (2010). Cities for People (First Edition edition). Island Press.
- Gentrification Guilt Meter—Living Los Sures. (n.d.). Gentrification Guilt Meter. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://lossur.es/short-docs/guiltmeter/
- Hyde, Z. (2018, May 15). *Foodies Gentrify Vancouver's Downtown Eastside*. The Tyee. https://thetyee.ca/Opinion/2018/05/15/Foodies-Gentrify-Downtown-Eastside
- IUD, I. C. of. (2016, December 17). Conference Recordings Art Practices & The Housing Crisis. *Institute of Urban Dreaming*. https://iudblog.org/2016/12/17/conference-recordings-art-practices-the-housing-crisis/
- Markusen, A., & Gadwa, A. (n.d.). *Creative Placemaking*. National Endowment for the Arts. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://www.artplaceamerica.org/view/pdf?f=public://pictures/whitepaper.pdf
- McLean, C. L., & PhD, R. K. (Eds.). (2011). *Creative Arts in Research for Community and Cultural Change*. Brush Education.
- McLean, H. E. (2014). Cracks in the Creative City: The Contradictions of Community Arts Practice: Contradictions of community arts practice in Toronto. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, *38*(6), 2156–2173. https://doi.org/10.1111/1468-2427.12168
- Micallef, S. (2013). Regent Park: A story of collective impact. Metcalf Foundation.
 - http://metcalffoundation.com/stories/publications/regent-park-a-story-of-collective-impact/
- Oakley, K. (2015). *Creating Space: A re-evaluation of the role of culture in regeneration* (Cultural Value). Arts & Humanities Research Council.
 - http://eprints.whiterose.ac.uk/88559/3/AHRC Cultural Value KO%20Final.pdf
- Poon, M. (2010). *A Handbook for Vancouver Artists Seeking Affordable Studio Space* [University of British Columbia]. https://doi.org/10.14288/1.0102500
- Pothier, M. (n.d.). Queers in the hood: How LGBTQ2SI+ folks can stand up to gentrification in Hamilton neighbourhoods. *BentQ*. Retrieved April 30, 2019, from
 - http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache: A0BS siyDF3cJ: bentq.ca/queers-in-the-hood-how-lgbtq2si-folks-can-stand-up-to-gentrification-in-hamilton-neighbourhoods/+&cd=1&hl=en&ct=clnk&gl=ca
- Rose, K., Hawk Daniel, M., & Liu, J. (2017). *Creating Change through Arts, Culture, and Equitable Development: A Policy and Practice Primer.* PolicyLink.
 - http://www.policylink.org/sites/default/files/report_arts_culture_equitable-development.pdf
- Sasajima, H. (2015, August 27). Cultural Aspects of Artist-led Gentrification in SoHo Between the 1950s and 1970s: A Field Analysis of the Agglomeration Processes of Art Venues. *The Ideal City: Between Myth and*

- Reality. Representations, Policies, Contradictions and Challenges for Tomorrow's Urban Life. RC21 International Conference, Urbino, Italy. http://www.rc21.org/en/wp-content/uploads/2015/08/000-Sasajima.pdf
- Schaffer Bacon, B., Yuen, C., & Korza, P. (1999). *Animating Democracy—The Artistic Imagination as a Force in Civic Dialogue*. Americans for the Arts.
 - http://www.animatingdemocracy.org/sites/default/files/documents/reading_room/Animating_Democracy_Study.pdf
- Silver, D. (Ed.). (2011). From the Ground Up: Growing Toronto's Cultural Sector. City of Toronto. http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2011/ed/bgrd/backgroundfile-41204.pdf
- The Public Studio. (n.d.). *Art, Design & Gentrification: A Primer*. Retrieved December 15, 2017, from https://thepublicstudio.ca/resources/do-it-yourself-series
- Wheeler, T., Fish, N., & Eudaly, C. (2018). A Plan for Preserving and Expanding Affordable Arts Space in Portland. https://www.portlandoregon.gov/fish/article/667747
- White, C. (n.d.). New Property Tax Class to Bring Relief to Arts and Culture Hubs. Urban Toronto. Retrieved June 13, 2019, from https://urbantoronto.ca/news/2018/05/new-property-tax-class-bring-relief-arts-and-culture-hubs
- Whyte, M. (2016, October 23). Skyrocketing commercial rents purge reluctant artists from Toronto's west end. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2016/10/23/skyrocketing-commercial-rents-purge-reluctant-artists-from-the-west-end.html
- Whyte, M. (2017a, April 3). Relief for 401 Richmond tenants on the way, city hopes. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/2017/04/03/relief-for-401-richmond-tenants-on-the-way-city-hopes.html
- Whyte, M. (2017b, December 18). For Toronto arts spaces, a creative tax break takes shape. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/analysis/2017/12/18/reprieve-seen-in-torontos-new-tax-break-for-arts-spaces.html
- Woodwards Anti-Capitalist Society. (2017, December 16). Fight For Affordability | Local groups hold alternative tour of Westbank's 'Fight For Beauty.' The Mainlander. http://themainlander.com/2017/12/16/fight-for-affordability-local-group-plans-alternative-tour-of-westbanks-fight-for-beauty/

- Argyle Public Relationships. (2018, September 6). *Parkdale Community Hub: Preliminary Feedback, Insights & Directions*. Parkdalehub.Ca. https://parkdalehub.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/preliminary.pdf *Art Against Displacement*. (n.d.). Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://www.aad.nyc/en/
- Artscape. (2017). *Artscape 5.0: Stratgeic Plan 2018-2022* (p. 17). https://www.artscape.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/Artscape-Strategic-Plan-2018-to-2022.pdf
- Artscape and BOP Consulting. (n.d.). *Making Space for Culture: Handbook for City Leaders* (Policy and Practice Series). World Cities Culture Forum. Retrieved July 24, 2017, from http://www.worldcitiescultureforum.com/assets/others/170815 MSFC Report DIGITAL updated2.pdf
- August, M., & Walks, A. (2017). Gentrification, suburban decline, and the financialization of multi-family rental housing: The case of Toronto. *Geoforum*. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.geoforum.2017.04.011
- Bain, A. L. (2006). Resisting the creation of forgotten places: Artistic production in Toronto neighbourhoods. Canadian Geographer / Le Géographe Canadien, 50(4), 417–431. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1541-0064.2006.00155.x
- Bain, A. L. (2016). Neighbourhood artistic disaffiliation in Hamilton, Ontario, Canada. *Urban Studies*. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098016658390
- Beattie, S. (2018, February 12). Toronto council backs 50 per cent property tax reduction for culture hubs. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/city_hall/2018/02/12/toronto-council-backs-50-per-cent-property-tax-reduction-for-culture-hubs.html

- Bennett, K. (2017, February 24). Stories from a shifting city, told by 8 Hamilton artists. *CBC.Ca*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/stories-from-a-shifting-city-told-by-8-hamilton-artists-1.3996991
- Brown-Saracino, J. (2010). *The Gentrification Debates: A Reader*. Routledge.
- BYU Furman Centre. (2016). *Gentrification Response: A Survey of Strategies to Maintain Neighbourhood Economic Diversity*. NYU Furman Center.
 - http://furmancenter.org/files/NYUFurmanCenter_GentrificationResponse_26OCT2016.pdf
- CBC News. (2018, July 19). I will not be pushed out: 40-year-old Parkdale dance school faces uncertain future. CBC. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/pia-bouman-dance-school-1.4753567
- Cities for People, Not for Profit. (n.d.). Cities for People, Not for Profit: Gentrification and Housing Activism in Bushwick, NY. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://citiesforppl.org/
- Daniel, V. A. H. (2016). Community-Based Art and Gentrification: A Bronzeville Story. *Informática Na Educação: Teoria & Prática, 19*(1). http://www.seer.ufrgs.br/index.php/InfEducTeoriaPratica/article/view/57837
- Davey, M. (2017, October 4). Gentrification, street art and the rise of the developer-sponsored block party. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/australia-news/2017/oct/05/gentrification-street-art-and-the-rise-of-the-bogus-block-party
- Davis, B. (2013, October 15). Are Artists to Blame for Gentrification? *Slate*. http://www.slate.com/articles/life/culturebox/2013/10/are_artists_to_blame_for_gentrification_or_would_soho_chelsea_and_bushwick.html
- Dineen, J. K. (2017, October 24). *SF legislation aims to save cultural enclaves from gentrification.* Laredo Morning Times. http://www.lmtonline.com/bayarea/article/SF-legislation-aims-to-save-cultural-enclaves-12300686.php
- Donish, C. J. (2013). Geographies of art and urban change: Contesting gentrification through aesthetic encounters in San Francisco's mission district ProQuest [University of Oregon]. ProQuest Dissertations Publishing. https://search.proquest.com/openview/bd19d71bbce151b5259a6dd3f7b40412/1?pq-origsite=gscholar&cbl=18750&diss=y
- Equitable Development Toolkit. (n.d.). PolicyLink. Retrieved October 14, 2017, from http://www.policylink.org/equity-tools/equitable-development-toolkit/about-toolkit
- Ferguson, L. (2017, October 5). *Queen West super hub proposal aims to create "some magic" in Parkdale*. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/ddee5610-a935-11e7-9f9d-121bebc5777e/
- Fragoza, C. (2018, July 4). Los Angeles Artists Reinvent Their Roles in Gentrifying Communities. *The American Prospect*. http://prospect.org/article/los-angeles-artists-reinvent-their-roles-gentrifying-communities
- Francassa, D. (2018, May 20). SF cultural districts gain footing in preserving neighborhoods' heritage. San Francisco Chronicle. https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/SF-cultural-districts-gain-footing-in-preserving-12929662.php
- Galley, A. (n.d.). Community Benefits Agreements (The Prosperous Province: Strategies for Building Community Wealth). Mowat Centre and Atkinson Foundation. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://communitybenefitsagreements.ca/
- GEOLOOM co>map: Cultural Mapping—A handbook for developing a creative placemaking tool. (2017). BNIA: Baltimore Neighbourhood Indicators Alliance. http://bniajfi.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/GEOLOOM-Handbook-FINAL.pdf
- Graves, J. (n.d.). How Artists Can Fight Back Against Cities That Are Taking Advantage of Them. The Stranger. Retrieved November 16, 2017, from http://www.thestranger.com/seattle/how-artists-can-fight-backagainst-cities-that-are-taking-advantage-of-them/Content?oid=20655350
- Grodach, C. (2016). Arts, gentrification, and planning for creativity. *Carolina Planning Journal*, 41, 22–29. Grodach, C., Foster, N., & Murdoch, J. (2014). Gentrification and the Artistic Dividend: The Role of the Arts in Neighborhood Change. *Journal of the American Planning Association*, 80(1), 21–35. https://doi.org/10.1080/01944363.2014.928584
- Grounded Solutions Network: What About Housing? (2017, October 1). Issuu. https://issuu.com/groundedsolutionsnetwork/docs/toolkit.gsn.final3
- Gupta, R. (2018, July 10). Pia Bouman School of Ballet could leave Parkdale area after 40 years. *Toronto.Com.* https://www.toronto.com/news-story/8732499-pia-bouman-school-of-ballet-could-leave-parkdale-area-after-40-years/

- Hackworth, J., & Smith, N. (2001). The changing state of gentrification. *Tijdschrift Voor Economische En Sociale Geografie*, 92(4), 464–477. https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-9663.00172
- Harris, M. (2017, October 10). London's studio crisis is a new design district the answer? Digital Arts. https://www.digitalartsonline.co.uk/features/creative-business/londons-studio-crisis-is-new-design-district-answer/
- Helguera, P. (2011). *Education for Socially Engaged Art: A Materials and Techniques Handbook*. Lightning Source Inc. https://c4atlanta.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Education-for-Socially-Engaged-Art.pdf
- Hengels, A. (2017, March 20). *How to Fight Gentrification's Real Culprit, Political Privilege*. PanAmPost. https://panampost.com/editor/2017/03/20/political-privilege-and-class-war-in-the-urban-housing-market/
- Hicks, A. (2019, January 21). Do Arts Industries Lead to Gentrification? *Chicago Policy Review*. http://chicagopolicyreview.org/2019/01/21/do-arts-industries-lead-to-gentrification/
- Hill, K. (2010). Mapping Artists and Cultural Workers in Canada's Large Cities: A study prepared for the City of Vancouver, the City of Calgary, the City of Toronto, the City of Ottawa, and the Ville de Montréal based on 2006 census data. Hill Strategies Research.
 - http://wx.toronto.ca/inter/it/newsrel.nsf/a49e435cb54f259e85257aa700574e94/2d941063f1525da2852576c50074ac1d
- Jones, T., & Woodley, S. (2017, August 9). How can cities make space for culture? *World Cities Culture Forum: News.* http://www.worldcitiescultureforum.com/news/how-can-cities-make-space-for-culture
- King, R. L. (2016, September 13). The hidden pockets in Toronto where gentrification is really happening. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2016/09/13/the-hidden-pockets-in-toronto-where-gentrification-is-really-happening.html
- Kramer, A. (2019). Inside and Outside: A Meditation on the Yellowbelt. In *House Divided: How the Missing Middle can Solve Toronto's Affordability Crisis* (pp. 142–153). Coach House Books.
- Lavanga, M. (2013). Artists in Urban Regeneration Processes: Use and Abuse? *Territoire en mouvement Revue de géographie et aménagement. Territory in movement Journal of geography and planning, 17–18,* 6–19. https://doi.org/10.4000/tem.1971
- Levy, D., Comey, J., & Padilla, S. (2006). *In the Face of Gentrification: Case Studies of Local Efforts to Mitigate Displacement*. The Urban Institute, Metropolitan Housing and Communities Policy Center. https://www.urban.org/sites/default/files/publication/50791/411294-In-the-Face-of-Gentrification.PDF
- Ley, D. (1997). The New Middle Class and the Remaking of the Central City (1 edition). Oxford University Press.
- Ley, D. (2003). Artists, Aestheticisation and the Field of Gentrification. *Urban Studies*, *40*(12), 2527–2544. https://doi.org/10.1080/0042098032000136192
- Louis, S., & Burns, L. (2014). *Arts & Equity Toolkit*. Neighbourhood Arts Network, Toronto Arts Foundation. https://neighbourhoodartsnetwork.org/tac/media/BMO-Learning-Room-Links/ArtsEquityToolkit.pdf?ext=.pdf
- Mathews, V. (2010). Aestheticizing Space: Art, Gentrification and the City. *Geography Compass*, 4(6), 660–675. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1749-8198.2010.00331.x
- McCarthy, J., & Wang, Y. (2016). Culture, creativity and commerce: Trajectories and tensions in the case of Beijing's 798 Art Zone. *International Planning Studies*, 21(1), 1–15. https://doi.org/10.1080/13563475.2015.1114446
- McGrath, J. M. (2019, July 2). Why there's no help on the horizon for Toronto's housing crisis. TVO.Org. http://www.tvo.org/article/why-theres-no-help-on-the-horizon-for-torontos-housing-crisis
- Miles, M. (2015). Limits to Culture: Urban Regeneration Vs. Dissident Art. Pluto Press.
- National Housing Strategy. (2018). The Conference Board of Canada.
 - https://www.placetocallhome.ca/pdfs/Canada-National-Housing-Strategy.pdf
- Neigh, S. (n.d.). *Queers against gentrification*. Retrieved November 12, 2017, from http://rabble.ca/podcasts/shows/talking-radical-radio/2016/02/queers-against-gentrification
- Opillard, F. (2015). Resisting the Politics of Displacement in the San Francisco Bay Area: Anti-gentrification Activism in the Tech Boom 2.0. *European Journal of American Studies, 10*(3). https://doi.org/10.4000/ejas.11322
- O'Rourke, D. (2010, November 10). *To the Footsoldiers of Gentrification*. Toronto Media Co-Op. http://toronto.mediacoop.ca/story/footsoldiers-gentrification/5103

- O'Sullivan, F. (2016, September 13). London Will Set Up Special "Creative Zones" for Artist Housing. CityLab. http://www.citylab.com/cityfixer/2016/09/londons-plan-to-set-up-creative-zones-for-artist-housing/499823/
- Pelley, L. (2018, September 10). Small businesses "taxed out" across Toronto hoping for long-term solution. CBC News. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/taxed-out-toronto-1.4809759
- Pham, T. (2019, February 5). *From Affordability to Artwashing: An Inquiry*. Canadian Art. https://canadianart.ca/essays/from-affordability-to-artwashing-an-inquiry/
- Powell-Twagirumukiza, N. (2017, May 16). Here's How Queer and Trans People of Color Are Resisting Gentrification and Displacement. Autostraddle. https://www.autostraddle.com/queering-the-land-how-queer-and-trans-people-of-color-are-resisting-gentrification-and-displacement-379320/
- Public Consultations—Economic Development and Culture Divisional Strategy (2018-2022). (n.d.). City of Toronto. Retrieved October 29, 2017, from https://www1.toronto.ca/wps/portal/contentonly?vgnextoid=61f1c4de41e26510VgnVCM10000071d60f89
 - RCRD&projectID=330
- *PUSH Buffalo Annual Report 2018.* (n.d.). https://www.pushbuffalo.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/PUSH-AnnualReport2018.pdf
- Ruggiero, A. (2014). *Gentrification Reconsidered: The Case of the Junction* [Major Paper, York University]. https://pdfs.semanticscholar.org/027e/183b56a5fc66d90968a3a7aaa70509fa8743.pdf
- Rushowy, K. (2017, September 26). Toronto arts hub 401 Richmond getting property tax relief. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/queenspark/2017/09/26/401-richmond-getting-property-tax-relief.html
- Ryan, J. R. S. (2017). Arts-Based Gentrification in Hamilton, ON. *Journal of Undergraduate Studies at Trent (JUST)*, 5(1), 61–67.
- Ryerson City Building Institute. (2018, July 24). Taxed Out. *Ryerson City Building Institute*. https://www.citybuildinginstitute.ca/portfolio/taxed-out/
- Sheppard, S. (n.d.). Why is Gentrification a Problem? Centre for Creative Community Development, Williams College. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from
 - http://web.williams.edu/Economics/ArtsEcon/library/pdfs/WhylsGentrificationAProbREFORM.pdf
- Sherman, D. (2016). Exploring the Ways Arts and Culture Intersects with Housing: Emerging Practices and Implications for Further Action—A Creative Placemaking Field Scan. ArtPlace America. https://www.artplaceamerica.org/view/pdf?f=/sites/default/files/public/pictures/artplace_field_scan_housing_sherman_apr_2016.pdf
- Slater, T., & University of Toronto: Centre for Urban and Community Studies. (2005). *Toronto's South Parkdale neighbourhood: A brief history of development, disinvestment, and gentrification*. University of Toronto Centre for Urban and Community Studies. http://www.urbancentre.utoronto.ca/pdfs/researchbulletins/CUCS-RB-28-Slater-Parkd.pdf
- Smith, J. (2019, October 23). Dramatic loss of Vancouver's art spaces drives Displacement Forum & Exhibition, put on by Eastside Culture Crawl Society. The Georgia Straight. https://www.straight.com/arts/1317106/dramatic-loss-vancouvers-art-spaces-drives-displacement-forum-exhibition-put-eastside
- Smith, N. (1996). The New Urban Frontier: Gentrification and the Revanchist City (1 edition). Routledge.
- Stephenson Jr., M. O., & Tate, A. S. (Eds.). (2015). *Arts and Community Change: Exploring Cultural Development Policies, Practices and Dilemmas.* Routledge Taylor & Francis Group.
- Stock, N. (2017). Creative Placemaking: Art as a Genesis for Civic Transformation. *Artrepreneur*. https://abj.artrepreneur.com/creative-placemaking/
- Taylor, N. (2019, January 16). *Evans Contemporary: Arts, Commerce, and the Downtown Core—Arthur Newspaper*.

 Trent Arthur. http://www.trentarthur.ca/evans-contemporary-arts-commerce-downtown-core/
- Thomas, M. (2017, October 24). Google's city of the future could be a cultural void. Here's how to fix it. *Medium*. https://medium.com/@matthardythomas/three-simple-ways-googles-city-of-the-future-can-get-culture-right-92604b022302
- U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. (2016). *Ensuring Equitable Neighborhood Change:*Gentrification Pressures on Housing Affordability (Insights into Housing and Community Development Policy). U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Office of Policy Development and Research. https://www.huduser.gov/portal/sites/default/files/pdf/Insights-Ensuring-Equitable-Growth.pdf

- Valverde, M. (2015, November 17). How to consult in gentrifying neighbourhoods. *Spacing Toronto*. http://spacing.ca/toronto/2015/11/17/consult-gentrifying-neighbourhoods/
- Vona, V. (2016). The role of art and artists in contesting gentrification in London and New York City [Ph.D., King's College London]. http://kclpure.kcl.ac.uk/portal/en/theses/the-role-of-art-and-artists-in-contesting-gentrification-in-london-and-new-york-city(b7db0c51-6276-4094-8bce-77a72bab0c92).html
- Walks, A. R., & Maaranen, R. (n.d.). *Neighbourhood gentrification and upgrading in Montreal, Toronto and Vancouver*. Retrieved July 3, 2019, from
 - http://www.urbancentre.utoronto.ca/pdfs/researchbulletins/CUCS RB 43-Walks-Gentrification2008.pdf
- Wasielewski, A. (2018). *Made in Brooklyn: Artists, Hipsters, Makers, Gentrifiers*. Zero Books.
- Winter, J. (2017, December 13). *Toronto development threatens to scatter artist community*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/toronto-development-threatens-to-scatter-artistcommunity/article37323583/
- WorkInCulture. (2019). *MakingItWork: Pathways toward sustainable cultural careers*. https://www.workinculture.ca/getattachment/FYI/WorkInCulture-Connects/May-2019/WorkInCulture-Releases-Culture-Sector-Career-Susta/MakingItWork_Pathways-(May)-(1).pdf.aspx?lang=en-CA
- Yu, B. (2017). Chinatown Art Brigade: Resisting gentrification through the power of art, culture and stories. *Visual Inquiry: Learning & Teaching Art, 6*(2), 173–178. EBSCOhost.
- Zuk, M., Bierbaum, A. H., Chapple, K., Gorska, K., & Loukaitou-Sideris, A. (2017). Gentrification, Displacement, and the Role of Public Investment. *Journal of Planning Literature*, 0885412217716439. https://doi.org/10.1177/0885412217716439
- Zukin, S. (1989). Loft Living: Culture and Capital in Urban Change. Rutgers University Press.

- Alena Museum. (n.d.). Retrieved July 15, 2018, from https://alenamuseum.com/
- Anderson, A. B. (2013). *Home in the City: Urban Aboriginal Housing and Living Conditions*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Andrew-Gee, E. (2014, December 7). Toronto is divided, but not as badly as other major cities. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/07/how_divided_is_toronto_not_as_badly_as_some_it_turns_out.html
- ArtPlace America. (n.d.). ArtPlace America. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://www.artplaceamerica.org/ Artscape Triangle Lofts Case Study. (2018). Artscape. https://www.artscape.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/2018-03-02_ArtscapeTriangleLofts_CaseStudy.pdf
- Bain, A. L. (2013). *Creative Margins: Cultural Production in Canadian Suburbs*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Borrup, T. (2015). *Creativity in Urban Placemaking: Horizontal Networks and Social Equity in Three Cultural Districts* [Anitoch University].
 - https://etd.ohiolink.edu/letd.send file?accession=antioch1444733569&disposition=inline
- Borrup, T. (2016). Creative Placemaking: Arts and Culture as a Partner in Community Revitalization. In Fundamentals of Arts Management. University of Massachusetts. http://creativecommunitybuilders.com/wp-content/uploads/Borrup-Creative-Placemaking-2016-UMASS.pdf
- Bound, R. (2016, September 26). Are the arts responsible for gentrification? (No. 259). In *Culture with Robert Bound*. Monocle 24. https://monocle.com/radio/shows/culture-with-robert-bound/259/
- Brodyn, A., Ghaziani, A., Sutherland, D. K., & Stillwagon, R. (2018, September 19). *Queer pop-ups take us beyond the gaybourhood*. The Conversation. Retrieved September 1, 2019, from http://theconversation.com/queer-pop-ups-take-us-beyond-the-gaybourhood-102828
- Bunting, T. E., & Filion, P. (2006). *Canadian cities in transition: Local through global perspectives* (3rd ed.). Oxford University Press.
- Carter, A. (2018, September 11). For those left behind: Hamilton's arts renaissance isn't working for everyone. CBC News Hamilton. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/hamilton-arts-1.4811797

- Center for Community Innovation. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://communityinnovation.berkeley.edu/
- Centre for Neighborhood and Community Improvement. (2015). *Gentrification & Neighbourhood Change: Helpful Tools for Communities.* https://voorheescenter.red.uic.edu/wp-content/uploads/sites/122/2017/10/Gentrification-and-Neighborhood-Change-Toolkit.pdf
- Changemaker profile: The Speakers Bureau Hamilton Roundtable for Poverty Reduction. (2017, July 9). Cities for People. http://www.citiesforpeople.ca/en/blogroll/changemaker-profile-the-speakers-bureau-hamilton-roundtable-for-poverty-reduction
- Chicago Residents Utilizing Gentrification Index to Identify At-Risk Neighborhoods. (n.d.). Smart Cities Dive. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.smartcitiesdive.com/ex/sustainablecitiescollective/chicago-residents-utilizing-gentrification-index-identify-risk-neighb/1251797/
- Community Land Trust. (n.d.). Community Land Trust. Retrieved October 3, 2017, from http://cltnetwork.org/ Community Land Trusts (CLTs). (2012, June 21). Community-Wealth.Org. http://community-wealth.org/strategies/panel/clts/index.html
- Creative Places & Businesses: Catalyzing Growth in Communities. (2017). Upstart Co-Lab. http://www.upstartco-lab.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/170320-CPB-Final-Report.pdf
- Cultural Prosperity Plan. (2013). City of London. https://www.london.ca/About-London/culture/Documents/London%20Cultural%20Prosperity%20Plan.pdf
- Curran, W. (2010). In Defense of Old Industrial Spaces: Manufacturing, Creativity and Innovation in Williamsburg, Brooklyn: Manufacturing, creativity and innovation in Williamsburg, Brooklyn. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 34(4), 871–885. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-2427.2010.00915.x
- DeFillippis, J., Williams, O., Pierce, J., Martin, D. G., Kruger, R., & Esfahani, A. (2019). On the Transformative Potential of Community Land Trusts in the Unite States. *Antipode*, *51*(3), 795–817.
- Delgadillo, N. (n.d.). *The Neighborhood That Went to War Against Gentrifiers*. CityLab. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://www.citylab.com/housing/2017/03/the-neighborhood-that-went-to-war-against-gentrifiers/518181/
- Deutsche, R., & Ryan, C. G. (1984). The Fine Art of Gentrification. *October 31*, 91. https://doi.org/10.2307/778358 Digg. (n.d.). *The Most Unaffordable Housing Markets In North America, Charted*. Retrieved October 28, 2017, from http://digg.com/2017/most-unaffordable-housing-markets
- Doug Newman. (n.d.). *Creating the Collective: Challenges on 23rd Avenue*. Open Space. Retrieved July 17, 2019, from https://openspace.sfmoma.org/2018/05/creating-the-collective-challenges-on-23rd-avenue/
- Durrett, C., & McCamant, K. (2011). *Creating Cohousing: Building Sustainable Communities*. New Society Publishers. Duxbury, N., Kangas, A., & Beukelaer, C. D. (2017). Cultural policies for sustainable development: Four strategic paths. *International Journal of Cultural Policy*, 23(2), 214–230. https://doi.org/10.1080/10286632.2017.1280789
- Edwards, S. (2018, August 29). *How Toronto landlords use renovictions to force out tenants*. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/0232e6d6-abcd-11e8-8f3e-120e7ad5cf50/
- Empty Space Project. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2019, from https://emptyspaceproject.com
- Evaluation of the Impact of Increases to City of Toronto Cultural Grants from 2012 to 2016: Final Report. (2017). Nordicity. https://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2017/ed/bgrd/backgroundfile-109143.pdf
- Freeman, L. (2016). *Creative Placemaking: Towards and Evaluative Framework.* http://scholarsbank.uoregon.edu/xmlui/handle/1794/20075
- Gillespie, D. (2017, June 21). The New Hamiltonians. *Toronto Life*. https://torontolife.com/real-estate/the-new-hamiltonians/
- Gillis, A. (2017, May 4). *Cities as a commons: Sharing vision, resources and power*. Cities for People. http://www.citiesforpeople.ca/en/blogroll/cities-as-a-commons-sharing-vision-resources-and-power
- Grodach, C., Murdoch, J., & Foster, N. (2017, February 14). Arts industries do not cause gentrification- they tend to chase it. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2017/02/14/arts-industries-do-not-cause-gentrification-they-tend-to-chase-it/
- Happé, A. (2010, November 18). Reclaiming Ground for the Arts on Queen West. *Torontoist*. https://torontoist.com/2010/11/reclaiming_ground_for_the_arts_on_queen_west/
- Hyde, Z. (2014). Omnivorous Gentrification: Restaurant Reviews and Neighborhood Change in the Downtown Eastside of Vancouver. *City & Community*, *13*(4), 341–359. https://doi.org/10.1111/cico.12088

- Jacobs, K. (2017, October 16). *The High Line Network Tackles Gentrification*. Architect. http://www.architectmagazine.com/Design/the-high-line-network-tackles-gentrification o
- Jaeger, A. (2017, May 2). A Space for Us. Electric City Magazine. http://www.electriccitymagazine.ca/2017/05/a-space-for-us/
- Jones, S. (2016, May 6). Creating positive action to support unrecognised female artists. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/culture-professionals-network/2016/may/06/create-positive-action-support-unrecognised-female-artists
- Klingbeil, C. (2017, October 31). Toronto eyes new tax class that could spell relief for small businesses. *The Globe and Mail.* https://www.theglobeandmail.com/report-on-business/small-business/sb-managing/toronto-eyes-new-tax-class-that-could-spell-relief-for-small-businesses/article36777477/
- Kuka, A. (2017). Community Land Trusts: A Help or Hindrance to Community Development in the United States (No. 27). Stevenson Center for Community and Economic Development, Illinois State University. http://ir.library.illinoisstate.edu/scced/27
- Larsson, N. (2017, July 6). The final bar? How gentrification threatens America's music cities. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/jul/06/gentrification-america-music-cities-austin-nashville-new-orleans
- Lees, L., Slater, T., & Wyly, E. (Eds.). (2010). The Gentrification Reader (1 edition). Routledge.
- Lewington, J. (2013, November 18). School's out and reinvented spaces are in. *The Globe and Mail.* https://www.theglobeandmail.com/report-on-business/industry-news/property-report/schools-out-and-reinvented-spaces-are-in/article15491681/
- Lick, T. P. (2017, September 27). *The Paradoxical Nature of Gentrification in Long Beach's Gayborhood*. KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/city-rising/the-paradoxical-nature-of-gentrification-in-long-beachs-gayborhood
- Lorinc, J. (2008). Cities: A Groundwork Guide. Groundwood Books.
- Lorinc, J. (2015, July 24). *Rising rents, noise and health issues: Is Artscape failing its tenants who seek affordable livework studios?* The Globe and Mail. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/rising-rents-noise-and-health-issues-is-artscape-failing-its-tenants-who-seek-affordable-live-work-studios/article25672400/
- Lubell, J. (2016). Preserving and Expanding Affordability in Neighborhoods Experiencing Rising Rents and Property Values. Cityscape: A Journal of Policy Development and Research, 18(3), 131–150.
- MacKinnon, E., & Pellerin, C. (2018). *More than Money: How social finance can build resilience in the arts sector.*Metcalf Foundation. https://metcalffoundation.com/stories/publications/more-than-money/
- Madden, D., & Marcuse, P. (2017). The Right to the City: A Verso Report.
- Makagon, D. (2010). Bring on the Shock Troops: Artists and Gentrification in the Popular Press. *Communication and Critical/Cultural Studies*, 7(1), 26–52. https://doi.org/10.1080/14791420903527772
- Marques, L., & Borba, C. (2017). Co-creating the city: Digital technology and creative tourism. *Tourism Management Perspectives*, *24*, 86–93. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tmp.2017.07.007
- Maschaykh, U. (2015). The Changing Image of Affordable Housing: Design, Gentrification and Community in Canada and Europe. Routledge.
- Mathews, V. (2004). *The art of ideology: Theorizing artists and gentrification in the space of Yorkville, Toronto*. http://ezproxy.library.yorku.ca/login?url=http://gateway.proquest.com/openurl?url_ver=Z39.88-2004&res_dat=xri:pgm&rft_val_fmt=info:ofi/fmt:kev:mtx:dissertation&rft_dat=xri:pgdiss:MQ99356
- Mathews, V. (2008). Artcetera: Narrativising Gentrification in Yorkville, Toronto. *Urban Studies*, *45*(13), 2849–2876. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098008098209
- McDonough, L., Dinca-Panaitescu, M., Procyk, S., Cook, C., Drydyk, J., Laflèche, M., & McKee, J. (2015). *The Opportunity Equation: Building opportunity in the face of growing income inequality* (Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). United Way Toronto & York Region, EKPS Research Associates, University of Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/documents/2015/12/opportunity-equation.pdf
- McElroy, E. (2016, January 14). The anti-eviction blues: Audio reports from San Francisco's gentrifying streets. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/jan/14/anti-eviction-blues-audio-reports-san-franciscogentrifying-streets
- Milton, J. (2016, October 31). Anti-Gentrification Groups Push For Community-Centred Spaces. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/anti-gentrification-groups-push-for-community-centred-spaces

- Moss Park residents push back against The 519. (2016, April 8). Xtra. https://www.dailyxtra.com/moss-park-residents-push-back-against-the-519-70656
- O'Brien, H. M., Sanchez Juarez, C., & Martin, B. (2017, June 19). *An Artists' Guide to Not Being Complicit with Gentrification*. Hyperallergic. https://hyperallergic.com/385176/an-artists-guide-to-not-being-complicit-with-gentrification/
- Out, B. (2017, August 23). The Cultural Ramifications of Gentrification in New Orleans. *Shelterforce*. https://shelterforce.org/2017/08/23/cultural-ramifications-gentrification-new-orleans/
- Parkdale Arts & Cultural Centre: Case Study. (n.d.). Retrieved June 7, 2019, from https://www.artscape.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/2018-03-02_ParkdaleACC_CaseStudy.pdf
- Rankin, K. N., Kamizaki, K., McLean, H., Canadian Electronic Library (Firm), Canadian Electronic Library York University, & University of Toronto: Cities Centre (2013). *The state of business in Mount Dennis: Disinvestment and gentrification in Toronto's inner-suburbs.* Canadian Electronic Library. http://ezproxy.library.yorku.ca/login?url=http://books.scholarsportal.info/viewdoc.html?id=/ebooks/ebooks0/gibson_cppc/2014-06-25/1/10863627
- Rayner, B. (2017). Affordable-housing project in Regent Park envisioned just for musicians. *The Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/music/2017/06/12/affordable-housing-project-in-regent-park-envisioned-just-for-musicians.html
- Rose, K. (n.d.). Combating Gentrification Through Equitable Development. *Reimagine RP&E Journal*. Retrieved October 14, 2017, from http://www.reimaginerpe.org/node/919
- Rousseau, M. (2009). Re-imaging the City Centre for the Middle Classes: Regeneration, Gentrification and Symbolic Policies in 'Loser Cities.' *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, *33*(3), 770–788. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-2427.2009.00889.x
- Sholette, G. (2017). *Delirium and Resistance: Activist art and the crisis of capitalism.* Pluto Press.
- Sketch. (n.d.). SKETCH Working Arts. Retrieved June 19, 2019, from https://www.sketch.ca/
- Stanley, A. (2019, July 2). Food fuels Hamilton's gentrification. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/business/industry-news/property-report/article-food-fuels-hamiltons-gentrification/
- Sturtevant, L. (2016, July 7). Can We Predict Gentrification? *Helping Hands Blog: Housing Association of Nonprofit Developers*. https://www.handhousing.org/can-we-predict-gentrification/
- Tencer, D. (2019, June 1). Toronto is the fastest-growing city in the U.S and Canada and that's not good. *Huffington Post Canada*. https://www.huffingtonpost.ca/entry/toronto-population-growth_ca_5cf28f26e4b0e346ce7eef73
- Tianga, K. A. (2017, July 21). Art in the Face of Gentrification. *Shelterforce*. https://shelterforce.org/2017/07/21/art-face-gentrification/
- United Way. (n.d.). *Rebalancing the Opportunity Equation*. Retrieved June 14, 2019, from https://www.unitedwaygt.org/file/2019 OE fullreport FINAL.pdf
- Urban Displacement Project. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.urbandisplacement.org/
- Walks, A. R., & Maaranen, R. (2008). *The Timing, Patterning, & Forms of Gentrification & Neighbourhood Upgrading in Montreal, Toronto, & Vancouver, 1961 to 2001* (Research Paper No. 211). Centre for Urban and Community Studies, University of Toronto. http://www.urbancentre.utoronto.ca/pdfs/publications/RP211Walk-Maaranen-Gentrification1960-2001.pdf
- Whyte, M. (2013a, November 18). The Koffler Gallery: Uptown Comes Downtown. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2013/11/18/the_koffler_gallery_uptown_comes_down_town.html
- Whyte, M. (2013b, November 20). Shaw Street School reopens as Artscape Youngplace. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2013/11/20/shaw_street_school_reopens_as_artscape_youngplace.html
- Whyte, M. (2017, February 3). Akin Collective buys artists space and time. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2017/02/03/akin-collective-buys-artists-space-and-time.html
- Zuk, M., & Chapple, K. (2015). Case Studies on Gentrification and Displacement in the San Francisco Bay Area (p. 159). Centre for Community Innovation, University of California. https://www.urbandisplacement.org/sites/default/files/anti-displacement_full_report_11.15.pdf

- 2018 Artists' Workspace Annual Data Note: Cultural Infrastructure Plan. (2018). Mayor of London. https://www.creativelandtrust.org/assets/papers/2018%20artists%20workspace%20study%20data%20not e.pdf
- Aitken, J. (2016). *Art Practices & The Housing Crisis* (J. Aitken, Ed.). https://iudblog.org/2016/12/17/conference-recordings-art-practices-the-housing-crisis/
- Akin Collective. (n.d.). Akin Collective. Retrieved January 6, 2018, from http://www.akincollective.com/
- Arts & Culture Archives. (n.d.). *Shelterforce*. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://shelterforce.org/category/arts-culture/
- Baci, E., Costantini, J., Hines, J., & Hunter, Ar., AIS & Bronwen. (2017). Exploring the Link Between Rising House Prices and Counter Urbanization in Toronto with a GIS Approach. *Landmarks: The Undergraduate Geography Journal, University of Toronto, 3,* 76–95.
- Bain, A. L. (2003). Constructing contemporary artistic identities in Toronto neighbourhoods. *The Canadian Geographer/Le Géographe Canadien*, 47(3), 303–317. https://doi.org/10.1111/1541-0064.00024
- Baltimore's Push to Solve Its Affordable Housing Crisis With Community Land Trusts. (2017, August 25).

 **Resilience.* http://www.resilience.org/stories/2017-08-25/baltimores-push-to-solve-its-affordable-housing-crisis-with-community-land-trusts/*
- Bandarin, F. (n.d.). *Culture: Key to the sustainability of cities* (World Heritage No. 81; In Foucs: Sustainable Cities). UNESCO: United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://www.unesco.org/culture/culture-for-sustainable-urban-development/WH81-en.pdf
- Barrington-Bush, L. (2017, November 16). *Is this corner the tipping point for Parkdale?* NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/800363d8-ca4b-11e7-b8f1-121bebc5777e/
- Batabyal, A. A. (2017). A Note on Optimal Income Redistribution in a Creative Region (SSRN Scholarly Paper ID 2985090). Social Science Research Network. https://papers.ssrn.com/abstract=2985090
- Books, T. E. D. (Ed.). (2013). City 2.0: The Habitat of the Future and How to Get There. TED Conferences.
- Bousquet, C. (2017, June 5). Where is Gentrification Happening in Your City?: Using Mapping to Understand Gentrification and Prevent Displacement. Data-Smart City Solutions.
 - http://datasmart.ash.harvard.edu/news/article/where-is-gentrification-happening-in-your-city-1055
- Brown, D. (2018, October 29). Canada's Broken Housing System Has Made It Brutal For Millennials to Buy Homes. Vice. https://www.vice.com/en_ca/article/43ejdm/canada-has-a-broken-housing-system-and-it-has-fucked-over-millennials
- Brown, K. (2017, September 28). *Police Swarm the Volksbühne Theater in Berlin to Remove Anti-Gentrification Art Collective*. Artnet News. https://news.artnet.com/art-world/volksbuhne-police-occupation-1098815
- Brown-Saracino, J. (2010). *A Neighborhood That Never Changes: Gentrification, Social Preservation, and the Search for Authenticity*. University Of Chicago Press.
- Bunce, S. (2018). Sustainability Policy, Planning and Gentrification in Cities (1st edition). Routledge.
- Buntin, J., & Stern, M. J. (2015, January 14). The Myth of Gentrification. Slate.
 - http://www.slate.com/articles/news_and_politics/politics/2015/01/the_gentrification_myth_it_s_rare_and not as bad for the poor as people.html
- Cameron, S., & Coaffee, J. (2005). Art, Gentrification and Regeneration From Artist as Pioneer to Public Arts. *International Journal of Housing Policy*, *5*(1), 39–58. https://doi.org/10.1080/14616710500055687
- Casnady, A. (2016, July 21). Toronto's rough Moss Park neighbourhood becoming the city's next gentrification battleground. *National Post*. http://nationalpost.com/news/toronto/weve-been-waiting-a-long-time-for-some-change-moss-parks-fraught-lines-between-facelift-and-gentrification
- Caulfield, J. (1994). *City Form and Everyday Life: Toronto's Gentrification and Critical Social Practice*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Caulfield, J. (2008). 'Gentrification' and desire. *Canadian Review of Sociology/Revue Canadienne de Sociologie*, 26(4), 617–632. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1755-618X.1989.tb00437.x
- Chapple, K. (2009). *Mapping Susceptibility to Gentrification: The Early Warning Toolkit*. Centre for Community Innovation, University of California. https://communityinnovation.berkeley.edu/reports/Gentrification-Report.pdf

- Chen, J., Stephens, M., & Man, Y. (Eds.). (2016). *The Future of Public Housing: Ongoing Trends in the East and the West* (Softcover reprint of the original 1st ed. 2013 edition). Springer. https://www.springer.com/gp/book/9783642416217
- Cheung, C. (2017, January 13). *Should Developers Meet Quotas for Affordable Housing Units?* The Tyee. https://thetyee.ca/News/2017/01/13/Affordable-Housing-Unit-Quotas/
- Chonody, J. M. (Ed.). (2014). *Community Art: Creative Approaches to Practice*. Common Ground Publishing. CityLab, R. B. (n.d.). "Gentrification" may be re-segregating American communities. Business Insider. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.businessinsider.com/gentrification-is-shifting-racial-boundaries-2016-8
- Communications MDR. (2016). *Environmental Scan of the Culture Sector: Ontario Culture Strategy Background Document*. Communications MDR.
 - https://ontariopresents.ca/sites/default/files/mtcs_environmental_scan_of_the_culture_sector_en.pdf
- Community Tool Box. (n.d.). Community Tool Box. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://ctb.ku.edu/en Cultural Planning. (n.d.). Ontario Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://www.mtc.gov.on.ca/en/culture/cul_planning.shtml
- Cunningham, C. (2017). Conflicted Commons: A Local Makerspace in the Neoliberal City. *Theses and Dissertations*. http://scholarscompass.vcu.edu/etd/4802
- Curran, W. (2017). Gender and Gentrification (1 edition). Routledge.
- Daniels, S. M. (2017, September 19). Chicago Community Replies to Gentrification With Inclusive Arts Space. *Next City*. https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/chicago-gentrification-inclusive-arts-space-paseo-boricua
- Davidson, J. (2019, August 5). New Studies Say Gentrification Doesn't Really Force Out Low-Income Residents. Intelligencer. http://nymag.com/intelligencer/2019/08/study-gentrification-doesnt-force-out-low-income-residents.html
- Davis, J. E., & Jacobus, R. (2008). *The City–CLT Partnership: Municipal Support for Community Land Trusts* [Policy Focus Report]. Lincoln Institute of Land Policy. http://www.lincolninst.edu/sites/default/files/pubfiles/the-city-clt-partnership-full.pdf
- De Costa, J. (2016, October 30). Protesters March Notre-Dame Street to Push Back Against Gentrification. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/protesters-march-notre-dame-street-to-push-back-against-gentrification
- de Oliver, M. (2016). Gentrification as the appropriation of therapeutic 'diversity': A model and case study of the multicultural amenity of contemporary urban renewal. *Urban Studies*, *53*(6), 1299–1316. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098015576314
- Delmelle, E. (2017, October 4). In recent decades, the clustering of rich and poor neighborhoods in America has continued, expanding inequality. *LSE US Centre, United States Politics and Policy.*http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2017/10/04/in-recent-decades-the-clustering-of-rich-and-poor-neighborhoods-in-america-has-continued-expanding-inequality/
- Deto, R. (2016, January 20). Land trust will help low-income residents purchase homes in Lawrenceville. *Pittsburgh City Paper*. https://www.pghcitypaper.com/pittsburgh/land-trust-will-help-low-income-residents-purchase-homes-in-lawrenceville/Content?oid=1884073
- Deto, R. (2017, July 6). Lawrenceville breaks ground on Pittsburgh's first Community Land Trust. *Pittsburgh City Paper*. https://www.pghcitypaper.com/Blogh/archives/2017/07/06/lawrenceville-breaks-ground-on-pittsburghs-first-community-land-trust
- Dixon, G. (2015, May 25). Arts and real estate a winning mix Artscape is exporting to B.C. *The Globe and Mail.* https://www.theglobeandmail.com/report-on-business/industry-news/property-report/arts-and-real-estate-a-winning-mix/article24590186/
- Donnelly, K. (2018). The Gentrifier's Dilemma: Narrative Strategies and Self-Justifications of Incoming Residents in Bedford-Stuyvesant, Brooklyn. *City & Community*, *17*(2), 374–393. https://doi.org/10.1111/cico.12296
- Eastwood, J. (2014, November 28). Map: 40 years of growing income inequality in Toronto. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/projects/toronto-s-three-cities--40-years-of-growing-income-inequality.html
- Embedded, Embedding: Artist Residencies, Urban Placemaking and Social Practice. (n.d.). The New School. Retrieved October 15, 2017, from http://www.residencyunlimited.org/dialogues/embedded-embedding/
- Epstein, G. (2018). A kinder, gentler gentrification: Racial identity, social mix and multiculturalism in Toronto's Parkdale neighborhood. *Social Identities*, 24(6), 707–726. https://doi.org/10.1080/13504630.2017.1310039 Fight for Beauty. (n.d.). http://fightforbeauty.westbankcorp.com/

- Florida, R. (2004). Cities and the Creative Class (1 edition). Routledge.
- Frock, C. L. (2014, February 7). *Priced Out: New Tech Wealth and San Francisco's Receding Art Scene*. KQED. https://www.kqed.org/arts/128856/priced-out-new-tech-wealth-and-san-franciscos-receding-art-scene
- Fullilove, M. T., & Bassett, M. T. (2016). *Root Shock: How Tearing Up City Neighborhoods Hurts America, And What We Can Do About It* (Reprint edition). New Village Press.
- Gentrification. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://themainlander.com/category/gentrification/
- Gibson, D. W. (2016). *The Edge Becomes the Center: An Oral History of Gentrification in the Twenty-First Century* (Reprint edition). Overlook Books.
- Gilbert, S. (2017, July 5). Gentrification and Hamilton Artists. *Hamilton Fringe Festival*. http://hamiltonfringe.ca/sky-gilbert-gentrification-hamilton-artists/
- Goldstein, B. D. (2017). *The Roots of Urban Renaissance: Gentrification and the Struggle over Harlem*. Harvard University Press.
- Green, J. (2016, November 17). Ending "Code Talk" About Gentrification. *Huffington Post*. http://www.huffingtonpost.com/jared-green/ending-code-talk-about-ge_b_13053398.html
- Grodach, C. (2010). Art spaces, public space, and the link to community development. *Community Development Journal*, 45(4), 474–493. https://doi.org/10.1093/cdj/bsp018
- Grodach, C., O'Connor, J., & Gibson, C. (2017). Manufacturing and cultural production: Towards a progressive policy agenda for the cultural economy. *City, Culture and Society, 10,* 17–25. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ccs.2017.04.003
- Grube-Cavers, A., & Patterson, Z. (2014, May 1). In order to keep mass transit accessible, we must understand the relationship between gentrification and public transportation. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2014/05/01/in-order-to-keep-mass-transit-accessible-we-must-understand-the-relationship-between-gentrification-and-public-transportation/
- Gupta, R. (2018, May 18). *Work advancing on Parkdale community hub plan*. Toronto.Com. https://www.toronto.com/news-story/8610834-work-advancing-on-parkdale-community-hub-plan/
- Hackworth, J., & Rekers, J. (2005). Ethnic Packaging and Gentrification: The Case of Four Neighborhoods in Toronto. *Urban Affairs Review*, 41(2), 211–236. https://doi.org/10.1177/1078087405280859
- Hae, L. (2012). The Gentrification of Nightlife and the Right to the City: Regulating Spaces of Social Dancing in New York. Routledge.
- Hall, P. (2014). Cities of Tomorrow: An Intellectual History of Urban Planning and Design Since 1880 (4 edition). Wiley-Blackwell.
- Hampton, C. (2017, April 22). Ferment and fear at the Hamilton Biennale. *Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2017/04/22/ferment-and-fear-at-the-hamilton-biennale.html
- Hansen, H. K., & Niedomysl, T. (2009). Migration of the creative class: Evidence from Sweden. *Journal of Economic Geography*, *9*(2), 191–206. https://doi.org/10.1093/jeg/lbn046
- Harris, A. (2012). Art and gentrification: Pursuing the urban pastoral in Hoxton, London: Art and gentrification. *Transactions of the Institute of British Geographers*, 37(2), 226–241. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1475-5661.2011.00465.x
- Harris, J. (2018, February 12). *Profiteers make a killing on Airbnb and erode communities*. The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2018/feb/12/profiteers-killing-airbnb-erode-communities
- Hartman, C. (1982). Displacement: How to Fight It. Natl Housing Law Project.
- Harvie, J., & Palgrave Theatre E-books York University. (2013). *Fair play: Art, performance and neoliberalism*. Palgrave Macmillan. http://www.library.yorku.ca/e/resolver/id/2597575
- Hern, C., & January 31, ez · C. A. ·. (2018, January 31). *The little spaces that could: How independent theatre companies are building community*. CBC. http://www.cbc.ca/arts/the-little-spaces-that-could-how-independent-theatre-companies-are-building-community-1.4512080
- How to be a Less Shitty Gentrifier: A Toolkit for People Hell Bent on Being New Renters in the SF Bay Area. (n.d.). Anti-Eviction Mapping Project. Retrieved May 17, 2018, from https://docs.google.com/document/d/1tSEHuEssmAqRonubM38XWbVjZtcOQHbbjvfWn9yyniM/edit?usp= embed_facebook
- Hulchanski, J. D. (1995). The concept of housing affordability: Six contemporary uses of the housing expenditure-to-income ratio. *Housing Studies*, *10*(4), 471–491.

- Hunt, S. (2017, March 21). *How Parkdale is surviving gentrification*. 680 NEWS. http://www.680news.com/2017/03/21/parkdale-surviving-gentrification/
- InterRent's Mass Displacement Strategy. (2018, August 11). *Hamilton Tenants Solidarity Network*. https://www.hamiltontenantssolidarity.ca/feed/interrent-s-mass-displacement-strategy
- Jarrid Green, & Thomas M. Hanna. (n.d.). *Community Control of Land & Housing*. The Democracy Collaborative. Retrieved July 17, 2019, from https://democracycollaborative.org/sites/clone.community-wealth.org/files/downloads/CommunityControlLandHousing.pdf
- Jones, A. (2019, April 2). Poverty activists plan free protest meal opposite luxury pop-up restaurant under the Gardiner. *Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2019/04/02/poverty-activists-plan-free-protest-meal-opposite-luxury-pop-up-restaurant-under-the-gardiner.html
- Jones, C. E., & Ley, D. (2016). Transit-oriented development and gentrification along Metro Vancouver's low-income SkyTrain corridor: Transit-oriented development. *The Canadian Geographer / Le Géographe Canadien*, 60(1), 9–22. https://doi.org/10.1111/cag.12256
- Kalinowski, T. (2016, September 3). Hamilton is having its moment: But the days of a cheap, two-storey Victorian may be gone. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/2016/09/03/hamilton-is-having-its-moment.html
- Keesmaat, J. (2017, December 13). *Jennifer Keesmaat: It's time to rethink Canada's housing system*. Maclean's. http://www.macleans.ca/opinion/jennifer-keesmaat-its-time-to-rethink-canadas-housing-system/amp/?__twitter_impression=true
- Kelly, M., & McKinley, S. (2015). 7 Paths to Development That Bring Neighborhoods Wealth, Not Gentrification. *YES! Magazine*. http://www.yesmagazine.org/new-economy/7-paths-to-development-that-bring-neighborhoods-wealth-not-gentrification-20151111
- Kennedy, M., & Leonard, P. (2001). *Dealing with Neighbourhood Change: A Primer on Gentrification and Policy Choices*. Brooking Institution Center on Urban and Metropolitan Policy and PolicyLink. https://www.brookings.edu/wp-content/uploads/2016/06/gentrification.pdf
- Kershaw, P. (2017, March 9). Pushing Back on Skyrocketing Housing Prices in Toronto. *Torontoist*. https://torontoist.com/2017/03/pushing-back-skyrocketing-housing-prices-toronto/
- Kingston Culture Plan. (2010). City of Kingston.
 - https://www.creativecity.ca/database/files/library/KingstonCulturePlan 2010.pdf
- Kinniburgh, C. (2017, August 9). How to Stop Gentrification. *The New Republic*. https://newrepublic.com/article/144260/stop-gentrification
- Knecht, L. (2018, March 21). When Artists and Tenants Join Forces in the Fight for Affordable Housing. D Magazine. https://www.dmagazine.com/arts-entertainment/2018/03/when-artists-and-tenants-join-forces/
- Kosut, M. (2016, September 13). We Are the Scene: Alternative Art Economies in Bushwick. *Metropolitics*. http://www.metropolitiques.eu/We-Are-the-Scene-Alternative-Art.html
- Kretzmann, J. P. (2006). Building Communities from the Inside Out: A Path Toward Finding and Mobilizing a Community's Assets. Acta Pubns.
- Kroth, M. (2017, October 2). *Santa Mari La Juaricua, Patron Saint of Anti-Gentrification*. CityLab. https://www.citylab.com/life/2017/10/mexico-city-santa-mari-la-juaricua/540855/
- Ladendorf, T. (2016, January 26). The Group of Artists That's Winning Fair Pay By Targeting Nonprofits. *In These Times*. http://inthesetimes.com/article/18764/wages-for-arts-sake
- Langegger, S. (2015). Right-of-way gentrification: Conflict, commodification and cosmopolitanism. *Urban Studies*, 53(9), 1803–1821. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098015583783
- Learn More About City Rising. (2017, April 20). KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/city-rising/the-story-of-city-rising
- Lees, L. (2014). Staying Put: An Anti-Gentrification Handbook for Council Estates in London. London Tenants Federation, Just Space, Southwark Notes Archive Group. https://southwarknotes.files.wordpress.com/2014/06/staying-put-web-version-low.pdf
- Lees, L., & Melhuish, C. (2015). Arts-led regeneration in the UK: The rhetoric and the evidence on urban social inclusion. *European Urban and Regional Studies*, 22(3), 242–260. https://doi.org/10.1177/0969776412467474 Lees, L., Slater, T., & Wyly, E. (2007). *Gentrification* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Lloyd, R. (2002). Neo–Bohemia: Art and Neighborhood Redevelopment in Chicago. *Journal of Urban Affairs*, 24(5), 517–532. https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-9906.00141

- Lobenfield, C. (2017, October 12). Portugal's Out.Fest might be an antidote to Lisbon's rising tide of gentrification. *FACT Magazine: Music News, New Music.* http://www.factmag.com/2017/10/12/out-fest-barreiro-portugal-review/
- Loukaitou-Sideris, A., Gonzalez, S., & Ong, P. (2017). Triangulating Neighborhood Knowledge to Understand Neighborhood Change: Methods to Study Gentrification. *Journal of Planning Education and Research*, 0739456X17730890. https://doi.org/10.1177/0739456X17730890
- Lund Hansen, A., & Clark, E. (2016, September 5). *The right to freedom from displacement—Practical implementation and challenges.* Human Rights City Summit 2016, Sweden. https://skl.se/download/18.4c08281315804c0a2dd4a747/1478533055456/The-right-to-freedom-from-displacement-Anders-Lund-Hansen-Eric-Clark-final.pdf
- Maciag, M. (2015, February). *Gentrification in America Report*. Governing the States and Localities. http://www.governing.com/gov-data/gentrification-in-cities-governing-report.html
- Marcuse, P., & Madden, D. (2016). In Defense of Housing: The Politics of Crisis. Verso.
- Markusen, A., & Gadwa, A. (2010). Arts and Culture in Urban or Regional Planning: A Review and Research Agenda. *Journal of Planning Education and Research*, *29*(3), 379–391. https://doi.org/10.1177/0739456X09354380
- Mathur, A., & Srivastava, A. (2011). *Equity within the Arts Ecology: Traditions and Trends*. Centre for Innovation in Culture and the Arts in Canada. http://www.calgaryartsequity.org/uploads/5/6/7/3/56735027/cpafequitywithintheartsecology-finalen 000.pdf
- McCormick, E. (2017, October 2). Rise of the yimbys: The angry millennials with a radical housing solution. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/oct/02/rise-of-the-yimbys-angry-millennials-radical-housing-solution
- McLaren, D., & Agyeman, J. (2015). *Sharing Cities: A Case for Truly Smart and Sustainable Cities* (1 edition). The MIT Press.
- Meltzer, E. (2017, October 3). What's so bad about gentrification anyway? Denverite. https://www.denverite.com/whats-bad-gentrification-anyway-42920/
- Mississauga Culture Master Plan. (2009). City of Mississauga. http://www.mississauga.ca/file/COM/ACMP_FullReport.pdf
- Monsebraaten, L. (2017, November 1). Toronto region becoming more divided along income lines. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/11/01/toronto-region-becoming-more-divided-along-income-lines.html
- Moran, J., Schupbach, J., Spearman, C., & Reut, J. (2015). *Beyond the Building: Performing Arts & Transforming Place*. National Endowment for the Arts. https://www.arts.gov/publications/beyond-building-performing-arts-transforming-place
- More Moss Park Final Report: What We've Learned. (n.d.). Retrieved June 18, 2019, from http://www.moremosspark.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/MMP FinalReport.pdf
- Moskowitz, P. (2015, December 20). Art in the Time of Gentrification: Can NYC's Culture be Saved from Its Economy? *Vice*. https://www.vice.com/en_ca/article/bnp4vm/art-in-the-time-of-gentrification-can-nycs-culture-be-saved-from-its-economy-111
- Moss, G. (2017). *Artistic enclaves in the post-industrial city: A Case study of Lawrenceville, Pittsburgh.* Springer Berlin Heidelberg. http://www.springer.com/gp/book/9783319552620
- Municipal Cultural Plan. (2014). Town of Midland.
 - http://www.midland.ca/Shared%20Documents/parks/MCP%20Final%20Report.pdf
- Municipal Cultural Planning: Indicators and Performance Measures Guidebook. (2011). Canadian Urban Institute. http://static1.squarespace.com/static/546bbd2ae4b077803c592197/t/54b3e63be4b027b160a1cbf9/14210 76027460/CUIPublications.MunicipalCulturalPlanning.pdf
- Murzyn-Kupisz, M., & Dzialek, J. (Eds.). (2017). *The Impact of Artists on Contemporary Urban Development in Europe* (1st ed. 2017 edition). Springer.
- Mytnowych, N. (2016). Risk and Resilience: Models for Personal Finance and the Arts. *Canadian Theatre Review*, 167, 22–25. https://doi.org/10.3138/ctr.167.005

- Neavling, S. (n.d.). Oh, the irony! Nonprofit displaces artists in Detroit to fight gentrification. Detroit Metro Times. Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://www.metrotimes.com/news-hits/archives/2019/06/18/oh-the-ironynonprofit-displaces-artists-in-detroit-to-fight-gentrification
- Neigh, S. (2015, December 10). Gentrification in Hamilton: Some Initial Thoughts. A Canadian Lefty in Occupied Land. http://scottneigh.blogspot.com/2015/12/gentrification-in-hamilton-some-initial.html
- Newsom, G., & Dickey, L. (2014). Citizenville: How to Take the Town Square Digital and Reinvent Government. Penauin Books.
- No Pride in Gentrification. (n.d.). Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://queertranscommunitydefence.blogspot.com/
- O'Donnell, S. (2016). Art as Activism: Displacement Prevention in the Twin Cities. http://conservancy.umn.edu/handle/11299/183687
- Olterman, P. (2019, April 4). Berlin's rental revolution: Activists push for properties to be nationalised. https://www.theguardian.com/cities/2019/apr/04/berlins-rental-revolution-activists-push-for-propertiesto-be-nationalised
- Pallares-Barbera, M., Dot, E., & Casellas, A. (2012). Artists, Cultural Gentrification and Public Policy. Urbani Izziv, 23(s 1), 104–114.
- Parkdale Hub. (n.d.). Retrieved June 6, 2019, from https://parkdalehub.ca/
- Parkdale Organize. (n.d.). Parkdale Organize. Retrieved February 15, 2018, from http://parkdaleorganize.ca PDF Viewer. (n.d.). Retrieved June 27, 2019, from
 - https://www.artplaceamerica.org/view/pdf?f=/sites/default/files/public/pictures/artplace field scan housi ng_sherman_apr_2016.pdf
- Perry, F. (2016, October 5). 'We are building our way to hell': Tales of gentrification around the world. The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/oct/05/building-way-to-hell-readers-talesgentrification-around-world
- Phillips, A. (Ed.). (2012). Social housing housing the social: Art, property and spatial justice. Sternberg Press. http://www.sternberg-press.com/index.php?pageId=1379&l=en&bookId=274&sort=year
- Phillips, R. (2004). Artful business: Using the arts for community economic development. Community Development Journal, 39(2), 112–122. https://doi.org/10.1093/cdj/39.2.112
- Pipe, T. (2016, September 11). Gentrification And Art: It's Complicated. The Anvil. https://hamiltonanvil.wordpress.com/2016/09/11/gentrification-and-art-its-complicated/
- Pitter, J. (2019, February 8). Yuly Chan on How to Defend a Neighbourhood. The Tyee. https://thetyee.ca/Opinion/2019/02/08/Yuly-Chan-Chinatown/
- Popper, G. (2019, March 5). How city hall is keeping needed change out of "stable neighbourhoods." Spacing. http://spacing.ca/toronto/2019/03/05/how-city-hall-is-keeping-needed-change-out-of-stableneighbourhoods/
- Predicting Gentrification in the Era of Big Data. (2016, September 22). Community and Economic Development in North Carolina and Beyond: UNC Chapel Hill School of Government. https://ced.sog.unc.edu/predictinggentrification-in-the-era-of-big-data/
- Pritchard, S. (2016, September 13). Hipsters and artists are the gentrifying foot soldiers of capitalism. The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2016/sep/13/hipsters-artists-gentrifying-capitalism
- Pritchard, S. (2019). Place Guarding: Activist art against gentrification. In Creative Placemaking: Research, Theory and Practice (pp. 140-156). Routledge.
- Project Row Houses. (n.d.). Project Row Houses. Retrieved August 12, 2019, from https://projectrowhouses.org Reckdahl, K. (2017, January 11). Keeping Your Artists Close to Home. Shelterforce.
 - https://shelterforce.org/2017/01/11/keeping-your-artists-close-to-home/
- Rojas, J. (2015, April 7). Why Urban Planners Should Work With Artists. KCET.
 - https://www.kcet.org/shows/artbound/why-urban-planners-should-work-with-artists
- Rosario Jackson, M. (2015, March 13). How Creative Placemaking Plays a Role in the Creative Economy. KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/artbound/how-creative-placemaking-plays-a-role-in-the-creative-economy
- Ross, D. (n.d.). How Gentrification Is Killing Local Music Scenes. Forbes. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from https://www.forbes.com/sites/dannyross1/2017/08/25/how-gentrification-is-killing-local-music-scenes/ Rugh, P. (2017, October 17). Gentrification Prime. https://indypendent.org/2017/10/gentrification-prime/

- Salone, C., Bonini Baraldi, S., & Pazzola, G. (2017). Cultural production in peripheral urban spaces: Lessons from Barriera, Turin (Italy). *European Planning Studies*, 1–21. https://doi.org/10.1080/09654313.2017.1327033
- Scherabon, H. (2016, November 30). *The art of gentrification: City data made beautiful.* The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/gallery/2016/nov/30/art-gentrification-patterns-data-visualisation-herwig-scherabon-
- Schulkind, R. (2017, July 5). Should we blame art for Brixton's gentrification? *New Statesman*. https://www.newstatesman.com/politics/economy/2017/07/should-we-blame-art-brixtons-gentrification
- Schulman, S. (2013). *The Gentrification of the Mind: Witness to a Lost Imagination* (Reprint edition). University of California Press.
- Scutari, M. (2014). Three Reasons Why Creative Placemaking Represents the Future of Arts Funding. Inside Philanthropy. https://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:eAJ2pBL-Q7UJ:https://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/2014/3/31/three-reasons-why-creative-placemaking-represents-the-future.html+&cd=1&hl=en&ct=clnk&gl=ca
- Sherman, D. (2017, December 4). *Gentrification Can't Be the Theme of Rust Belt City Recovery*. Next City. https://nextcity.org/features/view/gentrification-rust-belt-recovery-buffalo-new-york
- Shkuda, A. (2016). *The Lofts of SoHo: Gentrification, Art, and Industry in New York, 1950–1980.* University of Chicago Press.
- Sidewalk Labs. (n.d.). Sidewalk Labs. Retrieved October 25, 2017, from https://www.sidewalklabs.com/
- Sinclair-Puchtinger, A. M. (1991). *Gentrification in Canadian inner cities: An investigation of major factors (Montreal, Quebec, Toronto, Ontario, Winnipeg, Manitoba, Vancouver, British Columbia)* [Wilfrid Laurier University]. http://scholars.wlu.ca/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1358&context=etd
- Sinkewicz, A. (n.d.). Who Has the Right to Art? Canadian Art. Retrieved February 16, 2019, from https://canadianart.ca/features/who-has-the-right-to-art/
- Smee, M. (2017, September 20). *New Regent Park project aims to help house struggling musicians*. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/new-regent-park-project-aims-to-help-house-struggling-musicians-1.4297346
- Square Feet: The Artist's Guide to Renting and Buying Creative Space. (2011). Toronto Artscape. http://www.artscapediy.org/ArtscapeDIY/MediaLibrary/ArtscapeDIY/ArtscapeMedia/documents/square_fe et 2011.pdf
- Squeezed Out: Airbnb's Commercialization of Home-Sharing in Toronto. (n.d.). http://fairbnb.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Fairbnb_Report_Feb_29.pdf
- Stafford, K. (2017, September 19). New housing developments in Detroit now required to have 20% affordable housing units. *Detroit Free Press*.
 - http://www.freep.com/story/news/local/michigan/detroit/2017/09/19/detroit-housing-developments-affordable-housing-units/680627001/
- Starr, R. (2011, September 9). "Any colour you want" at the new Paintbox. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2011/09/09/any_colour_you_want_at_the_new_paintbox.html
- Taylor, C. (2017, March 21). The nonprofit sector as a champion for decent work. *Policy Options*. http://policyoptions.irpp.org/magazines/march-2017/the-nonprofit-sector-as-a-champion-for-decent-work/
- Tenants protest "loophole" that allows landlords to break rent control caps. (2018, February 5). Building Magazine. https://building.ca/toronto-parkdale-rent-strike/
- Thaden, E., & Wang, R. (2017). *Inclusionary Housing in the United States: Prevalence, Impact, and Practices* (Working Paper WP17ET1). Lincoln Institute of Land Policy.
 - $http://www.lincolninst.edu/sites/default/files/pubfiles/thaden_wp17et1_0.pdf$
- The Electric City Culture Council—A Space of your Own—Panel Discussion. (2014, April 2).
 - https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=DNyXqwTblyQ&feature=youtu.be
- The Housing Fix. (n.d.). Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://thehousingfix.ca/
- The National CLT Network. (2012). *The Community Land Trust Handbook*. https://ccednet-rcdec.ca/en/toolbox/community-land-trust-handbook
- The Parkdale People's Economy Project. (n.d.). The Parkdale People's Economy Project. Retrieved February 15, 2018, from https://parkdalecommunityeconomies.wordpress.com/

- The Real Fight for Beauty—Not by Westbank. (n.d.). The Real Fight for Beauty Not by Westbank. Retrieved February 28, 2019, from http://www.therealfightforbeauty.ca/
- *The W.O.W. Project.* (n.d.). Wing on Wo & Co. Retrieved January 5, 2018, from https://www.wingonwoand.co/aboutwowproject/
- Thompson, M. (n.d.). UK Music Venues and the Auditory Politics of Gentrification. Dancehall, 12, 3–8.
- Thompson, N. (2015). Seeing Power: Art and Activism in the Twenty-first Century. Melville House.
- Tighe, R., & Mueller, E. (Eds.). (2012). The Affordable Housing Reader. Routledge.
- Too much of a good thing. (n.d.). Urban Capital. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://www.urbancapital.ca/too-much-of-a-good-thing/
- Toronto Arts Facts. (2016). Toronto Arts Foundation.
 - https://torontoartsfoundation.org/tac/media/taf/Research/Toronto%20Arts%20Facts/2016_Toronto-Arts-Facts.pdf
- Toronto Community Housing. (n.d.). *Regent Park: Social Development Plan*. Retrieved June 12, 2019, from https://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2007/ex/bgrd/backgroundfile-7300.pdf
- Understanding the Forces Driving the Shelter Affordability Issue: A linked-path assessment of housing market dynamics in Ontario and the GTHA. (2017). The Canadian Centre for Economic Analysis. https://www.cancea.ca/housing
- Van Criekingen, M., & Decroly, J.-M. (2003). Revisiting the Diversity of Gentrification: Neighbourhood Renewal Processes in Brussels and Montreal. *Urban Studies*, *40*(12), 2451–2468. https://doi.org/10.1080/0042098032000136156
- Vegh, S. (2017). *The Big Picture 2017 Arts Forum: A Report of the April 2017 Arts Community Consultation*. Arts Advisory Commission. https://www.hamilton.ca/attractions/culture/arts-advisory-commission-big-picture-2017
- Walks, A. (2013). *Income Inequality and Polarization in Canada's Cities: An Examiniation and New Form of Measurement* (Research Paper 227; Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). University of Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/homepage/income-inequality-polarization-walks-2013/
- Wetherell, S. (2017). Richard Florida is Sorry. *Jacobin*. https://jacobinmag.com/2017/08/new-urban-crisis-review-richard-florida
- Whyte, M. (n.d.). Soaring rent threatens Sterling Road's creative vibe. The Star. Retrieved February 19, 2019, from https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2016/01/31/some-sterling-road-artists-facing-steeper-rents-plan-to-move-on.html
- Whyte, M. (2010, May 15). Artistic transformation for long-closed Shaw Street School. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/2010/05/15/artistic_transformation_for_longclosed_shaw_street_school.html
- Whyte, M. (2017, June 15). Time running out for deal to save 401 Richmond. *The Toronto Star.*https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2017/06/15/time-running-out-for-deal-to-save-401-richmond.html
- Winsa, P. (2010, January 29). New life for Shaw St. School as studios for artists. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/qa/news/gta/2010/01/29/new_life_for_shaw_st_school_as_studios_for_artists.html
- Winters, C. (2017). Shop Here, Not There: Science Says Reducing Inequality Is Almost That Simple. *YES! Magazine*. http://www.yesmagazine.org/issues/solidarity/shop-here-not-there-science-says-reducing-inequality-is-almost-that-simple-20171120
- Wong, J. (2010, September 12). Regent Park: Revitalization or gentrification? *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2010/09/12/regent_park_revitalization_or_gentrification.html
- Yawar, M. (2016, October 26). *Hamilton homebuyers being priced out of city: Experts*. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/hamilton-homebuyers-priced-out-moving-to-brantford-st-catharines-cmhc-1.3822092
- Zukin, S. (1987). Gentrification: Culture and Capital in the Urban Core. *Annual Review of Sociology, 13*(1), 129–147. https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev.so.13.080187.001021
- Zukin, S. (2016). Gentrification in Three Paradoxes. *City & Community*, *15*(3), 202–207. https://doi.org/10.1111/cico.12184

- 2018 Artists' Workspace Annual Data Note: Cultural Infrastructure Plan. (2018). Mayor of London. https://www.creativelandtrust.org/assets/papers/2018%20artists%20workspace%20study%20data%20not e.pdf
- Aitken, J. (2016). *Art Practices & The Housing Crisis* (J. Aitken, Ed.). https://iudblog.org/2016/12/17/conference-recordings-art-practices-the-housing-crisis/
- Akin Collective. (n.d.). Akin Collective. Retrieved January 6, 2018, from http://www.akincollective.com/ Arts & Culture Archives. (n.d.). Shelterforce. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://shelterforce.org/category/arts-culture/
- Baci, E., Costantini, J., Hines, J., & Hunter, Ar., AIS & Bronwen. (2017). Exploring the Link Between Rising House Prices and Counter Urbanization in Toronto with a GIS Approach. *Landmarks: The Undergraduate Geography Journal, University of Toronto, 3,* 76–95.
- Bain, A. L. (2003). Constructing contemporary artistic identities in Toronto neighbourhoods. *The Canadian Geographer/Le Géographe Canadien*, 47(3), 303–317. https://doi.org/10.1111/1541-0064.00024
- Baltimore's Push to Solve Its Affordable Housing Crisis With Community Land Trusts. (2017, August 25).

 Resilience. http://www.resilience.org/stories/2017-08-25/baltimores-push-to-solve-its-affordable-housing-crisis-with-community-land-trusts/
- Bandarin, F. (n.d.). *Culture: Key to the sustainability of cities* (World Heritage No. 81; In Foucs: Sustainable Cities). UNESCO: United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://www.unesco.org/culture/culture-for-sustainable-urban-development/WH81-en.pdf
- Barrington-Bush, L. (2017, November 16). *Is this corner the tipping point for Parkdale?* NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/800363d8-ca4b-11e7-b8f1-121bebc5777e/
- Batabyal, A. A. (2017). A Note on Optimal Income Redistribution in a Creative Region (SSRN Scholarly Paper ID 2985090). Social Science Research Network. https://papers.ssrn.com/abstract=2985090
- Books, T. E. D. (Ed.). (2013). City 2.0: The Habitat of the Future and How to Get There. TED Conferences.
- Bousquet, C. (2017, June 5). Where is Gentrification Happening in Your City?: Using Mapping to Understand Gentrification and Prevent Displacement. Data-Smart City Solutions.
 - http://datasmart.ash.harvard.edu/news/article/where-is-gentrification-happening-in-your-city-1055
- Brown, D. (2018, October 29). Canada's Broken Housing System Has Made It Brutal For Millennials to Buy Homes. Vice. https://www.vice.com/en_ca/article/43ejdm/canada-has-a-broken-housing-system-and-it-has-fucked-over-millennials
- Brown, K. (2017, September 28). *Police Swarm the Volksbühne Theater in Berlin to Remove Anti-Gentrification Art Collective*. Artnet News. https://news.artnet.com/art-world/volksbuhne-police-occupation-1098815
- Brown-Saracino, J. (2010). *A Neighborhood That Never Changes: Gentrification, Social Preservation, and the Search for Authenticity*. University Of Chicago Press.
- Bunce, S. (2018). Sustainability Policy, Planning and Gentrification in Cities (1st edition). Routledge.
- Buntin, J., & Stern, M. J. (2015, January 14). The Myth of Gentrification. Slate.
 - http://www.slate.com/articles/news_and_politics/politics/2015/01/the_gentrification_myth_it_s_rare_and _not_as_bad_for_the_poor_as_people.html
- Cameron, S., & Coaffee, J. (2005). Art, Gentrification and Regeneration From Artist as Pioneer to Public Arts. *International Journal of Housing Policy*, *5*(1), 39–58. https://doi.org/10.1080/14616710500055687
- Casnady, A. (2016, July 21). Toronto's rough Moss Park neighbourhood becoming the city's next gentrification battleground. *National Post.* http://nationalpost.com/news/toronto/weve-been-waiting-a-long-time-for-some-change-moss-parks-fraught-lines-between-facelift-and-gentrification
- Caulfield, J. (1994). *City Form and Everyday Life: Toronto's Gentrification and Critical Social Practice*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Caulfield, J. (2008). 'Gentrification' and desire. *Canadian Review of Sociology/Revue Canadienne de Sociologie*, 26(4), 617–632. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1755-618X.1989.tb00437.x
- Chapple, K. (2009). *Mapping Susceptibility to Gentrification: The Early Warning Toolkit*. Centre for Community Innovation, University of California. https://communityinnovation.berkeley.edu/reports/Gentrification-Report.pdf

- Chen, J., Stephens, M., & Man, Y. (Eds.). (2016). *The Future of Public Housing: Ongoing Trends in the East and the West* (Softcover reprint of the original 1st ed. 2013 edition). Springer. https://www.springer.com/gp/book/9783642416217
- Cheung, C. (2017, January 13). *Should Developers Meet Quotas for Affordable Housing Units?* The Tyee. https://thetyee.ca/News/2017/01/13/Affordable-Housing-Unit-Quotas/
- Chonody, J. M. (Ed.). (2014). *Community Art: Creative Approaches to Practice*. Common Ground Publishing. CityLab, R. B. (n.d.). "Gentrification" may be re-segregating American communities. Business Insider. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.businessinsider.com/gentrification-is-shifting-racial-boundaries-2016-8
- Communications MDR. (2016). *Environmental Scan of the Culture Sector: Ontario Culture Strategy Background Document*. Communications MDR.
 - https://ontariopresents.ca/sites/default/files/mtcs_environmental_scan_of_the_culture_sector_en.pdf
- Community Tool Box. (n.d.). Community Tool Box. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://ctb.ku.edu/en
 Cultural Planning. (n.d.). Ontario Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://www.mtc.gov.on.ca/en/culture/cul_planning.shtml
- Cunningham, C. (2017). Conflicted Commons: A Local Makerspace in the Neoliberal City. *Theses and Dissertations*. http://scholarscompass.vcu.edu/etd/4802
- Curran, W. (2017). Gender and Gentrification (1 edition). Routledge.
- Daniels, S. M. (2017, September 19). Chicago Community Replies to Gentrification With Inclusive Arts Space. *Next City*. https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/chicago-gentrification-inclusive-arts-space-paseo-boricua
- Davidson, J. (2019, August 5). New Studies Say Gentrification Doesn't Really Force Out Low-Income Residents. Intelligencer. http://nymag.com/intelligencer/2019/08/study-gentrification-doesnt-force-out-low-income-residents.html
- Davis, J. E., & Jacobus, R. (2008). *The City–CLT Partnership: Municipal Support for Community Land Trusts* [Policy Focus Report]. Lincoln Institute of Land Policy. http://www.lincolninst.edu/sites/default/files/pubfiles/the-city-clt-partnership-full.pdf
- De Costa, J. (2016, October 30). Protesters March Notre-Dame Street to Push Back Against Gentrification. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/protesters-march-notre-dame-street-to-push-back-against-gentrification
- de Oliver, M. (2016). Gentrification as the appropriation of therapeutic 'diversity': A model and case study of the multicultural amenity of contemporary urban renewal. *Urban Studies*, *53*(6), 1299–1316. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098015576314
- Delmelle, E. (2017, October 4). In recent decades, the clustering of rich and poor neighborhoods in America has continued, expanding inequality. *LSE US Centre, United States Politics and Policy*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2017/10/04/in-recent-decades-the-clustering-of-rich-and-poor-neighborhoods-in-america-has-continued-expanding-inequality/
- Deto, R. (2016, January 20). Land trust will help low-income residents purchase homes in Lawrenceville. *Pittsburgh City Paper*. https://www.pghcitypaper.com/pittsburgh/land-trust-will-help-low-income-residents-purchase-homes-in-lawrenceville/Content?oid=1884073
- Deto, R. (2017, July 6). Lawrenceville breaks ground on Pittsburgh's first Community Land Trust. *Pittsburgh City Paper*. https://www.pghcitypaper.com/Blogh/archives/2017/07/06/lawrenceville-breaks-ground-on-pittsburghs-first-community-land-trust
- Dixon, G. (2015, May 25). Arts and real estate a winning mix Artscape is exporting to B.C. *The Globe and Mail.* https://www.theglobeandmail.com/report-on-business/industry-news/property-report/arts-and-real-estate-a-winning-mix/article24590186/
- Donnelly, K. (2018). The Gentrifier's Dilemma: Narrative Strategies and Self-Justifications of Incoming Residents in Bedford-Stuyvesant, Brooklyn. *City & Community*, *17*(2), 374–393. https://doi.org/10.1111/cico.12296
- Eastwood, J. (2014, November 28). Map: 40 years of growing income inequality in Toronto. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/projects/toronto-s-three-cities--40-years-of-growing-income-inequality.html
- Embedded, Embedding: Artist Residencies, Urban Placemaking and Social Practice. (n.d.). The New School. Retrieved October 15, 2017, from http://www.residencyunlimited.org/dialogues/embedded-embedding/
- Epstein, G. (2018). A kinder, gentler gentrification: Racial identity, social mix and multiculturalism in Toronto's Parkdale neighborhood. *Social Identities*, 24(6), 707–726. https://doi.org/10.1080/13504630.2017.1310039 Fight for Beauty. (n.d.). http://fightforbeauty.westbankcorp.com/

- Florida, R. (2004). Cities and the Creative Class (1 edition). Routledge.
- Frock, C. L. (2014, February 7). *Priced Out: New Tech Wealth and San Francisco's Receding Art Scene*. KQED. https://www.kqed.org/arts/128856/priced-out-new-tech-wealth-and-san-franciscos-receding-art-scene
- Fullilove, M. T., & Bassett, M. T. (2016). *Root Shock: How Tearing Up City Neighborhoods Hurts America, And What We Can Do About It* (Reprint edition). New Village Press.
- Gentrification. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://themainlander.com/category/gentrification/
- Gibson, D. W. (2016). *The Edge Becomes the Center: An Oral History of Gentrification in the Twenty-First Century* (Reprint edition). Overlook Books.
- Gilbert, S. (2017, July 5). Gentrification and Hamilton Artists. *Hamilton Fringe Festival*. http://hamiltonfringe.ca/sky-gilbert-gentrification-hamilton-artists/
- Goldstein, B. D. (2017). *The Roots of Urban Renaissance: Gentrification and the Struggle over Harlem*. Harvard University Press.
- Green, J. (2016, November 17). Ending "Code Talk" About Gentrification. *Huffington Post*. http://www.huffingtonpost.com/jared-green/ending-code-talk-about-ge_b_13053398.html
- Grodach, C. (2010). Art spaces, public space, and the link to community development. *Community Development Journal*, 45(4), 474–493. https://doi.org/10.1093/cdj/bsp018
- Grodach, C., O'Connor, J., & Gibson, C. (2017). Manufacturing and cultural production: Towards a progressive policy agenda for the cultural economy. *City, Culture and Society, 10,* 17–25. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ccs.2017.04.003
- Grube-Cavers, A., & Patterson, Z. (2014, May 1). In order to keep mass transit accessible, we must understand the relationship between gentrification and public transportation. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2014/05/01/in-order-to-keep-mass-transit-accessible-we-must-understand-the-relationship-between-gentrification-and-public-transportation/
- Gupta, R. (2018, May 18). *Work advancing on Parkdale community hub plan*. Toronto.Com. https://www.toronto.com/news-story/8610834-work-advancing-on-parkdale-community-hub-plan/
- Hackworth, J., & Rekers, J. (2005). Ethnic Packaging and Gentrification: The Case of Four Neighborhoods in Toronto. *Urban Affairs Review*, 41(2), 211–236. https://doi.org/10.1177/1078087405280859
- Hae, L. (2012). The Gentrification of Nightlife and the Right to the City: Regulating Spaces of Social Dancing in New York. Routledge.
- Hall, P. (2014). Cities of Tomorrow: An Intellectual History of Urban Planning and Design Since 1880 (4 edition). Wiley-Blackwell.
- Hampton, C. (2017, April 22). Ferment and fear at the Hamilton Biennale. *Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2017/04/22/ferment-and-fear-at-the-hamilton-biennale.html
- Hansen, H. K., & Niedomysl, T. (2009). Migration of the creative class: Evidence from Sweden. *Journal of Economic Geography*, *9*(2), 191–206. https://doi.org/10.1093/jeg/lbn046
- Harris, A. (2012). Art and gentrification: Pursuing the urban pastoral in Hoxton, London: Art and gentrification. *Transactions of the Institute of British Geographers*, 37(2), 226–241. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1475-5661.2011.00465.x
- Harris, J. (2018, February 12). *Profiteers make a killing on Airbnb and erode communities*. The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2018/feb/12/profiteers-killing-airbnb-erode-communities
- Hartman, C. (1982). Displacement: How to Fight It. Natl Housing Law Project.
- Harvie, J., & Palgrave Theatre E-books York University. (2013). *Fair play: Art, performance and neoliberalism*. Palgrave Macmillan. http://www.library.yorku.ca/e/resolver/id/2597575
- Hern, C., & January 31, ez · C. A. ·. (2018, January 31). *The little spaces that could: How independent theatre companies are building community*. CBC. http://www.cbc.ca/arts/the-little-spaces-that-could-how-independent-theatre-companies-are-building-community-1.4512080
- How to be a Less Shitty Gentrifier: A Toolkit for People Hell Bent on Being New Renters in the SF Bay Area. (n.d.). Anti-Eviction Mapping Project. Retrieved May 17, 2018, from https://docs.google.com/document/d/1tSEHuEssmAqRonubM38XWbVjZtcOQHbbjvfWn9yyniM/edit?usp=embed facebook
- Hulchanski, J. D. (1995). The concept of housing affordability: Six contemporary uses of the housing expenditure-to-income ratio. *Housing Studies*, *10*(4), 471–491.

- Hunt, S. (2017, March 21). *How Parkdale is surviving gentrification*. 680 NEWS. http://www.680news.com/2017/03/21/parkdale-surviving-gentrification/
- InterRent's Mass Displacement Strategy. (2018, August 11). *Hamilton Tenants Solidarity Network*. https://www.hamiltontenantssolidarity.ca/feed/interrent-s-mass-displacement-strategy
- Jarrid Green, & Thomas M. Hanna. (n.d.). *Community Control of Land & Housing*. The Democracy Collaborative. Retrieved July 17, 2019, from https://democracycollaborative.org/sites/clone.community-wealth.org/files/downloads/CommunityControlLandHousing.pdf
- Jones, A. (2019, April 2). Poverty activists plan free protest meal opposite luxury pop-up restaurant under the Gardiner. *Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2019/04/02/poverty-activists-plan-free-protest-meal-opposite-luxury-pop-up-restaurant-under-the-gardiner.html
- Jones, C. E., & Ley, D. (2016). Transit-oriented development and gentrification along Metro Vancouver's low-income SkyTrain corridor: Transit-oriented development. *The Canadian Geographer / Le Géographe Canadien*, 60(1), 9–22. https://doi.org/10.1111/cag.12256
- Kalinowski, T. (2016, September 3). Hamilton is having its moment: But the days of a cheap, two-storey Victorian may be gone. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/2016/09/03/hamilton-is-having-its-moment.html
- Keesmaat, J. (2017, December 13). *Jennifer Keesmaat: It's time to rethink Canada's housing system*. Maclean's. http://www.macleans.ca/opinion/jennifer-keesmaat-its-time-to-rethink-canadas-housing-system/amp/?__twitter_impression=true
- Kelly, M., & McKinley, S. (2015). 7 Paths to Development That Bring Neighborhoods Wealth, Not Gentrification. *YES! Magazine*. http://www.yesmagazine.org/new-economy/7-paths-to-development-that-bring-neighborhoods-wealth-not-gentrification-20151111
- Kennedy, M., & Leonard, P. (2001). *Dealing with Neighbourhood Change: A Primer on Gentrification and Policy Choices*. Brooking Institution Center on Urban and Metropolitan Policy and PolicyLink. https://www.brookings.edu/wp-content/uploads/2016/06/gentrification.pdf
- Kershaw, P. (2017, March 9). Pushing Back on Skyrocketing Housing Prices in Toronto. *Torontoist*. https://torontoist.com/2017/03/pushing-back-skyrocketing-housing-prices-toronto/
- Kingston Culture Plan. (2010). City of Kingston.
 - https://www.creativecity.ca/database/files/library/KingstonCulturePlan 2010.pdf
- Kinniburgh, C. (2017, August 9). How to Stop Gentrification. *The New Republic*. https://newrepublic.com/article/144260/stop-gentrification
- Knecht, L. (2018, March 21). When Artists and Tenants Join Forces in the Fight for Affordable Housing. D Magazine. https://www.dmagazine.com/arts-entertainment/2018/03/when-artists-and-tenants-join-forces/
- Kosut, M. (2016, September 13). We Are the Scene: Alternative Art Economies in Bushwick. *Metropolitics*. http://www.metropolitiques.eu/We-Are-the-Scene-Alternative-Art.html
- Kretzmann, J. P. (2006). Building Communities from the Inside Out: A Path Toward Finding and Mobilizing a Community's Assets. Acta Pubns.
- Kroth, M. (2017, October 2). *Santa Mari La Juaricua, Patron Saint of Anti-Gentrification*. CityLab. https://www.citylab.com/life/2017/10/mexico-city-santa-mari-la-juaricua/540855/
- Ladendorf, T. (2016, January 26). The Group of Artists That's Winning Fair Pay By Targeting Nonprofits. *In These Times*. http://inthesetimes.com/article/18764/wages-for-arts-sake
- Langegger, S. (2015). Right-of-way gentrification: Conflict, commodification and cosmopolitanism. *Urban Studies*, 53(9), 1803–1821. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098015583783
- Learn More About City Rising. (2017, April 20). KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/city-rising/the-story-of-city-rising
- Lees, L. (2014). Staying Put: An Anti-Gentrification Handbook for Council Estates in London. London Tenants Federation, Just Space, Southwark Notes Archive Group. https://southwarknotes.files.wordpress.com/2014/06/staying-put-web-version-low.pdf
- Lees, L., & Melhuish, C. (2015). Arts-led regeneration in the UK: The rhetoric and the evidence on urban social inclusion. *European Urban and Regional Studies*, 22(3), 242–260. https://doi.org/10.1177/0969776412467474 Lees, L., Slater, T., & Wyly, E. (2007). *Gentrification* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Lloyd, R. (2002). Neo–Bohemia: Art and Neighborhood Redevelopment in Chicago. *Journal of Urban Affairs*, 24(5), 517–532. https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-9906.00141

- Lobenfield, C. (2017, October 12). Portugal's Out.Fest might be an antidote to Lisbon's rising tide of gentrification. *FACT Magazine: Music News, New Music*. http://www.factmag.com/2017/10/12/out-fest-barreiro-portugal-review/
- Loukaitou-Sideris, A., Gonzalez, S., & Ong, P. (2017). Triangulating Neighborhood Knowledge to Understand Neighborhood Change: Methods to Study Gentrification. *Journal of Planning Education and Research*, 0739456X17730890. https://doi.org/10.1177/0739456X17730890
- Lund Hansen, A., & Clark, E. (2016, September 5). *The right to freedom from displacement—Practical implementation and challenges.* Human Rights City Summit 2016, Sweden. https://skl.se/download/18.4c08281315804c0a2dd4a747/1478533055456/The-right-to-freedom-from-displacement-Anders-Lund-Hansen-Eric-Clark-final.pdf
- Maciag, M. (2015, February). *Gentrification in America Report*. Governing the States and Localities. http://www.governing.com/gov-data/gentrification-in-cities-governing-report.html
- Markusen, A., & Gadwa, A. (2010). Arts and Culture in Urban or Regional Planning: A Review and Research Agenda. *Journal of Planning Education and Research*, *29*(3), 379–391. https://doi.org/10.1177/0739456X09354380
- Mathur, A., & Srivastava, A. (2011). *Equity within the Arts Ecology: Traditions and Trends*. Centre for Innovation in Culture and the Arts in Canada. http://www.calgaryartsequity.org/uploads/5/6/7/3/56735027/cpafequitywithintheartsecology-finalen 000.pdf
- McCormick, E. (2017, October 2). Rise of the yimbys: The angry millennials with a radical housing solution. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/oct/02/rise-of-the-yimbys-angry-millennials-radical-housing-solution
- McLaren, D., & Agyeman, J. (2015). Sharing Cities: A Case for Truly Smart and Sustainable Cities (1 edition). The MIT Press.
- Meltzer, E. (2017, October 3). What's so bad about gentrification anyway? Denverite. https://www.denverite.com/whats-bad-gentrification-anyway-42920/
- Mississauga Culture Master Plan. (2009). City of Mississauga. http://www.mississauga.ca/file/COM/ACMP_FullReport.pdf
- Monsebraaten, L. (2017, November 1). Toronto region becoming more divided along income lines. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/11/01/toronto-region-becoming-more-divided-along-income-lines.html
- Moran, J., Schupbach, J., Spearman, C., & Reut, J. (2015). *Beyond the Building: Performing Arts & Transforming Place*. National Endowment for the Arts. https://www.arts.gov/publications/beyond-building-performing-arts-transforming-place
- More Moss Park Final Report: What We've Learned. (n.d.). Retrieved June 18, 2019, from http://www.moremosspark.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/MMP FinalReport.pdf
- Moskowitz, P. (2015, December 20). Art in the Time of Gentrification: Can NYC's Culture be Saved from Its Economy? *Vice*. https://www.vice.com/en_ca/article/bnp4vm/art-in-the-time-of-gentrification-can-nycs-culture-be-saved-from-its-economy-111
- Moss, G. (2017). *Artistic enclaves in the post-industrial city: A Case study of Lawrenceville, Pittsburgh.* Springer Berlin Heidelberg. http://www.springer.com/gp/book/9783319552620
- Municipal Cultural Plan. (2014). Town of Midland.
 - http://www.midland.ca/Shared%20Documents/parks/MCP%20Final%20Report.pdf
- Municipal Cultural Planning: Indicators and Performance Measures Guidebook. (2011). Canadian Urban Institute. http://static1.squarespace.com/static/546bbd2ae4b077803c592197/t/54b3e63be4b027b160a1cbf9/14210 76027460/CUIPublications.MunicipalCulturalPlanning.pdf
- Murzyn-Kupisz, M., & Dzialek, J. (Eds.). (2017). *The Impact of Artists on Contemporary Urban Development in Europe* (1st ed. 2017 edition). Springer.
- Mytnowych, N. (2016). Risk and Resilience: Models for Personal Finance and the Arts. *Canadian Theatre Review*, 167, 22–25. https://doi.org/10.3138/ctr.167.005
- Neavling, S. (n.d.). *Oh, the irony! Nonprofit displaces artists in Detroit to fight gentrification*. Detroit Metro Times. Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://www.metrotimes.com/news-hits/archives/2019/06/18/oh-the-irony-nonprofit-displaces-artists-in-detroit-to-fight-gentrification

- Neigh, S. (2015, December 10). Gentrification in Hamilton: Some Initial Thoughts. *A Canadian Lefty in Occupied Land*. http://scottneigh.blogspot.com/2015/12/gentrification-in-hamilton-some-initial.html
- Newsom, G., & Dickey, L. (2014). *Citizenville: How to Take the Town Square Digital and Reinvent Government.* Penguin Books.
- No Pride in Gentrification. (n.d.). Retrieved October 5, 2017, from
 - http://queertranscommunitydefence.blogspot.com/
- O'Donnell, S. (2016). *Art as Activism: Displacement Prevention in the Twin Cities*. http://conservancy.umn.edu/handle/11299/183687
- Olterman, P. (2019, April 4). *Berlin's rental revolution: Activists push for properties to be nationalised.*https://www.theguardian.com/cities/2019/apr/04/berlins-rental-revolution-activists-push-for-properties-to-be-nationalised
- Pallares-Barbera, M., Dot, E., & Casellas, A. (2012). Artists, Cultural Gentrification and Public Policy. *Urbani Izziv*, 23(s 1), 104–114.
- Parkdale Hub. (n.d.). Retrieved June 6, 2019, from https://parkdalehub.ca/
- *Parkdale Organize*. (n.d.). Parkdale Organize. Retrieved February 15, 2018, from http://parkdaleorganize.ca *PDF Viewer*. (n.d.). Retrieved June 27, 2019, from
 - https://www.artplaceamerica.org/view/pdf?f=/sites/default/files/public/pictures/artplace_field_scan_housing_sherman_apr_2016.pdf
- Perry, F. (2016, October 5). 'We are building our way to hell': Tales of gentrification around the world. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/oct/05/building-way-to-hell-readers-tales-gentrification-around-world
- Phillips, A. (Ed.). (2012). Social housing housing the social: Art, property and spatial justice. Sternberg Press. http://www.sternberg-press.com/index.php?pageId=1379&I=en&bookId=274&sort=year
- Phillips, R. (2004). Artful business: Using the arts for community economic development. *Community Development Journal*, *39*(2), 112–122. https://doi.org/10.1093/cdj/39.2.112
- Pipe, T. (2016, September 11). Gentrification And Art: It's Complicated. *The Anvil*. https://hamiltonanvil.wordpress.com/2016/09/11/gentrification-and-art-its-complicated/
- Pitter, J. (2019, February 8). *Yuly Chan on How to Defend a Neighbourhood*. The Tyee. https://thetyee.ca/Opinion/2019/02/08/Yuly-Chan-Chinatown/
- Popper, G. (2019, March 5). How city hall is keeping needed change out of "stable neighbourhoods." *Spacing*. http://spacing.ca/toronto/2019/03/05/how-city-hall-is-keeping-needed-change-out-of-stable-neighbourhoods/
- Predicting Gentrification in the Era of Big Data. (2016, September 22). Community and Economic Development in North Carolina and Beyond: UNC Chapel Hill School of Government. https://ced.sog.unc.edu/predicting-gentrification-in-the-era-of-big-data/
- Pritchard, S. (2016, September 13). Hipsters and artists are the gentrifying foot soldiers of capitalism. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2016/sep/13/hipsters-artists-gentrifying-capitalism
- Pritchard, S. (2019). Place Guarding: Activist art against gentrification. In *Creative Placemaking: Research, Theory and Practice* (pp. 140–156). Routledge.
- *Project Row Houses.* (n.d.). Project Row Houses. Retrieved August 12, 2019, from https://projectrowhouses.org Reckdahl, K. (2017, January 11). Keeping Your Artists Close to Home. *Shelterforce*.
 - https://shelterforce.org/2017/01/11/keeping-your-artists-close-to-home/
- Rojas, J. (2015, April 7). Why Urban Planners Should Work With Artists. KCET.
 - https://www.kcet.org/shows/artbound/why-urban-planners-should-work-with-artists
- Rosario Jackson, M. (2015, March 13). *How Creative Placemaking Plays a Role in the Creative Economy*. KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/artbound/how-creative-placemaking-plays-a-role-in-the-creative-economy
- Ross, D. (n.d.). *How Gentrification Is Killing Local Music Scenes*. Forbes. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from https://www.forbes.com/sites/dannyross1/2017/08/25/how-gentrification-is-killing-local-music-scenes/
- Rugh, P. (2017, October 17). Gentrification Prime. https://indypendent.org/2017/10/gentrification-prime/
- Salone, C., Bonini Baraldi, S., & Pazzola, G. (2017). Cultural production in peripheral urban spaces: Lessons from Barriera, Turin (Italy). *European Planning Studies*, 1–21. https://doi.org/10.1080/09654313.2017.1327033

- Scherabon, H. (2016, November 30). *The art of gentrification: City data made beautiful.* The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/gallery/2016/nov/30/art-gentrification-patterns-data-visualisation-herwig-scherabon-
- Schulkind, R. (2017, July 5). Should we blame art for Brixton's gentrification? *New Statesman*. https://www.newstatesman.com/politics/economy/2017/07/should-we-blame-art-brixtons-gentrification
- Schulman, S. (2013). *The Gentrification of the Mind: Witness to a Lost Imagination* (Reprint edition). University of California Press.
- Scutari, M. (2014). Three Reasons Why Creative Placemaking Represents the Future of Arts Funding. Inside Philanthropy. https://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:eAJ2pBL-Q7UJ:https://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/2014/3/31/three-reasons-why-creative-placemaking-represents-the-future.html+&cd=1&hl=en&ct=clnk&gl=ca
- Sherman, D. (2017, December 4). *Gentrification Can't Be the Theme of Rust Belt City Recovery*. Next City. https://nextcity.org/features/view/gentrification-rust-belt-recovery-buffalo-new-york
- Shkuda, A. (2016). *The Lofts of SoHo: Gentrification, Art, and Industry in New York, 1950–1980.* University of Chicago Press.
- Sidewalk Labs. (n.d.). Sidewalk Labs. Retrieved October 25, 2017, from https://www.sidewalklabs.com/
- Sinclair-Puchtinger, A. M. (1991). *Gentrification in Canadian inner cities: An investigation of major factors (Montreal, Quebec, Toronto, Ontario, Winnipeg, Manitoba, Vancouver, British Columbia)* [Wilfrid Laurier University]. http://scholars.wlu.ca/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1358&context=etd
- Sinkewicz, A. (n.d.). Who Has the Right to Art? Canadian Art. Retrieved February 16, 2019, from https://canadianart.ca/features/who-has-the-right-to-art/
- Smee, M. (2017, September 20). New Regent Park project aims to help house struggling musicians. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/new-regent-park-project-aims-to-help-house-struggling-musicians-1.4297346
- Square Feet: The Artist's Guide to Renting and Buying Creative Space. (2011). Toronto Artscape. http://www.artscapediy.org/ArtscapeDIY/MediaLibrary/ArtscapeDIY/ArtscapeMedia/documents/square_feet_2011.pdf
- Squeezed Out: Airbnb's Commercialization of Home-Sharing in Toronto. (n.d.). http://fairbnb.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Fairbnb Report Feb 29.pdf
- Stafford, K. (2017, September 19). New housing developments in Detroit now required to have 20% affordable housing units. *Detroit Free Press*. http://www.freep.com/story/news/local/michigan/detroit/2017/09/19/detroit-housing-developments
 - affordable-housing-units/680627001/
- Starr, R. (2011, September 9). "Any colour you want" at the new Paintbox. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2011/09/09/any_colour_you_want_at_the_new_paintbox.html
- Taylor, C. (2017, March 21). The nonprofit sector as a champion for decent work. *Policy Options*. http://policyoptions.irpp.org/magazines/march-2017/the-nonprofit-sector-as-a-champion-for-decent-work/
- Tenants protest "loophole" that allows landlords to break rent control caps. (2018, February 5). Building Magazine. https://building.ca/toronto-parkdale-rent-strike/
- Thaden, E., & Wang, R. (2017). *Inclusionary Housing in the United States: Prevalence, Impact, and Practices* (Working Paper WP17ET1). Lincoln Institute of Land Policy.
 - http://www.lincolninst.edu/sites/default/files/pubfiles/thaden_wp17et1_0.pdf
- The Electric City Culture Council—A Space of your Own—Panel Discussion. (2014, April 2). https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=DNyXgwTblyQ&feature=youtu.be
- The Housing Fix. (n.d.). Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://thehousingfix.ca/
- The National CLT Network. (2012). *The Community Land Trust Handbook*. https://ccednet-rcdec.ca/en/toolbox/community-land-trust-handbook
- The Parkdale People's Economy Project. (n.d.). The Parkdale People's Economy Project. Retrieved February 15, 2018, from https://parkdalecommunityeconomies.wordpress.com/
- The Real Fight for Beauty—Not by Westbank. (n.d.). The Real Fight for Beauty Not by Westbank. Retrieved February 28, 2019, from http://www.therealfightforbeauty.ca/

- *The W.O.W. Project.* (n.d.). Wing on Wo & Co. Retrieved January 5, 2018, from https://www.wingonwoand.co/aboutwowproject/
- Thompson, M. (n.d.). UK Music Venues and the Auditory Politics of Gentrification. Dancehall, 12, 3-8.
- Thompson, N. (2015). Seeing Power: Art and Activism in the Twenty-first Century. Melville House.
- Tighe, R., & Mueller, E. (Eds.). (2012). The Affordable Housing Reader. Routledge.
- Too much of a good thing. (n.d.). Urban Capital. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://www.urbancapital.ca/too-much-of-a-good-thing/
- Toronto Arts Facts. (2016). Toronto Arts Foundation.
 - https://torontoartsfoundation.org/tac/media/taf/Research/Toronto%20Arts%20Facts/2016_Toronto-Arts-Facts.pdf
- Toronto Community Housing. (n.d.). *Regent Park: Social Development Plan*. Retrieved June 12, 2019, from https://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2007/ex/bgrd/backgroundfile-7300.pdf
- Understanding the Forces Driving the Shelter Affordability Issue: A linked-path assessment of housing market dynamics in Ontario and the GTHA. (2017). The Canadian Centre for Economic Analysis. https://www.cancea.ca/housing
- Van Criekingen, M., & Decroly, J.-M. (2003). Revisiting the Diversity of Gentrification: Neighbourhood Renewal Processes in Brussels and Montreal. *Urban Studies*, 40(12), 2451–2468. https://doi.org/10.1080/0042098032000136156
- Vegh, S. (2017). *The Big Picture 2017 Arts Forum: A Report of the April 2017 Arts Community Consultation*. Arts Advisory Commission. https://www.hamilton.ca/attractions/culture/arts-advisory-commission-big-picture-2017
- Walks, A. (2013). *Income Inequality and Polarization in Canada's Cities: An Examiniation and New Form of Measurement* (Research Paper 227; Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). University of Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/homepage/income-inequality-polarization-walks-2013/
- Wetherell, S. (2017). Richard Florida is Sorry. *Jacobin*. https://jacobinmag.com/2017/08/new-urban-crisis-review-richard-florida
- Whyte, M. (n.d.). Soaring rent threatens Sterling Road's creative vibe. The Star. Retrieved February 19, 2019, from https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2016/01/31/some-sterling-road-artists-facing-steeper-rents-plan-to-move-on.html
- Whyte, M. (2010, May 15). Artistic transformation for long-closed Shaw Street School. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/2010/05/15/artistic_transformation_for_longclosed_shaw_street_school.html
- Whyte, M. (2017, June 15). Time running out for deal to save 401 Richmond. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2017/06/15/time-running-out-for-deal-to-save-401-richmond.html
- Winsa, P. (2010, January 29). New life for Shaw St. School as studios for artists. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/qa/news/gta/2010/01/29/new_life_for_shaw_st_school_as_studios_for_artists.ht ml
- Winters, C. (2017). Shop Here, Not There: Science Says Reducing Inequality Is Almost That Simple. *YES! Magazine*. http://www.yesmagazine.org/issues/solidarity/shop-here-not-there-science-says-reducing-inequality-is-almost-that-simple-20171120
- Wong, J. (2010, September 12). Regent Park: Revitalization or gentrification? *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2010/09/12/regent_park_revitalization_or_gentrification.html
- Yawar, M. (2016, October 26). *Hamilton homebuyers being priced out of city: Experts*. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/hamilton-homebuyers-priced-out-moving-to-brantford-st-catharines-cmhc-1.3822092
- Zukin, S. (1987). Gentrification: Culture and Capital in the Urban Core. *Annual Review of Sociology*, *13*(1), 129–147. https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev.so.13.080187.001021
- Zukin, S. (2016). Gentrification in Three Paradoxes. *City & Community*, *15*(3), 202–207. https://doi.org/10.1111/cico.12184

- 10 people-centred smart city initiatives. (n.d.). Nesta. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from
 - http://www.nesta.org.uk/news/10-people-centred-smart-city-initiatives
- Albright, C. (2017, November 10). Gentrification is sweeping through America. Here are the people fighting back. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2017/nov/10/atlanta-super-gentrification-eminent-domain
- Alioto, D. (2019, June 19). How Graffiti Became Gentrified. *The New Republic*.
 - https://newrepublic.com/article/154220/graffiti-became-gentrified
- Andrew-Gee, E. (2014, December 2). Should Toronto have a higher minimum wage than the rest of Ontario? *The Toronto Star*.
 - $https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/02/should_toronto_have_a_higher_minimum_wage_than_thee_rest_of_ontario.html$
- Artists Are Leaving, 2019. (2019, Winter). C Magazine, 140. https://cmagazine.com/issues/140/artists-are-leaving-2018
- Artists by Neighbourhood in Canada (No. 2; p. 32). (2005). Hill Strategies Research.
 - https://www.creativecity.ca/database/files/library/artists_by_neighbourhood.pdf
- Artists' Workplace Study: Report and Recommendations. (2014). Mayor of London.
 - https://www.creativelandtrust.org/assets/papers/Artists%20workspace%20study.pdf
- Bakhshi, H., Downing, J. M., Osborne, M. A., & Schneider, P. (2017). *The Future of Skills: Employment in 2030*. Nesta. http://www.nesta.org.uk/publications/future-skills-employment-2030
- Barron, S. (2017, September 24). The left lies about gentrification. NY Daily News.
 - http://www.nydailynews.com/opinion/left-lies-gentrification-article-1.3514562
- Blasius, J., Friedrichs, J., & Rühl, H. (2016). Pioneers and gentrifiers in the process of gentrification. *International Journal of Housing Policy*, 16(1), 50–69. https://doi.org/10.1080/14616718.2015.1071029
- Blights Out. (n.d.). Retrieved June 12, 2019, from http://www.blightsout.org/home
- Bloom, N. D., & Lasner, M. G. (Eds.). (2015). *Affordable Housing in New York: The People, Places, and Policies That Transformed a City*. Princeton University Press.
- BondGraham, D. (2017, June 21). Plans for a "New" Oakland Are Taking Shape, but Existing Residents Are Demanding More Equitable Development. *East Bay Express*.
 - https://www.eastbayexpress.com/oakland/plans-for-a-new-oakland-are-taking-shape-but-existing-residents-are-demanding-more-equitable-development/Content?oid=7542244
- Brennan, M., & Galvez, M. (2017). *Housing as a Platform: Strengthening the Foundation for Well-Being*. Metropolitan Housing and Communities Policy Center, Urban Institute.
 - $https://www.urban.org/sites/default/files/publication/93606/housing-as-platform_0.pdf$
- Bula, F. (2017, November 3). Vancouver church partners with developer on affordable housing project. The Globe and Mail. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/real-estate/vancouver/vancouver-church-partners-with-developer-on-affordable-housingproject/article36826083/
- Byers, J. (2007, October 31). City, builder reach artful compromise. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2007/10/31/city_builder_reach_artful_compromise.html
- Chan, P., & Sturgeon, J. (2016, March 18). Low- and middle-income families vanish as urban neighbourhoods gentrify. *Global News*. https://globalnews.ca/news/2584050/low-and-middle-income-families-vanish-as-urban-neighbourhoods-gentrify/
- Chang, T. (2014). 'New uses need old buildings': Gentrification aesthetics and the arts in Singapore. *Urban Studies*, 53(3), 524–539. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098014527482
- Chapple, K., & Zuk, M. (2016). Forewarned: The Use of Neighborhood Early Warning Systems for Gentrification and Displacement. *Cityscape: A Journal of Policy Development and Research*, 18(3), 109–130.
- Cities for People / Des villes pour tous. (n.d.). Cities for People / Des Villes Pour Tous. Retrieved June 10, 2019, from http://www.phase1.citiesforpeople.ca/
- Cortright, J. (2015, October 31). In Defense of Gentrification. *The Atlantic*.
 - https://www.theatlantic.com/business/archive/2015/10/in-defense-of-gentrification/413425/
- Creative Citymaking. (2013, June 19). [Artplace America]. *Artplace*. https://www.artplaceamerica.org/funded-projects/creative-citymaking/blog/creative-citymaking-2

- Cultural Planning Toolkit. (n.d.). 2010 Legacies Now, Creative City Network of Canada. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from https://www.creativecity.ca/database/files/library/cultural_planning_toolkit.pdf
- CultureBlocks.com. (n.d.). Retrieved September 24, 2017, from https://www.cultureblocks.com/wordpress/
- Cuthbertson, D. (2016, June 8). Arts for the dole? Greens propose living wage for creatives as part of election policy. *The Sydney Morning Herald*. http://www.smh.com.au/entertainment/art-and-design/no-more-starving-artists-greens-propose-living-wage-for-creatives-as-part-of-arts-election-policy-20160607-gpddk6.html
- Dastrup, S., Ellen, I., Jefferson, A., Wesselcouch, M., Schwartz, D., & Cuenca, K. (2015). *The Effects of Neighborhood Change on New York City Housing Authority Residents*. Abt Associates. https://www.abtassociates.com/sites/default/files/migrated_files/5875a19d-01c1-4e42-8235-bf83ec67bfff.pdf
- Davis, E. (2017, May 15). In Sanitizing Toronto of its Grit, Are We Washing Away its Character? *Torontoist*. https://torontoist.com/2017/05/sanitizing-toronto-grit-washing-away-character/
- Development Without Displacement: Resisting Gentrification in the Bay Area. (2015). Causa Justa / Just Cause. https://cjjc.org/publication/development-without-displacement-resisting-gentrification-in-the-bay-area/
- DeVerteuil, G. (2016, October 30). Book Review: Planetary Gentrification by Loretta Lees, Hyun Bang Shin and Ernesto López-Morales. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2016/10/30/book-review-planetary-gentrification-by-loretta-lees-hyun-bang-shin-and-ernesto-lopez-morales/
- Diappi, L. (Ed.). (2014). *Emergent Phenomena in Housing Markets: Gentrification, Housing Search, Polarization* (2013 edition). Physica.
- Drake, M. S. (2016). Art squats, artistic critique and resistance: Between recuperation and obliteration. *Prace Kulturoznawcze*, *19*, 41–58.
- Dreyfuss, E. (2016, December 31). *The Year in Housing: The Middle Class Can't Afford to Live in Cities Anymore*. WIRED. https://www.wired.com/2016/12/year-housing-middle-class-cant-afford-live-cities-anymore/
- Edwards, S. (2016, January 22). *No Place Like Home*. Maisonneuve.
 - http://maisonneuve.org/article/2016/01/22/no-place-home/
- EquityTools Building Bridges Across the River. (n.d.). Retrieved August 7, 2019, from https://bbardc.org/equitytools/
- Evans, G. (2009). Creative Cities, Creative Spaces and Urban Policy. *Urban Studies*, 46(5 & 6), 1003–1040. *Exploring Our Town*. (n.d.). National Endowment for the Arts. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from

https://www.arts.gov/exploring-our-town/

- Fern, J. (2017, August 9). Taking Back the Front Porch: Using Art to Reclaim Community Identity. *Shelterforce*. https://shelterforce.org/2017/08/09/taking-back-front-porch/
- Flack, D. (2017, June). Toronto is finally ready to embrace laneway housing. *BlogTO*. http://www.blogto.com/city/2017/06/toronto-laneway-suites-housing/
- Fleming, D. (2016, December 7). Who Is Moving Outside Toronto, And Why? *Toronto Realty Blog.* http://torontorealtyblog.com/archives/15985
- Florida, R. (n.d.). *Gentrification and the Persistence of Poor Minority Neighborhoods*. CityLab. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.citylab.com/housing/2014/08/gentrification-and-the-persistence-of-poor-minority-neighborhoods/373062/
- Florida, R. L., Mellander, C., Canadian Electronic Library York University, & Joseph L. Rotman School of Management: Martin Prosperity Institute. (2007). *There goes the neighbourhood: How and why Bohemians, artists and gays affect regional housing values*. Martin Prosperity Institute. http://ezproxy.library.yorku.ca/login?url=http://books.scholarsportal.info/viewdoc.html?id=/ebooks/ebooks0/gibson_cppc/2009-12-01/8/213634
- Freeman, L. (2006). There Goes the Hood: Views of Gentrification from the Ground Up. Temple University Press. Garrova, R. (2017, September 15). In Los Angeles, mariachi musicians fight gentrification to keep tradition alive. Marketplace. http://www.marketplace.org/2017/09/18/life/los-angeles-mariachi-musicians-fight-gentrification-keep-tradition
- Gauthier-Caron, J. (2017, May 12). Hochelaga Pushes Back to Those Pushing In. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/hochelaga-pushes-back-to-those-pushing-in

- Gaztambide-Fernández, R., & Parekh, G. (2017). Market "choices" or structured pathways? How specialized arts education contributes to the reproduction of inequality. *Education Policy Analysis Archives*, 25, 41. https://doi.org/10.14507/epaa.25.2716
- Gentrification Study: Mitigating Involuntary Displacement. (2016). Denver Office of Economic Development. http://www.denvergov.org/content/dam/denvergov/Portals/690/Reports%20and%20Studies/GENT%20ST UDY%20052316.pdf
- Gentrification Takes More East London Street Art Walls. (2017, October 2). *Jenikya's Blog.* http://jenikya.com/blog/2017/10/gentrification-takes-more-east.html
- Gomer, J. (2017, May 2). "The Rent Eats First": Fighting Gentrification in California. *Black Perspectives*. http://www.aaihs.org/the-rent-eats-first-fighting-gentrification-in-california/
- Gordon, A. (2017, September 13). Out-of-Control Gentrification Is Helping Create NYC's Subway Crush. *The Village Voice*. https://www.villagevoice.com/2017/09/13/out-of-control-gentrification-is-helping-create-nycs-subway-crush/
- Gray, J. (2019, June 5). Toronto Mayor John Tory condemns Ontario to rewrite city's development plans. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/canada/article-city-councillors-slam-ontarios-rewriting-of-torontos-development/
- Greene, S., & González, J. (2019, June 11). *How Communities Are Rethinking Zoning to Improve Housing Affordability and Access to Opportunity*. Urban Institute. https://www.urban.org/urban-wire/how-communities-are-rethinking-zoning-improve-housing-affordability-and-access-opportunity
- Greene, S., & Pettit, K. L. S. (n.d.). What if Cities Used Data to Drive Inclusive Neighborhood Change? Urban Institute.

 Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.urban.org/research/publication/what-if-cities-used-data-drive-inclusive-neighborhood-change
- Griffin, A. (2013, June 22). *Portland study targets neighborhoods next up for gentrification*. The Oregonian. http://www.oregonlive.com/portland/index.ssf/2013/06/portland_study_targets_neighbo.html
- Grodach, C. (2008). Museums as Urban Catalysts: The Role of Urban Design in Flagship Cultural Development. Journal of Urban Design, 13(2), 195–212. https://doi.org/10.1080/13574800801965742
- Gross, D. (2018, February 13). San Francisco Is Counting Its Artists to Address the Problem of Gentrification. Hyperallergic.https://hyperallergic.com/426850/artist-census-san-francisco/
- Guinard, P., & Molina, G. (2018). Urban geography of arts: The co-production of arts and cities. *Cities*. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cities.2018.02.004
- Hains, D. (2014, January 9). *How Property Taxes Work*. Torontoist. https://torontoist.com/2014/01/everything-you-ever-wanted-to-know-about-property-taxes/
- Hamilton, J. (2019, June 1). *Introducing transparency, humanity to Toronto housing market*. Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/opinion/contributors/2019/06/02/introducing-transparency-humanity-to-toronto-housing-market.html
- Hamnett, C., & Whitelegg, D. (2007). Loft Conversion and Gentrification in London: From Industrial to Postindustrial Land Use. *Environment and Planning A*, 39(1), 106–124. https://doi.org/10.1068/a38474
- Hannigan, J., & Richards, G. (2017). *The SAGE Handbook of New Urban Studies*. SAGE Publications Inc. https://us.sagepub.com/en-us/nam/the-sage-handbook-of-new-urban-studies/book228284
- Horak, M. (2010, June 1). *Understanding Neighbourhood Revitalization in Toronto*. "Neighbourhoods" panel at Canadian Political Science Association 2010 Annual Meeting, Montreal. https://www.cpsa-acsp.ca/papers-2010/Horak.pdf
- Housing Impact Fees: A New Strategy to Keep Communities Strong. (2016). Philadelphia Coalition for Affordable Communities. http://phillyaffordablecommunities.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/DWD-Report-Insert_0217.pdf
- Housing Opportunities Toronto: An Affordable Housing Action Plan, 2010—2020. (2009). City of Toronto. https://www.toronto.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/94f8-hot_actionplan.pdf
- Hwang, J. (2016). What have we learned about the causes of recent gentrification? Working Paper No 16-20, 23. https://www.philadelphiafed.org/-/media/research-and-data/publications/working-papers/2016/wp16-20.pdf?la=en
- Hwang, J., & Sampson, R. (2014, July 9). Google Street View shows that gentrification in Chicago has largely bypassed poor minority neighborhoods, reinforcing urban inequality. *USAPP*.

- http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2014/07/09/google-street-view-shows-that-gentrification-in-chicago-has-largely-bypassed-poor-minority-neighborhoods-reinforcing-urban-inequality/
- Inclusionary Zoning—Securing Affordable Housing in Toronto. (2018, December 3). *City of Toronto*. https://www.toronto.ca/city-government/council/2018-council-issue-notes/torontos-housing/inclusionary-zoning-securing-affordable-housing-in-toronto/
- Indianapolis Gentrification Maps and Data. (n.d.). Governing the States and Localities. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.governing.com/gov-data/indianapolis-gentrification-maps-demographic-data.html
- Inequality is already transforming neighbourhoods in Canada's biggest cities. (2016, July 12). *PressProgress*. https://pressprogress.ca/inequality_is_already_transforming_neighbourhoods_in_canada_biggest_cities/
- Jacobs, J. (1992). The Death and Life of Great American Cities (1REV edition). Vintage.
- Jacobs, J. (2010). The Nature of Economies. Vintage Canada.
- James, R. K. (2015). Urban Redevelopment and Displacement from Regent Park to El Cartucho. *Canadian Theatre Review*, 161, 17–21. https://doi.org/10.3138/ctr.161.003
- Justin, M. (2016). Art Museums and Their Connection to Neighborhood Change: A Case Study of the Portland Art Museum in Oregon [University of Michigan]. https://deepblue.lib.umich.edu/handle/2027.42/120668
- Kaemmerling, A. (2016). *Walking the Gentrifying Streetscape: Artistic Practice in San Francisco's Mission District* (2006-2016) [Ohio University].
 - https://etd.ohiolink.edu/pg_10?0::NO:10:P10_ACCESSION_NUM:ohiou1466446720
- Kalinowski, T. (2017a, November 1). How Toronto's housing costs are hampering the city's ability to attract talent. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/real_estate/2017/11/01/how-torontos-housing-costs-are-hampering-the-citys-ability-to-attract-talent.html
- Kalinowski, T. (2017b, November 8). Make Toronto housing denser, say young professionals. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/real_estate/2017/11/08/make-toronto-housing-denser-say-young-professionals.html
- Kalinowski, T. (2019, April 27). Landlord fined a second time over eviction of 795 College St. Tenants. *Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2019/05/27/landlord-fined-a-second-time-over-eviction-of-795-college-st-tenants.html
- Keenan, E. (n.d.). Section 37—What it is, and why everybody's fighting about it: Keenan. *The Star.* Retrieved June 14, 2019, from https://www.thestar.com/amp/news/gta/2015/01/16/section-37-what-it-is-and-why-everybodys-fighting-about-it-keenan.html
- Klein, M. (2017, March 1). Coffee and Gentrification. *The McGill International Review*. http://mironline.ca/coffee-and-gentrification/
- Knauf, A. S. (2016, September 7). *Two Artists Are Giving Out "Gentrification Citations" To Local Businesses, Including Uncle Ike's*. The Stranger. http://www.thestranger.com/slog/2016/09/07/24540129/two-artists-are-giving-out-gentrification-citations-to-local-businesses-including-uncle-ikes
- Kwon, Y., Joo, S., Han, S., & Park, C. (2017). Mapping the Distribution Pattern of Gentrification near Urban Parks in the Case of Gyeongui Line Forest Park, Seoul, Korea. *Sustainability*, *9*(2), 231. https://doi.org/10.3390/su9020231
- Laneway Suites: A new housing typology for Toronto. (2017). Lanescape and Evergreen. http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2017/te/bgrd/backgroundfile-104581.pdf
- Langegger, S. (2016). *Rights to Public Space: Law, Culture, and Gentrification in the American West* (1st ed. 2017 edition). Palgrave Macmillan.
- Lee, S., Linett, P., Baltazar, N., & Woronkowicz, J. (2016). Setting the Stage for Community Change: Reflecting on Creative Placemaking Outcomes. Slover Linett Audience Research, Mortimer & Mimi Levitt Foundation. http://levitt.org/ckeditor/userfiles/images/1478133733_Levitt_white-paper_setting-the-stage-for-community-change_creative-placemaking-outcomes-study_2016.pdf
- Lees, L. (1994). Rethinking gentrification: Beyond the positions of economics or culture. *Progress in Human Geography*, 18(2), 137–150.
- Lee-Shanok, P. (n.d.). PAL Toronto marks 25 years of providing a place for artists to retire in dignity. *CBC News*. Retrieved February 15, 2019, from https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/pal-toronto-marks-25-years-of-affordable-housing-for-artists-1.4958953

- Lehrer, U., & Wieditz, T. (2009). *Gentrification and the Loss of Employment Lands: Toronto's Studio District*. https://www.researchgate.net/publication/304627852_Gentrification_and_the_Loss_of_Employment_Lands Toronto's Studio District
- Lewis, B. (2016). Introduction: The Gentrification Game. *Trotter Review*, 23(1). http://scholarworks.umb.edu/trotter_review/vol23/iss1/2
- Li, W. (2019, June 17). Experts say Vancouver must prepare for a new kind of emergency—Gentrification. *The Star.* https://www.thestar.com/vancouver/2018/05/07/you-have-displacement-you-have-trauma-vancouver-needs-to-do-more-to-guard-against-gentrification-says-expert.html
- Lindeman, T. (2019, July 7). Nearly 40% of Toronto condos not owner-occupied, new figures reveal. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/world/2019/jul/07/toronto-housing-owner-occupied-canada-affordability
- Little, S. (2017, November 8). If people can't afford to work in Vancouver, what happens to the city? *Global News*. https://globalnews.ca/news/3851268/if-people-cant-afford-to-work-in-vancouver-what-happens-to-the-city/
- Litwin, K. (2017, February 13). À Nous la Malting. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/a-nous-la-malting Lorinc, J., McClelland, M., & Scheinberg, E. (Eds.). (2015). *The Ward: The Life and Loss of Toronto's First Immigrant Neighbourhood*. Coach House.
- Mackenzie, A. (2019, May 31). *These photographers challenge everything we know about gentrification*. https://www.sleek-mag.com/article/unseen-photography-gentrification/
- McGrath, M. (2016). Decatur, Georgia: Diversity, Gentrification, and the Art of Community Conversation. *National Civic Review*, 105(2), 25–33. https://doi.org/10.1002/ncr.21270
- McKee, Y. (2017). Strike Art: Contemporary Art and the Post-Occupy Condition (Reprint edition). Verso.
- McKeen, A. (2017, October 25). Where in the city do people struggle most to pay for their homes? *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/10/25/where-in-the-city-do-people-struggle-most-to-pay-for-their-homes.html
- McLean, H. (2014). Digging into the Creative City: A Feminist Critique. *Antipode*, 46(3), 669–690. https://doi.org/10.1111/anti.12078
- McNamara, R. (2016, June 20). Why Artists Make Better Landlords: An Interview with Akin Collective's Oliver Pauk and Michael Vickers. Art F City. http://artfcity.com/2016/06/20/why-artists-make-better-landlords-an-interview-with-akin-collectives-oliver-pauk-and-michael-vickers/
- Mejia, B. (2016, March 3). Gentrification pushes up against Boyle Heights—And vice versa. *Los Angeles Times*. http://www.latimes.com/local/california/la-me-las-palomas-gentrification-20160303-story.html
- MN, C. (2017, March 2). Keep It Local: Gentrification and Art in Minneapolis. *It's Going Down*. https://itsgoingdown.org/keep-local-gentrification-art-minneapolis/
- Molho, J., & Sagot-Duvauroux, D. (2017). From Global to Local Creative Dynamics: The Location Patterns of Art Galleries. In *Creative Industries in Europe* (pp. 43–64). Springer, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-56497-5_3
- Molina-Wilshaw, M. T. (2013). Where Have All The Flowers Gone?: The Displacement of Minorities In the Process of Gentrification. (1 edition). CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform.
- Monsebraaten, L. (2013, May 21). Condos becoming part of Toronto's affordable housing tool box. *The Toronto Star*.
 - https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2013/05/21/condos_becoming_part_of_torontos_affordable_housing_tool_box.html
- Monsebraaten, L. (2015, March 31). Toronto council endorses artistic community-cultural hub for Weston. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2015/03/31/toronto-considers-artistic-community-cultural-hub-for-weston.html
- Moore, R. (2015, June 28). London: The city that ate itself. *The Observer*. http://www.theguardian.com/uk-news/2015/jun/28/london-the-city-that-ate-itself-rowan-moore
- Moore, R. (2017, October 1). The Bilbao effect: How Frank Gehry's Guggenheim started a global craze. *The Observer*. http://www.theguardian.com/artanddesign/2017/oct/01/bilbao-effect-frank-gehry-guggenheim-global-craze
- Municipal Cultural Master Plan. (2010). City of Windsor. http://www.citywindsor.ca/residents/Recreation/Documents/Municipal%20Cultural%20Master%20Plan.pd

- Murdie, R., & Logan, J. (2014). *Bibliography and Review of Neighbourhood Typologies with a Focus on Canada, the United States, and Australia/New Zealand* (Research Paper 233; Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). Cities Centre, University of Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/homepage/how-neighbourhoods-are-changing/
- Nathan, M., Kemeny, T., Pratt, A., & Spencer, G. (2016). *Creative Economy Employment in the US, Canada and the UK*. Nesta. http://www.nesta.org.uk/publications/creative-economy-employment-us-canada-and-uk
- New study identifies housing displacement occurring in Denver, recommendations to help residents stay in neighborhoods. (2016, May 18). https://www.denvergov.org/content/denvergov/en/denver-office-of-economic-development/newsroom/2016/GentrificationStudy.html
- *Niagara Culture Plan.* (n.d.). Niagara Region. Retrieved October 3, 2017, from https://www.niagararegion.ca/government/initiatives/culture-plan/pdf/CulturePlanWEB.pdf
- Orangeville's Cultural Advantage: Municipal Cultural Plan with Appendices. (2014). Culture Capital, Nordicity, GeoPraxis Inc. http://www.orangeville.ca/get-file/262
- Orderson, K. (n.d.). *Not in My Neighbourhood* [Documentary]. https://caribbeantalesfestival.com/project/not-in-my-neighbourhood/
- Out There Waging Culture: The Ethnicity Effect. (2014, July 21). *The Art Gallery of York University*. http://theagyuisoutthere.org/everywhere/?tag=waging-culture
- Pagliaro, J. (n.d.). Under Premier Doug Ford, interest is growing in making Toronto more autonomous. *The Star.* Retrieved June 17, 2019, from https://www.thestar.com/news/city_hall/2019/06/17/under-premier-doug-ford-interest-is-growing-in-making-toronto-more-autonomous.html
- Panne, V. V. (2017a, September 28). How One Community Is Using a Surprising and Successful Tool to Fight Gentrification. *AlterNet*. https://www.alternet.org/culture/housing-preservation-gentrification-east-harlem
- Panne, V. V. (2017b, October 3). How Harlem residents found a unique way to fight gentrification. *Salon*. https://www.salon.com/2017/10/03/a-community-using-a-surprising-tool-against-gentrification_partner/
- Perry Abello, O. (2017, October 2). Here's How 1,379 Affordable Housing Programs Stack Up. *Next City*. https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/news-inclusionary-housing-survey-progress-limitations
- Petruziello, M. (2010). *Gentrification and the Arts on Mississippi Ave.: Creating Two Communities and Making Them Whole*. LAP LAMBERT Academic Publishing.
- Pigg, S. (2015, March 26). \$700-million arts-focused complex planned for Queens Quay site. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/2015/03/26/700-million-arts-focused-complex-planned-for-queens-quay-site.html
- Pltter, J. (2016, June 5). A visit to the social housing community of my childhood. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/051cff98-29a3-11e6-8b8e-0a2c6093033d/
- Post. (2015, February 12). Gentrification, housing at the core of Denver's 2015 strategic plan. *The Denver Post*. http://www.denverpost.com/2015/02/12/gentrification-housing-at-the-core-of-denvers-2015-strategic-plan/
- *Priced Out.* (n.d.). Priced Out: The Documentary. Retrieved November 1, 2017, from https://www.pricedoutmovie.com/
- Proano, N. (2016, December 5). Understanding the Anti-Gentrification Attacks in Hochelaga. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/understanding-the-anti-gentrification-attacks-in-hochelaga
- Procyk, S. (2014). *Understanding Income Inequality in Canada, 1980-2014* (Research Paper 232; Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). United Way Toronto/York Region and University of Toront. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/documents/2015/02/understanding-income-inequality-in-canada-1980-2014.pdf
- Protesters target Cuchillo as another symbol of gentrification in Vancouver's Downtown Eastside. (n.d.). https://www.straight.com/news/398401/protesters-target-cuchillo-another-symbol-gentrification-vancouvers-downtown-eastside
- Pucci, M. (n.d.). Give me a Home Where the Undergrads Roam. *The Link*. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/give-me-a-home-where-the-undergrads-roam
- Ra, D. B. (2014). Success of Urban Regeneration Regarding Gentrification&sustainability. LAP Lambert Academic Publishing.

- Ralston, S. (2017). Low-Rise Housing in Toronto and Lima in 1968: A Rejection of the Corbusian HighRise or Modernization through Appropriation? *Landmarks: The Undergraduate Geography Journal, University of Toronto, 3,* 46–55.
- Reece, J. (2004). *Technical Memorandum on Gentrification Issues*. Kirwan Institute for the Study of Race & Ethnicity, Ohio State University.
 - http://www.kirwaninstitute.osu.edu/reports/2004/07_2004_Gentrification%20and%20Revitalization.pdf
- Rich, M. A., & Tsitsos, W. (2016). Avoiding the 'SoHo Effect' in Baltimore: Neighborhood Revitalization and Arts and Entertainment Districts: AVOIDING THE 'SOHO EFFECT' IN BALTIMORE. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 40(4), 736–756. https://doi.org/10.1111/1468-2427.12376
- Rider, D. (2014, November 28). Star series looks at Toronto: The Divided City. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/11/28/how_do_we_unite_torontos_divided_city.html
- Rosen, G., & Walks, A. (2015). Castles in Toronto's Sky: Condo-Ism as Urban Transformation. *Journal of Urban Affairs*, *37*(3), 289–310. https://doi.org/10.1111/juaf.12140
- Rufrano, M. (2014). "Domed" and Whited Out: Arts Gentrification and the Negotiation of Public Space in Long Island City, NY. *ETD Collection for Fordham University*, 1–102.
- Saiz, A., & Salazar, A. (2017). Real Trends: The Future of Real Estate in the United States.
- Schrank, A. (2017, September 28). How an LA community is fighting back against gentrification. *Marketplace*. http://www.marketplace.org/2017/09/28/wealth-poverty/how-la-community-fighting-back-against-gentrification
- Schuetz, J. (2014a). Do art galleries stimulate redevelopment? *Journal of Urban Economics*, 83, 59–72. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jue.2014.08.002
- Schuetz, J. (2014b, October 22). Art galleries may be a signal of future gentrification, but they don't cause it [Website]. LSE American Politics and Policy. https://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2014/10/22/art-galleries-may-be-a-signal-of-future-gentrification-but-they-dont-cause-it/
- Senécal, P., Tremblay, C., Teufel, D., & Société d'habitation du Québec: Direction de l'analyse et de la recherche. (1990). *Gentrification or urban sprawl?: Central Montréal and surrounding area*. Société d'habitation du Québec, Direction g'en'erale de la planification et de la recherche, Direction de l'analyse et de la recherche.
- Sewell, J., & Jacobs, J. (1993). *The Shape of the City: Toronto Struggles with Modern Planning* (2nd ed. edition). University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Shephard, T. (2019, August 20). Akin Lakeshore makes art studio space affordable in Etobicoke. Toronto.Com. https://www.toronto.com/news-story/9547923-akin-lakeshore-makes-art-studio-space-affordable-in-etobicoke/
- Siepmann, D. (2014). Who is Creative Placemaking? New Music, Integrity and Community. NewMusicBox. https://nmbx.newmusicusa.org/who-is-creative-placemaking-new-music-integrity-and-community/
- Smart City—Creative City. (2017, June 15). https://vimeopro.com/monasharts/smart-city-creative-city/video/221849596
- Sousa, J. (2013). Building a Co-operative Community in Public Housing: The Case of the Atkinson Housing Co-operative. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division. https://utorontopress.com/us/building-a-co-operative-community-in-public-housing-4
- Stigler, M. L. (2016). That's Just the Way It Is: Stories of Racial, Economic, and Educational Inequality Under Gentrification [Arizona State University]. ProQuest Dissertations Publishing. https://search.proquest.com/openview/1ec4cb1a9cf21a76c882e82d61934b64/1?pq-origsite=gscholar&cbl=18750&diss=y
- Stiglitz, J. E. (2012). The Price of Inequality: How Today's Divided Society Endangers Our Future (1 edition). WW Norton.
- Swanson, J., & Sagaii, S. (2017, November 30). *A National Housing Strategy to Maintain Homelessness for Decades to Come*. The Tyee. https://thetyee.ca/Opinion/2017/11/30/National-Housing-Strategy-Maintain-Homelessness-Decades-Come/
- Taşan-Kok, T., Bolt, G., Plüss, L., & Schenkel, W. (2017). *A Handbook for Governing Hyper-Diverse Cities*. Utretcht University, Faculty of Geosciences. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/DIVERCITIES-Handbook-Digital.pdf

- Tasan-Kok, T., van Kempen, R., Raco, M., & Bolt, G. (2013). *Towards Hyper-Diversified European Cities: A Critical Literature Review.* Utretcht University, Faculty of Geosciences. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/20140121 Towards HyperDiversified European Cities.pdf
- Ted Rutland, PhD. (n.d.). Selected Publications—Ted Rutland, PhD. Ted Rutland, PhD, Concordia University.

 Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.concordia.ca/faculty/ted-rutland.html#IDX_PUBLICATION
- Temin, P. (2017). The Vanishing Middle Class: Prejudice and Power in a Dual Economy. The MIT Press.
- Tencer, D. (2018, May 8). 1 In 5 Canadian Renters Give Half Their Income To The Landlord. HuffPost Canada. https://www.huffingtonpost.ca/2018/05/08/canadian-rental-housing-index-shows-1-in-5-households-give-half-their-income-to-the-landlord a 23430148/
- The changing face of Centretown. (2012, August 15). Xtra. https://www.dailyxtra.com/the-changing-face-of-centretown-2912
- The Mastering Of A Music City. (10:58). The Mastering Of A Music City. http://musiccitiessummit.com/
- Theaster Gates to lead new cultural policy partnership at Chicago Harris. (2016, February 1). *UChicago News*. https://news.uchicago.edu/article/2016/02/01/theaster-gates-lead-new-cultural-policy-partnership-chicago-harris
- Thomas, R. (2017). A Change of Two Cities: A Comparative Case Study on Gentrification. *Scripps Senior Theses*. http://scholarship.claremont.edu/scripps_theses/983
- To Justify Land: Of Coercion, Complicity, and Consent. (n.d.). http://www.mediacoop.ca/story/justify-land-5-coercion-complicity-and-consent/36791
- *Toronto Media Arts Centre.* (n.d.). Retrieved September 30, 2017, from https://www.tomediaarts.org/dispute#positive-momentum
- Toronto Music Strategy: Supporting and Growing the City's Music Sector. (2016). Toronto Music Advisory Council. http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2016/ed/bgrd/backgroundfile-90615.pdf
- Valli, C. (2017). *Pushing borders: Cultural workers in the restructuring of post-industrial cities*. http://www.diva-portal.org/smash/record.jsf?pid=diva2:1084525
- Vendeville, G. (2013, September 23). Residents Want to Keep the Malt In St. Henri. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/residents-want-to-keep-the-malt-in-st.-henri
- What Gentrification Means For Washington's Artists. (n.d.). *The Kojo Nnamdi Show*. Retrieved July 15, 2018, from https://thekojonnamdishow.org/shows/2018-07-12/what-gentrification-means-for-the-regions-artists
- Whiting, J., & Hannam, K. (2016). 'The secret garden': Artists, bohemia and gentrification in the Ouseburn Valley, Newcastle upon Tyne, UK. *European Urban and Regional Studies*, 24(3), 318–334. https://doi.org/10.1177/0969776416643750
- Whyte, M. (2015, April 4). Drawing the line on cultural development in Toronto. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2015/04/04/drawing-the-line-on-cultural-development-in-toronto.html
- Wilkins, C. L. (2007). *The Aesthetics of Equity: Notes on Race, Space, Architecture, and Music* (First edition edition). Univ Of Minnesota Press.
- Wilson, P. (2014, September 9). WILSON: New king at cotton castle on Sherman North. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/living-story/4837869-wilson-new-king-at-cotton-castle-on-sherman-north/
- Yeung, M. (2017, April 6). The Young Artists of (a Gentrified) Hamilton. *The Silhouette*. https://www.thesil.ca/young-artists-gentrified-hamilton
- Young, B. (2019, May 13). A radical quick fix for Toronto's housing crises. *NOW Magazine*. https://nowtoronto.com/news/housing-crisis-toronto
- Zhong, S. (2016). Artists and Shanghai's culture-led urban regeneration. *Cities*, *56*, 165–171. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cities.2015.09.002
- Zielenbach, S. (2000). *The Art of Revitalization: Improving Conditions in Distressed Inner-City Neighborhoods* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Zukin, S., & Braslow, L. (2011). The life cycle of New York's creative districts: Reflections on the unanticipated consequences of unplanned cultural zones. *City, Culture and Society*, *2*, 131–140.

R5

- Acting in Solidarity: Working for a Living Wage. (n.d.). HowlRound. Retrieved September 30, 2017, from http://howlround.com/acting-in-solidarity-working-for-a-living-wage
- Adjekum, S. (2018, February 11). We need to talk about gentrification and public health. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/opinion-story/8129268-we-need-to-talk-about-gentrification-and-public-health/
- Ajamu, A. (2017, September 7). Gentrification is ethnic cleansing. *Amsterdam News*.
 - http://amsterdamnews.com/news/2017/sep/07/gentrification-ethnic-cleansing/
- Alejandro, R. (2016, January 29). A blueprint for development without displacement in Baltimore. *Baltimore Brew.* https://www.baltimorebrew.com/2016/01/29/a-blueprint-for-development-without-displacement-in-baltimore/
- Art in Storefronts Toolkit. (2010). San Francisco Arts Commission. https://www.sfartscommission.org/resources/art-in-storefronts-toolkit
- Arts centre that hosted exhibit critical of developers gets \$1.5m from them. (2016, January 10). *CBC News*. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/western-front-developers-1.3396856
- Artscape DIY Square Feet: The Artist's Guide to Renting and Buying Creative Space. (n.d.). Retrieved October 14, 2017, from
 - http://www.artscapediy.org/ArtscapeDIY/MediaLibrary/ArtscapeDIY/ArtscapeMedia/documents/square_fe et 2011.pdf
- Artscape to Create 70 New Artist Live/Work Studios in Toronto's Junction Triangle. (n.d.). *Canadian Art.* Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://canadianart.ca/news/artscape-to-create-70-new-artist-livework-studios-intorontos-junction-triangle/
- Asthana, A., Elgot, J., & Mason, R. (2017, September 27). Jeremy Corbyn: Neoliberalism is broken and we are now the centre ground. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/politics/2017/sep/27/jeremy-corbyn-promises-rent-controls-and-clampdown-on-gentrification
- Auberbach, J., Barton, H., Blunt, T., Chaganti, V., Ghai, B., Meng, A., Blackburn, C., Zegura, E., & Flores, P. (2017, September). *Using data science as a community advocacy tool to promote equity in urban renewal programs:*An analysis of Atlanta's Anti-Displacement Tax Fund. Data Science for Social Good Conference, Chicago, Illinois. https://dssg.uchicago.edu/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/auerbach.pdf
- Bain, A. L., & Landau, F. (2017). Artists, Temporality, and the Governance of Collaborative Place-Making. *Urban Affairs Review*. https://doi.org/10.1177/1078087417711044
- Bauman, J. (2015, November 9). *Waterloo Region's Gentrification Fixation*. The Community Edition. https://communityedition.ca/waterloo-regions-gentrification-fixation/
- Bellafante, G. (2017, September 27). Tracking the Hyper-Gentrification of New York, One Lost Knish Place at a Time. *The New York Times*. https://www.nytimes.com/2017/09/27/books/review/vanishing-new-york-jeremiah-moss.html
- Binkovitz, L. (2017, September 29). Who's Really Getting the Benefit? The Impact of Gentrification on Health. THE URBAN EDGE. http://urbanedge.blogs.rice.edu/2017/09/29/whos-really-getting-the-benefit-the-impact-of-gentrification-on-health/
- Binkovitz, L., & Edge, via T. U. (2017, October 3). Who gets healthier when neighborhoods gentrify? *Houston Chronicle*. http://www.houstonchronicle.com/local/gray-matters/article/Who-gets-healthier-when-neighborhoods-gentrify-12247336.php
- Bolton, M. (2013, August 30). Is art to blame for gentrification? *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2013/aug/30/art-blame-gentrification-peckham
- Boucher, M. (2015). The Show Must Go On: Birthing SFU Woodward's Before and After the 2010 Olympics. Canadian Theatre Review, 164, 72–77. https://doi.org/10.3138/ctr.164.013
- Bousquet, C. (2017, June 6). Using Mapping to Understand Gentrification, Prevent Displacement. *Government Technology*. http://www.govtech.com/data/Using-Mapping-to-Understand-Gentrification-Prevent-Displacement.html
- Brenner, N., Marcuse, P., & Mayer, M. (2012). *Cities for people, not for profit: Critical urban theory and the right to the city.* Routledge. http://www.library.yorku.ca/e/resolver/id/2376952
- Bucerius, S. M., Thompson, S. K., & Berardi, L. (2017). "They're Colonizing My Neighborhood": (Perceptions of) Social Mix in Canada. *City & Community*. https://doi.org/10.1111/cico.12263

- Budds, D., & Budds, D. (2017, August 9). *Gentrifying Cities Are Trying To Save The Art That Made Them Cool*. Co.Design. https://www.fastcodesign.com/90135541/gentrifying-cities-are-trying-to-save-the-art-that-made-them-cool
- Cardoso, T., & Lundy, M. (2019, June 21). Airbnb likely removed 31,000 homes from Canada's rental market, study finds. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/canada/article-airbnb-likely-removed-31000-homes-from-canadas-rental-market-study/
- Carroll, R. (2017, July 28). Hipster-bashing in California: Angry residents fight back against gentrification. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2017/jul/28/california-anti-gentrification-hipster-yuppie *CEOs for Cities*. (n.d.). Retrieved October 14, 2017, from https://ceosforcities.org/
- Chapple, K. (2017). Income Inequality and Urban Displacement: The New Gentrification. *New Labor Forum*, *26*(1), 84–93. https://doi.org/10.1177/1095796016682018
- Chaskin, R. J., & Joseph, M. L. (2013). 'Positive' Gentrification, Social Control and the 'Right to the City' in Mixed-Income Communities: Uses and Expectations of Space and Place: Mixed-income communities and control of 'public' space in Chicago. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 37(2), 480–502. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-2427.2012.01158.x
- Chen, C. (2017). September 2017 Canadian Rent Report. Padmapper. https://blog.padmapper.com/canadian-rent-trends
- Cheung, A. (2017, October). Restaurant chain eyeing trendy Parkdale leaves family-run eatery facing closure. *CBC News: Toronto.* http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/we-re-being-squeezed-out-locals-try-to-save-parkdale-restaurant-amid-gentrification-worry-1.4359744
- City of Burlington Cultural Action Plan: Directions Forward Report. (2013). City of Burlington, Cobalt Connects. https://www.burlington.ca/en/resources/Adam_Belovari/Cultural_Report.pdf
- City of Markham Culture Policy & Plan 2012. (2012). City of Markham. https://www.markham.ca/wps/wcm/connect/markhampublic/d38e4d50-1c0f-4077-a627-23cd8531824d/2012_CulturePolicyPlan.pdf
- Cityscape. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://www.huduser.gov/portal/periodicals/cityscpe/vol18num3/index.html
- Civic Analytics: Housing. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://civicanalytics.com/tag/housing/
- Cleveland, W., & Estés, C. P. (2008). Art and Upheaval: Artists on the World's Frontlines. New Village Press.
- Community Properties Impact Corporation: The Weinland Park Collaborative. (n.d.). Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://www.cpoimpact.org/weinlandpark.aspx
- Corriston, B., Dunfey, M., Fung, K. L., & Zhong, Y. (2017). *Analyzing Risk of Displacement & Affordable Housing Opportunities in Southwest Boston*. Tufts University. http://www.swbcdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Displacement-Risk-in-Southwest-Boston-UEP-Report-2017.pdf
- Create NYC: A Cultural Plan for All New Yorkers. (2017). NYC Cultural Affairs. http://createnyc.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/CreateNYC Report FIN.pdf
- Creating and Preserving Affordable Housing through a Construction Impact Tax. (2017). Philadelphia Coalition for Affordable Communities. http://phillyaffordablecommunities.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/03/ConstructionImpactTax OnePager DRAFT3.pdf
- Culkin, B. F., & Pasto, J. (2017). *There is no such thing as Boston: Gentrification and the disappearance of a city.*CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform.
- Cultural Action Plan (COMMSERV 3-13). (2013). City of Burlington, Community Services Committee. https://www.burlington.ca/en/resources/Adam_Belovari/Cultural_Action_Plan_2013.pdf
- Currid, E. (2009). Bohemia as Subculture; "Bohemia" as Industry: Art, Culture, and Economic Development. *Journal of Planning Literature*, *23*(4), 368–382. https://doi.org/10.1177/0885412209335727
- De Cesari, C., & Dimova, R. (2017). Heritage and Gentrification: Introduction: Remaking urban landscapes in the name of culture and historic preservation. *International Journal of Heritage Studies*. http://hdl.handle.net/1854/LU-8131217
- Desislaa Hristova et. al. (n.d.). *Measuring Urban Social Diversity Using Interconnected Geo-Social Networks*. International World Wide Web Conference Committee. Retrieved June 10, 2019, from https://www.ucl.ac.uk/~ucfamus/papers/www16_measuring.pdf
- Divided City/United City: The series so far. (2014, December 15). *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/15/divided_cityunited_city_the_series_so_far.html

- Doucet, B. (2017, January 12). *Art\$Pay website helps Waterloo Region artists get a fair price*. CambridgeTimes.Ca. https://www.cambridgetimes.ca/community-story/7060225-art-pay-website-helps-waterloo-region-artists-get-a-fair-price/
- Dubb, S. (2017, October 2). DC Adopts Community Land Trust Approach to Avert Further Gentrification.

 Nonprofit Quarterly. https://nonprofitquarterly.org/2017/10/02/dc-adopts-community-land-trust-approach-avert-gentrification/
- Edlund, L., Machado, C., & Sviatchi, M. (2015). *Bright Minds, Big Rent: Gentrification and the Rising Returns to Skill* (No. 21729; NBER Working Paper Series, p. 65). Federal Bureau of Economic Research. http://www.nber.org/papers/w21729
- Ehrenhalt, A. (2017, October 26). *The Problem With the Second Phase of Gentrification*. KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/city-rising/the-problem-with-the-second-phase-of-gentrification
- El Kalach, S., Moriah, A., & Tapper, M. (2005). *Gentrification and Displacement: Community Responses & Policy Options—An Inventory of Case Examples of Neighbourhood Initiatives*. Centre for Urban and Community Studies, University of Toronto.
 - http://www.urbancentre.utoronto.ca/pdfs/curp/ResponsestoGentrification.pdf
- Ellis-Young, M. (2018). "We're just trying to help...make it a positive place": Community Organizations, Gentrification, and Neighbourhood Change in Hamilton, Ontario [University of Waterloo].
 - https://uwspace.uwaterloo.ca/bitstream/handle/10012/13418/Ellis-Young_Margaret.pdf?sequence=3
- Faife, C. (2017, October 2). The Safe Way to Build a Smart City. *CityLab*. https://www.citylab.com/solutions/2017/10/municipal-open-data-smart-city-guidelines-seattle-lessons/541578/
- Finance, P., & Estate, M. & R. (2014, March 29). Leaving the city (and the big mortgage) behind. *Financial Post*. http://business.financialpost.com/personal-finance/mortgages-real-estate/housing-mortgage-city-canada
- Fisher, M. (2009). Capitalist Realism: Is there no alternative? John Hunt Publishing.
- Florida, R. (n.d.). *How Data Is Actually Changing Our Knowledge of Cities*. CityLab. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.citylab.com/tech/2016/05/the-complex-relationship-between-data-and-cities/483303/
- Foster, N., Grodach, C., & Murdoch, J. (2016). Neighborhood Diversity, Economic Health, and The Role of the Arts. Journal of Urban Affairs, 38(5), 623–642. https://doi.org/10.1111/juaf.12278
- Frank, A. (2017, August 29). What Does It Take To See Gentrification Before It Happens? NPR.Org. http://www.npr.org/sections/13.7/2017/08/29/546980178/what-does-it-take-to-see-gentrification-before-it-happens
- Frank, S. (2013, August 16). Creativity needs a home. *MyKawartha.Com.* https://www.mykawartha.com/news-story/4035642-friday-focus-creativity-needs-a-home/
- Freeman, L. (2005). Displacement or Succession?: Residential Mobility in Gentrifying Neighborhoods. *Urban Affairs Review, 40*(4), 463–491. https://doi.org/10.1177/1078087404273341
- Gentrification in City Neighborhoods, Its Causes and Effects. (n.d.). Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.useful-community-development.org/gentrification.html
- Gentrification must be managed to protect culture in capital. (2017, March 7). ArtsProfessional. https://www.artsprofessional.co.uk/news/gentrification-must-be-managed-protect-culture-capital
- Gentrification Report Methodology. (n.d.). Governing the States and Localities. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.governing.com/gov-data/gentrification-report-methodology.html
- *Gentrification Study: Balancing revitalization, reducing displacement.* (2016). Denver Office of Economic Development.
 - https://www.denvergov.org/content/dam/denvergov/Portals/690/Reports%20 and %20 Studies/BROCHURE%20052416.pdf
- Glaeser, E., Gottlieb, J., & Tobio, K. (2012). *Housing Booms and City Centers* (No. w17914). National Bureau of Economic Research. https://doi.org/10.3386/w17914
- Green, J. (2016, March). How gentrification really changes a neighborhood. *Atlanta Magazine*. http://www.atlantamagazine.com/homeandgarden/the-gentrifier/
- Grey Ellis, E. (2017, February 18). *Tech's Diversity and Gentrification Problems Start at Home—With those Fancy Campuses*. WIRED. https://www.wired.com/2017/02/tech-campuses-hinder-diversity-help-gentrification/

- Grodach, C., Currid-Halkett, E., Foster, N., & Murdoch, J. (2014). The location patterns of artistic clusters: A metro-and neighborhood-level analysis. *Urban Studies*, *51*(13), 2822–2843. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098013516523
- Habitat III. (n.d.). Habitat III. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://habitat3.org
- Hall, H. R., Robinson, C. C., & Kohli, A. (Eds.). (2014). *Uprooting Urban America: Multidisciplinary Perspectives on Race, Class and Gentrification* (1 edition). Peter Lang Inc., International Academic Publishers.
- Hancox, D. (2016, January 12). Gentrification X: How an academic argument became the people's protest. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/jan/12/gentrification-argument-protest-backlash-urban-generation-displacement
- Harris, B. (2017). Making Rent in Bed-Stuy: A Memoir of Trying to Make it in New York City. Amistad.
- Harris, J. (2015, November 5). The Bristol conundrum: "Gentrification is a danger and if you're poor, you're really, really stretched." *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2015/nov/05/bristol-conundrum-gentrification-danger-poor-really-stretched-stokes-croft-george-ferguson
- Harris, R. (2018a, April 4). The gentrification of Hamilton. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/opinion-story/8560108-the-gentrification-of-hamilton/
- Harris, R. (2018b, April 28). Gentrification poses challenges to Hamilton, but none that the city can't address. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/opinion-story/8573179-gentrification-poses-challenges-to-hamilton-but-none-that-the-city-can-t-address/
- Harris, R., Dunn, J., & Wakefield, S. (2014, October 16). *A City on the Cusp: Neighbourhood Change in Hamilton since* 1970. Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership Research Day, Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/documents/2014/10/harris-etal-2014-neighbourhood-change-in-hamilton-since-1970-presentation.pdf
- Harris, R., Dunn, J., & Wakefield, S. (2015). *A City on the Cusp: Neighborhood Change in Hamilton since 1970* (No. 236). Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership.
- http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/documents/2015/04/neighbourhood-change-in-hamilton-since-1970.pdf Hawkins, H. (2011). Dialogues and Doings: Sketching the Relationships Between Geography and Art: Dialogues and doings. *Geography Compass*, *5*(7), 464–478. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1749-8198.2011.00429.x
- Hayes, D. (2016, December 8). Inside Regent Park: Toronto's test case for public-private gentrification. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/dec/08/inside-regent-park-torontos-test-case-for-public-private-gentrification
- Health Effects of Gentrification. (2013, August 21). Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. https://www.cdc.gov/healthyplaces/healthtopics/gentrification.htm
- Heinemann, W., & Hickel, J. (2017). *The Divide: A Brief Guide to Global Inequality and its Solutions*. William Heinemann.
- Henning, C. (2018, March 3). Stay or leave: Vancouver's artists face dwindling studio space, insecure housing. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/vancouver-s-artists-face-dwindling-studio-space-1.4557307
- Heritage Conservation Districts in Toronto: Procedures, Policies, and Terms of Reference. (n.d.). Retrieved June 19, 2019, from https://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2012/pg/bgrd/backgroundfile-44992.pdf
- Herman, B., Proksch, G., Berney, R., Dawkins, H., Kovacs, J., Ma, Y., Rich, J., & Tan, A. (2017). Data science for urban equity: Making gentrification an accessible topic for data scientists, policymakers, and the community. *ArXiv:1710.02447* [Cs]. http://arxiv.org/abs/1710.02447
- Hijazi, J. (2017, December 28). Who fights for public art in the face of gentrification? PBS NewsHour. https://www.pbs.org/newshour/arts/who-fights-for-public-art-in-the-face-of-gentrification
- Housing Roundtable. (n.d.). United Workers. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://www.unitedworkers.org/housing
- Howells, L. (2019, March 29). *Another art gallery leaves James St. North-closing Saturday after rent soars* [News]. CBC. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/another-art-gallery-leaves-james-st-north-closing-saturday-after-rent-soars-1.5075211
- Huante, A., & Miranda, K. (2019, February 6). What's at Stake in Contemporary Anti-Gentrification Movements? Society & Space. http://societyandspace.org/2019/02/06/whats-at-stake-in-contemporary-anti-gentrification/

- *HUDUser.gov.* (n.d.). U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office of Policy Development and Research. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://www.huduser.gov/portal/home.html
- Hyckie, M. (2017, November 1). *Lessons in affordable housing from wartime suburbia*. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/c55f31f6-bf2d-11e7-9127-121bebc5777e/
- I'm the Last Man Standing in My Rent-Controlled Apartment Building. (n.d.). Architectural Digest. Retrieved October 6, 2017, from https://www.architecturaldigest.com/story/im-the-last-man-standing-in-my-rent-controlled-apartment-building
- Indianapolis Revitalizing Neighborhoods Through Arts & Culture. (2017, August 9). Meeting of the Minds. http://meetingoftheminds.org/indianapolis-revitalizing-neighborhoods-arts-culture-22244
- Interactive: Change in Housing Units, 2011-2016. (n.d.). MapTO. Retrieved July 5, 2019, from http://www.mapto.ca/maps/2017/4/17/interactive-change-in-housing-at-the-block-level-in-the-gta-2011-2016
- Interactive map: Portland neighborhoods at risk of gentrification. (n.d.). The Oregonian. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://projects.oregonlive.com/maps/gentrification/
- Ivanova, I., Reaño, P., & Klein, S. (2017). Working for a Living Wage: Making Paid Work Meet Basic Family Needs in Metro Vancouver. Canadian Centre for Policy Alternatives. http://policyalternatives.ca/livingwage2017
- Jackson, T. (2017, August 15). The future of jobs: Is decent work for all a pipe dream? *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/global-development-professionals-network/2017/aug/15/the-future-of-jobs-is-decent-work-for-all-a-pipe-dream
- Jacobs, J. (1970). The Economy of Cities. Vintage.
- Jacobs, J. (2005). Dark Age Ahead. Vintage Canada.
- Jones, C. (2014, November 14). Should the minimum wage apply to the arts? *Chicago Tribune*. http://www.chicagotribune.com/entertainment/theater/ct-minimum-wage-arts-2014-column.html
- Juhnke, S. (2015). *The allure of diversity, creativity and space: Gentrification and multiculture in London and Berlin.*University of Manchester. http://www.rc21.org/en/wp-content/uploads/2014/12/E9-Juhnke.pdf
- Kane, L. (2017, December 17). "We see suicidal seniors": B.C. housing crisis forcing elderly into the streets. CTV News. https://www.ctvnews.ca/canada/we-see-suicidal-seniors-b-c-housing-crisis-forcing-elderly-into-the-streets-1.3725052
- Keatinge, B. (2016, May 3). How gentrifiers are fighting to reshape working class neighborhoods in their own image. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2016/05/03/how-gentrifiers-are-fighting-to-reshape-working-class-neighborhoods-in-their-own-image/
- Kolson Hurley, A. (2016, January 18). Will U.S. Cities Design Their Way Out of the Affordable Housing Crisis? *Next City*. https://nextcity.org/features/view/cities-affordable-housing-design-solution-missing-middle
- Kozey, K. N. (2015). *Collective Efficacy, Threat, and Urban Change: Examining Social Control Forces in Areas of Gentrification*. https://doi.org/10.13016/M20S5G
- L.A. Mayor's Affordable Housing Tool Put on Hold. (n.d.). Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/los-angeles-mayors-affordable-housing-tool-put-on-hold
- Laneway Suites. (n.d.). Evergreen. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from https://www.evergreen.ca/our-projects/laneway-suites/
- Leblanc, D. (2015, September 30). Artscape Youngplace: Creative spirit haunts the halls of Shaw Street School. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/real-estate/artscape-youngplace-creative-spirit-haunts-the-halls-of-shaw-street-school/article26602842/
- Ligaya, A. (2017, September 29). Toronto housing affordability hits worst level ever measured in city, RBC report says. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/real_estate/2017/09/29/toronto-housing-affordability-hit-lowest-level-ever-measured-this-year-rbc-says.html
- Lowson, G. (2015, January 2). How Hamilton is revitalizing its downtown to bring new life. *The Globe and Mail.* https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/building-blocks-for-a-new-hamilton-already-in-place/article22279390/
- Mackenzie, S. (2017, October 6). *Meet Vancouver-based collective Chapel Sound*. Redbull. https://www.redbull.com/ca-en/meet-vancouver-collective-chapel-sound
- Marchers drag soaps on strings to bring attention to gentrification. (n.d.). Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://bronx.news12.com/story/36492371/marchers-drag-soaps-on-strings-to-bring-attention-to-gentrification

- Martin, S. (2017, May 23). Why Toronto's housing market has a "missing middle." *CBC News*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/toronto-area-housing-market-has-a-missing-middle-new-report-says-1.4126751
- Martini, N. (2017). Capturing the Lived Experience of the City through Methodological Practice of Walking. In M. Smagacz-Poziemska, K. Frysztacki, & A. Bukowski (Eds.), *Re-Imagining the City: Municipality and Urbanity Today from a Sociological Perspective* (First edition, pp. 303–318). Jagiellonian University Press. https://doi.org/10.4467/K9748.40/e/17.7265
- McGillivray, K. (2017, February 26). High rent could make Toronto a "generational ghost town." *CBC News*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/high-rent-could-make-toronto-a-generational-ghost-town-1.3999022
- McGlinchy, A. (n.d.). Austin Is Full Of Anti-Gentrification Ideas, But Most Wouldn't Have A Direct Impact.

 Retrieved February 28, 2018, from http://kut.org/post/austin-full-anti-gentrification-ideas-most-wouldnt-have-direct-impact
- McGrath, J. M. (2017, July 14). *There's life outside Toronto, but leaving the city is harder than it used to be.* TVO. http://tvo.org/article/current-affairs/the-next-ontario/theres-life-outside-toronto-but-leaving-the-city-is-harder-than-it-used-to-be
- McKeen, A. (2017, December 28). Laneway suite proposal could offer relief amid Toronto housing crunch. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/12/28/laneway-suite-proposal-could-offer-relief-amid-toronto-housing-crunch.html
- Meltzer, R., & Ghorbani, P. (2017). Does gentrification increase employment opportunities in low-income neighborhoods? *Regional Science and Urban Economics*, *66*(Supplement C), 52–73. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.regsciurbeco.2017.06.002
- Micallef, S. (2017, July 21). Who has the right to thrive in Toronto? *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/07/21/who-has-the-right-to-thrive-in-toronto-micallef.html
- Millennial writes letter about her generation leaving Toronto due to real estate prices. (n.d.). *Global News*. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from https://globalnews.ca/video/3591288/millennial-writes-letter-about-her-generation-leaving-toronto-due-to-real-estate-prices/
- Miller, A. K. (2017). Displacement Matters: The Socioeconomics of Gentrification in Richmond, California. *Senior Theses and Capstone Projects*. http://scholar.dominican.edu/senior-theses/66
- Minton, A. (2017). Big Capital: Who Is London For? PENGUIN GROUP.
- Miranda, C. A. (2016, August 4). 'Out!' Boyle Heights activists say white art elites are ruining the neighborhood...but it's complicated. *Los Angeles Times*. http://www.latimes.com/local/lanow/la-me-ln-self-help-graphics-20160718-snap-story.html
- Misra, T. (n.d.). Where San Francisco Is Gentrifying. CityLab. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.citylab.com/housing/2015/08/mapping-gentrification-and-displacement-in-san-francisco/402559/
- Montpetit, J. (2016, May 31). How one Montreal neighbourhood has become a battleground in Canada's gentrification debate. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/montreal/gentrification-st-henrimontreal-toronto-vancouver-1.3607655
- Moore, Q., & Chronicle, for the H. (2017, October 11). How to avoid gentrifying a neighborhood. *Houston Chronicle*. http://www.houstonchronicle.com/local/gray-matters/article/How-to-avoid-gentrifying-a-neighborhood-12269618.php
- Morgan, G., & Nelligan, P. (2018). *The Creativity Hoax: Precarious Work in the Gig Economy*. Anthem Press. Mould, O. (2017, September 14). Why culture competitions and "artwashing" drive urban inequality. *Open Democracy*. https://www.opendemocracy.net/uk/oli-mould/why-culture-competitions-and-artwashing-drive-urban-inequality
- Mudhar, R. (2011, November 2). Artscape gets \$2 million for new Youngspace. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/2011/11/02/artscape_gets_2_million_for_new_youngspace.html
- "My Neighbors Would Look at Me Like an Alien": Women of Gentrification. (n.d.). Rewire. Retrieved October 25, 2017, from https://rewire.news/article/2017/10/24/neighbors-look-like-alien-women-gentrification/
- Naldi, P. (2017, June 21). Artist strategies and methods of resistance in the regenerated city. 18th Nordic Geographers Meeting, Stockholm.

- http://ualresearchonline.arts.ac.uk/11222/26/N8%20Artist%20strategies%20and%20methods%20of%20resistance%20in%20the%20regenerated%20city.pdf
- *Neighbourhood Action Strategy.* (2015, March 6). [Text]. City of Hamilton. https://www.hamilton.ca/city-initiatives/strategies-actions/neighbourhood-action-strategy
- Neuendorf, H. (n.d.). "A Major Victory": Artists React to Amazon's Decision to Drop Plans to Establish a New York City Campus. *Artnet News*. Retrieved February 22, 2019, from https://news.artnet.com/art-world/artists-amazon-long-island-city-1466116
- Newman, L. Z. (2015). Absent, Invisible, and Incoherent: Archiving Queer Women's Performance Futurities. *Canadian Theatre Review, 163*, 19–24. https://doi.org/10.3138/ctr.163.004
- Norman, L. A. (n.d.). *Acting Locally: How Artists Can Shape the Nature of Change in their Communities*. Arts Everywhere. Retrieved February 16, 2019, from https://artseverywhere.ca/2016/05/06/acting-locally-artists-shaping-change/
- Norton, W., & Walton-Roberts, M. (2013). *Cultural Geography: Environments, Landscapes, Identities, Inequalities* (3 edition). Oxford University Press.
- O'Neill, L. (2018, February 20). People in Toronto are afraid to move as rent prices skyrocket. *BlogTO*. https://www.blogto.com/real-estate-toronto/2019/01/toronto-apartment-condo-prices-rising-afraid-to-move/
- Otar, C. (2017, November 9). *Does Gentrification Help Or Harm Small Businesses?* Forbes. https://www.forbes.com/sites/forbesfinancecouncil/2017/11/09/does-gentrification-help-or-harm-small-businesses/
- Oved, M. C. (2014a, November 30). How do we cross Toronto's great divides? *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/11/30/how_do_we_cross_torontos_great_divides.html
- Oved, M. C. (2014b, December 29). Lessons from crossing Toronto's divides. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/29/lessons_from_crossing_torontos_divides.html
- Pearman, F. A., & Swain, W. A. (2017). School Choice, Gentrification, and the Variable Significance of Racial Stratification in Urban Neighborhoods. *Sociology of Education*, *90*(3), 213–235. https://doi.org/10.1177/0038040717710494
- Pearson, M. (2015, September 23). *Riverdale apartment residents worry about gentrification*. HamiltonNews.Com. https://www.hamiltonnews.com/news-story/5927238-riverdale-apartment-residents-worry-about-gentrification/
- Pelley, L. (2019, May 12). East-end arts organization on verge of becoming "homeless," councillor calls on city to help. CBC News. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/east-end-arts-organization-on-verge-of-becoming-homeless-councillor-calls-on-city-to-help-1.5131145
- Pendall, R. (2017). A Building Block for Inclusion: Housing for Community-Level Diversity, Participation, and Cohesion. Metropolitan Housing and Communities Policy Center, Urban Institute. https://www.urban.org/sites/default/files/publication/93616/a-building-block-for-inclusion 0.pdf
- Pinder, D. (2008). Urban Interventions: Art, Politics and Pedagogy: Debates and Developments. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 32(3), 730–736. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-2427.2008.00810.x
- Przybyslawski, C. (2017, April 25). *This Short Doc Highlights the Effects of Gentrification on a City's Music Scene*. Thump. https://thump.vice.com/en_ca/article/8qpv53/toronto-cbc-diy-gentrification-documentary
- Reich, R. B. (2015). Saving Capitalism: For the Many, Not the Few (First Edition edition). Knopf.
- Rent-control policy `likely fueled the gentrification of San Francisco,' study finds. (2017, November 2). *The Mercury News*. http://www.mercurynews.com/2017/11/02/rent-control-policy-likely-fueled-the-gentrification-of-san-francisco-study-finds/
- Revitalization or gentrification? (2013, March 25). *Media, Culture & Society*. https://mediaculturesociety.org/2013/03/25/revitalization-or-gentrification/
- Rider, D. (2014, December 8). A tale of income inequality in five Toronto neighbourhoods. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/08/a_tale_of_income_inequality_in_five_toronto_neighbourhoods.html
- Rodenbeck, E. (2013, September 6). Mapping Silicon Valley's Gentrification Problem Through Corporate Shuttle Routes. *Wired*. https://www.wired.com/2013/09/mapping-silicon-valleys-corporate-shuttle-problem/
- Romero, R. (2017). Bittersweet ambivalence: Austin's street artists speak of gentrification. *Journal of Cultural Geography*, 1–22. https://doi.org/10.1080/08873631.2017.1338855

- Rosenthal, S. S., & Ross, S. L. (2014). Change and Persistence in the Economic Status of Neighbourhoods and Cities. *Handbook of Regional and Urban Economics*, *5*. http://faculty.maxwell.syr.edu/rosenthal/recent%20papers/Handbook_Chapter_9_22_2014_Rosenthal_Ross%20-%20forthcoming.pdf
- Ross, C. (2016). Exploring the Ways Arts and Culture Intersect with Public Safety: Identifying Current Practice and Opportunities for Further Inquiry—A Creative Placemaking Field Scan. ArtPlace America, Urban Institute. https://www.artplaceamerica.org/view/pdf?f=/sites/default/files/public/pictures/artplace_field_scan_safet y_ross_apr_2016_updated.pdf
- Sabonis, P., & Hill, M. (n.d.). *Community + Land + Trust: Tools for Development Without Displacement*. The Baltimore Housing Roundtable.
- Schwartz, M. (n.d.). *The Art of Gentrification*. Dissent Magazine. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://www.dissentmagazine.org/article/the-art-of-gentrification
- Seresinhe, C. I., Preis, T., & Moat, H. S. (2016). Quantifying the link between art and property prices in urban neighbourhoods. *Royal Society Open Science*, *3*(4). https://doi.org/10.1098/rsos.160146
- Sevcenko, M. (2018, March 1). *Un-gentrifying Portland: Scheme helps displaced residents come home*. The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2018/mar/01/portland-anti-gentrification-housing-scheme-right-return
- Sharratt, C. (2019, February 7). Why Artists are Struggling to Make a Living From Their Art (and the Activists Fighting Back). Frieze. https://frieze.com/article/why-artists-are-struggling-make-living-their-art-and-activists-fighting-back
- Shaw, S., & Sullivan, D. M. (2011). "White Night": Gentrification, Racial Exclusion, and Perceptions and Participation in the Arts. *City & Community*, *10*(3), 241–264. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1540-6040.2011.01373.x
- Sherman, D. (2016, May 26). 6 Things the Arts Can Do for Housing. *Shelterforce*. https://shelterforce.org/2016/05/26/6-things-the-arts-can-do-for-housing/
- Short, J. R. (2017). A Research Agenda for Cities. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- Sidnell-Greene, S. (2015, October 13). Displacement in Parkdale: Gentrification, Resistance and Change. Shameless Magazine. http://shamelessmag.com/blog/entry/displacement-in-parkdale-gentrification-resistance-and-change
- Silver, J. (2016). Solving Poverty: Innovative Strategies from Winnipeg's Inner City. Fernwood Books Ltd. https://fernwoodpublishing.ca/book/solving-poverty
- Sisson, P. (2018, April 3). Why artist housing is just another kind of affordable housing. Curbed. https://www.curbed.com/2018/4/3/17192722/affordable-housing-artists-workforce
- Slater, T. (2003). Comparing Gentrification in South Parkdale, Toronto and Lower Park Slope, New York City: A 'North American' Model of Neighbourhood Reinvestment? (CNR Paper No. 11). ESRC Centre for Neighbourhood Research, University of Toronto. http://www.urbancentre.utoronto.ca/pdfs/curp/CNR_Parkdale-NYC-Gentrifica.pdf
- Sloat, S. (2016, April 13). The Way to Predict Gentrification Through Social Media Data: Censuses give a poor impression of the socioeconomic standing of a neighbourhood. Twitter, meanwhile, does a pretty good job. Inverse: Innovation. https://www.inverse.com/article/14168-predict-gentrification-through-social-mediadata
- Social Impacts and Benefits of Arts and Culture: A Literature Review. (2016). Department of Canadian Heritage. http://publications.gc.ca/site/eng/9.851555/publication.html
- Standing, G. (2017). The Corruption of Capitalism: Why Rentiers Thrive and Work Does Not Pay. Biteback Publishing. State of the art: Is Vancouver driving away creative people? (2017, January 20). CBC News.
 - http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/vancouver-arts-creative-1.3942321
- Steif, K. (n.d.). *Urban Spatial*. Urban Spatial. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://urbanspatialanalysis.com/portfolio/exploring-neighborhood-change-with-longitudinal-census-data/
- Stone, J. (2019, February 26). Berlin set to hold referendum on banning big landlords and nationalising private rented housing. *Independent*. https://www.independent.co.uk/news/world/europe/berlin-landlords-bangermany-private-rent-housing-referendum-vote-a8796471.html
- Sustersic, A., & Psibilski, L. (2005). Art Spaces and the Gentrification Process in East London. Revolver.

- Sutherland, L. (2017, August 10). Postcards from the collaborative economy. *ONN*. http://theonn.ca/postcards-collaborative-economy/
- Telling Our Stories, Growing Our Economy: Developing a Culture Strategy for Ontario. (n.d.). [Discussion Paper]. Ontario Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport. Retrieved May 2, 2017, from http://www.mtc.gov.on.ca/en/publications/Culture_Strategy_Discussion_Paper.pdf
- Tencer, D. (2018, May 16). *Rental Rates Soar By Double Digits In Half Of Canada's Largest Cities*. HuffPost Canada. https://www.huffingtonpost.ca/2018/05/16/rental-rates-canada-april-2018_a_23436309/
- The future of work. (n.d.). Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://www.ilo.org/global/topics/future-of-work/lang-en/index.htm
- Town of Aurora Cultural Master Plan 2014-2019. (2014). Town of Aurora, AuthentiCity, The Planning Partnership. https://www.aurora.ca/Thingstodo/Documents/2014-05-20%20Staff%20Report%20PR14-022%20Attachment%201.pdf
- Transforming Hamilton Through Culture: The Cultural Plan 2013. (2013). City of Hamilton. https://www.hamilton.ca/city-initiatives/strategies-actions/love-your-city-cultural-policy-plan
- Trapunski, R. (2017a, March 22). Can laneway homes take the pressure off Toronto's real estate market? *NOW Magazine*. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/612ee2e8-0f16-11e7-8f03-0aea2a882f79/
- Trapunski, R. (2017b, May 30). Could Hamilton really be "Toronto's Brooklyn"? That's the concept the city's mayor, Fred Eisenberger, and condo developer Brad J. Lamb are selling. But are you buying it? NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/lifestyle/real-estate/could-hamilton-really-be-toronto-s-brooklyn/
- Twenty years on, Gallery 1313 continues to nourish Parkdale. (2017, September 15). The Globe and Mail. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/twenty-years-on-gallery1313-continues-to-nourish-parkdale/article36280300/
- Urbanarium. (n.d.). Urbanarium Society. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://urbanarium.org/
- Van Gent, W. P. C., Boterman, W. R., & Hoekstra, M. S. (2016). State-sponsored gentrification or social regeneration? Symbolic politics and neighborhood intervention in an Amsterdam working class neighborhood (Working Paper Series No. 22). Centre for Urban Studies. http://urbanstudies.uva.nl/content/working-paper-series/working-paper-series-no.22.html
- Vella, E. (2017, May 11). Millennial pens open letter, says Toronto real estate prices too high. *Global News*. https://globalnews.ca/news/3590956/millennial-toronto-real-estate/
- Vyhnak, C. (n.d.). Successful Options for GTA home buyers. *The Star.* Retrieved May 17, 2018, from https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2018/05/05/successful-options-for-gta-home-buyers.html
- *W* ■*A* ■*G* ■*E Working Artists and the Greater Economy*. (n.d.). Retrieved September 30, 2017, from http://www.wageforwork.com/home
- Ward, G., & Rwicher, M. (2017, October 26). There goes the neighborhood: New community names crop up in gentrifying Nashville. The Tennessean. https://www.tennessean.com/story/money/real-estate/2017/10/26/nashville-gentrification-neighborhood-nations-edgehill-salemtown-antioch/763566001/
- Waterloos' Culture Plan: A Catalyst for Culture 2014-2024. (2014). City of Waterloo.

 http://www.waterloo.ca/en/contentresources/resources/government/Waterloos_Culture_Plan_A_Catalyst for Culture 2014 2024 Final Report circ..pdf
- We need to transform housing politics: Treating homes as commodities has caused crisis, sociology prof says. (2019, April 23). In *The Early Edition*. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/housing-crisis-politics-commodity-david-madden-1.5107257
- Webber, L. G. (2017). Gentrifying the Commons // Commoning Gentrification. *Arts Everywhere*, 1. http://artseverywhere.ca/2017/05/25/gentrifying-the-commons/
- Wells, J. (2018, September 24). Where have you gone James North? Hamilton's iconic arts district spawned Supercrawl and is rapidly changing. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/news-story/8900385-where-have-you-gone-james-north-hamilton-s-iconic-arts-district-spawned-supercrawl-and-is-rapidly-changing-/
- What is Gentrification? (2003, January 17). *POV Flag Wars: American Documentary Inc.* http://archive.pov.org/flagwars/what-is-gentrification/

- White, H., & Lees, L. (2015). Why We Can't Afford to Lose it: Local Authority Housing in London Protects the Poor from Homelessness. University of Leicester. http://ch1889.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/11/Canweaffordtolosethem-FC2.pdf
- Whyte, M. (2017, September 26). Good news for 401 Richmond—But what took so long? *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2017/09/26/good-news-for-cultural-institutions-but-what-took-so-long.html
- Wierzba, T. (2014). *Transforming Downtown St. Catharines into a Creative Cluster* [Brock University]. https://dr.library.brocku.ca/bitstream/handle/10464/5802/Brock_Wierzba_Tomasz_2014.pdf?sequence=1
- Willis, I. by S. (2015, July 28). Bow Arts chief: We must ensure affordable places for artists to work. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/culture-professionals-network/2015/jul/28/bow-arts-affordable-places-for-artists
- Willis, S. C. (2016). Artistic Expressions Amidst Gentrification: Reclaiming Identity and Authenticity in Gentrified Public Spaces [Roosevelt University]. ProQuest Dissertations Publishing. https://search.proquest.com/openview/ad07550899a95d991a8edc5ad88dd8b1/1?pq-origsite=gscholar&cbl=18750&diss=y
- Winsa, P. (2019, July 5). Here's what you'd need to earn to buy a mid-priced home in your Toronto neighbourhood—And what a typical family there earns (Hint: Not nearly enough). *Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/amp/news/gta/2019/07/05/heres-what-youd-need-to-earn-to-buy-a-mid-priced-home-in-your-toronto-neighbourhood-and-what-a-typical-family-there-earns-hint-not-nearly-enough.html
- Wylie, B. (2019, February 16). Sidewalk Toronto: Rhetoric, Narrative, and Deceit. *Medium*. https://medium.com/@biancawylie/sidewalk-toronto-rhetoric-narrative-and-deceit-bb995fa5d1db
- Zarsadiaz, J. F. D. (n.d.). Why Gentrification Is So Hard to Stop. CityLab. Retrieved October 3, 2017, from http://www.theatlanticcities.com/jobs-and-economy/2014/02/why-gentrification-so-hard-stop/7708/

Bibliography Full Alphabetical

The following is an alphabetical compendium of 2,000 public and academic resources related to spatial precarity, gentrification, and the arts, including social, cultural, political, economic, and other root causes, ripple effects, and responses in Canada and internationally. This full bibliography features all resources accessed between May 2017 and January 2020 (prior to the COVID-19 pandemic).



5 Pointz. (2019). In *Wikipedia*. https://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=5_Pointz&oldid=904027610 9 Principles of Ethical Redevelopment. (2017). Place Lab.

https://static1.squarespace.com/static/56aa853d25981d66ccbcdfd2/t/5790f7c61b631be8a7a255fd/1469118407300/EthRed 9Pbooklet.pdf

10 people-centred smart city initiatives. (n.d.). Nesta. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://www.nesta.org.uk/news/10-people-centred-smart-city-initiatives

10 Questions on Gentrification. (n.d.). In TVO. Retrieved February 21, 2018, from

https://tvo.org/video/programs/the-agenda-with-steve-paikin/10-questions-on-gentrification

13th Annual Demographia International Housing Affordability Survey: 2017 Rating Middle-Income Housing Affordability (Data 2016: 3rd Quarter). (2017). Demographia. http://www.demographia.com/dhi.pdf 2016 Culture for Competitiveness Study. (2016). Business for the Arts. http://www.businessforthearts.org/2016-

2016 Culture for Competitiveness Study. (2016). Business for the Arts. http://www.businessforthearts.org/2016culture-for-competitiveness-study/

2018 Artists' Workspace Annual Data Note: Cultural Infrastructure Plan. (2018). Mayor of London.

https://www.creativelandtrust.org/assets/papers/2018%20artists%20workspace%20study%20data%20note.pdf

2019 Culture Master Plan: Final Report. (2019). City of Mississauga.

http://www7.mississauga.ca/Departments/Rec/future-directions/pdf/2019-plans/2019%20Culture%20Master%20Plan_FINAL.pdf

A

- A Healthy Arts Ecosystem. (n.d.). Createquity. Retrieved November 16, 2017, from
 - http://createquity.com/about/a-healthy-arts-ecosystem
- A Statistical Profile of Artists and Cultural Workers in Canada. (2014). Hill Strategies Research.
 - https://canadacouncil.ca/research/research-library/2014/10/a-statistical-profile-of-artists-and-cultural-workers-in-canada-2011
- A Statistical Profile of Artists in Canada in 2016 (No. 49). (2019). Hill Strategies Research.
 - https://hillstrategies.com/resource/statistical-profile-of-artists-in-canada-in-2016/
- A Vibrant Community: Richmond Hill's Cultural Plan Final Report. (n.d.). Millder Dickinson Blais, AuthentiCity, PublicInterest. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from https://www.richmondhill.ca/en/shared-content/resources/documents/Richmond-Hill-Cultural-Plan.pdf
- Aberg-Riger, A. (n.d.). "The City Needed Them Out." CityLab. Retrieved October 3, 2017, from https://www.citylab.com/equity/2017/10/the-city-needed-them-out/541773/
- Abramson, D. M. (2017). Obsolescence: An Architectural History (1 edition). University of Chicago Press.
- Accountable at the Source. (n.d.). http://fairbnb.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Fairbnb_Platform-Accountability_final.pdf
- Acme. (n.d.). Acme Studios. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://acme.org.uk/
- Acting in Solidarity: Working for a Living Wage. (n.d.). HowlRound. Retrieved September 30, 2017, from http://howlround.com/acting-in-solidarity-working-for-a-living-wage
- Adams, K. (n.d.). *Toronto Gallery Margin of Eras at Risk of Closing*. Canadian Art. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://canadianart.ca/news/toronto-gallery-margin-of-eras-at-risk-of-closing/
- Adams, K. (2019a, February 4). *A hundred Black women and gender-non-conforming artists feasted in the AGO*. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/05c07870-27e4-11e9-b16f-120e7ad5cf50/
- Adams, K. (2019b, July 18). *Vancouver's women and nonbinary DJs are battling the juggernauts of gentrification and intolerance*. CBC. https://www.cbc.ca/arts/vancouver-s-women-and-nonbinary-djs-are-battling-the-juggernauts-of-gentrification-and-intolerance-1.5216861
- Adams, M. H. (2016, June 27). The End of Black Harlem.
 - https://www.nytimes.com/2016/05/29/opinion/sunday/the-end-of-black-harlem.html
- Addressing Ottawa's Housing Crisis. (n.d.). http://fairbnb.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Fairbnb-Update-Report-Ottawa final.pdf
- Adjekum, S. (2018, February 11). We need to talk about gentrification and public health. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/opinion-story/8129268-we-need-to-talk-about-gentrification-and-public-health/
- Affordable Housing Crisis Ideas That Are So Crazy They Just Might Work. (n.d.). Retrieved November 1, 2017, from http://www.wnyc.org/story/affordable-housing-crisis-ideas-are-so-crazy-they-just-might-work
- Affording the Unaffordable. (n.d.). Retrieved November 1, 2017, from http://www.wnyc.org/story/affording-unaffordable
- Agilo, Jessa. (2017, June 27). *Groundstory: Call for Partners*. ArtsPond.
 - https://artspond.com/?q=content/blog/groundstory-call-partners
- Ahmadi, D. (2017). Diversity and social cohesion: The case of Jane-Finch, a highly diverse lower-income Toronto neighbourhood. *Urban Research & Practice*, *0*(0), 1–20. https://doi.org/10.1080/17535069.2017.1312509
- Ahmadi, D., & Tasan-Kok, T. (2014). *Assessment of Urban Policies in Canada*. Faculty of Architecture and the Built Environment, Delft University of Technology. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/Urban-Policies-on-Diversity-in-Toronto1.pdf
- Aiello, G., Bergère, C., Daily, L., Doyle, L., Duncombe, S., D'Ignazio, C., Foley, J., Giannini, L., Hunsinger, J., Kuhlman, M., Kumanyika, C., McAlister, J. F., Philips, D., & Walker, R. (2016). *DIY Utopia: Cultural Imagination and the Remaking of the Possible* (A. Day, Ed.). Lexington Books.
- Aitken, J. (2016). *Art Practices & The Housing Crisis* (J. Aitken, Ed.). https://iudblog.org/2016/12/17/conference-recordings-art-practices-the-housing-crisis/

- Ajamu, A. (2017, September 7). Gentrification is ethnic cleansing. *Amsterdam News*. http://amsterdamnews.com/news/2017/sep/07/gentrification-ethnic-cleansing/
- Akin Collective. (n.d.). Akin Collective. Retrieved January 6, 2018, from http://www.akincollective.com/
- Akin Collective responds to local artists' need for affordable studio space. (2019, October). Toronto Arts Council. https://torontoartscouncil.org/tac-impact/featured-stories/1/akin-collective-artists-studio-space
- Albet, A., & Benach, N. (Eds.). (2017). *Gentrification as a Global Strategy: Neil Smith and Beyond* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Albright, C. (2017, November 10). Gentrification is sweeping through America. Here are the people fighting back. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2017/nov/10/atlanta-super-gentrification-eminent-domain
- Alejandro, R. (2016, January 29). A blueprint for development without displacement in Baltimore. *Baltimore Brew.* https://www.baltimorebrew.com/2016/01/29/a-blueprint-for-development-without-displacement-in-baltimore/
- Alena Museum. (n.d.). Retrieved July 15, 2018, from https://alenamuseum.com/
- Alexiou, A. S. (2006). Jane Jacobs: Urban visionary. Rutgers University Press.
- Ali, M. (2016, April 20). No Pride in Gentrification: An Intersectional Look at Gay Neighbourhoods. *The Underground*. http://the-underground.ca/no-pride-in-gentrification-an-intersectional-look-at-gay-neighbourhoods/
- Aliermo, A. (2018, January 19). If we value what art brings to our cities, we must understand that artists are part of an ecosystem. CBC Arts. http://www.cbc.ca/arts/if-we-value-what-art-brings-to-our-cities-we-must-understand-that-artists-are-part-of-an-ecosystem-1.4495292
- Alioto, D. (2019, June 19). How Graffiti Became Gentrified. *The New Republic*. https://newrepublic.com/article/154220/graffiti-became-gentrified
- Allard, S. W. (2017). *Places in Need: The Changing Geography of Poverty* (1 edition). Russell Sage Foundation. *Alliance to End Homelessness Ottawa*. (n.d.). The Alliance to End Homelessness Ottawa. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://endhomelessnessottawa.ca/
- All-In Cities: An initiative of PolicyLink. (n.d.). Retrieved October 14, 2017, from http://allincities.org/
- Anchor Institutions (The Prosperous Province: Strategies for Building Community Wealth). (n.d.). Mowat Centre and Atkinson Foundation. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://anchorinstitutions.ca/
- ANDA, Artists' Residencies Toronto. (n.d.). https://www.andaresidency.com/
- Anderson, A. B. (2013). *Home in the City: Urban Aboriginal Housing and Living Conditions*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Anderson, D. (2016, May 26). Story of cities #future: What will our growing megacities really look like? *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/may/26/story-cities-future-growing-megacities-waste-floating-smart
- Anderson, E. (1990). *Streetwise: Race, class, and change in an urban community*. University of Chicago Press. Anderson, Penny. (2019a, February 24). *Against Art-Washing*. Tribune Magazine.
 - https://tribunemag.co.uk/2019/02/against-art-washing
- Anderson, Penny. (2019b, July 9). If we value artists, we should pay the, benefits-Ireland is leading the way. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2019/jul/09/value-artists-benefits-ireland-britain-creative-industries
- Anderson, Phil. (n.d.). *How art helped build a sense of community in Parkdale*. NOW Magazine. Retrieved February 16, 2019, from https://nowtoronto.com/news/the-art-of-building-community-parkdale/
- Andersson, Å. E., Andersson, D. E., Daghbashyan, Z., & Hårsman, B. (2014). Location and spatial clustering of artists. *Regional Science and Urban Economics*, 47, 128–137. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.regsciurbeco.2013.09.008
- Andrew-Gee, E. (2014a, December 2). Should Toronto have a higher minimum wage than the rest of Ontario? *The Toronto Star*.
 - $https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/02/should_toronto_have_a_higher_minimum_wage_than_the_rest_of_ontario.html$

- Andrew-Gee, E. (2014b, December 7). Toronto is divided, but not as badly as other major cities. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/07/how_divided_is_toronto_not_as_badly_as_some_it_turns_out.html
- Anger into Action: Anti-gentrification attacks this summer in Hamilton. (n.d.). *The Hamilton Institute*. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://thehamiltoninstitute.noblogs.org/post/2017/08/22/anger-into-action-anti-gentrification-attacks-this-summer-in-hamilton/
- Anigacz, A. M. (2010). *Are Residents Who Are Displaced by Gentrification Better or Worse Off After Relocating?* [Honors Projects, Paper 28]. http://digitalcommons.macalester.edu/economics_honors_projects/28
- Anti-Eviction Mapping Project. (n.d.). Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://www.antievictionmap.com/
- Anti-Gentrification Summit. (2017, October 7). *Buffalo Rising*. https://www.buffalorising.com/2017/10/anti-gentrification-summit/
- Antwi, P., & Dean, A. (2010). Unfixing Imaginings of the City: Art, Gentrification, and Cultures of Surveillance. Affinities: A Journal of Radical Theory, Culture, and Action; What Is the Radical Imagination? https://ojs.library.queensu.ca/index.php/affinities/article/view/6132
- Aravena, A., & Iacobelli, A. (2013). *Elemental: Incremental Housing and Participatory Design Manual* (Box Blg edition). Hatje Cantz.
- Argyle Public Relationships. (2018, September 6). *Parkdale Community Hub: Preliminary Feedback, Insights & Directions*. Parkdalehub.Ca. https://parkdalehub.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/preliminary.pdf
- Ark, T. V. (2014). *Smart Cities That Work for Everyone: 7 Keys to Education & Employment* (M. Ryerse, Ed.; 1 edition). Eifrig Publishing LLC.
- Arroyo, K. (2017). Creative Democracy: Applying the Lessons of Creative Placemaking to Policymaking. *Artivate: A Journal of Entrepreneurship in the Arts.* http://hida
 - lamp01.hida.asu.edu/index.php/artivate/article/view/154
- Art Against Displacement. (n.d.). Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://www.aad.nyc/en/
- Art and Gentrification: A Dangerous Gentrification Definition. (2017, May 30). *Culture Hog.* https://blog.culturehog.com/art-and-gentrification/
- Art Districts. (n.d.). Benjamen Walker's Theory of Everything. Retrieved November 24, 2017, from https://toe.prx.org/2017/04/art-districts/
- Art in Storefronts Toolkit. (2010). San Francisco Arts Commission.
 - https://www.sfartscommission.org/resources/art-in-storefronts-toolkit
- Artery. (n.d.). Every Space Is a Stage. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://artery.is
- Artist Coalition for Equitable Development. (n.d.). Vanishing Seattle. Retrieved October 18, 2017, from https://www.facebook.com/vanishingseattle/posts/1380142268731724:0
- Artists Align with Anti-Displacement Movements. (2018, February 9). *The Mainlander*.
 - http://themainlander.com/2018/02/09/artists-align-with-anti-displacement-movements/
- Artists and Dealers Face Off With Real Estate Developers in Chinatown, Gaining a Temporary Win. (2019, June 6). Hyperallergic. https://hyperallergic.com/503824/artists-and-dealers-face-off-with-real-estate-developers-in-chinatown/
- Artists Are Leaving, 2019. (2019, Winter). *C Magazine, 140*. https://cmagazine.com/issues/140/artists-are-leaving-2018
- Artists by Neighbourhood in Canada (No. 2; p. 32). (2005). Hill Strategies Research.
 - https://www.creativecity.ca/database/files/library/artists by neighbourhood.pdf
- Artists' Workplace Study: Report and Recommendations. (2014). Mayor of London.
 - https://www.creativelandtrust.org/assets/papers/Artists%20workspace%20study.pdf
- Artivate Special Issue: Creative Placemaking & Arts Entrepreneurship. (2017, September 27). ArtPlace America. https://www.artplaceamerica.org/library/artivate-special-issue-creative-placemaking-arts-entrepreneurship
- ArtPlace America. (n.d.). ArtPlace America. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://www.artplaceamerica.org/ Arts & Culture Archives. (n.d.). Shelterforce. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from
 - https://shelterforce.org/category/arts-culture/
- Arts & Culture Master Plan. (2016). City of Port Colborne.
 - http://portcolborne.ca/page/artsandculturemasterplan

- Arts Careers. (n.d.). Createquity. Retrieved November 2, 2017, from http://createquity.com/issue/careers/
- Arts centre that hosted exhibit critical of developers gets \$1.5m from them. (2016, January 10). *CBC News*. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/western-front-developers-1.3396856
- Arts Platform Aims To Curb Gentrification. (2018, June 18). Affordable Housing Action.
 - https://affordablehousingaction.org/arts-platform-to-end-gentrification/
- Arts Professionals Survey. (n.d.). Calgary Arts Development. Retrieved January 7, 2019, from https://calgaryartsdevelopment.com/publications/arts-professionals-survey-2017/
- Arts Stats 2019—Going Without: Artists and Arts Workers in our Creative City (p. 28). (2019). Toronto Arts Foundation. https://torontoartsfoundation.org/tac/media/taf/Research/2019-TAF-Arts-Stats-booklet-FINAL-web.pdf
- Artscape. (2017). *Artscape 5.0: Stratgeic Plan 2018-2022* (p. 17). https://www.artscape.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/Artscape-Strategic-Plan-2018-to-2022.pdf
- Artscape and BOP Consulting. (n.d.). *Making Space for Culture: Handbook for City Leaders* (Policy and Practice Series). World Cities Culture Forum. Retrieved July 24, 2017, from http://www.worldcitiescultureforum.com/assets/others/170815_MSFC_Report_DIGITAL_updated2.pd
- Artscape DIY Square Feet: The Artist's Guide to Renting and Buying Creative Space. (n.d.). Retrieved October 14, 2017, from
 - http://www.artscapediy.org/ArtscapeDIY/MediaLibrary/ArtscapeDIY/ArtscapeMedia/documents/square feet 2011.pdf
- Artscape to Create 70 New Artist Live/Work Studios in Toronto's Junction Triangle. (n.d.). *Canadian Art*. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://canadianart.ca/news/artscape-to-create-70-new-artist-livework-studios-in-torontos-junction-triangle/
- Artscape Triangle Lofts Case Study. (2018). Artscape. https://www.artscape.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/2018-03-02_ArtscapeTriangleLofts_CaseStudy.pdf
- "Artwashing" and Gentrification a Conversation with Phil Lantis (No. 34). (n.d.). Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://podcasts.apple.com/ca/podcast/ep-34-artwashing-gentrification-conversation-phillantis/id1452087346?i=1000443007093
- Artwashing Social Space. (n.d.). COLOURING IN CULTURE. Retrieved July 15, 2018, from http://colouringinculture.org/blog/2018/6/22/artwashingsocialspace
- As Denver's neighborhoods gentrify, the poor are pushed to new pockets of poverty. (2017, June 23). *The Denver Post*. http://www.denverpost.com/2017/06/23/as-denvers-neighborhoods-gentrify-the-poor-are-pushed-to-new-pockets-of-poverty/
- Asmar, M. (2017, December 12). Gentrification is changing Denver schools. These recommendations aim to address that. *Chalkbeat*. https://www.chalkbeat.org/posts/co/2017/12/12/gentrification-is-changing-denver-schools-these-recommendations-aim-to-address-that/
- Asphalt Art. (n.d.). Bloomberg Philanthropies. Retrieved October 28, 2019, from https://asphaltart.bloomberg.org/
- Assemble Hamilton: Gentrification Talk. (n.d.). *Hamilton Fringe Festival*. Retrieved July 15, 2018, from http://hamiltonfringe.ca/fringe-club/assemble-hamilton-gentrification-talk/
- Asthana, A., Elgot, J., & Mason, R. (2017, September 27). Jeremy Corbyn: Neoliberalism is broken and we are now the centre ground. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/politics/2017/sep/27/jeremy-corbyn-promises-rent-controls-and-clampdown-on-gentrification
- Ateliers créatifs Montréal. (n.d.). Retrieved October 4, 2019, from https://www.atelierscreatifs.org/
- Atkinson, A. B. (2015). *Inequality: What Can Be Done?* Harvard University Press.
- Atkinson, R. (2004). The evidence on the impact of gentrification: New lessons for the urban renaissance? *International Journal of Housing Policy*, 4(1), 107–131. https://doi.org/10.1080/1461671042000215479
- Atkinson, R., & Bridge, G. (Eds.). (2005). Gentrification in a Global Context (1 edition). Routledge.
- Atypical work in the arts, entertainment and media. (2016, September 14). *International Federation of Musicians*. https://www.fim-musicians.org/europe-atypical-work-in-the-arts-entertainment-and-media-sector/
- Auberbach, J., Barton, H., Blunt, T., Chaganti, V., Ghai, B., Meng, A., Blackburn, C., Zegura, E., & Flores, P. (2017, September). *Using data science as a community advocacy tool to promote equity in urban renewal programs:*

- An analysis of Atlanta's Anti-Displacement Tax Fund. Data Science for Social Good Conference, Chicago, Illinois. https://dssg.uchicago.edu/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/auerbach.pdf
- August, M. (2016). Revitalisation gone wrong: Mixed-income public housing redevelopment in Toronto's Done Mount Court. *Urban Studies, Vol 53* (Issue 16), 3405–3422.
- August, M., & Walks, A. (2017). Gentrification, suburban decline, and the financialization of multi-family rental housing: The case of Toronto. *Geoforum*. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.geoforum.2017.04.011
- Australian party proposes a living wage for artists. (2016, June 10). Dazed.
 - http://www.dazeddigital.com/artsandculture/article/31502/1/australian-party-proposes-a-living-wage-for-artists
- Austrom, E. (2006). *Urban Revitalization: Best Practices to Prevent Residential Displacement Due to Gentrification.*University of Calgary.
 - https://books.scholarsportal.info/en/read?id=/ebooks/ebooks0/gibson_cppc/2013-05-25/1/10681834
- Axel-Lute, M. (2017, January 11). Bringing Together Arts and Community Development. *Shelterforce*. https://shelterforce.org/2017/01/11/bringing-together-arts-and-community-development/
- Ayer, S., & Foster, J. D. (2019). *Toronto's Vital Signs: Growing Pains Amid Narrow Gains (Report 2019-20)*. Toronto Foundation. https://torontofoundation.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/VitalSigns2019.pdf

B

- Baci, E., Costantini, J., Hines, J., & Hunter, Ar., AIS & Bronwen. (2017). Exploring the Link Between Rising House Prices and Counter Urbanization in Toronto with a GIS Approach. *Landmarks: The Undergraduate Geography Journal, University of Toronto, 3,* 76–95.
- Badger, E. (2015, August 4). How to predict rising home prices, neighborhood change and gentrification. *Washington Post.* https://www.washingtonpost.com/news/wonk/wp/2015/08/04/how-to-predict-rising-home-prices-and-future-gentrification/
- Badger, E. (2017, January 5). How to Predict Gentrification: Look for Falling Crime. *The New York Times*. https://www.nytimes.com/2017/01/05/upshot/how-to-predict-gentrification-look-for-falling-crime.html
- Badger, E., & Bui, Q. (2019, June 18). Cities Start to Question an American Ideal: A House With a Yard on Every Lot. The New York Times. https://www.nytimes.com/interactive/2019/06/18/upshot/cities-across-america-question-single-family-zoning.html
- Badheytsang, G. (2019, October 29). *The story behind Hito Steyerl's Parkdale-inspired art installation*. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/0a5ca9e6-f9d8-11e9-8c73-1244d5f7c7c6/
- Bailão, A. (2019, November 26). *Bloor and Dufferin Development Update*. Ana Bailão, Toronto City Councillor for Ward 9, Davenport. http://www.anabailao.com/bloor and dufferin development update
- Bain, A. L. (2003). Constructing contemporary artistic identities in Toronto neighbourhoods. *The Canadian Geographer/Le Géographe Canadien*, *47*(3), 303–317. https://doi.org/10.1111/1541-0064.00024
- Bain, A. L. (2006). Resisting the creation of forgotten places: Artistic production in Toronto neighbourhoods. Canadian Geographer / Le Géographe Canadien, 50(4), 417–431. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1541-0064.2006.00155.x
- Bain, A. L. (2013). *Creative Margins: Cultural Production in Canadian Suburbs*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Bain, A. L. (2016). Neighbourhood artistic disaffiliation in Hamilton, Ontario, Canada. *Urban Studies*. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098016658390
- Bain, A. L. (2017). Artists as property owners and small-scale developers. *Urban Geography*, 1–24. https://doi.org/10.1080/02723638.2017.1405687
- Bain, A. L., & Landau, F. (2017). Artists, Temporality, and the Governance of Collaborative Place-Making. *Urban Affairs Review*. https://doi.org/10.1177/1078087417711044

- Bain, A. L., & March, L. (2019). Urban Redevelopment, Cultural Philanthropy and the Commodification of Artistic Authenticity in Toronto. *City & Community*, *18*(1), 173–194.
- Bakhshi, H., Downing, J. M., Osborne, M. A., & Schneider, P. (2017). *The Future of Skills: Employment in 2030*. Nesta. http://www.nesta.org.uk/publications/future-skills-employment-2030
- Baldwin, R. (2016). The Great Convergence. Harvard University Press.
- Ballingall, A. (2017, September 28). \$500-million Netflix deal anchors Canada's culture plan. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/canada/2017/09/28/500-million-netflix-deal-anchors-canadas-culture-plan.html
- Baltimore's Push to Solve Its Affordable Housing Crisis With Community Land Trusts. (2017, August 25). *Resilience*. http://www.resilience.org/stories/2017-08-25/baltimores-push-to-solve-its-affordable-housing-crisis-with-community-land-trusts/
- Bancroft Davis, T. (2016, October 11). Building Impact Decent Work for the Nonprofit Workforce. *The Public Policy & Governance Review.* https://ppgreview.ca/2016/10/11/building-impact-decent-work-for-the-nonprofit-workforce/
- Bandarin, F. (n.d.). *Culture: Key to the sustainability of cities* (World Heritage No. 81; In Foucs: Sustainable Cities). UNESCO: United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://www.unesco.org/culture/culture-for-sustainable-urban-development/WH81-en.pdf
- BANgentrification. (n.d.). BANgentrification. Retrieved November 14, 2017, from https://bangentrification.org/Bankuti, M. (2019a, March 5). Gentrification Factors Into the Bumpy Road for The Open Door. The Link. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/gentrification-factors-into-the-bumpy-road-for-the-open-door
- Bankuti, M. (2019b, October 1). *Local Businesses Around Montreal Are Getting Pushed Out*. The Link. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/local-businesses-around-montreal-are-getting-pushed-out
- Banting, K., & Myles, J. (Eds.). (2014). *Inequality and the Fading of Redistributive Politics*. UBC Press.
- Barmak, S. (2010a, March 14). Ossington a booming creative hub ... For now. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/2010/03/14/ossington_a_booming_creative_hub_for_now.html
- Barmak, S. (2010b, November 20). The art of the (condo) deal. *The Star*. https://www.thestar.com/amp/entertainment/2010/11/20/the art of the condo deal.html
- Barnard, L. (2013, June 5). Toronto's Distillery District evolves from tourist attraction to local destination. *The Toronto Star.*
 - $https://www.thestar.com/life/2013/06/05/torontos_distillery_district_evolves_from_tourist_attraction_to_local_destination.html$
- Barrington-Bush, L. (2017, November 16). *Is this corner the tipping point for Parkdale?* NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/800363d8-ca4b-11e7-b8f1-121bebc5777e/
- Barron, S. (2017, September 24). The left lies about gentrification. *NY Daily News*. http://www.nydailynews.com/opinion/left-lies-gentrification-article-1.3514562
- Barton, M. (2016). An exploration of the importance of the strategy used to identify gentrification. *Urban Studies*, 53(1), 92–111. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098014561723
- Baskerville, P. A. (2002). Ontario: Image, Identity, and Power. Oxford University Press.
- Batabyal, A. A. (2017). A Note on Optimal Income Redistribution in a Creative Region (SSRN Scholarly Paper ID 2985090). Social Science Research Network. https://papers.ssrn.com/abstract=2985090
- Bates, L. K. (2013). *Gentrification and Displacement Study: Implementing an equitable inclusive development strategy in the context of gentrification*. City of Portland, Bureau of Planning and Sustainability. https://www.portlandoregon.gov/bps/article/454027
- Battle of Ideas—Battle Satellite "Cultural Regeneration or Gentrification?" (n.d.). Bow Arts. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://www.bowarts.org/nunnery/battle-of-ideas-battle-satellite-cultural-regeneration-orgentrification
- Bauman, J. (2015, November 9). *Waterloo Region's Gentrification Fixation*. The Community Edition. https://communityedition.ca/waterloo-regions-gentrification-fixation/
- Baute, N. (n.d.). *In a brutal market, an unlikely shark*. Thestar.Com. Retrieved July 8, 2019, from https://www.thestar.com/life/health_wellness/2009/01/24/in_a_brutal_market_an_unlikely_shark.ht ml

- Baxter, M. (2020, January 23). How this underused housing model could help solve the affordability crisis. TVO.Org. https://www.tvo.org/article/how-this-underused-housing-model-could-help-solve-the-affordability-crisis
- BC Liberal Leader Andrew Wilkinson Says Struggling to Pay Rent Can Be 'Fun' and 'Enjoyable.' (n.d.). PressProgress. Retrieved February 28, 2019, from https://pressprogress.ca/bc-liberal-leader-andrew-wilkinson-says-struggling-to-pay-rent-can-be-fun-and-enjoyable/
- Beattie, S. (2018a, February 9). City to strategize on how to stop Toronto from becoming 'playground for the rich.'

 Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/news/city_hall/2018/02/09/city-to-strategize-on-how-to-stop-toronto-from-becoming-playground-for-the-rich.html
- Beattie, S. (2018b, February 12). Toronto council backs 50 per cent property tax reduction for culture hubs. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/city_hall/2018/02/12/toronto-council-backs-50-per-cent-property-tax-reduction-for-culture-hubs.html
- Beaumont, H. (2013, August 8). Pushed out by gentrification? *The Coast Halifax*. https://www.thecoast.ca/halifax/pushed-out/Content?oid=3958457
- Becker, C. (1994). *The Subversive Imagination: The Artist, Society and Social Responsibility* (1st edition). Routledge. Bélanger, H. (2017). *Space affordances and cultural resilience in gentrifying neighbourhoods: An ecological perspective*.
 - https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Helene_Belanger/publication/319528376_Space_affordances_and_cultural_resilience_in_gentrifying_neighbourhoods_an_ecological_perspective/links/59b12c4aa6fdcc3f888dd1c2/Space-affordances-and-cultural-resilience-in-gentrifying-neighbourhoods-anecological-perspective.pdf
- Bell, L. E., & Van Velsor, P. (2017). Counseling in the Gentrified Neighborhood: What School Counselors Should Know (Conceptual). *Professional School Counseling*, 21(1), 161–168. https://doi.org/10.5330/1096-2409-21.1.161
- Bellafante, G. (2017, September 27). Tracking the Hyper-Gentrification of New York, One Lost Knish Place at a Time. *The New York Times*. https://www.nytimes.com/2017/09/27/books/review/vanishing-new-york-jeremiah-moss.html
- Bellavance, G., Sirois, G., Paré, C., & Bao-Lavoie, A. (2015). Innovations entrepreneuriales et pratiques émergentes dans le domaine des arts: Une étude exploratoire de cinq cas d'entreprises artistiques à Montréal. Centre Urbanisation Culture Société. http://espace.inrs.ca/2723/
- Beltlining: Gentrification, Broken Promises, and Hope on Atlanta's Southside. (2017). Housing Justice League and Research/Action Cooperative. http://researchaction.net/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/HJL-RA-Beltlining-Report-FINAL-10-17.pdf
- Bemma, A. (2012, March 3). *Montréal, tales of gentrification in a bohemian city*. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=va0JCg0j3fY&list=UUjwEO-d41matlwW--wQdGQQ
- Bennett, K. (2017, February 24). Stories from a shifting city, told by 8 Hamilton artists. *CBC.Ca*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/stories-from-a-shifting-city-told-by-8-hamilton-artists-1.3996991
- Benneworth, P., Gulbrandsen, M., & Hazelkorn, E. (2016). *The Impact and Future of Arts and Humanities Research* (1st ed. 2016 edition). Palgrave Macmillan. https://www.palgrave.com/br/book/9781137408983
- Benns, M. R. (2016). *Basic Income: How a Canadian movement could change the world.* CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform.
- Benzie, R. (2017a, April 18). Sousa set to unveil 10 measures targeting housing affordability. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/queenspark/2017/04/18/sousa-set-to-unveil-10-measures-targeting-housing-affordability.html
- Benzie, R. (2017b, September 26). TD warns raising minimum wage could cost 90,000 jobs. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/queenspark/2017/09/26/td-warns-raising-minimum-wage-could-cost-90k-jobs.html
- Bergdoll, B., & Martin, R. (2012). *Foreclosed: Rehousing the American Dream*. The Museum of Modern Art, New York.

- Bernard, T. S. (2017, September 18). A Down Payment With a Catch: You Must Be an Airbnb Host. *The New York Times*. https://www.nytimes.com/2017/09/18/your-money/mortgages/loftium-airbnb-down-payment.html
- Berney, R., Dawkins, H., Herman, B., Kovacs, J., Proksch, G., Ma, Y., Rich, J., & Tan, A. (2017, September). *Visualizing Equity: A Data Science for Social Good Tool and Model for Seattle*. Data Science for Social Good Conference, Chicago, Illinois. https://dssg.uchicago.edu/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/berney.pdf
- Berridge, J., Bryant, M., Cavoukian, A., De Silva, J., Doctoroff, D., Doctorow, C., Florida, R., Greenberg, K., Josephson, A., Keesmaat, J., Kuwabara, B., Lachemi, M., McKenzie, K., Perks, G., Prichard, R., Wu, Y., Wylie, B., & Zuboff, S. (2019, September 4). 18 big thinkers take a critical look at the Sidewalk Labs plan. Toronto Life. https://torontolife.com/city/18-big-thinkers-take-a-critical-look-at-the-sidewalk-labs-plan/
- Berry Slater, J., & Iles, A. (2009). *No Room to Move: Radical Art and the Regenerate City*. Mute. http://www.metamute.org/editorial/articles/no-room-to-move-radical-art-and-regenerate-city
- Better Way Alliance. (n.d.). Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://betterwayalliance.ca/
- Beyes, T., Krempl, S.-T., & Kampnagel Internationale Kulturfabrik (Eds.). (2009). *Parcitypate: Art and urban space*. Niggli.
- Bidini, D. (n.d.). *Left, and Leaving*. West End Phoenix. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://www.westendphoenix.com/stories/left-and-leaving
- Bielski, Z. (n.d.). How an old school building is bringing artists back to Queen West. Retrieved July 8, 2019, from https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/how-an-old-school-building-is-bringing-artists-back-to-torontos-queen-west/article15565990/
- Binkovitz, L. (2016, May 25). *Third Ward Looks to Shift the Gentrification Conversation*. THE URBAN EDGE. http://urbanedge.blogs.rice.edu/2016/05/25/third-ward-looks-to-shift-the-gentrification-conversation/
- Binkovitz, L. (2017, September 29). Who's Really Getting the Benefit? The Impact of Gentrification on Health. THE URBAN EDGE. http://urbanedge.blogs.rice.edu/2017/09/29/whos-really-getting-the-benefit-the-impact-of-gentrification-on-health/
- Binkovitz, L., & Edge, via T. U. (2017, October 3). Who gets healthier when neighborhoods gentrify? *Houston Chronicle*. http://www.houstonchronicle.com/local/gray-matters/article/Who-gets-healthier-when-neighborhoods-gentrify-12247336.php
- Bishara, H. (2019, August 30). World Spent \$8 Billion on New Cultural Institutions in 2018, Report Says. Hyperallergic. https://hyperallergic.com/515379/world-spent-8-billion-on-new-cultural-institutions-in-2018/
- Bishop, C. (2012). Artificial Hells: Participatory Art and the Politics of Spectatorship. Verso.
- Bishop, P., & Williams, L. (2012). The Temporary City. Routledge.
- Black, D. (2015, January 5). Meet Toronto's disenfranchised non-citizens. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2015/01/05/divided_city_meet_torontos_disenfranchised_noncitizens.html
- *Black Urbanism TO.* (n.d.). Black Urbanism TO. Retrieved June 5, 2019, from https://www.blackurbanismto.com/Bland, J. (n.d.). *Urban Removal: Westside Chicago*.
- Blasius, J., Friedrichs, J., & Rühl, H. (2016). Pioneers and gentrifiers in the process of gentrification. *International Journal of Housing Policy*, *16*(1), 50–69. https://doi.org/10.1080/14616718.2015.1071029
- Blights Out. (n.d.). Retrieved June 12, 2019, from http://www.blightsout.org/home
- Block by block, Chicago is changing. But is it for the better? (2014, December 15). WBEZ91.5. http://interactive.wbez.org/gentrification/
- blogTO. (2019, September 30). *Toronto ranked 2nd biggest housing bubble in the world*. BlogTO: Real Estate. https://www.blogto.com/real-estate-toronto/2019/09/toronto-biggest-housing-bubble-world/
- Bloom, N. D. (2009). *Public Housing That Worked: New York in the Twentieth Century* (Reissue edition). Univ of Pennsylvania Pr.
- Bloom, N. D., & Lasner, M. G. (Eds.). (2015). *Affordable Housing in New York: The People, Places, and Policies That Transformed a City.* Princeton University Press.
- Bloom, N. D., Umbach, F., & Vale, L. J. (Eds.). (2015). *Public Housing Myths: Perception, Reality, and Social Policy* (1st edition). Cornell University Press.
- Bloomberg. (2019). Asphalt Art Guide. Bloomberg Philanthropies. https://asphaltart.bloomberg.org/guide/

- Boles, B. (2016, September 15). *How Real Estate Trends and Zoning Bylaws Are Threatening Canadian Nightlife*. Thump. https://thump.vice.com/en_ca/article/wnypxq/real-estate-trends-zoning-bylaws-canadanightlife
- Bolt, G. (2016a). *Diversity in Entrepreneurship* (Policy Brief No. 5; European Policy Brief). DIVERCITIES: Governing Urban Diversity. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/DIVERCITIES-Policy-Brief-5-Entrepreneurship.pdf
- Bolt, G. (2016b). Governing Urban Diversity: What can Policymakers and Civil Society Learn from Divercities? (Policy Brief No. 6; European Policy Brief). DIVERCITIES: Governing Urban Diversity. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/DIVERCITIES-Policy-Brief-5-Entrepreneurship.pdf
- Bolt, G. (2017). *The Assets of Urban Diversity* (Policy Brief No. 7; European Policy Brief). DIVERCITIES: Governing Urban Diversity. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/DIVERCITIES-Policy-Brief-07-2017-02-28.pdf
- Bolton, M. (2013, August 30). Is art to blame for gentrification? *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2013/aug/30/art-blame-gentrification-peckham
- BondGraham, D. (2017, June 21). Plans for a "New" Oakland Are Taking Shape, but Existing Residents Are Demanding More Equitable Development. *East Bay Express*. https://www.eastbayexpress.com/oakland/plans-for-a-new-oakland-are-taking-shape-but-existing-residents-are-demanding-more-equitable-development/Content?oid=7542244
- Books, T. E. D. (Ed.). (2013). City 2.0: The Habitat of the Future and How to Get There. TED Conferences.
- Borrows, J. (2010a). Canada's Indigenous Constitution. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Borrows, J. (2010b). *Drawing Out Law: A Spirit's Guide* (2 edition). University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Borrows, J. (2016). *Freedom and Indigenous Constitutionalism*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Borrows, J., & Coyle, M. (Eds.). (2017). *The Right Relationship: Reimagining the Implementation of Historical Treaties*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division. https://utorontopress.com/us/the-right-relationship-2
- Borrup, T. (2015). *Creativity in Urban Placemaking: Horizontal Networks and Social Equity in Three Cultural Districts* [Anitoch University].
 - https://etd.ohiolink.edu/letd.send file?accession=antioch1444733569&disposition=inline
- Borrup, T. (2016). Creative Placemaking: Arts and Culture as a Partner in Community Revitalization. In Fundamentals of Arts Management. University of Massachusetts. http://creativecommunitybuilders.com/wp-content/uploads/Borrup-Creative-Placemaking-2016-UMASS.pdf
- Borrup, T., & McNulty, R. (2006). *The Creative Community Builder's Handbook: How to Transform Communities Using Local Assets, Arts, and Culture.* Fieldstone Alliance.
- Boucher, M. (2015). The Show Must Go On: Birthing SFU Woodward's Before and After the 2010 Olympics. *Canadian Theatre Review, 164,* 72–77. https://doi.org/10.3138/ctr.164.013
- Boulder Country Arts Leadership Forum: Artist Displacement—2016 Report. (n.d.). Retrieved February 16, 2019, from https://www.bouldercountyarts.org/sites/default/files/documents/ArtistDisplacementReport.pdf
- Bound, R. (2016, September 26). Are the arts responsible for gentrification? (No. 259). In *Culture with Robert Bound*. Monocle 24. https://monocle.com/radio/shows/culture-with-robert-bound/259/
- Bourne, L. S., & Ley, D. F. (1993). *The Changing Social Geography of Canadian Cities*. McGill-Queen's University Press. https://www.mqup.ca/changing-social-geography-of-canadian-cities--the-products-9780773509726.php
- Boushey, H., DeLong, J. B., & Steinbaum, M. (Eds.). (2017). *After Piketty: The Agenda for Economics and Inequality*. Harvard University Press.
- Bousquet, C. (2017a, June 5). Where is Gentrification Happening in Your City?: Using Mapping to Understand Gentrification and Prevent Displacement. Data-Smart City Solutions.

 http://datasmart.ash.harvard.edu/news/article/where-is-gentrification-happening-in-your-city-1055

- Bousquet, C. (2017b, June 6). Using Mapping to Understand Gentrification, Prevent Displacement. *Government Technology*. http://www.govtech.com/data/Using-Mapping-to-Understand-Gentrification-Prevent-Displacement.html
- Boykin, A. E. (2014). B'more Creative: Street Art, Neoliberalism, and Gentrification in East Baltimore [George Washington University]. ProQuest Dissertations Publishing. https://search.proquest.com/openview/0bbfdd489a0be2bd205372c319b37657/1?pq-origsite=gscholar&cbl=18750&diss=y
- Boyle, T. (2014, February 26). St. Michael's research project analyzes the overall health of 140 Toronto neighbourhoods. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/life/health_wellness/2014/02/26/st_michaels_research_project_analyzes_theoverall health of 140 toronto neighbourhoods.html
- Bozikovic, A. (2016, May 20). Jay Pitter wants to erase the 'spatial shame' surrounding social housing. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/jay-pitter-wants-to-erase-the-spatial-shame-surrounding-social-housing/article30112307/
- Braganza, C. (2018, April 5). Why opponents of gentrification have taken to the streets of Hamilton. TVO. https://www.tvo.org//article/current-affairs/why-opponents-of-gentrification-have-taken-to-the-streets-of-hamilton
- Brandon, J. (Ed.). (2015). Poor Housing: A Silent Crisis. Fernwood Books Ltd.
- Bratt, R., Stone, M., & Hartman, C. (Eds.). (2006). *A Right to Housing: Foundation for a New Social Agenda*. Temple University Press.
- Brebbia, C. A., & Sendra, J. J. (2017). *The Sustainable City XII*. WIT Press. https://www.witpress.com/books/978-1-78466-217-2
- Brennan, M., & Galvez, M. (2017). *Housing as a Platform: Strengthening the Foundation for Well-Being*. Metropolitan Housing and Communities Policy Center, Urban Institute. https://www.urban.org/sites/default/files/publication/93606/housing-as-platform 0.pdf
- Brenner, N. (2017). Open City or the Right to the City? In *The Right to the City: A Verso Report*. Verso Books. Brenner, N., Marcuse, P., & Mayer, M. (2012). *Cities for people, not for profit: Critical urban theory and the right to the city*. Routledge. http://www.library.yorku.ca/e/resolver/id/2376952
- Bridge, G., Butler, T., & Lees, L. (Eds.). (2013). *Mixed Communities: Gentrification by Stealth?* Policy Press. Brière de la Hosseraye, M. (2015, September 29). "On the Right, You'll See What Used to Be Affordable Housing." *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/on-the-right-youll-see-what-used-to-be-affordable-housing
- Bring on the hipsters: Gentrification is good for the poor. (2015, February 19). *The Economist*. https://www.economist.com/news/united-states/21644164-gentrification-good-poor-bring-hipsters
- Brinklow, A. (2017, November 3). Stanford paper says rent control is driving up cost of housing in San Francisco. Curbed SF. https://sf.curbed.com/2017/11/3/16603900/rent-control-san-francisco-stanford-study-gentrification
- Brock Johnson, B. (2019, October 9). *The Case For Cohousing: Where Responsibilities Are Shared And Life Is A Little Less Lonely*. https://www.wbur.org/cognoscenti/2019/10/09/cohousing-community-living-ben-brock-iohnson
- Brodyn, A., Ghaziani, A., Sutherland, D. K., & Stillwagon, R. (2018, September 19). *Queer pop-ups take us beyond the gaybourhood*. The Conversation. Retrieved September 1, 2019, from http://theconversation.com/queer-pop-ups-take-us-beyond-the-gaybourhood-102828
- Brooks, N., Donaghy, K., & Knaap, G. (2012). *The Oxford handbook of urban economics and planning*. Oxford University Press. https://www.oxfordhandbooks.com/view/10.1093/oxfordhb/9780195380620.001.0001/oxfordhb-
 - 9780195380620
- Brotsky, C., Eisinger, S. M., & Vinokur-Kaplan, D. (2019). *Shared Space and the New Nonprofit Workplace*. Oxford University Press.
- Brown, D. (2018, October 29). *Canada's Broken Housing System Has Made It Brutal For Millennials to Buy Homes*. Vice. https://www.vice.com/en_ca/article/43ejdm/canada-has-a-broken-housing-system-and-it-has-fucked-over-millennials

- Brown, J. (2010, March 13). Creative solution to housing artisans. *The Toronto Star.*
 - https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2010/03/13/creative_solution_to_housing_artisans.html
- Brown, K. (2017, September 28). *Police Swarm the Volksbühne Theater in Berlin to Remove Anti-Gentrification Art Collective*. Artnet News. https://news.artnet.com/art-world/volksbuhne-police-occupation-1098815
- Brown, M. (2018, February 27). Waltham Forest and Brent named first London boroughs of culture. The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/uk-news/2018/feb/27/waltham-forest-and-brent-named-first-london-boroughs-of-culture
- Brown-Saracino, J. (2010a). *A Neighborhood That Never Changes: Gentrification, Social Preservation, and the Search for Authenticity*. University Of Chicago Press.
- Brown-Saracino, J. (2010b). The Gentrification Debates: A Reader. Routledge.
- Brown-Saracino, J. (2017a). Explicating Divided Approaches to Gentrification and Growing Income Inequality. *Annual Review of Sociology*, *43*(1), 515–539. https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev-soc-060116-053427
- Brown-Saracino, J. (2017b). *How Places Make Us: Novel LBQ Identities in Four Small Cities*. University Of Chicago Press.
- Brueckner, J. K. (2011). Lectures on Urban Economics (49051st edition). The MIT Press.
- Brynjolfsson, E., & McAfee, A. (2016). *The Second Machine Age: Work, Progress, and Prosperity in a Time of Brilliant Technologies* (1 edition). W. W. Norton & Company.
- Bucerius, S. M., Thompson, S. K., & Berardi, L. (2017). "They're Colonizing My Neighborhood": (Perceptions of) Social Mix in Canada. *City & Community*. https://doi.org/10.1111/cico.12263
- Budds, D., & Budds, D. (2017, August 9). *Gentrifying Cities Are Trying To Save The Art That Made Them Cool.*Co.Design. https://www.fastcodesign.com/90135541/gentrifying-cities-are-trying-to-save-the-art-that-made-them-cool
- Building a Creative Future: A Plan for Culture. (2006). City of Barrie.
 - http://www.barrie.ca/Culture/Documents/CulturalPlanFinalApril2006.pdf
- Building the business of art. (2011, June 3). The Globe and Mail.
 - https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/building-the-business-of-art/article586342/
- Buist, S. (2016, September 6). The changing face of Hamilton: No longer the city of immigrants. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/news-story/6841458-the-changing-face-of-hamilton-no-longer-the-city-of-immigrants/
- Bula, F. (2017, November 3). *Vancouver church partners with developer on affordable housing project.* The Globe and Mail. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/real-estate/vancouver/vancouver-church-partners-with-developer-on-affordable-housingproject/article36826083/
- Bunce, S. (2018). Sustainability Policy, Planning and Gentrification in Cities (1st edition). Routledge.
- Buntin, J., & Stern, M. J. (2015, January 14). The Myth of Gentrification. Slate.
 - http://www.slate.com/articles/news_and_politics/politics/2015/01/the_gentrification_myth_it_s_rare and not as bad for the poor as people.html
- Bunting, T. E., & Filion, P. (2006). *Canadian cities in transition: Local through global perspectives* (3rd ed.). Oxford University Press.
- Burda, C., Haines, G., & Nelishcher, C. (2019). *Rethinking the Tower*. Ryerson City Building Institute, Ryerson University. https://www.citybuildinginstitute.ca/portfolio/rethinking-the-tower/
- Burke, P., & Burke, P. (2016). *Pop-Up Art: Performing creative disruption in social space*. http://researchbank.rmit.edu.au/view/rmit:161920
- Burlington Cultural Mapping. (n.d.). Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://burlingtonculturalmap.ca/Business Alliance for Local Living Economies. (n.d.). BALLE | Business Alliance for Local Living Economies.
- October 14, 2017, from https://bealocalist.org/
 Butcher, M., & Dickens, L. (2016). Spatial Dislocation and Affective Displacement: Youth Perspectives on
- Gentrification in London. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 40(4), 800–816. https://doi.org/10.1111/1468-2427.12432
- Butler, C., & Mussawir, E. (2017). *Spaces of Justice: Peripheries, Passages, Appropriations*. Taylor & Francis. Butler, James. (n.d.). *Housing: Crisis and inequality*. http://novaramedia.com/2017/10/21/housing-crisis-and-inequality/

- Butler, Judith. (2015). Bodies in Alliance and the Politics of the Street. In *Notes Toward Performative Theory of Assembly* (pp. 66–98). Harvard University Press.
 - https://collabscoopscoalitions.files.wordpress.com/2018/02/butler_bodies-in-alliance.pdf
- Byers, J. (2007, October 31). City, builder reach artful compromise. *The Toronto Star.*
 - https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2007/10/31/city_builder_reach_artful_compromise.html
- Byrne, E., Elliott, E., & Williams, G. H. (2016). Poor places, powerful people? Co-producing cultural counter-representations of place. *Visual Methodologies*, 3(2), 77–85. https://doi.org/10.7331/vm.v3i2.56
- Byrne, M. (2016, May 25). How do artists make a living? An ongoing, almost impossible quest. *Ideas.Ted.Com.* https://ideas.ted.com/how-do-artists-make-a-living-an-ongoing-quest/
- Byrtus, N., Fram, M., & McClelland, M. (Eds.). (1998). *East/West: A Guide to Where People Live in Downtown Toronto* (1 edition). Coach House Books.
- BYU Furman Centre. (2016). *Gentrification Response: A Survey of Strategies to Maintain Neighbourhood Economic Diversity*. NYU Furman Center.
 - http://furmancenter.org/files/NYUFurmanCenter_GentrificationResponse_26OCT2016.pdf

C

- Cadotte, O. (2019, December 10). Small Music Venues Are Disappearing in Montreal: Katacombes is Just the Latest Victim of an Ongoing Trend. The Link. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/small-music-venues-are-disappearing-in-montreal
- Cairns, S., & Jacobs, J. M. (2014). Buildings Must Die: A Perverse View of Architecture. The MIT Press.
- "Call it what it is—White ignorance": Gentrification frays the social fabric in Halifax's North End. (2018, February 21). CBC Radio. http://www.cbc.ca/radio/thecurrent/the-current-for-february-21-2018-1.4543540/call-it-what-it-is-white-ignorance-gentrification-frays-the-social-fabric-in-halifax-s-north-end-1.4543545
- Cameron, S., & Coaffee, J. (2005). Art, Gentrification and Regeneration From Artist as Pioneer to Public Arts. *International Journal of Housing Policy*, *5*(1), 39–58. https://doi.org/10.1080/14616710500055687
- Can one make profit by predicting gentrification? (2014, July 21). *Lion of the Blogosphere*. https://lionoftheblogosphere.wordpress.com/2014/07/21/can-one-make-profit-by-predicting-gentrification/
- Canadian content in a digital world. (2016, May 3). Government of Canada. https://www.canada.ca/en/services/culture/consultations.html
- Cardoso, T., & Lundy, M. (2019, June 21). Airbnb likely removed 31,000 homes from Canada's rental market, study finds. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/canada/article-airbnb-likely-removed-31000-homes-from-canadas-rental-market-study/
- Cardullo, P., & Kitchin, R. (2017). Living Labs, vacancy, and gentrification. https://osf.io/37rg2/
- Career in music is damaging to mental health, new study finds. (2017, October 16). *M Magazine: PRS for Music Online Magazine*. https://www.m-magazine.co.uk/news/career-music-damaging-mental-health-new-study-finds/
- CARFAC Minimum Fee Schedule. (n.d.). *CARFAC*. Retrieved September 30, 2017, from http://www.carfac.ca/tools/fees/
- Carroll, R. (2017a, July 28). Hipster-bashing in California: Angry residents fight back against gentrification. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2017/jul/28/california-anti-gentrification-hipster-yuppie
- Carroll, R. (2017b, October 18). Are white hipsters hijacking an anti-gentrification fight in Los Angeles? *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2017/oct/18/los-angeles-gentrification-boyle-heights-race-activism

- Carter, A. (2017, September 28). Art Crawl overload: Hamilton's crown jewel now a victim of its own success. *CBC News*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/art-crawl-identity-1.4308499
- Carter, A. (2018a, August 24). It's a fiasco: Hamilton shuts down "City of Music" website as criticism mounts. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/hamilton-music-city-1.4798068
- Carter, A. (2018b, September 11). For those left behind: Hamilton's arts renaissance isn't working for everyone. CBC News Hamilton. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/hamilton-arts-1.4811797
- Cartier, C. (2017). Contextual Urban Theory and the 'Appeal' of Gentrification: Lost in Transposition? *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, *41*(3), 466–477. https://doi.org/10.1111/1468-2427.12498
- Caruana-Galizia, P. (2017, September 17). Book Review: Places in Need: The Changing Geography of Poverty by Scott W. Allard. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2017/09/17/book-review-places-in-need-the-changing-geography-of-poverty-by-scott-w-allard/
- Carvalho, L., van den Berg, L., Galal, H., & Teunisse, P. (Eds.). (2016). *Delivering Sustainable Competitiveness: Revisiting the organising capacity of cities*. Routledge Taylor & Francis Group.
- Cascone, S. (2018a, February 21). *It "Makes No Sense": 5Pointz Developer Vows to Appeal Landmark Ruling That Favored Graffiti Artists*. Artnet News. https://news.artnet.com/art-world/5pointz-developer-appeal-1228928
- Cascone, S. (2018b, June 14). "Appalled" by 5Pointz Developer, a Judge Upholds the Massive \$6.75 Million in Damages Awarded to Graffiti Artists. Artnet News. https://news.artnet.com/art-world/judge-landmark-5pointz-ruling-1302872
- Cascone, S. (2018c, September 17). *5Pointz Is Gone But Its Artists Have Reunited to Turn a New York Stairwell Into a "Museum of Street Art."* Artnet News. https://news.artnet.com/exhibitions/5pointz-artists-reunite-hotel-street-art-museum-new-york-1349192
- Casnady, A. (2016, July 21). Toronto's rough Moss Park neighbourhood becoming the city's next gentrification battleground. *National Post.* http://nationalpost.com/news/toronto/weve-been-waiting-a-long-time-for-some-change-moss-parks-fraught-lines-between-facelift-and-gentrification
- Castenda, L. (2019, September 19). *How a San Jose artist uses murals to talk about gentrification*. The Mercury News. https://www.mercurynews.com/2019/09/19/how-a-san-jose-artists-is-using-murals-to-talk-to-businesses-owners-about-gentrification/
- Castilhos, R. B., & Dolbec, P.-Y. (2017). Conceptualizing spatial types: Characteristics, transitions, and research avenues. *Marketing Theory*, 1470593117732455. https://doi.org/10.1177/1470593117732455
- Catherwood-Ginn, J., & Leonard, R. H. (2015). Rivers and Bridges: Theater in Regional Planning. In *Arts and Community Change: Exploring Cultural Development Policies, Practices, and Dilemmas.* Routledge.
- Caton, H. (2017, March 9). *Photo series captures impact of gentrification in Parkdale*. InsideToronto.Com. https://www.insidetoronto.com/community-story/7181882-photo-series-captures-impact-of-gentrification-in-parkdale/
- Caulfield, J. (1994). *City Form and Everyday Life: Toronto's Gentrification and Critical Social Practice*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Caulfield, J. (2008). 'Gentrification' and desire. *Canadian Review of Sociology/Revue Canadienne de Sociologie*, 26(4), 617–632. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1755-618X.1989.tb00437.x
- CBC News. (2018, July 19). I will not be pushed out: 40-year-old Parkdale dance school faces uncertain future. CBC. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/pia-bouman-dance-school-1.4753567
- Center for Community Innovation. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://communityinnovation.berkelev.edu/
- Centre for Cities—Think tank dedicated to UK city economies. (n.d.). Centre for Cities. Retrieved October 4, 2017, from http://www.centreforcities.org/
- Centre for Connected Communities. (n.d.). Retrieved June 5, 2019, from https://connectedcommunities.ca/about-us
- Centre for Neighborhood and Community Improvement. (2015). *Gentrification & Neighbourhood Change: Helpful Tools for Communities.* https://voorheescenter.red.uic.edu/wp-content/uploads/sites/122/2017/10/Gentrification-and-Neighborhood-Change-Toolkit.pdf

- CEO, S. R., Zillow, economist, S. H. C., & Zillow. (n.d.). Confirmed: Starbucks knows the next hot neighborhood before everybody else does. *Quartz*. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://qz.com/334269/what-starbucks-has-done-to-american-home-values/
- CEOs for Cities. (n.d.). Retrieved October 14, 2017, from https://ceosforcities.org/
- Challenges and opportunities for decent work in the culture and media sectors. (2019). [Working paper]. International Labour Organization.
 - http://www.ilo.org/sector/Resources/publications/WCMS_661953/lang--en/index.htm
- Chan, P., & Sturgeon, J. (2016, March 18). Low- and middle-income families vanish as urban neighbourhoods gentrify. *Global News*. https://globalnews.ca/news/2584050/low-and-middle-income-families-vanish-as-urban-neighbourhoods-gentrify/
- Chang, T. (2014). 'New uses need old buildings': Gentrification aesthetics and the arts in Singapore. *Urban Studies*, 53(3), 524–539. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098014527482
- Changemaker profile: The Speakers Bureau Hamilton Roundtable for Poverty Reduction. (2017, July 9). Cities for People. http://www.citiesforpeople.ca/en/blogroll/changemaker-profile-the-speakers-bureau-hamilton-roundtable-for-poverty-reduction
- Changing Nashville Neighbourhoods: The Effect on Nonprofits. (2016, April 18). *Center for Nonprofit Management*. http://www.cnm.org/Resources/Blog/April-2016/Changing-Nashville-Neighborhoods-The-Effect-on-Non
- Chapin, R. (2011). *Pocket Neighborhoods: Creating Small-Scale Community in a Large-Scale World.* Taunton Press. Chapple, K. (2009). *Mapping Susceptibility to Gentrification: The Early Warning Toolkit.* Centre for Community Innovation, University of California. https://communityinnovation.berkeley.edu/reports/Gentrification-Report.pdf
- Chapple, K. (2017). Income Inequality and Urban Displacement: The New Gentrification. *New Labor Forum*, *26*(1), 84–93. https://doi.org/10.1177/1095796016682018
- Chapple, K., Loukaitou-Sideris, A., Waddell, P., Chatman, D., & Ong, P. (2017). *Developing a New Methodology for Analyzing Potential Displacement* (ARB Agreement No. 13–310). California Air Resources Board. https://www.arb.ca.gov/research/apr/past/13-310.pdf
- Chapple, K., & Zuk, M. (2016). Forewarned: The Use of Neighborhood Early Warning Systems for Gentrification and Displacement. *Cityscape: A Journal of Policy Development and Research*, 18(3), 109–130.
- Charlton, M., Barndt, D., Dennis, K., & Donegan, R. (2013). *Transforming Communities Through the Arts: A Study of Three Toronto Neighbourhoods* (p. 61). Toronto Arts Foundation. https://torontoartsfoundation.org/tac/media/taf/Research/Transforming%20Communities%20Through%20the%20Arts/Transforming-Communities-Through-the-Arts_HiRes.pdf
- Chartr, T. (2018, April 5). I Love My City, Always Have, Always Will. But I Need YOU to Support It: A Letter to Michael Litt and the Tech Sector Leaders. My Contention. http://www.mycontention.com/i-love-my-city-always-have-always-will-but-i-need-you-to-support-it-a-letter-to-michael-litt-and-the-tech-sector-leaders/
- Chaskin, R. J., & Joseph, M. L. (2013). 'Positive' Gentrification, Social Control and the 'Right to the City' in Mixed-Income Communities: Uses and Expectations of Space and Place: Mixed-income communities and control of 'public' space in Chicago. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 37(2), 480–502. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-2427.2012.01158.x
- Chaskin, R. J., & Joseph, M. L. (2017). *Integrating the Inner City: The Promise and Perils of Mixed-Income Public Housing Transformation* (Reprint edition). University Of Chicago Press.
- Chasnoff, D., & Cohen, H. (2016). *Homes and Hands: Community Land Trusts in Action* (Vol. 1–1). Kanopy Streaming. http://www.library.yorku.ca/e/resolver/id/2815462
- Chattopadhya, P. (2019, March 1). A basic income let her stop doing work she had to do, and focus on work she loved. In *Out In The Open*. CBC. https://www.cbc.ca/listen/shows/out-in-the-open/segment/15674052
- Chen, C. (2017). September 2017 Canadian Rent Report. Padmapper. https://blog.padmapper.com/canadian-rent-trends
- Chen, Jie, Stephens, M., & Man, Y. (Eds.). (2016). *The Future of Public Housing: Ongoing Trends in the East and the West* (Softcover reprint of the original 1st ed. 2013 edition). Springer. https://www.springer.com/gp/book/9783642416217

- Chen, Jieren. (2017, August 10). Optimization is gentrification. *Thoughts And Ideas*. https://medium.com/indianthoughts/optimization-is-gentrification-3e3424dbea49
- Cherone, H. (2017, September 25). *Anti-Gentrification Plan Moves Forward, But Many Neighborhoods Left Out*. DNAinfo Chicago. https://www.dnainfo.com/chicago/20170925/logan-square/anti-gentrification-planmoves-forward-but-many-neighborhoods-left-out
- Cheryll Case. (2018). Housing in Focus. https://cpplanning.ca/housing-in-focus
- Cheung, A. (2017, October). Restaurant chain eyeing trendy Parkdale leaves family-run eatery facing closure. *CBC News: Toronto*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/we-re-being-squeezed-out-locals-try-to-save-parkdale-restaurant-amid-gentrification-worry-1.4359744
- Cheung, C. (2017, January 13). *Should Developers Meet Quotas for Affordable Housing Units?* The Tyee. https://thetyee.ca/News/2017/01/13/Affordable-Housing-Unit-Quotas/
- Cheung, M. (2017, July 3). The fast lane to affordable housing for one Toronto resident is in a laneway. *CBC News*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/affordable-housing-laneway-toronto-1.4186088
- Chicago Residents Utilizing Gentrification Index to Identify At-Risk Neighborhoods. (n.d.). Smart Cities Dive. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.smartcitiesdive.com/ex/sustainablecitiescollective/chicagoresidents-utilizing-gentrification-index-identify-risk-neighb/1251797/
- Chinatown Concern Group 唐人街關注組. (n.d.). Chinatown Concern Group 唐人街關注組. Retrieved July 8, 2019, from https://chinatownconcerngroup.wordpress.com/
- Chiose, S. (2014, September 29). Digitizing Canadian gentrification and urban change in Hamilton. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/national/digitizing-canadian-gentrification-and-urban-change-in-hamilton/article20852036/
- Choi, M., Van Zandt, S., & Matarrita-Cascante, D. (2017). Can community land trusts slow gentrification? *Journal of Urban Affairs*, 40(3), 394–411.
- Chonody, J. M. (Ed.). (2014). Community Art: Creative Approaches to Practice. Common Ground Publishing.
- Chopra, A. (2014). *Innovative State: How New Technologies Can Transform Government* (1st edition). Atlantic Monthly Press.
- Choptovy, J. (2016). Art as a Method of Revitalization in Post-Katrina New Orleans: Proposal for Artist Relocation Program [Sotheby's Institute of Art]. ProQuest Dissertations Publishing. https://search.proquest.com/openview/400a792d1204ab6e0ad90a31abdd3489/1?pq-origsite=gscholar&cbl=18750&diss=v
- Christensen, J. (2017). *No Home in a Homeland: Indigenous Peoples and Homelessness in the Canadian North.* UBC Press.
- Christensen, M., & Thor, T. (2017). The reciprocal city: Performing solidarity—Mediating space through street art and graffiti. *International Communication Gazette*, *79*(6–7), 584–612. https://doi.org/10.1177/1748048517727183
- Christensen, S. (2016). *Utilizing Google Street View To Track Gentrification In The Beasley Neighbourhood, Hamilton, Ontario.* https://archive.nationaltrustcanada.ca/sites/www.nationaltrustcanada.ca/files/c2016-christensen3B.pdf
- Cities for People / Des villes pour tous. (n.d.). Cities for People / Des Villes Pour Tous. Retrieved June 10, 2019, from http://www.phase1.citiesforpeople.ca/
- Cities for People, Not for Profit. (n.d.). Cities for People, Not for Profit: Gentrification and Housing Activism in Bushwick, NY. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://citiesforppl.org/
- Cities for People—Collaborative experiments in making cities better. (n.d.). Cities for People. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://citiesforpeople.ca/en/
- CiTR. (2020, January 16). Support Vancouver's not-for-profit arts spaces! CiTR. https://www.citr.ca/2020/01/16/support-vancouvers-not-for-profit-arts-spaces-94132/
- City of Burlington Cultural Action Plan: Directions Forward Report. (2013). City of Burlington, Cobalt Connects. https://www.burlington.ca/en/resources/Adam Belovari/Cultural Report.pdf
- City of Markham Culture Policy & Plan 2012. (2012). City of Markham.
 - https://www.markham.ca/wps/wcm/connect/markhampublic/d38e4d50-1c0f-4077-a627-23cd8531824d/2012_CulturePolicyPlan.pdf

- City of Peterborough Municipal Cultural Plan. (2012). City of Peterborough.

 http://www.peterborough.ca/Assets/City+Assets/Arts\$!2c+Culture+\$!26+Heritage/Peterborough+Municipal+Culture+Plan-+FINAL.pdf.pdf
- CityLab, R. B. (n.d.). "Gentrification" may be re-segregating American communities. Business Insider. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.businessinsider.com/gentrification-is-shifting-racial-boundaries-2016-8
- CityMetric. (n.d.). CityMetric. Retrieved October 4, 2017, from http://www.citymetric.com/Cityscape. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from
 - https://www.huduser.gov/portal/periodicals/cityscpe/vol18num3/index.html
- City Spaces. (2013). RENT LEASE OWN: Understanding the Real Estate Challenges Affecting the Not-For-Profit, Social Purpose and Cultural Sectors in Metro Vancouver. Real Estate Institute of BC and Social Purpose Real Estate Collaborative. https://vancouver.ca/files/cov/understanding-real-estate-challenges-affecting-non-profit-social-purpose-cultural-sectors-vancouver.pdf
- Civic Analytics: Housing. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://civicanalytics.com/tag/housing/
- Clapp, E. P. (2016). Participatory Creativity: Introducing Access and Equity to the Creative Classroom. Routledge.
- Clark, P. (2017, October 17). Self-driving cars will unlock buildable space, reshape housing market. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/2017/10/17/self-driving-cars-will-unlock-buildable-space-reshape-housing-market.html
- Clear-cutting the City: The Impact of Gentrification on Homelessness, Affordability and Liveability (Lunch and Learn). (n.d.). Ryerson University. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.ryerson.ca/socialjustice/socialjustice-week/2017/10/clear-cutting-the-city-the-impact-of-gentrification-on-homeless/
- Cleaver, H. (2017). *Rupturing the Dialectic: The Struggle against Work, Money, and Financialization*. AK Press. https://www.akpress.org/rupturing-the-dialectic.html
- Cleveland, W., & Estés, C. P. (2008). Art and Upheaval: Artists on the World's Frontlines. New Village Press.
- Cobalt Connects. (2018). By the Square Foot: Initial Findings Report.
 - https://cobaltconnects.ca/sites/default/files/By%20the%20Square%20Foot%20-%20Initial%20Findings%20Report_2.pdf
- Coemans, S., Wang, Q., Leysen, J., & Hannes, K. (2015). The use of arts-based methods in community-based research with vulnerable populations: Protocol for a scoping review. *International Journal of Educational Research*, 71, 33–39. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijer.2015.02.008
- Coffey, D. (2017, May 17). 50 Years of Gentrification. *Bosley Real Estate*. http://www.davidcoffey.ca/50-years-of-gentrification
- Cohen, B., & Muñoz, P. (2016). The Emergence of the Urban Entrepreneur: How the Growth of Cities and the Sharing Economy Are Driving a New Breed of Innovators. Praeger.
- Cohn, M. R. (2017, September 30). Why business and banks hate the minimum wage. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/queenspark/2017/09/30/why-business-and-banks-hate-the-minimum-wage-cohn.html?campaign_id=A100
- Collectif, Giroud, M., Chabrol, M., Collet, A., Launay, L., Rousseau, M., & Minassian, H. T. (2016). *Gentrifications*. Amsterdam.
- Combs, eth. (2019, December 30). Moving out and moving on: Recent closures of art spaces worry longtime Barrio Logan residents. Pacific San Diego. https://www.pacificsandiego.com/local-entertainment/arts-culture/story/2019-12-29/moving-out-and-moving-on-recent-closures-of-art-spaces-worry-longtime-barrio-logan-residents
- Communications MDR. (2016). *Environmental Scan of the Culture Sector: Ontario Culture Strategy Background Document*. Communications MDR.
 - https://ontariopresents.ca/sites/default/files/mtcs_environmental_scan_of_the_culture_sector_en.pd f
- Community Arts Stabilization Trust. (n.d.). CAST Community Arts Stabilization Trust. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://cast-sf.org/
- Community Group Wins \$17 Million Land Trust. (2019, November). Build a Better Bloor Dufferin. https://buildbloordufferin.files.wordpress.com/2019/11/bbbd-landtrustpressrelease.pdf
- Community Land Trust. (n.d.). Community Land Trust. Retrieved October 3, 2017, from http://cltnetwork.org/

- Community Land Trusts (CLTs). (2012, June 21). Community-Wealth.Org. http://community-wealth.org/strategies/panel/clts/index.html
- Community Properties Impact Corporation: The Weinland Park Collaborative. (n.d.). Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://www.cpoimpact.org/weinlandpark.aspx
- Community Service Society: Publications, Affordable Housing. (n.d.). Retrieved March 23, 2018, from http://www.cssny.org/publications/c/affordable-housing
- Community Tool Box. (n.d.). Community Tool Box. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://ctb.ku.edu/en Community Vision Capital & Consulting. (n.d.). Community Vision. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://communityvisionca.org/
- Conrad, D., & Sinner, A. (Eds.). (2015). *Creating Together: Participatory, Community-Based, and Collaborative Arts Practices and Scholarship across Canada*. Wilfrid Laurier University Press.
- Contreras, J., & Puente, C. (2019, December 30). *Giving city development money to a high-end grocer only perpetuates gentrification in Bishop Arts*. Dallas News.

 https://www.dallasnews.com/opinion/commentary/2019/12/30/giving-city-development-more
 - https://www.dallasnews.com/opinion/commentary/2019/12/30/giving-city-development-money-to-a-high-end-grocer-only-perpetuates-gentrification-in-bishop-arts/
- CoreData.nyc. (n.d.). Retrieved March 23, 2018, from http://coredata.nyc
- Corriston, B., Dunfey, M., Fung, K. L., & Zhong, Y. (2017). *Analyzing Risk of Displacement & Affordable Housing Opportunities in Southwest Boston*. Tufts University. http://www.swbcdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Displacement-Risk-in-Southwest-Boston-UEP-Report-2017.pdf
- Cortright, J. (2015, October 31). In Defense of Gentrification. *The Atlantic*.
 - https://www.theatlantic.com/business/archive/2015/10/in-defense-of-gentrification/413425/
- Cortright, J. (2017, October 19). Why Does It Cost So Much to Build "Affordable" Housing? CityLab. https://www.citylab.com/equity/2017/10/why-is-affordable-housing-so-expensive-to-build/543399/
- Could Airbnb Turn Toronto's Most Affordable Rental Housing Stock INto Ghost Hotel Suites? (n.d.). http://fairbnb.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/Fairbnb_Report-on-Secondary-Suites_final.pdf
- Courage, C., & McKeown, A. (Eds.). (2018). *Creative Placemaking: Research, Theory and Practice* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Craggs, S. (2016, June 15). The battle for Hamilton's beach front: Locals vs. Toronto developers: The city is trying to fend off developments that cram as many units as possible onto single-family lots. *CBC News*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/news/beach-strip-gentrification-1.3634971
- Craggs, S. (2017, February 28). Gentrification hits tax bills for people in Hamilton's lower city: This sort of increase has historically happened in areas like Waterdown, but now downtown is a destination. *CBC News*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/tax-assessment-lower-city-1.4002074
- Crawshaw, J. (2015). Working Together: Tracing the Making of Public Art as Part of Regeneration Practice. Anthropological Journal of European Cultures, 24(2). https://doi.org/10.3167/ajec.2015.240206
- Create NYC: A Cultural Plan for All New Yorkers. (2017). NYC Cultural Affairs. http://createnyc.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/CreateNYC_Report_FIN.pdf
- Creating and Preserving Affordable Housing through a Construction Impact Tax. (2017). Philadelphia Coalition for Affordable Communities. http://phillyaffordablecommunities.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/03/ConstructionImpactTax_OnePager_DRAFT3.pdf
- Creating Open Workplaces: Regeneration Guide 2. (2015). Greater London Authority. https://www.creativelandtrust.org/assets/papers/MoL%20Creating%20Open%20Workspaces.pdf
- *Creative Canada Policy Framework.* (2017, September 26). Government of Canada: Canadian Heritage. https://www.canada.ca/en/canadian-heritage/campaigns/creative-canada/framework.html#a54
- Creative Capital Gains: An Action Plan for Toronto. (2011). City of Toronto.
 - https://www1.toronto.ca/static_files/economic_development_and_culture/docs/Sectors_Reports/creative-capital-gains-report-august9.pdf
- Creative Cities Network. (n.d.). UNESCO. Retrieved November 1, 2017, from https://en.unesco.org/creative-cities/ Creative Citymaking. (2013, June 19). [Artplace America]. Artplace. https://www.artplaceamerica.org/funded-projects/creative-citymaking/blog/creative-citymaking-2

- Creative Co-Location Facilities Property Tax Subclass Designation. (n.d.). City of Toronto. Retrieved February 15, 2019, from https://www.toronto.ca/business-economy/business-operation-growth/business-incentives/creative-co-location-facilities-property-tax-subclass-designation/
- Creative Land Trust. (n.d.). Retrieved December 18, 2019, from https://www.creativelandtrust.org/
- Creative Land Trust launched to secure long-term "affordable" workspace for artists in London—A-n The Artists Information Company. (n.d.). Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://www.a-n.co.uk/news/creative-land-trust-launched-to-secure-long-term-affordable-workspace-for-artists-in-london/
- Creative Placemaking at Sun Wah Centre. (n.d.). Vancity Community Foundation. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://www.vancitycommunityfoundation.ca/
- Creative Placemaking Issue. (2014). *Community Development Investment Review, 10*(2). https://www.frbsf.org/community-development/files/cdir-10-02-final.pdf
- Creative Placemaking, Placekeeping, and Cultural Strategies to Resist Displacement. (n.d.). U.S. Department of Arts and Culture. Retrieved July 20, 2019, from https://usdac.us/blogac/2017/12/11/creative-placemaking-placekeeping-and-cultural-strategies-to-resist-displacement
- Creative Places & Businesses: Catalyzing Growth in Communities. (2017). Upstart Co-Lab. http://www.upstartco-lab.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/170320-CPB-Final-Report.pdf
- Creative tensions: Optimising the benefits of culture through regeneration. (2017). London Assembly: Regeneration Committee.
 - https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/london_assembly_regeneration_committee__creative_tensions.pdf
- Creative Together: A Cultural Plan for the City of Vaughan. (2010). City of Vaughan, AuthentiCity. https://www.vaughan.ca/projects/policy_planning_projects/General%20Documents/7aVaughan_Cultural Plan pt1.pdf
- Crehan, K. (2016). *Gramsci's Common Sense: Inequality and Its Narratives*. Duke University Press Books.
- Cronin, J. K. (Jennifer K., Robertson, K., & Ebrary York University. (2011). *Imagining resistance: Visual culture and activism in Canada*. Wilfrid Laurier University Press. http://www.library.yorku.ca/e/resolver/id/2437369
- Crossick, G. (2019). *The Social Impact of Cultural Districts*. Global Cultural Districts Network (GCDN). https://gcdn.net/product/the-social-impact-of-cultural-districts/
- CTV News. (2020, January 16). Federal government announces \$200M for affordable housing at Honest Ed's site.

 Toronto. https://toronto.ctvnews.ca/federal-government-announces-200m-for-affordable-housing-at-honest-ed-s-site-1.4770814
- Culkin, B. F., & Pasto, J. (2017). *There is no such thing as Boston: Gentrification and the disappearance of a city.*CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform.
- Cultural Action Plan (COMMSERV 3-13). (2013). City of Burlington, Community Services Committee. https://www.burlington.ca/en/resources/Adam Belovari/Cultural Action Plan 2013.pdf
- Cultural Economy Futures: A Symposium. (2017, May). Culture Media Economy Monash University. https://vimeopro.com/monasharts/cultural-economy-futures/video/216416217
- Cultural Infrastructure Map. (n.d.). Mayor of London. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://maps.london.gov.uk/cim/index.html
- Cultural Land Trust Study. (n.d.). 221A. Retrieved December 18, 2019, from https://221a.ca/research-initiatives/cultural-land-trust-study
- Cultural Plan 2016-2021. (2016). Town of Oakville. https://www.oakville.ca/assets/general%20-%20culture%20recreation/CulturalPlan-2016.pdf
- Cultural Planning. (n.d.). Ontario Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://www.mtc.gov.on.ca/en/culture/cul planning.shtml
- Cultural Planning Toolkit. (n.d.). 2010 Legacies Now, Creative City Network of Canada. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from https://www.creativecity.ca/database/files/library/cultural_planning_toolkit.pdf
- Cultural Prosperity Plan. (2013). City of London. https://www.london.ca/About-
 - London/culture/Documents/London%20Cultural%20Prosperity%20Plan.pdf
- Cultural Resource Mapping: A Guide for Municipalities. (2010). Municipal Cultural Planning Incorporated. http://www.ontariomcp.ca/toolkits/CulturalResourceMapping_digital.pdf
- CulturalDC. (n.d.). CulturalDC. Retrieved January 16, 2018, from https://www.culturaldc.org/

- Culture Counts: Oshawa Arts, Culture & Heritage Plan. (2014). City of Oshawa. https://www.oshawa.ca/things-to-do/resources/culturecountsactionplanfinalaccessibleversion.pdf
- *Culture Plan for the Creative City.* (2003). City of Toronto.
 - https://www1.toronto.ca/city_of_toronto/economic_development__culture/cultural_services/cultural affairs/initiatives/files/pdf/creativecity-2003.pdf
- Culture Plan Progress Report II. (2008). City of Toronto.
 - http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2008/ed/bgrd/backgroundfile-10684.pdf
- Culture|Shift: Blanketing the city in arts and culture. (n.d.). City of Vancouver. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://vancouver.ca/parks-recreation-culture/culture-shift.aspx
- Culture Urban Future: Global Report on Culture for Sustainable Urban Development. (2016). UNESCO: United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization.
 - http://unesdoc.unesco.org/images/0024/002459/245999e.pdf
- *CultureBlocks.com.* (n.d.). Retrieved September 24, 2017, from https://www.cultureblocks.com/wordpress/
- Cunningham, C. (2017). Conflicted Commons: A Local Makerspace in the Neoliberal City. *Theses and Dissertations*. http://scholarscompass.vcu.edu/etd/4802
- Curran, W. (2010). In Defense of Old Industrial Spaces: Manufacturing, Creativity and Innovation in Williamsburg, Brooklyn: Manufacturing, creativity and innovation in Williamsburg, Brooklyn. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 34(4), 871–885. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-2427.2010.00915.x
- Curran, W. (2017). Gender and Gentrification (1 edition). Routledge.
- Curren, R., Liu, N., Marsh, D., & Rose, K. (2015). *Equitable Development as a Tool to Advance Racial Equity*. Government Alliance on Race & Equity. http://www.racialequityalliance.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/GARE-Equitable-Development.pdf
- Currid, E. (2009). Bohemia as Subculture; "Bohemia" as Industry: Art, Culture, and Economic Development. *Journal of Planning Literature*, *23*(4), 368–382. https://doi.org/10.1177/0885412209335727
- Cuthbertson, D. (2016, June 8). Arts for the dole? Greens propose living wage for creatives as part of election policy. *The Sydney Morning Herald*. http://www.smh.com.au/entertainment/art-and-design/no-more-starving-artists-greens-propose-living-wage-for-creatives-as-part-of-arts-election-policy-20160607-gpddk6.html

D

- d'Ovidio, M., & Rodríguez Morató, A. (2017). Introduction to SI: Against the creative city: Activism in the creative city: When cultural workers fight against creative city policy. *City, Culture and Society*, 8, 3–6. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ccs.2017.01.001
- Daniel, V. A. H. (2016). Community-Based Art and Gentrification: A Bronzeville Story. *Informática Na Educação: Teoria & Prática, 19*(1). http://www.seer.ufrgs.br/index.php/InfEducTeoriaPratica/article/view/57837
- Daniels, S. M. (2017, September 19). Chicago Community Replies to Gentrification With Inclusive Arts Space. *Next City*. https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/chicago-gentrification-inclusive-arts-space-paseo-boricua
- Dastrup, S., Ellen, I., Jefferson, A., Wesselcouch, M., Schwartz, D., & Cuenca, K. (2015). *The Effects of Neighborhood Change on New York City Housing Authority Residents*. Abt Associates. https://www.abtassociates.com/sites/default/files/migrated_files/5875a19d-01c1-4e42-8235-bf83ec67bfff.pdf
- Daub, A. (2020, January 9). *Abandoned stores, empty homes: Why San Francisco's economic boom looks like a crisis.*The Guardian. https://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2020/jan/09/san-francisco-gentrification-second-wave

- Daubs, K. (2014, December 20). City and suburbs: Six decades of unity and division. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/20/city_and_suburbs_65_years_of_unity_and_division.html
- Davey, M. (2017, October 4). Gentrification, street art and the rise of the developer-sponsored block party. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/australia-news/2017/oct/05/gentrification-street-art-and-the-rise-of-the-bogus-block-party
- Davidson, J. (2019, August 5). *New Studies Say Gentrification Doesn't Really Force Out Low-Income Residents*. Intelligencer. http://nymag.com/intelligencer/2019/08/study-gentrification-doesnt-force-out-low-income-residents.html
- Davidson, M., & Lees, L. (2005). New-Build 'Gentrification' and London's Riverside Renaissance. *Environment and Planning A*, *37*(7), 1165–1190. https://doi.org/10.1068/a3739
- Davies, B. (n.d.). "Second Tier Cool": Residents' Experiences of a Mid-Size City's Gentrifying Downtown [University of Waterloo]. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://hdl.handle.net/10012/10935
- Davies, M., Davis, J., & Rapp, D. (2017). *Dispersal: Picturing Urban Change in East London*. Historic England Publishing.
- Davies, R. J. (2019, July 22). *Are artists used as pawns in the gentrification of Govanhill?* CommonSpace. https://www.commonspace.scot/articles/14514/are-artists-used-pawns-gentrification-govanhill
- Davis, B. (2013, October 15). Are Artists to Blame for Gentrification? *Slate*. http://www.slate.com/articles/life/culturebox/2013/10/are_artists_to_blame_for_gentrification_or_w ould soho chelsea and bushwick.html
- Davis, D. J. E. (Ed.). (2010). The Community Land Trust Reader. Lincoln Inst of Land Policy.
- Davis, E. (2017a, May 15). In Sanitizing Toronto of its Grit, Are We Washing Away its Character? *Torontoist*. https://torontoist.com/2017/05/sanitizing-toronto-grit-washing-away-character/
- Davis, E. (2017b, July 5). Are Laneway Suites a Solution to Toronto's Housing Crisis? *Torontoist*. https://torontoist.com/2017/07/laneway-suites-solution-torontos-housing-crisis/
- Davis, E. (2017c, November 6). *Reimagined spaces benefit Toronto artists, communities, and developers.* Torontoist. https://torontoist.com/2017/11/reimagined-spaces-benefit-toronto-artists-communities-developers/
- Davis, J. E. (2010). Reallocating Equity: A Land Trust Model of Land Reform. In *The Community Land Trust Reader* (pp. 363–383). Lincoln Inst of Land Policy.
- Davis, J. E., & Jacobus, R. (2008). *The City–CLT Partnership: Municipal Support for Community Land Trusts* [Policy Focus Report]. Lincoln Institute of Land Policy.
 - http://www.lincolninst.edu/sites/default/files/pubfiles/the-city-clt-partnership-full.pdf
- Dazed. (2019, October 11). Paris is killing its art squats to gentrify the city. Dazed. https://www.dazeddigital.com/life-culture/article/46369/1/paris-is-killing-its-artist-squats-to-gentrify-the-city.
- De Cesari, C., & Dimova, R. (2017). Heritage and Gentrification: Introduction: Remaking urban landscapes in the name of culture and historic preservation. *International Journal of Heritage Studies*. http://hdl.handle.net/1854/LU-8131217
- De Costa, J. (2016, October 30). Protesters March Notre-Dame Street to Push Back Against Gentrification. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/protesters-march-notre-dame-street-to-push-back-against-gentrification
- de Oliver, M. (2016). Gentrification as the appropriation of therapeutic 'diversity': A model and case study of the multicultural amenity of contemporary urban renewal. *Urban Studies*, *53*(6), 1299–1316. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098015576314
- Decent Work for Youth. (n.d.). Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://www.decentwork4youth.org/index.php Decottignies, M. (2016). Disability Arts and Equity in Canada. Canadian Theatre Review, 165, 43–47. https://doi.org/10.3138/ctr.165.009
- Deener, A., & Wynn, J. (2017, October 10). *Gentrification? Bring it*. The Conversation. http://theconversation.com/gentrification-bring-it-82107
- DeFillippis, J., Williams, O., Pierce, J., Martin, D. G., Kruger, R., & Esfahani, A. (2019). On the Transformative Potential of Community Land Trusts in the Unite States. *Antipode*, *51*(3), 795–817.

- Delgadillo, N. (n.d.). *The Neighborhood That Went to War Against Gentrifiers*. CityLab. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://www.citylab.com/housing/2017/03/the-neighborhood-that-went-to-war-against-gentrifiers/518181/
- Delmelle, E. (2017, October 4). In recent decades, the clustering of rich and poor neighborhoods in America has continued, expanding inequality. *LSE US Centre, United States Politics and Policy*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2017/10/04/in-recent-decades-the-clustering-of-rich-and-poor-neighborhoods-in-america-has-continued-expanding-inequality/
- Denver Adopts \$150 Million Affordable Housing Fund. (n.d.). Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/denver-passes-locally-funded-affordable-housing-plan
- Denver Comprehensive Plan 2040. (n.d.).
 - https://www.denvergov.org/content/denvergov/en/denveright/comprehensive-plan.html
- Denver's Blueprint for the next 20 years of growth is ready for a City Council vote. (n.d.). https://denverite.com/2019/04/22/denvers-blueprint-for-the-next-20-years-of-growth-is-ready-for-a-
- city-council-vote/
 Deschamps, T. (2015, May 9). The artist's view of Toronto's Divided City. *The Toronto Star*.

 https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2015/05/09/the-artists-view-of-torontos-divided-city.html
- Deserti, A. (2016). Design and the Transformation of Cities. In *Human Smart Cities* (pp. 63–79). Springer, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-33024-2 4
- Desislaa Hristova et. al. (n.d.). *Measuring Urban Social Diversity Using Interconnected Geo-Social Networks*. International World Wide Web Conference Committee. Retrieved June 10, 2019, from https://www.ucl.ac.uk/~ucfamus/papers/www16_measuring.pdf
- Desmond, M. (2016). Evicted: Poverty and Profit in the American City. Crown.
- Deto, R. (2016, January 20). Land trust will help low-income residents purchase homes in Lawrenceville. *Pittsburgh City Paper.* https://www.pghcitypaper.com/pittsburgh/land-trust-will-help-low-income-residents-purchase-homes-in-lawrenceville/Content?oid=1884073
- Deto, R. (2017, July 6). Lawrenceville breaks ground on Pittsburgh's first Community Land Trust. *Pittsburgh City Paper*. https://www.pghcitypaper.com/Blogh/archives/2017/07/06/lawrenceville-breaks-ground-on-pittsburghs-first-community-land-trust
- Deutsche, R., & Ryan, C. G. (1984). The Fine Art of Gentrification. *October*, *31*, 91. https://doi.org/10.2307/778358 *Development Prooposal*. (n.d.). Retrieved September 27, 2019, from https://developmentproposal.tumblr.com/alternative
- Development Without Displacement: Keeping Communities Strong. (2015). Philadelphia Coalition for Affordable Communities. http://phillyaffordablecommunities.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/03/DWD_Report.pdf
- Development Without Displacement: Resisting Gentrification in the Bay Area. (2015). Causa Justa / Just Cause. https://cjjc.org/publication/development-without-displacement-resisting-gentrification-in-the-bay-area/
- DeVerteuil, G. (2016, October 30). Book Review: Planetary Gentrification by Loretta Lees, Hyun Bang Shin and Ernesto López-Morales. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2016/10/30/book-review-planetary-gentrification-by-loretta-lees-hyun-bang-shin-and-ernesto-lopez-morales/
- Dhillon, J. K. (2017). *Prairie Rising: Indigenous Youth, Decolonization, and the Politics of Intervention*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Diappi, L. (Ed.). (2014). *Emergent Phenomena in Housing Markets: Gentrification, Housing Search, Polarization* (2013 edition). Physica.
- Die Projektdokumentation und der Kurzfilm der Viertelexpedition sind online. (n.d.). Folkwang LAB Wir sind Nachbarn. Retrieved January 20, 2018, from http://nachbarn.folkwang-uni.de/
- Digg. (n.d.). *The Most Unaffordable Housing Markets In North America, Charted.* Retrieved October 28, 2017, from http://digg.com/2017/most-unaffordable-housing-markets
- Dinca-Panaitescu, M., & Walks, A. (2015). *Income Inequality, Income Polarization, and Poverty: How Are They Different? How Are They Measured?* (Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). United Way Toronto/York Region and University of Toronto.
 - http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/documents/2015/12/inequality-polarization-poverty-definitions.pdf

- Dineen, J. K. (2017, October 24). *SF legislation aims to save cultural enclaves from gentrification*. Laredo Morning Times. http://www.lmtonline.com/bayarea/article/SF-legislation-aims-to-save-cultural-enclaves-12300686.php
- DINER: Downtown Eastside Neighbourhood Council Calls For An End To PiDGiN Protest. (n.d.). https://scoutmagazine.ca/2013/06/14/diner-downtown-eastside-neighbourhood-council-calls-for-an-end-to-pidgin-protest/
- Ding, L., & Hwang, J. (2016). *The Consequences of Gentrification: A Focus on Residents' Financial Health in Philadelphia. Working Paper No 16-22*, 38. https://www.philadelphiafed.org/-/media/research-and-data/publications/working-papers/2016/wp16-22.pdf?la=en
- Dispalcement Forum. (n.d.). Eastside Culture Crawl. Retrieved October 28, 2019, from http://culturecrawl.ca/events/displacement-forum
- "Displacement is not beautiful": Critics slam real estate developer's art exhibition. (n.d.). CBC News. Retrieved October 25, 2017, from http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/displacement-is-not-beautiful-critics-slam-westbank-s-fight-for-beauty-exhibition-1.4366125
- Dispossession: The Great Social Housing Swindle. (n.d.). Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://www.dispossessionfilm.com/
- *DIVERCITIES Governing Urban Diversity.* (n.d.). Retrieved November 5, 2017, from https://www.urbandivercities.eu/
- Divided City/United City: The series so far. (2014, December 15). *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/15/divided_cityunited_city_the_series_so_far.html
- Dixon, G. (2015, May 25). Arts and real estate a winning mix Artscape is exporting to B.C. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/report-on-business/industry-news/property-report/arts-and-real-estate-a-winning-mix/article24590186/
- Dmitrieva, K. (2017, November 17). Even Real Estate Developers Can't Afford Toronto's Housing Market. *Bloomberg.Com.* https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2017-11-17/in-toronto-world-s-hottest-housing-market-starting-to-boil-over
- Doan, P. L. (2015). Planning and LGBTQ communities: The need for inclusive queer spaces. Routledge,.
- Dobbins, J. (2017, April 7). Making a Living With Airbnb. *The New York Times*.
 - https://www.nytimes.com/2017/04/07/realestate/making-a-living-with-airbnb.html
- Doberstein, C. (2017). Building a Collaborative Advantage: Network Governance and Homelessness Policy-Making in Canada. UBC Press.
- Doherty, B. (2017, November 23). Michael Redhill had \$411 in the bank before depositing \$100,000 Giller Prize cheque. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/books/2017/11/23/michael-redhill-had-411-left-in-bank-account-before-giller-prize-cheque.html
- Dombrowski, R. (2016, July 5). *The Opposite Of Gentrification*. The Odyssey Online. https://www.theodysseyonline.com/the-opposite-of-gentrification
- Dongen, M. V. (2017, March 25). HAMILTON BUDGET: Councillors reject 'living wage' hike for part-time workers. The Hamilton Spectator. https://www.thespec.com/news-story/7207977-hamilton-budget-councillors-reject-living-wage-hike-for-part-time-workers/
- Donish, C. J. (2013). Geographies of art and urban change: Contesting gentrification through aesthetic encounters in San Francisco's mission district ProQuest [University of Oregon]. ProQuest Dissertations Publishing. https://search.proquest.com/openview/bd19d71bbce151b5259a6dd3f7b40412/1?pq-origsite=gscholar&cbl=18750&diss=y
- Donnelly, Kathleen. (2018). The Gentrifier's Dilemma: Narrative Strategies and Self-Justifications of Incoming Residents in Bedford-Stuyvesant, Brooklyn. *City & Community*, *17*(2), 374–393. https://doi.org/10.1111/cico.12296
- Donnelly, Katie. (2019, July 15). How "Woke" Liberals Convince Themselves That Gentrifying Is Okay. *Vice*. https://www.vice.com/en_us/article/evy3k7/how-woke-liberals-convince-themselves-that-gentrifying-is-okay
- Donovan Vincent. (n.d.). Toronto seniors clinging to their homes may spell doom for young buyers, CMHC report says. *The Star.* Retrieved August 9, 2019, from

- https://www.thestar.com/amp/news/gta/2019/08/08/toronto-seniors-holding-on-to-their-homes-may-spell-doom-for-younger-buyers-in-the-future-cmhc-report-says.html
- Doolittle, R. (2011, April 22). Dundas-Sherbourne poised for a surprising rebirth. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/qa/news/gta/2011/04/22/dundassherbourne_poised_for_a_surprising_rebirth.html
- Dorling, D. (2017, September 26). The New Urban Crisis by Richard Florida review 'flawed and elitist ideas.' *The Observer*. http://www.theguardian.com/books/2017/sep/26/richard-florida-new-urban-crisis-review-flawed-elitist-ideas
- Doucet, B. (2017, January 12). *Art\$Pay website helps Waterloo Region artists get a fair price*. CambridgeTimes.Ca. https://www.cambridgetimes.ca/community-story/7060225-art-pay-website-helps-waterloo-region-artists-get-a-fair-price/
- Doug Newman. (n.d.). *Creating the Collective: Challenges on 23rd Avenue*. Open Space. Retrieved July 17, 2019, from https://openspace.sfmoma.org/2018/05/creating-the-collective-challenges-on-23rd-avenue/
- Dovey, R. (2017a, July 27). Three Ways Detroit's Housing Picture Is Changing.
 - https://next city.org/daily/entry/detroit-housing-picture-changing-urban-institute-report
- Dovey, R. (2017b, September 18). \$27.5 Million Goes to Detroit Neighborhoods for Equitable Development. https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/ford-rockefeller-27-million-detroit-neighborhoods-equitable-development
- Dovey, R. (2017c, September 25). Detroit Has a New Tool for Fighting Gentrification's Displacement. *Next City*. https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/detroit-inclusionary-zoning-gentrification-displacement
- Dovey, R. (2017d, October 3). Boston to Help Affordable Housing Developers Rethink Vacant Lots. *Next City*. https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/news-boston-affordable-housing-developers-rethink-vacant-lots
- Dragicevic, Nevena, & Ditta, S. (2016). Community Benefits and Social Procurement Policies: A Jurisdictional Review (The Prosperous Province: Strategies for Building Community Wealth). Mowat Centre and Atkinson Foundation. http://atkinsonfoundation.ca/wp-content/uploads/2016/05/mowat-af_cb-spp_review_final.pdf
- Dragicevic, Nina. (2017, March 13). *Gentrification as rejuvenation: How Toronto is different*. Toronto Storeys. http://torontostoreys.com/2017/03/gentrification-as-rejuvenation-how-toronto-is-different/
- Dragin, B. (n.d.). A New Model for Paying Musicians a Living Wage? *East Bay Express*. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from https://www.eastbayexpress.com/oakland/a-new-model-for-paying-musicians-a-living-wage/Content?oid=9251792
- Drake, M. S. (2016). Art squats, artistic critique and resistance: Between recuperation and obliteration. *Prace Kulturoznawcze*, *19*, 41–58.
- Dreyfuss, E. (2016, December 31). *The Year in Housing: The Middle Class Can't Afford to Live in Cities Anymore*. WIRED. https://www.wired.com/2016/12/year-housing-middle-class-cant-afford-live-cities-anymore/
- Druka, K., Kamgari, A., MacNevin, J., Orasch, A., Peters, C., & Porter, M. (Eds.). (2019). *Gentrification Glossary*. Hamilton Artists Inc / GAGED Hamilton. http://www.theinc.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/HAI_GAGED_Gentrification-Glossary-Web.pdf
- Duany, A., Speck, J., & Lydon, M. (2009). *The Smart Growth Manual* (1 edition). McGraw-Hill Education. Dubb, S. (2017, October 2). DC Adopts Community Land Trust Approach to Avert Further Gentrification. *Nonprofit Quarterly*. https://nonprofitquarterly.org/2017/10/02/dc-adopts-community-land-trust-approach-avert-gentrification/
- Dunst, A. (2019, December 31). *Graphic Novels Are Comic Books, But Gentrified*. https://jacobinmag.com/2019/12/graphic-novels-comic-books-gentrification
- Durrett, C. (2009). *The Senior Cohousing Handbook-2nd Edition: A Community Approach to Independent Living* (2 edition). New Society Publishers.
- Durrett, C., & McCamant, K. (2011). *Creating Cohousing: Building Sustainable Communities*. New Society Publishers. Duval, S. (n.d.). *Stop, stop: Washington residents use go-go music to fight gentrification*. The Jakarta Post. Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://www.thejakartapost.com/life/2019/07/04/stop-stop-washington-residents-use-go-go-music-to-fight-gentrification.html

Duxbury, N., Kangas, A., & Beukelaer, C. D. (2017). Cultural policies for sustainable development: Four strategic paths. *International Journal of Cultural Policy*, 23(2), 214–230. https://doi.org/10.1080/10286632.2017.1280789

Dyson, L. (2013). *Beyond Transparency: Open Data and the Future of Civic Innovation* (B. Goldstein, Ed.; 1 edition). Code for America Press.

E

Eastburn, S. (2014, August 18). The future of new music is at risk if we continue to undervalue composers. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/culture-professionals-network/culture-professionals-blog/2014/aug/18/future-new-music-composers-report-pay

Eastwood, J. (2014, November 28). Map: 40 years of growing income inequality in Toronto. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/projects/toronto-s-three-cities--40-years-of-growing-income-inequality.html

Echenique, M. (n.d.). *A Map to Find the Hipster Neighborhoods in Any City*. CityLab. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://www.citylab.com/life/2017/08/hoodmap-stereotype-your-city-hipsters/538218/

Economic Development & Culture Divisional Strategy 2018-2022. (2018, February 26). *City of Toronto*. https://www.toronto.ca/city-government/accountability-operations-customer-service/city-administration/staff-directory-divisions-and-customer-service/economic-development-culture-divisional-strategy/

Editorial: Students Can Help Fight Gentrification. (2016, October 31). *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/editorial-students-can-help-fight-gentrification

Editors, S. A. (2014). Designing the Urban Future: Smart Cities. Scientific American.

Edlund, L., Machado, C., & Sviatchi, M. (2015). *Bright Minds, Big Rent: Gentrification and the Rising Returns to Skill* (No. 21729; NBER Working Paper Series, p. 65). Federal Bureau of Economic Research. http://www.nber.org/papers/w21729

Edwards, S. (2016, January 22). *No Place Like Home*. Maisonneuve. http://maisonneuve.org/article/2016/01/22/no-place-home/

Edwards, S. (2018, August 29). *How Toronto landlords use renovictions to force out tenants*. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/0232e6d6-abcd-11e8-8f3e-120e7ad5cf50/

Edwards, S. (2019, February 27). Are we building a city for lonely people? *NOW Magazine*. https://nowtoronto.com/lifestyle/toronto-lonely-condos-design

Ehrenhalt, A. (2017, October 26). *The Problem With the Second Phase of Gentrification*. KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/city-rising/the-problem-with-the-second-phase-of-gentrification

El Kalach, S., Moriah, A., & Tapper, M. (2005). *Gentrification and Displacement: Community Responses & Policy Options—An Inventory of Case Examples of Neighbourhood Initiatives*. Centre for Urban and Community Studies, University of Toronto.

http://www.urbancentre.utoronto.ca/pdfs/curp/ResponsestoGentrification.pdf

Election Toolkit: A guide for nonprofits to meaningfully engage in elections. (2018). Ontario Nonprofit Network. http://theonn.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/Election-Toolkit-Jan-2018.pdf

Ellard, C. (2015). Places of the Heart: The Psychogeography of Everyday Life. Bellevue Literary Press.

Ellen, I. G., & Ding, L. (2016). Advancing Our Understanding of Gentrification. Cityscape, 18(3), 3.

Ellen, I. G., & O'Regan, K. (2011). *Gentrification: Perspectives of Economists and Planners*. https://doi.org/10.1093/oxfordhb/9780195380620.013.0017

Ellis-Petersen, H. (2015, November 23). Middle class people dominate arts, survey finds. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/artanddesign/2015/nov/23/middle-class-people-dominate-arts-survey-finds

- Ellis-Young, M. (2018). "We're just trying to help...make it a positive place": Community Organizations, Gentrification, and Neighbourhood Change in Hamilton, Ontario [University of Waterloo].
 - https://uwspace.uwaterloo.ca/bitstream/handle/10012/13418/Ellis-Young Margaret.pdf?sequence=3
- Ellse, M. (2016, November 21). National living wage spells death for the arts. The Conservative Woman.
 - https://www.conservativewoman.co.uk/mark-ellse-national-living-wage-spells-death-for-the-arts/
- Elmquist, D. (2012). House Poor: How a Drive for Stability Led to a Strategic Rethinking of Cultural Institutions' Relationship to Their Space. The Journal of Arts Management, Law, and Society, 42(4), 189–204. https://doi.org/10.1080/10632921.2012.746765
- Embedded, Embedding: Artist Residencies, Urban Placemaking and Social Practice. (n.d.). The New School. Retrieved October 15, 2017, from http://www.residencyunlimited.org/dialogues/embedded-embedding/
- Empty Shops Network. (n.d.). Empty Shops Network. Retrieved December 18, 2019, from https://emptyshops.wordpress.com/
- Empty Spaces. (n.d.). Retrieved December 18, 2019, from http://emptyspaces.culturemap.org.au/
- Empty Space Project. (n.d.), Retrieved August 30, 2019, from https://emptyspaceproject.com
- Empty Spaces Toolkit. (n.d.). Retrieved December 18, 2019, from
 - http://emptyspaces.culturemap.org.au/page/toolkit
- Enabling Culture to Thrive in Oakville: Oakville's Strategic Directions for Culture. (2009). Town of Oakville. https://www.oakville.ca/assets/general%20-%20culture%20recreation/CulturalPlan.pdf
- Engaging Spaces, Engaged Audiences: The Socio-Spatial Context of Cultural Experiences in Art Galleries and Art Museums. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from
 - https://search.proquest.com/openview/5deffc16a7fce7564e9ca56db6ac1ce3/1?pgorigsite=gscholar&cbl=18750&diss=y
- Enright, T., & McIntyre, C. (2019). Art and Neighbourhood Change Beyond the City Centre. Canadian Journal of Urban Research, Volume 28(Issue 1), 34-49.
- Enterprise Awards New York City \$1.65 Million to Support the Formation and Expansion of Community Land Trusts. (2017, July 19). NYC Housing Preservation & Development.
 - http://www1.nyc.gov/site/hpd/about/press-releases/2017/07/07-19b-17.page
- Environmental Studies, & Scott, Dayna N. (2017). Unsettling Revitalization in Toronto: The Fantasy and Apology of the Settler City. York University.
 - http://yorkspace.library.yorku.ca/xmlui/bitstream/10315/33544/2/Halpin_Bryony_J_2017_PhD.pdf
- Epstein, G. (2018). A kinder, gentler gentrification: Racial identity, social mix and multiculturalism in Toronto's Parkdale neighborhood. Social Identities, 24(6), 707-726. https://doi.org/10.1080/13504630.2017.1310039
- Equinox Studios. (n.d.). Retrieved January 16, 2018, from https://equinoxstudios.org
- Equitable Development Assembly. (2016, December 30). Kheprw Institute: Community Empowerment through Self Mastery. http://kheprw.org/gentrify/
- Equitable Development Implementation Plan. (2016). Seattle Office of Planning & Community Development. http://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/OPCD/OngoingInitiatives/EquitableDevelopmentIn itiative/EDIImpPlan042916final.pdf
- Equitable Development Toolkit. (n.d.). PolicyLink. Retrieved October 14, 2017, from
 - http://www.policylink.org/equity-tools/equitable-development-toolkit/about-toolkit
- EquityTools Building Bridges Across the River. (n.d.). Retrieved August 7, 2019, from https://bbardc.org/equitytools/
- Errett, J., June 29, 2016 5:00 AM ET | Last Updated:, & 2016. (2016, June 29). Why are some people in Moss Park opposed to a new community centre? CBC. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/moss-park-519community-centre-1.3656134
- Evaluation of the Impact of Increases to City of Toronto Cultural Grants from 2012 to 2016: Final Report. (2017). Nordicity, https://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2017/ed/bgrd/backgroundfile-109143.pdf
- Evans, A. (2017, January 19). Looking at Places Through Artists' Eyes. Shelterforce.
 - https://shelterforce.org/2017/01/19/looking-at-places-through-artists-eyes/
- Evans, G. (2009). Creative Cities, Creative Spaces and Urban Policy. Urban Studies, 46(5 & 6), 1003–1040.
- Evans, G., & Shaw, P. (n.d.). Literature Review: Culture and Regeneration. Arts Reserach Digest, 37(Summer 2006). http://media.ifacca.org/files/RegenerationLitReview.pdf

- Evidence-Based Policymaking Collaborative. (n.d.). Evidence-Based Policymaking Collaborative. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.evidencecollaborative.org/
- Exploring Our Town. (n.d.). National Endowment for the Arts. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://www.arts.gov/exploring-our-town/

F

- Faife, C. (2017, October 2). The Safe Way to Build a Smart City. CityLab.
 - https://www.citylab.com/solutions/2017/10/municipal-open-data-smart-city-guidelines-seattle-lessons/541578/
- Fairbnb. (n.d.). Fairbnb. Retrieved October 3, 2017, from http://fairbnb.ca/
- Fallows, D. (2019, December). *Our Towns: How Artists Build the Spirit of a Town*. The Atlantic: Reporters Notebook. https://www.theatlantic.com/notes/2019/12/how-artists-build-culture-spirit-and-economytown/603526/
- famille, L. V. de la. (2017). Employment Mobility and Family Gentrification in Montreal. *The Vanier Institute of the Family*. http://vanierinstitute.ca/employment-mobility-family-gentrification-montreal/
- Fayyad, A. (2017, December 20). The Criminalization of Gentrifying Neighborhoods. *The Atlantic*. https://www.theatlantic.com/politics/archive/2017/12/the-criminalization-of-gentrifying-neighborhoods/548837/
- Febria, M. (2017, April 12). We can all be allies for creating decent work. *ONN*. http://theonn.ca/can-allies-creating-decent-work/
- Federal Reserve Bank of San Fransisco. (n.d.). *Community Development Investment Review: Creative Placemaking*. https://www.frbsf.org/community-development/files/cdir-10-02-final.pdf
- Fenner, V. (2019, December 12). Land trusts—The gift that keeps on giving. Rabble.Ca. https://rabble.ca/podcasts/shows/rabble-radio/2019/12/land-trusts-gift-keeps-giving
- Ferguson, L. (2017, October 5). *Queen West super hub proposal aims to create "some magic" in Parkdale*. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/ddee5610-a935-11e7-9f9d-121bebc5777e/
- Ferguson, L. (2020, January 7). The Good, the Bad, and the Ugly: Report Examines Which of Toronto's Problems are Better, and Which are Bigger, after 10 Years of Austerity. *Social Planning Toronto*. https://www.socialplanningtoronto.org/good_bad_ugly
- Fern, J. (2017, August 9). Taking Back the Front Porch: Using Art to Reclaim Community Identity. *Shelterforce*. https://shelterforce.org/2017/08/09/taking-back-front-porch/
- Fernandez, K. B. and L. (01:00:00 CDT). A living wage lifts workers and economy. *Winnipeg Free Press*. https://www.winnipegfreepress.com/opinion/analysis/a-living-wage-lifts-workers-and-economy-277852561.html
- Ferreras, J. (2018, December 19). 76% of Canada's national wealth is wrapped up in real estate, and the market is slowing: Data. Global News. https://globalnews.ca/news/4775685/canada-national-wealth-real-estate/Fight for Beauty. (n.d.). http://fightforbeauty.westbankcorp.com/
- Final Report of the Truth and Reconciliation Commission of Canada, Volume One: Summary: Honouring the Truth, Reconciling for the Future. (2015). Lorimer. http://publications.gc.ca/site/eng/9.800288/publication.html
- Finance, P., & Estate, M. & R. (2014, March 29). Leaving the city (and the big mortgage) behind. *Financial Post*. http://business.financialpost.com/personal-finance/mortgages-real-estate/housing-mortgage-city-canada
- Fine, D., Manyika, J., Sjatil, P. E., Tadjeddine, K., Tacke, T., & Desmond, M. (2019). *G7 Inequality: A persisting challenge and its implications Discussion Paper*. McKinsey Global Institute.

- https://www.mckinsey.com/industries/public-sector/our-insights/inequality-a-persisting-challenge-and-its-implications
- Fish, S. (2017, August 23). Moving toward Decent Work: How changing employment standards are impacting the nonprofit sector.
 - https://charityvillage.com/content.aspx?topic=Moving_toward_Decent_Work_How_changing_employment_standards_are_impacting_the_nonprofit_sector
- Fisher, M. (2009). Capitalist Realism: Is there no alternative? John Hunt Publishing.
- Flack, D. (2017, June). Toronto is finally ready to embrace laneway housing. *BlogTO*.
 - http://www.blogto.com/city/2017/06/toronto-laneway-suites-housing/
- Flaxman, K. (2016, March 12). Guelph a preferred option over Toronto. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2016/03/12/guelph-a-preffered-option-over-toronto.html
- Flaxman, K. (2017, May 27). Garage becomes a working art studio. *The Toronto Star*.
 - https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2017/05/27/garage-becomes-a-working-art-studio.html
- Fleming, D. (2016, December 7). Who Is Moving Outside Toronto, And Why? *Toronto Realty Blog.* http://torontorealtyblog.com/archives/15985
- Florida, R. (n.d.-a). "First Come the Artists": Do the Arts Really Lead to Gentrification? CityLab. Retrieved March 23, 2018, from https://www.citylab.com/life/2018/03/do-art-scenes-really-lead-to-gentrification/556208/
- Florida, R. (n.d.-b). *Gentrification and the Persistence of Poor Minority Neighborhoods*. CityLab. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.citylab.com/housing/2014/08/gentrification-and-the-persistence-of-poor-minority-neighborhoods/373062/
- Florida, R. (n.d.-c). *How Data Is Actually Changing Our Knowledge of Cities*. CityLab. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.citylab.com/tech/2016/05/the-complex-relationship-between-data-and-cities/483303/
- Florida, R. (n.d.-d). *Is Your Neighborhood Changing? It Might Be Youthification, Not Gentrification.* CityLab. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://www.citylab.com/housing/2015/02/is-your-neighborhood-changing-it-might-be-youthification-not-gentrification/385193/
- Florida, R. (2003). The Rise of the Creative Class: And How It's Transforming Work, Leisure, Community, and Everyday Life (First Trade Paper Edition edition). Basic Books.
- Florida, R. (2004). Cities and the Creative Class (1 edition). Routledge.
- Florida, R. (2007). The Flight of the Creative Class: The New Global Competition for Talent (1 edition). HarperBusiness.
- Florida, R. (2009). Who's Your City?: How the Creative Economy Is Making Where to Live the Most Important Decision of Your Life (Canadian edition). Vintage Canada.
- Florida, R. (2011). The Great Reset: How New Ways of Living and Working Drive Post-Crash Prosperity. Vintage Canada.
- Florida, R. (2014a). *The Rise of the Creative Class--Revisited: Revised and Expanded* (First Trade Paper Edition edition). Basic Books.
- Florida, R. (2014b). *Atlas of Cities* (P. Knox, Ed.; With a Foreword by Richard Flo ed. edition). Princeton University Press.
- Florida, R. (2014c, November 29). Toronto is a divided city. Here's how to repair it. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/opinion/commentary/2014/11/29/toronto_is_a_divided_city_heres_how_to_repair_it.html
- Florida, R. (2017). The New Urban Crisis: How Our Cities Are Increasing Inequality, Deepening Segregation, and Failing the Middle Class—and What We Can Do About It (1 edition). Basic Books.
- Florida, R. L., Mellander, C., Canadian Electronic Library York University, & Joseph L. Rotman School of Management: Martin Prosperity Institute. (2007). *There goes the neighbourhood: How and why Bohemians, artists and gays affect regional housing values.* Martin Prosperity Institute.
 - http://ezproxy.library.yorku.ca/login?url=http://books.scholarsportal.info/viewdoc.html?id=/ebooks/ebooks0/gibson_cppc/2009-12-01/8/213634
- Flowers, M., & Zeese, K. (2017, November 5). *Reducing the Weath Divide Through "Economic Democracy."* Truthdig: Expert Reporting, Current News, Provocative Columnists. https://www.truthdig.com/articles/airbnbs-brand-gentrification-harming-6-cities/

- Flynn, A., Holmberg, S. R., Warren, D. T., & Wong, F. J. (2017). *The Hidden Rules of Race: Barriers to an Inclusive Economy*. Cambridge University Press.
- Focus on Gentrification. (2016). NYU Furman Center.
 - http://furmancenter.org/files/sotc/Part_1_Gentrification_SOCin2015_9JUNE2016.pdf
- Ford, M. (2016). Rise of the Robots: Technology and the Threat of a Jobless Future (Reprint edition). Basic Books.
- Formoso, D., N. Weber, R., & S. Atkins, M. (2010). Gentrification and Urban Children's Well-Being: Tipping the Scales from Problems to Promise. *American Journal of Community Psychology*, 46(3–4), 395–412. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10464-010-9348-3
- Foster, D. (2016, May 13). Even hipsters and artists should be afraid of gentrification. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/housing-network/2016/may/13/hipsters-artists-gentrification-social-cleansing-developers
- Foster, N., Grodach, C., & Murdoch, J. (2016). Neighborhood Diversity, Economic Health, and The Role of the Arts. Journal of Urban Affairs, 38(5), 623–642. https://doi.org/10.1111/juaf.12278
- Foth, M., Brynskov, M., & Ojala, T. (Eds.). (2015). *Citizen's Right to the Digital City: Urban Interfaces, Activism, and Placemaking* (1st ed. 2015 edition). Springer.
- Fragoza, C. (2018, July 4). Los Angeles Artists Reinvent Their Roles in Gentrifying Communities. *The American Prospect*. http://prospect.org/article/los-angeles-artists-reinvent-their-roles-gentrifying-communities
- Francassa, D. (2018, May 20). SF cultural districts gain footing in preserving neighborhoods' heritage. San Francisco Chronicle. https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/SF-cultural-districts-gain-footing-in-preserving-12929662.php
- France-Presse, A. (2019, June 18). City of Berlin backs plan to freeze rents for five years. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/world/2019/jun/18/city-of-berlin-backs-plan-to-freeze-rents-for-five-years
- Francis, A. (2017, October 5). "Artwashing" gentrification is a problem but vilifying the artists involved is not the answer. *The Conversation*. http://theconversation.com/artwashing-gentrification-is-a-problem-but-vilifying-the-artists-involved-is-not-the-answer-83739
- Frank, A. (2017, August 29). What Does It Take To See Gentrification Before It Happens? NPR.Org. http://www.npr.org/sections/13.7/2017/08/29/546980178/what-does-it-take-to-see-gentrification-before-it-happens
- Frank, S. (2013, August 16). Creativity needs a home. *MyKawartha.Com.* https://www.mykawartha.com/news-story/4035642-friday-focus-creativity-needs-a-home/
- Frankfurt, H. G. (2015). On Inequality. Princeton University Press.
- Franz, Y. (2015). Gentrification in neighbourhood development: Case studies from New York City, Berlin, and Vienna. V & R Unipress;
- Frase, P. (2016). Four Futures: Life After Capitalism. Verso.
- Freeman, B., & Hume, C. (2015). The New Urban Agenda: The Greater Toronto and Hamilton Area. Dundurn.
- Freeman, Lance. (2005). Displacement or Succession?: Residential Mobility in Gentrifying Neighborhoods. *Urban Affairs Review*, 40(4), 463–491. https://doi.org/10.1177/1078087404273341
- Freeman, Lance. (2006). *There Goes the Hood: Views of Gentrification from the Ground Up*. Temple University Press. Freeman, Lance. (2016, June 3). Five myths about gentrification. *The Washington Post*.
 - https://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/five-myths-about-gentrification/2016/06/03/b6c80e56-1ba5-11e6-8c7b-6931e66333e7_story.html
- Freeman, Lance, & Braconi, F. (2004). Gentrification and Displacement New York City in the 1990s. *Journal of the American Planning Association*, 70(1), 39–52. https://doi.org/10.1080/01944360408976337
- Freeman, Lance, Cassola, A., & Cai, T. (2016). Displacement and gentrification in England and Wales: A quasi-experimental approach. *Urban Studies*, *53*(13), 2797–2814. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098015598120
- Freeman, Lena. (2016). Creative Placemaking: Towards and Evaluative Framework.
 - http://scholarsbank.uoregon.edu/xmlui/handle/1794/20075
- Freiburger, J. (n.d.). *James Street North Cultural Development v2* [Youtube Video]. Retrieved February 16, 2019, from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=twNy3wOL0Gc&f=
- Friedman, A. (n.d.). Painting the Gentrification of Prospect Heights. *The New Yorker*. Retrieved March 7, 2018, from https://www.newyorker.com/culture/culture-desk/painting-the-gentrification-of-prospect-heights

- Fritsch, K., O'Connor, C., & Thompson, A. K. (Eds.). (2016). *Keywords for Radicals: The Contested Vocabulary of Late-Capitalist Struggle*. AK Press.
- Frock, C. L. (2014, February 7). *Priced Out: New Tech Wealth and San Francisco's Receding Art Scene*. KQED. https://www.kqed.org/arts/128856/priced-out-new-tech-wealth-and-san-franciscos-receding-art-scene
- Fullilove, M. T., & Bassett, M. T. (2016). *Root Shock: How Tearing Up City Neighborhoods Hurts America, And What We Can Do About It* (Reprint edition). New Village Press.
- Fung, J. (2015, October 16). Joseph Fung on why tech leaders should care about gentrification in Kitchener. *Communitech News.* http://news.communitech.ca/columns/joseph-fung-on-why-tech-leaders-should-care-about-gentrification-in-kitchener/
- Future Cities Canada. (n.d.). Future Cities Canada. Retrieved January 9, 2020, from https://futurecitiescanada.ca/

G

- Gainza, X. (2017). Culture-led neighbourhood transformations beyond the revitalisation/gentrification dichotomy. *Urban Studies*, *54*(4), 953–970. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098016630507
- Galbraith, J. K. (2016). *Inequality: What Everyone Needs to Know.* Oxford University Press.
- Galley, A. (n.d.). Community Benefits Agreements (The Prosperous Province: Strategies for Building Community Wealth). Mowat Centre and Atkinson Foundation. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://communitybenefitsagreements.ca/
- Garcia, M. (2016). *Irrigate Toolkit*. Sprinboard for the Arts, City of Saint Paul, Twin Cities Local Initiatives Support Corporation. https://www.artplaceamerica.org/library/irrigate-toolkit
- GARCÍA-DOMÉNECH, S. (2015). URBAN AESTHETICS AND SOCIAL FUNCTION OF ACTUAL PUBLIC SPACE: A DESIRABLE BALANCE. *Theoretical and Empirical Researches in Urban Management*, 10(4), 54–65. JSTOR.
- Gardiner, S. (2018, November 26). An artistic view of gentrification in Hamilton: Colina Maxwell sets out to start a conversation with "dis[RE]placement" exhibit in Hamilton. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/news-story/9050095-an-artistic-view-of-gentrification-in-hamilton/
- Garrett, B. L. (2017, July 25). These squares are our squares: Be angry about the privatisation of public space. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/jul/25/squares-angry-privatisation-public-space
- Garrova, R. (2017, September 15). In Los Angeles, mariachi musicians fight gentrification to keep tradition alive. Marketplace. http://www.marketplace.org/2017/09/18/life/los-angeles-mariachi-musicians-fight-gentrification-keep-tradition
- Gauthier-Caron, J. (2017, May 12). Hochelaga Pushes Back to Those Pushing In. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/hochelaga-pushes-back-to-those-pushing-in
- Gaztambide-Fernández, R., & Parekh, G. (2017). Market "choices" or structured pathways? How specialized arts education contributes to the reproduction of inequality. *Education Policy Analysis Archives*, 25, 41. https://doi.org/10.14507/epaa.25.2716
- GCI Invests \$1 Million to Establish Denver's First Collective Impact Workforce Platform. (n.d.). *Gary Community Investments*. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.garycommunity.org/gci-invests-1-million-establish-denver%E2%80%99s-first-collective-impact-workforce-platform
- Gee, M. (2011, April 25). Thanks to gentrification, my slum is now on the leading edge of cool. *The Globe and Mail.* https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/thanks-to-gentrification-my-slum-is-now-on-the-leading-edge-of-cool/article624277/
- Gee, M. (2012, May 11). The unexpected merits of Toronto's condo boom. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/the-unexpected-merits-of-torontos-condo-boom/article4178396/

- Gehl, J. (2011). Life Between Buildings: Using Public Space (6 edition). Island Press.
- Gehl, J., & Rogers, L. R. (2010). Cities for People (First Edition edition). Island Press.
- Gehl, J., & Svarre, B. (2013). How to Study Public Life (2 edition). Island Press.
- *Generation Squeeze.* (n.d.). Generation Squeeze. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://www.gensqueeze.ca/
- Gentrification. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://themainlander.com/category/gentrification/ Gentrification & Student Housing. (2016, July 4). Places 4 Students. Com.
 - https://www.places4students.com/blog/blogview.aspx?blogid=129
- Gentrification Analytics: GovHack Hackerspace 2017. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://2017.hackerspace.govhack.org/project/gentrification-analytics
- Gentrification and the North: Culture Injection, City Protection. (2014, August 6). Northern Policy Institute. http://www.northernpolicy.ca/article/gentrification-and-the-north-culture-injection-city-protection-225.asp
- Gentrification Explained. (n.d.). Urban Displacement Project. Retrieved December 6, 2017, from http://www.urbandisplacement.org/gentrification-explained
- Gentrification Guilt Meter—Living Los Sures. (n.d.). Gentrification Guilt Meter. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://lossur.es/short-docs/guiltmeter/
- Gentrification: Help or Harm? (2014, April 1). In *The Agenda with Steve Paikin*. TVO.
 - http://tvo.org/video/programs/the-agenda-with-steve-paikin/gentrification-help-or-harm
- Gentrification in City Neighborhoods, Its Causes and Effects. (n.d.). Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.useful-community-development.org/gentrification.html
- Gentrification Is Not Just an Urban Issue. (n.d.). Retrieved November 1, 2017, from http://www.wnyc.org/story/gentrification-urban-issue
- Gentrification (k)NOT Project. (n.d.). Gentrification (k)NOT Project. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://gentrificationknotproject.net/
- Gentrification must be managed to protect culture in capital. (2017, March 7). ArtsProfessional.
 - https://www.artsprofessional.co.uk/news/gentrification-must-be-managed-protect-culture-capital
- Gentrification Report Methodology. (n.d.). Governing the States and Localities. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.governing.com/gov-data/gentrification-report-methodology.html
- Gentrification Study: Balancing revitalization, reducing displacement. (2016). Denver Office of Economic Development.
 - https://www.denvergov.org/content/dam/denvergov/Portals/690/Reports%20 and %20 Studies/BROCHURE%20052416.pdf
- Gentrification Study: Mitigating Involuntary Displacement. (2016). Denver Office of Economic Development. http://www.denvergov.org/content/dam/denvergov/Portals/690/Reports%20and%20Studies/GENT%20STUDY%20052316.pdf
- Gentrification Takes More East London Street Art Walls. (2017, October 2). Jenikya's Blog.
 - http://jenikya.com/blog/2017/10/gentrification-takes-more-east.html
- Gentrification.tech. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://gentrification.tech/
- Geoghegan, P. (2016, October 5). Blame it on the bike: Does cycling contribute to a city's gentrification? *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/oct/05/blame-bike-cycling-contribute-city-gentrification
- GEOLOOM co>map: Cultural Mapping—A handbook for developing a creative placemaking tool. (2017). BNIA: Baltimore Neighbourhood Indicators Alliance. http://bniajfi.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/GEOLOOM-Handbook-FINAL.pdf
- Gerhard, U., Hölscher, M., & Wilson, D. (Eds.). (2017). *Inequalities in creative cities: Issues, approaches, comparisons*. Palgrave Macmillan.
- Ghaziani, A., & Stillwagon, R. (2018). Queer Pop-Ups. *Contexts*, *17*(1), 78–80. https://doi.org/10.1177/1536504218766544
- Gibson, D. W. (2016). *The Edge Becomes the Center: An Oral History of Gentrification in the Twenty-First Century* (Reprint edition). Overlook Books.
- Gibson-Graham, J. K. (2006a). A Postcapitalist Politics (1 edition). University of Minnesota Press.

- Gibson-Graham, J. K. (2006b). *The End Of Capitalism (As We Knew It): A Feminist Critique of Political Economy* (1st University of Minnesota Press Ed., 2006 edition). University of Minnesota Press.
- Gibson-Graham, J. K., Cameron, J., & Healy, S. (2013). *Take Back the Economy: An Ethical Guide for Transforming Our Communities*. University of Minnesota Press. https://www.upress.umn.edu/book-division/books/take-back-the-economy
- Gignac, J. (2017, October 29). Queen West artists stand against demolition of studio space. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/10/29/queen-west-artists-stand-against-demolition-of-studio-space.html
- Gilbert, S. (2017, July 5). Gentrification and Hamilton Artists. *Hamilton Fringe Festival*. http://hamiltonfringe.ca/sky-gilbert-gentrification-hamilton-artists/
- Gill, M. (2018, February 15). For Generation Rent, this housing crisis is far from over. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2018/feb/15/generation-rent-housing-crisis-buy-to-let-first-time-buyers
- Gillespie, D. (2017, June 21). The New Hamiltonians. *Toronto Life*. https://torontolife.com/real-estate/the-new-hamiltonians/
- Gillis, A. (2017, May 4). *Cities as a commons: Sharing vision, resources and power*. Cities for People. http://www.citiesforpeople.ca/en/blogroll/cities-as-a-commons-sharing-vision-resources-and-power
- Girvan, L. (2014). Building Capacity, Sharing Values: Shared Spaces and Social Purpose Real Estate: A Scan and Discussion Paper of What is Happening and Could Happen in Canada. Tides Canada. http://tidescanada.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/04/Building-Capacity-Sharing-Values-Shared-Spaces-and-Social-Purpose-Real-Estate-Final.pdf
- Glaeser, E., Gottlieb, J., & Tobio, K. (2012). *Housing Booms and City Centers* (No. w17914). National Bureau of Economic Research. https://doi.org/10.3386/w17914
- Glazer, L., Coletta, C., Burden, D., VanderMeulen, D. J., Clevey, M., Norquist, J., Authors, M., Kageyama, P., & Gilmartin, D. (2016). *The Economics of Place: The Value of Building Communities Around People*. Michigan Municipal League.
- Gleaser, E. L., & Gyourko, J. (2008). *Rethinking Federal Housing Policy: How to Make Housing Plentiful and Affordable*. Aei Press. http://www.aei.org/publication/rethinking-federal-housing-policy/
- Glow, H., Johanson, K., & Kershaw, A. (2014). More Yuppy Stuff Coming Soon: Gentrification, cultural policy, social inclusion and the arts. *Continuum*, *28*(4), 495–508. https://doi.org/10.1080/10304312.2014.907870
- Goldbard, A. (2006). New Creative Community: The Art of Cultural Development (1 edition). New Village Press.
- Goldbard, A. (2013). The Culture of Possibility: Art, Artists & The Future. Waterlight Press.
- Goldberg-Miller, S. B. D., & Heimlich, J. E. (2017). Creatives' expectations: The role of supercreatives in cultural district development. *Cities*, *62*, 120–130. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cities.2016.12.011
- Goldberg-Mota, Z. (2015, May 19). Housing Fair Discusses Resisting Gentrification. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/housing-fair-discusses-resisting-gentrification
- Goldsmith, S., & Crawford, S. (2014). *The Responsive City: Engaging Communities Through Data-Smart Governance* (1 edition). Jossey-Bass.
- Goldstein, B. D. (2017). *The Roots of Urban Renaissance: Gentrification and the Struggle over Harlem*. Harvard University Press.
- Gomer, J. (2017, May 2). "The Rent Eats First": Fighting Gentrification in California. *Black Perspectives*. http://www.aaihs.org/the-rent-eats-first-fighting-gentrification-in-california/
- Gonzalez, S. (n.d.). "Change the Name of the Arts District to the Luxury District." Retrieved October 20, 2017, from http://www.kcrw.com/news-culture/shows/there-goes-the-neighborhood/change-the-name-of-the-arts-district-to-the-luxury-district
- Gooden, M. (2016). *Dark Space: Architecture, Representation, Black Identity*. Columbia Books on Architecture and the City.
- Gordon, A. (2017, September 13). Out-of-Control Gentrification Is Helping Create NYC's Subway Crush. *The Village Voice*. https://www.villagevoice.com/2017/09/13/out-of-control-gentrification-is-helping-create-nycs-subway-crush/
- Gornick, J., & Jäntti, M. (Eds.). (2014). *Income Inequality: Economic Disparities and the Middle Class in Affluent Countries*. Stanford University Press.

- Gorski, E. (2016, September 20). Why we're taking a closer look at how gentrification is changing schools—And how you can help. *Chalkbeat*. https://www.chalkbeat.org/posts/co/2016/09/19/why-were-taking-a-closer-look-at-how-gentrification-is-changing-schools-and-how-you-can-help/
- Gould Ellen, I., & Torrats-Espinosa, G. (2019). *Gentrification and Fair Housing: Does Gentrification Further Integration?* NYU Furman Center.
 - http://furmancenter.org/files/publications/gentrification_and_fair_housing.pdf
- Government of Canada, S. C. (2017, August 29). *CANSIM 051-0065—Interprovincial and intraprovincial migrants, by census metropolitan area of origin and destination for the period from July 1 to June 30.* http://www5.statcan.gc.ca/cansim/a26?lang=eng&id=510065
- Governor's Panel: Gentrification, Arts and Housing. (n.d.). UCCS Presents. Retrieved July 15, 2018, from http://uccspresents.org/events/vapa/2018-19/governors-panel-gentrification-arts-and-housing
- Graham, K. (2017). Using algorithms to predict gentrification and fight displacement. *Digital Journal*. http://www.digitaljournal.com/tech-and-science/technology/using-algorithms-to-predict-gentrification-and-fight-displacement/article/500294
- Graham, P. (2019, January 28). House and Condo Prices by TTC Subway Stops. *Zoocasa Blog.* https://www.zoocasa.com/blog/house-condo-prices-by-ttc-subway-stops/
- Graham, S. (2016). Vertical: The City from Satellites to Bunkers. Verso.
- Graser, D. (2016). Community Benefits in Practice and in Policy: Lessons from the United States and the United Kingdom. Atkinson Foundation.
 - https://atkinsonfoundation.ca/site/uploads/2018/02/atkinson_cbreport_fa.pdf
- Gravari-Barbas, M., & Guinand, S. (Eds.). (2017). *Tourism and Gentrification in Contemporary Metropolises: International Perspectives* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Gravel, R. (2016). Where We Want to Live: Reclaiming Infrastructure for a New Generation of Cities. St. Martin's Press.
- Graves, J. (n.d.). How Artists Can Fight Back Against Cities That Are Taking Advantage of Them. The Stranger. Retrieved November 16, 2017, from http://www.thestranger.com/seattle/how-artists-can-fight-backagainst-cities-that-are-taking-advantage-of-them/Content?oid=20655350
- Gray, J. (2019, June 5). Toronto Mayor John Tory condemns Ontario to rewrite city's development plans. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/canada/article-city-councillors-slam-ontarios-rewriting-of-torontos-development/
- Green, D. A., Riddell, W. C., & St-Hilaire, F. (2016). *Income Inequality: The Canadian Story*. Institute for Research on Public Policy.
- Green, Jared. (2016, November 17). Ending "Code Talk" About Gentrification. *Huffington Post*. http://www.huffingtonpost.com/jared-green/ending-code-talk-about-ge b 13053398.html
- Green, Josh. (2016, March). How gentrification really changes a neighborhood. *Atlanta Magazine*. http://www.atlantamagazine.com/homeandgarden/the-gentrifier/
- Greenberg, M. (2017, August 17). Tenants Under Siege: Inside New York City's Housing Crisis. *The New York Review of Books*. http://www.nybooks.com/articles/2017/08/17/tenants-under-siege-inside-new-york-city-housing-crisis/
- Greene, S., & González, J. (2019, June 11). *How Communities Are Rethinking Zoning to Improve Housing Affordability and Access to Opportunity*. Urban Institute. https://www.urban.org/urban-wire/how-communities-are-rethinking-zoning-improve-housing-affordability-and-access-opportunity
- Greene, S., & Pettit, K. L. S. (n.d.). What if Cities Used Data to Drive Inclusive Neighborhood Change? Urban Institute.

 Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.urban.org/research/publication/what-if-cities-used-data-drive-inclusive-neighborhood-change
- Greenfield, A. (2013). Against the smart city (1.3 edition). Do projects.
- Greenfield, A. (2017). *Radical Technologies: The Design of Everyday Life.* Verso. https://www.versobooks.com/books/2742-radical-technologies
- Greenwood, M., Leeuw, S. de, Lindsay, N. M., & Reading, C. (Eds.). (2015). *Determinants of Indigenous Peoples' Health in Canada: Beyond the Social*. Canadian Scholars' Press Inc.
- Grey Ellis, E. (2017, February 18). *Tech's Diversity and Gentrification Problems Start at Home—With those Fancy Campuses*. WIRED. https://www.wired.com/2017/02/tech-campuses-hinder-diversity-help-gentrification/

- Griffin, A. (2013, June 22). Portland study targets neighborhoods next up for gentrification. The Oregonian. http://www.oregonlive.com/portland/index.ssf/2013/06/portland_study_targets_neighbo.html
- Griffin, T., Cohen, A., & Maddox, D. (2015, October 19). The Just City Essays.
 - https://nextcity.org/features/view/just-city-essys-toni-griffin-theaster-gates-angela-glover-blackwell
- GRIN Gentrification and Politics. Political measures against gentrification using the example of Graz and Hamburg. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.grin.com/en/e-book/371029/gentrification-and-politics-political-measures-against-gentrification
- Grodach, C., Foster, N., & Murdoch, J. (2016). Gentrification, displacement and the arts: Untangling the relationship between arts industries and place change. *Urban Studies*, *55*(4). https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098016680169
- Grodach, Carl. (2008). Museums as Urban Catalysts: The Role of Urban Design in Flagship Cultural Development. Journal of Urban Design, 13(2), 195–212. https://doi.org/10.1080/13574800801965742
- Grodach, Carl. (2010). Art spaces, public space, and the link to community development. *Community Development Journal*, 45(4), 474–493. https://doi.org/10.1093/cdj/bsp018
- Grodach, Carl. (2011). Art Spaces in Community and Economic Development: Connections to Neighborhoods, Artists, and the Cultural Economy. *Journal of Planning Education and Research*, *31*(1), 74–85. https://doi.org/10.1177/0739456X10391668
- Grodach, Carl. (2016). Arts, gentrification, and planning for creativity. *Carolina Planning Journal*, 41, 22–29.
- Grodach, Carl. (2017). Urban cultural policy and creative city making. *Cities*, 68, 82–91. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cities.2017.05.015
- Grodach, Carl, Currid-Halkett, E., Foster, N., & Murdoch, J. (2014). The location patterns of artistic clusters: A metro- and neighborhood-level analysis. *Urban Studies*, *51*(13), 2822–2843. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098013516523
- Grodach, Carl, Foster, N., & Murdoch, J. (2014). Gentrification and the Artistic Dividend: The Role of the Arts in Neighborhood Change. *Journal of the American Planning Association*, 80(1), 21–35. https://doi.org/10.1080/01944363.2014.928584
- Grodach, Carl, Murdoch, J., & Foster, N. (2017, February 14). Arts industries do not cause gentrification- they tend to chase it. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2017/02/14/arts-industries-do-not-cause-gentrification-they-tend-to-chase-it/
- Grodach, Carl, O'Connor, J., & Gibson, C. (2017). Manufacturing and cultural production: Towards a progressive policy agenda for the cultural economy. *City, Culture and Society, 10,* 17–25. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ccs.2017.04.003
- Gross, D. (2018, February 13). San Francisco Is Counting Its Artists to Address the Problem of Gentrification. Hyperallergic. https://hyperallergic.com/426850/artist-census-san-francisco/
- *Grounded Solutions Network.* (n.d.). Grounded Solutions Network. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://groundedsolutions.org/
- Grounded Solutions Network: What About Housing? (2017, October 1). Issuu. https://issuu.com/groundedsolutionsnetwork/docs/toolkit.gsn.final3
- Groundstory. (n.d.). Retrieved October 6, 2017, from http://groundstory.ca/
- Growing Tourism Together: Strategic Framework for Tourism in Ontario. (2016). Ontario Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport. http://www.mtc.gov.on.ca/en/tourism/strategic_framework.shtml
- Grube-Cavers, A., & Patterson, Z. (2014, May 1). In order to keep mass transit accessible, we must understand the relationship between gentrification and public transportation. *USAPP*.
 - http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2014/05/01/in-order-to-keep-mass-transit-accessible-we-must-understand-the-relationship-between-gentrification-and-public-transportation/
- Gu, P. (2014). *Governance and Gentrification in Creative Industry Clusters—A Case Study of Three Creative Clusters in Beijing*. https://academiccommons.columbia.edu/catalog/ac:175303
- Gualtieri, A. A. (n.d.). Creative inequality: Development, gentrification and contestation in the new ward 8 [American University]. ProQuest Dissertations Publishing. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://search.proquest.com/openview/6b6b90e3ec22811bf180b44998c5239d/1?pq-origsite=gscholar&cbl=18750&diss=y

- Guénette, V. G., Jasmin. (2016a, July 28). *Gentrification helps everyone, be it in St-Henri, HoMa or elsewhere*. IEDM. https://www.iedm.org/fr/62600-gentrification-helps-everyone-be-it-in-st-henri-homa-or-elsewhere
- Guénette, V. G., Jasmin. (2016b, July 28). *Viewpoint The Widespread Benefits of Gentrification*. IEDM. https://www.iedm.org/62593-viewpoint-the-widespread-benefits-of-gentrification
- Guerrieri, V., Hartley, D., & Hurst, E. (2010). *Endogenous Gentrification and Housing Price Dynamics* (No. w16237). National Bureau of Economic Research. https://doi.org/10.3386/w16237
- Guinard, P., & Margier, A. (2017). Art as a new urban norm: Between normalization of the City through art and normalization of art through the City in Montreal and Johannesburg. *Cities*. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cities.2017.04.018
- Guinard, P., & Molina, G. (2018). Urban geography of arts: The co-production of arts and cities. *Cities*. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cities.2018.02.004
- Gupta, R. (2018a, May 18). Work advancing on Parkdale community hub plan. Toronto.Com.
 - https://www.toronto.com/news-story/8610834-work-advancing-on-parkdale-community-hub-plan/
- Gupta, R. (2018b, July 10). Pia Bouman School of Ballet could leave Parkdale area after 40 years. *Toronto.Com.* https://www.toronto.com/news-story/8732499-pia-bouman-school-of-ballet-could-leave-parkdale-area-after-40-years/

Н

- Habitat III. (n.d.). Habitat III. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://habitat3.org
- Hackworth, J., & Rekers, J. (2005a). *Ethnic Identity, Place Marketing, and Gentrification in Toronto* (Research Paper 203). Centre for Urban and Community Studies, University of Toronto.
 - http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/wp-content/uploads/2011/06/Hackworth-Rekers-203-EthnicIdentity 2005.pdf
- Hackworth, J., & Rekers, J. (2005b). Ethnic Packaging and Gentrification: The Case of Four Neighborhoods in Toronto. *Urban Affairs Review*, *41*(2), 211–236. https://doi.org/10.1177/1078087405280859
- Hackworth, J., & Smith, N. (2001). The changing state of gentrification. *Tijdschrift Voor Economische En Sociale Geografie*, 92(4), 464–477. https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-9663.00172
- Haden-Guest, A. (2014, April 10). Are Mid-Size Galleries Disappearing? Artnet News.
 - https://news.artnet.com/market/are-mid-size-galleries-disappearing-and-whos-to-blame-9354
- Hae, L. (2012). The Gentrification of Nightlife and the Right to the City: Regulating Spaces of Social Dancing in New York. Routledge.
- Hains, D. (2014, January 9). *How Property Taxes Work*. Torontoist. https://torontoist.com/2014/01/everything-you-ever-wanted-to-know-about-property-taxes/
- Hains, D. (2015, February 2). *Mapping Where Torontonians Bike and Run*. Torontoist.
 - https://torontoist.com/2015/02/where-torontonians-bike-and-run/
- Hall, H. R., Robinson, C. C., & Kohli, A. (Eds.). (2014). *Uprooting Urban America: Multidisciplinary Perspectives on Race, Class and Gentrification* (1 edition). Peter Lang Inc., International Academic Publishers.
- Hall, P. (2014). Cities of Tomorrow: An Intellectual History of Urban Planning and Design Since 1880 (4 edition). Wiley-Blackwell.
- Halperin, J. (2017, December 15). *The 4 Glass Ceilings: How Women Artists Get Stiffed at Every Stage of Their Careers*. Artnet News. https://news.artnet.com/market/art-market-study-1179317
- Halton Hills Cultural Master Plan. (2013). Peter J. Smith & Company.
 - http://www.haltonhills.ca/initiatives/pdf/masterplans/CMP/HaltonHills_Cultural_Master_Plan_FINAL.pdf

- Hamdouch, A., Nyseth, T., Demaziere, C., Førde, A., Serrano, J., & Aarsæther, N. (Eds.). (2016). *Creative Approaches to Planning and Local Development: Insights from Small and Medium-Sized Towns in Europe*. Routledge Taylor & Francis Group.
- Hamilton, J. (2019, June 1). *Introducing transparency, humanity to Toronto housing market*. Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/opinion/contributors/2019/06/02/introducing-transparency-humanity-to-toronto-housing-market.html
- *Hamilton Music Strategy*. (2015, August 31). City of Hamilton. https://www.hamilton.ca/city-initiatives/strategies-actions/hamilton-music-strategy
- Hamilton Tenant Solidarity Network. (n.d.). Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://www.hamiltontenantssolidarity.ca/
- Hamnett, C., & Whitelegg, D. (2007). Loft Conversion and Gentrification in London: From Industrial to Postindustrial Land Use. *Environment and Planning A*, 39(1), 106–124. https://doi.org/10.1068/a38474
- Hampton, C. (2017, April 22). Ferment and fear at the Hamilton Biennale. *Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2017/04/22/ferment-and-fear-at-the-hamilton-biennale.html
- Hampton, C. (2019, March). *As Toronto's Coffin Factory dies, artists mourn their affordable live-work units* | *The Star.* Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2019/03/31/as-torontos-coffin-factory-dies-artists-mourn-their-affordable-live-work-units.html
- Hancox, D. (2016, January 12). Gentrification X: How an academic argument became the people's protest. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/jan/12/gentrification-argument-protest-backlash-urban-generation-displacement
- Hanhardt, C. B. (2013). *Safe space: Gay neighborhood history and the politics of violence*. Duke University Press,. https://read.dukeupress.edu/books/book/395/Safe-Space-Gay-Neighborhood-History-and-the
- Hannigan, J., & Richards, G. (2017). *The SAGE Handbook of New Urban Studies*. SAGE Publications Inc. https://us.sagepub.com/en-us/nam/the-sage-handbook-of-new-urban-studies/book228284
- Hansen, H. K., & Niedomysl, T. (2009). Migration of the creative class: Evidence from Sweden. *Journal of Economic Geography*, *9*(2), 191–206. https://doi.org/10.1093/jeg/lbn046
- Happé, A. (2010, November 18). Reclaiming Ground for the Arts on Queen West. *Torontoist*. https://torontoist.com/2010/11/reclaiming_ground_for_the_arts_on_queen_west/
- Hard, L. (2018, September 16). 5 Years Ago, Their 5Pointz Art Was Erased. Now There's a Museum for It. *The New York Times*. https://www.nytimes.com/2018/09/16/nyregion/5pointz-street-art-graffiti-museum-nyc.html
- Harrap, C. (2018, March 27). Double trouble? How big cities are gentrifying their neighbours. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/cities/2018/mar/27/double-trouble-how-big-cities-are-gentrifying-their-neighbours
- Harriot, M. (n.d.). *The White People Are Coming! 6 Signs Your Neighborhood Is Being Gentrified.* The Root. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://www.theroot.com/the-white-people-are-coming-6-signs-your-neighborhood-1803819806
- Harris, A. (2012). Art and gentrification: Pursuing the urban pastoral in Hoxton, London: Art and gentrification. *Transactions of the Institute of British Geographers*, 37(2), 226–241. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1475-5661.2011.00465.x
- Harris, B. (2017a). Making Rent in Bed-Stuy: A Memoir of Trying to Make it in New York City. Amistad.
- Harris, B. (2017b, July 20). The Lies We Tell Ourselves About Gentrification. *Literary Hub*. https://lithub.com/the-lies-we-tell-ourselves-about-gentrification/
- Harris, J. (2015, November 5). The Bristol conundrum: "Gentrification is a danger and if you're poor, you're really, really stretched." *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2015/nov/05/bristol-conundrum-gentrification-danger-poor-really-stretched-stokes-croft-george-ferguson
- Harris, J. (2018, February 12). *Profiteers make a killing on Airbnb and erode communities*. The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2018/feb/12/profiteers-killing-airbnb-erode-communities

- Harris, M. (2017, October 10). *London's studio crisis is a new design district the answer?* Digital Arts. https://www.digitalartsonline.co.uk/features/creative-business/londons-studio-crisis-is-new-design-district-answer/
- Harris, R. (2018a, April 4). The gentrification of Hamilton. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/opinion-story/8560108-the-gentrification-of-hamilton/
- Harris, R. (2018b, April 28). Gentrification poses challenges to Hamilton, but none that the city can't address. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/opinion-story/8573179-gentrification-poses-challenges-to-hamilton-but-none-that-the-city-can-t-address/
- Harris, R., Dunn, J., & Wakefield, S. (2014, October 16). *A City on the Cusp: Neighbourhood Change in Hamilton since* 1970. Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership Research Day, Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/documents/2014/10/harris-etal-2014-neighbourhood-change-in-hamilton-since-1970-presentation.pdf
- Harris, R., Dunn, J., & Wakefield, S. (2015). *A City on the Cusp: Neighborhood Change in Hamilton since 1970* (No. 236). Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/documents/2015/04/neighbourhood-change-in-hamilton-since-1970.pdf
- Hartley, S. (2017). *The Fuzzy and the Techie: Why the Liberal Arts Will Rule the Digital World.* Houghton Mifflin Harcourt.
- Hartman, C. (1982). Displacement: How to Fight It. Natl Housing Law Project.
- Harvey, D. (2012a). Rebel Cities. Verso Books.
- Harvey, D. (2012b). The Art of Rent. In *Rebel Cities: From the Right to the City to the Urban Revolution* (pp. 89–115). Verso Books.
- Harvie, J., & Palgrave Theatre E-books York University. (2013). *Fair play: Art, performance and neoliberalism*. Palgrave Macmillan. http://www.library.yorku.ca/e/resolver/id/2597575
- Hassan, Z. (2014). The Social Labs Revolution: A New Approach to Solving our Most Complex Challenges. Berrett-Koehler Publishers.
- Hawkins, H. (2011). Dialogues and Doings: Sketching the Relationships Between Geography and Art: Dialogues and doings. *Geography Compass*, *5*(7), 464–478. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1749-8198.2011.00429.x
- Hayes, David. (2016, December 8). Inside Regent Park: Toronto's test case for public-private gentrification. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/dec/08/inside-regent-park-torontos-test-case-for-public-private-gentrification
- Hayes, Derek. (2009). Historical Atlas of Toronto (Paperback edition). Douglas & McIntyre.
- Hays, R. A. (2018). *Neighborhood Change and Neighborhood Action: The Struggle to Create Neighborhoods that Serve Human Needs.* Lexington Books.
- Hazel, M. (2019, June 28). *Does 'Artwashing' Blur the Line Between Beautification and Gentrification?* Bedford + Bowery. https://bedfordandbowery.com/2019/06/does-artwashing-blur-the-line-between-beautification-and-gentrification/
- Health Effects of Gentrification. (2013, August 21). Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. https://www.cdc.gov/healthyplaces/healthtopics/gentrification.htm
- Hearn Generating Station—Luminato. (n.d.). Retrieved September 30, 2017, from https://luminatofestival.com/The-Hearn
- Heather, R. (2018, September 4). How indie art spaces are surviving gentrification in Toronto. *NOW Magazine*. https://nowtoronto.com/culture/art-and-design/how-art-spaces-survive-gentrification-toronto/
- Heinemann, W., & Hickel, J. (2017). *The Divide: A Brief Guide to Global Inequality and its Solutions*. William Heinemann.
- Helbrecht, I. (Ed.). (2018). *Gentrification and Resistance*. Springer Fachmedien Wiesbaden. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-658-20388-7
- Helguera, P. (2011). *Education for Socially Engaged Art: A Materials and Techniques Handbook*. Lightning Source Inc. https://c4atlanta.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Education-for-Socially-Engaged-Art.pdf
- Heller, N. (2018, July 2). Who really stands to win from universal basic income? *The New Yorker*. https://www.newyorker.com/magazine/2018/07/09/who-really-stands-to-win-from-universal-basic-income

- Helmore, E. (2017, September 5). Detroit redefined: City hires America's first official "chief storyteller." *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/sep/05/detroit-redefined-america-first-official-chief-storyteller
- Hengels, A. (2017, March 20). *How to Fight Gentrification's Real Culprit, Political Privilege*. PanAmPost. https://panampost.com/editor/2017/03/20/political-privilege-and-class-war-in-the-urban-housing-market/
- Henig, J. R., Riehl, C. J., Houston, D. M., Rebell, M. A., & Wolff, J. R. (2016). *Collective Impact and the New Generation of Cross-Sector Collaborations for Education: A Nationwide Scan*. Columbia University, Wallace Foundation. http://www.wallacefoundation.org/knowledge-center/Documents/Collective-Impact-and-the-New-Generation-of-Cross-Sector-Collaboration-for-Education.pdf
- Henley, J. (2016, March 21). The stuff of night mayors: Amsterdam pioneers new way to run cities after dark. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/mar/21/night-mayor-amsterdam-holland-mirik-milan-night-time-commission
- Henning, C. (2018, March 3). Stay or leave: Vancouver's artists face dwindling studio space, insecure housing. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/vancouver-s-artists-face-dwindling-studio-space-1.4557307
- HERE TO STAY: A community forum on gentrification driven displacement in Parkdale. (n.d.). Parkdale Neigbourhood Land Trust. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://www.facebook.com/events/837223806391830/
- Here's how tweets and check-ins can be used to spot early signs of gentrification. (n.d.). https://theconversation.com/heres-how-tweets-and-check-ins-can-be-used-to-spot-early-signs-of-gentrification-57620
- Heritage Conservation Districts in Toronto: Procedures, Policies, and Terms of Reference. (n.d.). Retrieved June 19, 2019, from https://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2012/pg/bgrd/backgroundfile-44992.pdf
- Herman, B., Proksch, G., Berney, R., Dawkins, H., Kovacs, J., Ma, Y., Rich, J., & Tan, A. (2017). Data science for urban equity: Making gentrification an accessible topic for data scientists, policymakers, and the community. *ArXiv:1710.02447* [Cs]. http://arxiv.org/abs/1710.02447
- Hern, C., & January 31, ez · C. A. ·. (2018, January 31). *The little spaces that could: How independent theatre companies are building community.* CBC. http://www.cbc.ca/arts/the-little-spaces-that-could-how-independent-theatre-companies-are-building-community-1.4512080
- Hern, M. (2016). What a City Is For: Remaking the Politics of Displacement (1 edition). The MIT Press. Hicks, A. (2019, January 21). Do Arts Industries Lead to Gentrification? Chicago Policy Review. http://chicagopolicyreview.org/2019/01/21/do-arts-industries-lead-to-gentrification/
- Hijazi, J. (2017, December 28). Who fights for public art in the face of gentrification? PBS NewsHour. https://www.pbs.org/newshour/arts/who-fights-for-public-art-in-the-face-of-gentrification
- Hill, D. (2016, December 18). London gentrification: Cliches and conundrums (and hipsters). *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/uk-news/davehillblog/2016/dec/18/london-gentrification-cliches-and-conundrums-and-hipsters
- Hill, D. (2017, October 28). Regeneration or pushing out the poor? Labour divides in bitter housing battle. *The Observer*. http://www.theguardian.com/society/2017/oct/29/gentrification-pushing-out-the-poor-haringey-council-housing-battle-corbyn-labour
- Hill, K. (2010). Mapping Artists and Cultural Workers in Canada's Large Cities: A study prepared for the City of Vancouver, the City of Calgary, the City of Toronto, the City of Ottawa, and the Ville de Montréal based on 2006 census data. Hill Strategies Research.

 http://wx.toronto.ca/inter/it/newsrel.nsf/a49e435cb54f259e85257aa700574e94/2d941063f1525da285 2576c50074ac1d
- Historic \$17 million affordable housing land trust launched in Toronto. (2019, November 26). GlobeNewswire News Room. http://www.globenewswire.com/news-release/2019/11/26/1952683/0/en/Historic-17-million-affordable-housing-land-trust-launched-in-Toronto.html
- Hodge, G., & Gordon, D. (2013). *Planning Canadian Communities* (6 edition). Nelson College Indigenous. Holeywell, R. (2016, June 6). *You Might Not Know as Much About Gentrification as You Think*. The Urban Edge. http://urbanedge.blogs.rice.edu/2016/06/06/you-might-not-know-as-much-about-gentrification-as-you-think/

- Horak, M. (2010, June 1). *Understanding Neighbourhood Revitalization in Toronto*. "Neighbourhoods" panel at Canadian Political Science Association 2010 Annual Meeting, Montreal. https://www.cpsa-acsp.ca/papers-2010/Horak.pdf
- Hou, J. (Ed.). (2013). Transcultural Cities: Border-Crossing and Placemaking (1 edition). Routledge.
- Housing & Homelessness Action Plan. (2013, December). City of Hamilton. https://www.hamilton.ca/city-initiatives/strategies-actions/housing-homelessness-action-plan
- Housing for All Seattle. (n.d.). Housing for All Seattle. Retrieved October 18, 2017, from https://www.housingforallseattle.org/
- Housing Impact Fees: A New Strategy to Keep Communities Strong. (2016). Philadelphia Coalition for Affordable Communities. http://phillyaffordablecommunities.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/DWD-Report-Insert 0217.pdf
- Housing Now. (2017, November 18). *City of Toronto*. https://www.toronto.ca/community-people/community-partners/affordable-housing-partners/housing-now/
- Housing Now: A New City of Toronto Initiative. (n.d.). Housing Now. Retrieved June 5, 2019, from https://createto.ca/housingnow/
- Housing Opportunities Toronto: An Affordable Housing Action Plan, 2010—2020. (2009). City of Toronto. https://www.toronto.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/94f8-hot_actionplan.pdf
- Housing Roundtable. (n.d.). United Workers. Retrieved October 13, 2017, from http://www.unitedworkers.org/housing
- Housing Toronto's Millennials. (n.d.). Housing Toronto's Millennials. Retrieved August 28, 2019, from https://housingresearchto.com/
- How Do You Build Affordable Housing? (n.d.). Retrieved November 1, 2017, from http://www.wnyc.org/story/how-do-you-build-affordable-housing/
- How Housing Matters. (n.d.). How Housing Matters. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://howhousingmatters.org/about-us/
- How the cost of housing is even impacting Durham's dogs. (n.d.). Herald Sun. Retrieved November 1, 2017, from http://www.heraldsun.com/news/local/counties/durham-county/article181691226.html
- How to be a Less Shitty Gentrifier: A Toolkit for People Hell Bent on Being New Renters in the SF Bay Area. (n.d.). Anti-Eviction Mapping Project. Retrieved May 17, 2018, from https://docs.google.com/document/d/1tSEHuEssmAqRonubM38XWbVjZtcOQHbbjvfWn9yyniM/edit? usp=embed_facebook
- How to Deal with Overtourism, Gentrification, Sharing Economy: Solutions. (2017, September 29). Sustainability Leaders Project. http://sustainability-leaders.com/how-deal-with-overtourism-gentrification-sharing-economy/
- How to Do Creative Placemaking. (2017). National Endowment for the Arts.
 - https://www.arts.gov/news/2016/how-do-creative-placemaking
- How to Leverage Real Estate as a Social Impact Organization. (2019, December 2). Future of Good. https://futureofgood.co/how-to-leverage-real-estate-as-a-social-impact-organization/
- Howard, T. (2017, October 9). Gentrifier is a positive step forward in the gentrification debate. *Chicago Reader*. https://www.chicagoreader.com/chicago/gentrifier-book-gentrification-john-joe-schlichtman/Content?oid=31883005
- Howell, M. (n.d.). Vancouver adopts living wage of \$20.62. *Vancouver Courier*. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://www.vancourier.com/news/vancouver-adopts-living-wage-of-20-62-1.20492502
- Howells, L. (2019, March 29). *Another art gallery leaves James St. North-closing Saturday after rent soars* [News]. CBC. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/another-art-gallery-leaves-james-st-north-closing-saturday-after-rent-soars-1.5075211
- Huante, A., & Miranda, K. (2019, February 6). What's at Stake in Contemporary Anti-Gentrification Movements? Society & Space. http://societyandspace.org/2019/02/06/whats-at-stake-in-contemporary-anti-gentrification/
- Hubbard, P. (n.d.). Whose high street? Class and disgust in visions of town centre regeneration. Retrieved October 6, 2017, from

- http://www.academia.edu/7799558/Whose_high_street_Class_and_disgust_in_visions_of_town_centre_regeneration
- Hubbard, P. (2017). *The Battle for the High Street: Retail Gentrification, Class and Disgust* (1st ed. 2017 edition). Palgrave Macmillan.
- Hudson Valley Pattern for Progress. (2016). *Beyond Gentrification: Finding a Balance*. Hudson Valley Pattern for Progress. http://www.pattern-for-progress.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/04/2016-housing-report-Gentrification-Finding-a-Balance.pdf
- *HUDUser.gov.* (n.d.). U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office of Policy Development and Research. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://www.huduser.gov/portal/home.html
- Hughes, D. (2012). I'm Just Saying... It Looks Like Ethnic Cleansing. Dph Book Publishing.
- Hughes, J. (2015). Early Intervention: How Canada's social programs can work better, save lives, and often save money. Lorimer.
- Hulchanski, J. D. (1995). The concept of housing affordability: Six contemporary uses of the housing expenditure-to-income ratio. *Housing Studies*, *10*(4), 471–491.
- Hulchanski, J. D. (2010). *The Three Cities Within Toronto: Income Polarization Among Toronto's Neighbourhoods,* 1970-2005. Cities Centre, University of Toronto. http://3cities.neighbourhoodchange.ca/
- Hume, C. (2008, November 20). Urban revival balances past and present. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2008/11/20/urban revival balances past and present.html
- Hume, C. (2012, September 17). Hume: New cultural centre breathes life and colour into Regent Park. *The Toronto Star.*
 - https://www.thestar.com/qa/news/gta/2012/09/17/hume_new_cultural_centre_breathes_life_and_colour_into_regent_park.html
- Hume, C. (2015, April 3). Condo culture doesn't have to be an oxymoron: Hume. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/life/2015/04/03/condo-culture-doesnt-have-to-be-an-oxymoron-hume.html
- Hunt, S. (2017, March 21). How Parkdale is surviving gentrification. 680 NEWS.
 - http://www.680news.com/2017/03/21/parkdale-surviving-gentrification/
- Hunter-Young, N. (2018, July 12). *Making Future Artifacts in Gentrifying Times*. Gardiner Museum.
 - https://www.gardinermuseum.on.ca/making-future-artifacts-gentrifying-times/
- Huston, S. (Ed.). (2017). Smart Urban Regeneration: Visions, Institutions and Mechanisms for Real Estate (1 edition). Routledge. https://www.routledge.com/Smart-Urban-Regeneration-Visions-Institutions-and-Mechanisms-for-Real/Huston/p/book/9781138935280
- Hutton, T. A., Catungal, J. P., Leslie, D., & Hii, Y. (2009). Geographies of Displacement in the Creative City: The Case of Liberty Village, Toronto. *Urban Studies*, *46*(5–6), 1095–1114. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098009103856
- Huws, U. (2014). *Labor in the Global Digital Economy: The Cybertariat Comes of Age*. Monthly Review Press. Hwang, J. (2015, October 21). Immigration is an important dimension in how we understand gentrification across US cities. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2015/10/21/immigration-is-an-important-dimension-in-how-we-understand-gentrification-across-us-cities/
- Hwang, J. (2016a). Pioneers of Gentrification: Transformation in Global Neighborhoods in Urban America in the Late Twentieth Century. *Demography*, *53*(1), 189–213. https://doi.org/10.1007/s13524-015-0448-4
- Hwang, J. (2016b). What have we learned about the causes of recent gentrification? Working Paper No 16-20, 23. https://www.philadelphiafed.org/-/media/research-and-data/publications/working-papers/2016/wp16-20.pdf?la=en
- Hwang, J., & Sampson, R. (2014, July 9). Google Street View shows that gentrification in Chicago has largely bypassed poor minority neighborhoods, reinforcing urban inequality. *USAPP*.
 http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2014/07/09/google-street-view-shows-that-gentrification-in-chicago-has-largely-bypassed-poor-minority-neighborhoods-reinforcing-urban-inequality/
- Hyckie, M. (2017, November 1). *Lessons in affordable housing from wartime suburbia*. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/c55f31f6-bf2d-11e7-9127-121bebc5777e/
- Hyde, Z. (2016, October 5). Vancouver Mural Festival is caught up in gentrification. *The Mainlander*. http://themainlander.com/2016/10/05/vancouver-mural-festival-is-caught-up-in-gentrification/

- Hyde, Z. (2018, May 15). *Foodies Gentrify Vancouver's Downtown Eastside*. The Tyee. https://thetyee.ca/Opinion/2018/05/15/Foodies-Gentrify-Downtown-Eastside
- Hyde, Z. (2014). Omnivorous Gentrification: Restaurant Reviews and Neighborhood Change in the Downtown Eastside of Vancouver. *City & Community*, *13*(4), 341–359. https://doi.org/10.1111/cico.12088
- Hymowitz, K. S. (2017, October 10). Destroying the Neighborhood to Save It. *City Journal*. https://www.city-journal.org/html/destroying-neighborhood-15485.html

- *ILO Meeting of Experts makes progress on precarious work.* (2015, March 28). International Arts and Entertainment Alliance. https://www.iaea-globalunion.org/http://www.iaea-globalunion.org/ilo-meeting-experts-makes-progress-precarious-work
- Ilyniak, S. (2017). Non-profiting for "a more inclusive creative city:" Tracking the gentrification frontier from Toronto's downtown to the disinvested inner-suburbs [York University]. https://fes.yorku.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/outstanding_papers_llyniak_S_MP.pdf
- I'm the Last Man Standing in My Rent-Controlled Apartment Building. (n.d.). Architectural Digest. Retrieved October 6, 2017, from https://www.architecturaldigest.com/story/im-the-last-man-standing-in-my-rent-controlled-apartment-building
- IN RESPONSE Vancouver Mural Festival: The Present Is A Gift For Developers. (n.d.). https://www.citr.ca/discorder/september-2017/vancouver-mural-festival-the-present-is-a-gift-for-developers/
- Inclusionary Zoning—Securing Affordable Housing in Toronto. (2018, December 3). *City of Toronto*. https://www.toronto.ca/city-government/council/2018-council-issue-notes/torontos-housing/inclusionary-zoning-securing-affordable-housing-in-toronto/
- Indianapolis Gentrification Maps and Data. (n.d.). Governing the States and Localities. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.governing.com/gov-data/indianapolis-gentrification-maps-demographic-data.html
- *Indianapolis Revitalizing Neighborhoods Through Arts & Culture.* (2017, August 9). Meeting of the Minds.
- http://meetingoftheminds.org/indianapolis-revitalizing-neighborhoods-arts-culture-22244 Inequality is already transforming neighbourhoods in Canada's biggest cities. (2016, July 12). *PressProgress*.
- https://pressprogress.ca/inequality_is_already_transforming_neighbourhoods_in_canada_biggest_cities/
- Inquiry into the Civic Role of Arts Organizations: Case Study of Art Hives by the Calouste Gulbenkian Foundation (UK). (2018, July 7). Art Hives. http://arthives.org/blog/inquiry-civic-role-arts-organizations-case-study-arthives-calouste-gulbenkian-foundation-uk
- *Inspire St. Catherines: Cultural Plan 2020.* (2015). City of St. Catharines, Lord Cultural Resources.
 - https://www.stcatharines.ca/en/governin/resources/CulturePlan2020-Final.pdf
- Inspire Thunder Bay Culture Plan. (2011). Office for Urbanism, AuthentiCity.
 - http://www.thunderbay.ca/Assets/Living/Culture/Culture+Plan/Culture+Plan+--+Final.pdf
- Institute of Urban Dreaming Research. (n.d.). Retrieved November 11, 2017, from https://iudblog.org/
- Interactive: Change in Housing Units, 2011-2016. (n.d.). MapTO. Retrieved July 5, 2019, from
 - http://www.mapto.ca/maps/2017/4/17/interactive-change-in-housing-at-the-block-level-in-the-gta-2011-2016
- Interactive map: Portland neighborhoods at risk of gentrification. (n.d.). The Oregonian. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://projects.oregonlive.com/maps/gentrification/

- Interboro, Armborst, T., D'Oca, D., & Theodore, G. (2017). *The Arsenal of Exclusion & Inclusion* (Fol Har/Ma edition). Actar. http://actar.com/the-arsenal-of-exclusioninclusion/
- InterRent's Mass Displacement Strategy. (2018, August 11). *Hamilton Tenants Solidarity Network*. https://www.hamiltontenantssolidarity.ca/feed/interrent-s-mass-displacement-strategy
- Is there a place for micro apartments and micro hotels in a country notorious for macro tastes? (n.d.). https://www.marketwatch.com/story/are-americans-ready-to-live-this-small-2016-04-07
- IUD, I. C. of. (2016, December 17). Conference Recordings Art Practices & The Housing Crisis. *Institute of Urban Dreaming*. https://iudblog.org/2016/12/17/conference-recordings-art-practices-the-housing-crisis/
- Ivanova, I., Reaño, P., & Klein, S. (2017). Working for a Living Wage: Making Paid Work Meet Basic Family Needs in Metro Vancouver. Canadian Centre for Policy Alternatives. http://policyalternatives.ca/livingwage2017

Jackson, A. (2016, October 4). GenNext group tackles gentrification. KitchenerPost.Ca.

https://www.kitchenerpost.ca/news-story/6894190-gennext-group-tackles-gentrification/

Jackson, S. (2011). Social Works: Performing Art, Supporting Publics (1 edition). Routledge.

Jackson, T. (2017, August 15). The future of jobs: Is decent work for all a pipe dream? The Guardian.

http://www.theguardian.com/global-development-professionals-network/2017/aug/15/the-future-of-jobs-is-decent-work-for-all-a-pipe-dream

Jacobs, J. (1970). The Economy of Cities. Vintage.

Jacobs, J. (1985). Cities and the Wealth of Nations: Principles of Economic Life (1st Vintage Books ed edition). Vintage.

Jacobs, J. (1992). The Death and Life of Great American Cities (1REV edition). Vintage.

Jacobs, J. (2005). Dark Age Ahead. Vintage Canada.

Jacobs, J. (2010). The Nature of Economies. Vintage Canada.

Jacobs, J. (2016a). Jane Jacobs: The Last Interview: and Other Conversations. Melville House.

Jacobs, J. (2016b). Vital Little Plans: The Short Works of Jane Jacobs (S. Zipp & N. Storring, Eds.). Random House Canada.

Jacobs, K. (2017, October 16). The High Line Network Tackles Gentrification. Architect.

http://www.architectmagazine.com/Design/the-high-line-network-tackles-gentrification o

Jacobs, M., & Mazzucato, M. (Eds.). (2016). *Rethinking Capitalism: Economics and Policy for Sustainable and Inclusive Growth* (1 edition). Wiley-Blackwell.

Jaeger, A. (2016, October 4). *Downtown Revitalization: A Failure of Imagination*. Electric City Magazine. http://www.electriccitymagazine.ca/2016/10/downtown-revitalization/

Jaeger, A. (2017, May 2). A Space for Us. Electric City Magazine. http://www.electriccitymagazine.ca/2017/05/a-space-for-us/

James, R. K. (2015). Urban Redevelopment and Displacement from Regent Park to El Cartucho. *Canadian Theatre Review*, 161, 17–21. https://doi.org/10.3138/ctr.161.003

Janes, J., Canadian Electronic Library (Firm), Canadian Electronic Library - York University, & University of Toronto: Institute for Life Course and Aging, (2008). *Mapping aging in place in a changing neighbourhood*. Canadian Electronic Library.

http://ezproxy.library.yorku.ca/login?url=http://books.scholarsportal.info/viewdoc.html?id=/ebooks/ebooks/gibson_cppc/2014-02-25/1/10812960

- Japantown: Cultural Heritage and Economic Sustainability Strategy. (n.d.). Retrieved June 19, 2019, from http://default.sfplanning.org/plans-and-programs/in-your-neighborhood/japantown/JCHESS_FINAL_WEB2.pdf
- Jarrid Green, & Thomas M. Hanna. (n.d.). *Community Control of Land & Housing*. The Democracy Collaborative. Retrieved July 17, 2019, from https://democracycollaborative.org/sites/clone.community-wealth.org/files/downloads/CommunityControlLandHousing.pdf
- Jarvis, S. (Ed.). (2019). *Urban Art Forum: Including Culture in Development A step-by-step guide (WITHOUT CASE STUDIES)*. Urban Land Institute.
 - https://issuu.com/urbanlandmagazine/docs/uli_including_culture_in_development_guide/1
- Javed, N. (2009, December 17). Regent Park gets millions for arts centre. *The Toronto Star*.
 - https://www.thestar.com/qa/news/gta/2009/12/17/regent_park_gets_millions_for_arts_centre.html
- Javed, N. (2014, December 4). Are we a divided city? Experts weigh in. *The Toronto Star.*
 - https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/04/are_we_a_divided_city_experts_weigh_in.html
- Jeffri, J. (1982). Making Money: Real Estate Strategies for the Arts. *Journal of Arts Management and Law, 12*(3), 32–50. https://doi.org/10.1080/07335113.1982.9942056
- Johar, I. (2017, December 1). *Re-Making Urban Renewal*. Dark Matter Laboratories. https://provocations.darkmatterlabs.org/re-making-urban-renewal-54adcba8d8dd?lipi=urn%3Ali%3Apage%3Ad_flagship3_feed%3BQ85cpicDT9eO2YtKTZvX7Q%3D%3
- John, B. (2017, August 1). How many streams does a band need just to earn minimum wage? *Tone Deaf*. http://tonedeaf.com.au/how-many-streams-does-a-band-need-just-to-earn-minimum-wage/
- Johnson, J. (2019). The Tracking Toolbox: A Resource for Understanding Your City's Development Process and Making it Work Bette for Workers Neighbourhoods and Communities. (p. 37). The Partnership for Working Families. https://www.forworkingfamilies.org/resources/publications/tracking-toolbox
- Johnson, L., & Johnson, R. (2017). Regent Park Redux: Reinventing Public Housing in Canada (1 edition). Routledge. Jones, Alasdair. (2016). Orchestrated public space: The curatorial dimensions of the transformation of London's Southbank Centre. In S. Golchehr, R. Ainley, A. Friend, K. Johns, & K. Raczynska (Eds.), Mediations: Art & Design Agency and participation in public space, conference proceedings (pp. 244–257). Royal College of Art. https://www.rca.ac.uk/
- Jones, Alexandra. (2019, April 2). Poverty activists plan free protest meal opposite luxury pop-up restaurant under the Gardiner. *Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2019/04/02/poverty-activists-plan-free-protest-meal-opposite-luxury-pop-up-restaurant-under-the-gardiner.html
- Jones, C. (2014, November 14). Should the minimum wage apply to the arts? *Chicago Tribune*. http://www.chicagotribune.com/entertainment/theater/ct-minimum-wage-arts-2014-column.html
- Jones, C. E., & Ley, D. (2016). Transit-oriented development and gentrification along Metro Vancouver's low-income SkyTrain corridor: Transit-oriented development. *The Canadian Geographer / Le Géographe Canadien*, 60(1), 9–22. https://doi.org/10.1111/cag.12256
- Jones, J. (2016, July 18). Artwashing: The new watchword for anti-gentrification protesters. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/artanddesign/jonathanjonesblog/2016/jul/18/artwashing-new-watchword-for-anti-gentrification-protesters
- Jones, M. (2017, September 22). 3 signs that gentrification is coming to your neighborhood. *Salon*. https://www.salon.com/2017/09/22/3-signs-that-gentrification-is-coming-to-your-neighborhood_partner/
- Jones, S. (2014, May 19). By paying artists nothing, we risk severing the pipeline of UK talent. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/culture-professionals-network/culture-professionals-blog/2014/may/19/paying-artists-nothing-uk-talent
- Jones, S. (2015, January 12). Artists' low income and status are international issues. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/culture-professionals-network/2015/jan/12/artists-low-income-international-issues
- Jones, S. (2016a, February 5). How should we support creativity? *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/culture-professionals-network/2016/feb/05/how-should-we-support-creativity-susan-jones

- Jones, S. (2016b, May 6). Creating positive action to support unrecognised female artists. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/culture-professionals-network/2016/may/06/create-positive-action-support-unrecognised-female-artists
- Jones, T., & Woodley, S. (2017, August 9). How can cities make space for culture? *World Cities Culture Forum: News.* http://www.worldcitiescultureforum.com/news/how-can-cities-make-space-for-culture
- Joseph-Lester, J. (2016, February 18). *Representing the City: Can Art Projects Re-figure and Challenge Urban Futures?*Oxford City Debates, Oxford, UK. http://www.oxfordcitydebates.com/programme.html
- JPMorgan Chase Launches \$125 Million, Five-Year Initiative to Combat Neighborhood Disinvestment. (n.d.). *PolicyLink*. Retrieved October 28, 2019, from https://www.policylink.org/blog/pro-neighborhoods
- Juhnke, S. (2015). *The allure of diversity, creativity and space: Gentrification and multiculture in London and Berlin.*University of Manchester. http://www.rc21.org/en/wp-content/uploads/2014/12/E9-Juhnke.pdf
- Justin, M. (2016). Art Museums and Their Connection to Neighborhood Change: A Case Study of the Portland Art Museum in Oregon [University of Michigan]. https://deepblue.lib.umich.edu/handle/2027.42/120668

K

- Kaemmerling, A. (2016). *Walking the Gentrifying Streetscape: Artistic Practice in San Francisco's Mission District* (2006-2016) [Ohio University].
 - https://etd.ohiolink.edu/pg_10?0::NO:10:P10_ACCESSION_NUM:ohiou1466446720
- Kahne, J. (2015, November 3). Does Placemaking Cause Gentrification? It's Complicated. *Project for Public Spaces*. https://www.pps.org/blog/gentrification/
- Kale, S. (2017, September 26). Why millennials are moving to Lisbon. *The Independent*. http://www.independent.co.uk/travel/europe/lisbon-emigration-tourism-millennials-freelancers-digital-nomad-portugal-airbnb-a7967376.html
- Kalinowski, T. (2016, September 3). Hamilton is having its moment: But the days of a cheap, two-storey Victorian may be gone. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/2016/09/03/hamilton-is-having-its-moment.html
- Kalinowski, T. (2017a, November 1). How Toronto's housing costs are hampering the city's ability to attract talent. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/real_estate/2017/11/01/how-torontos-housing-costs-are-hampering-the-citys-ability-to-attract-talent.html
- Kalinowski, T. (2017b, November 8). Make Toronto housing denser, say young professionals. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/real_estate/2017/11/08/make-toronto-housing-denser-say-young-professionals.html
- Kalinowski, T. (2017c, November 22). Housing plan won't help middle class, experts say. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/11/22/housing-plan-wont-help-middle-class-experts-say.html
- Kalinowski, T. (2017d, December 22). The great real-estate data debate. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/2017/12/14/the-great-real-estate-data-debate.html
- Kalinowski, T. (2019a, February 17). Five outside-the-box housing ideas that Toronto should try, according to report. Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2019/02/17/five-outside-the-box-housing-ideas-that-toronto-should-try-according-to-report.html
- Kalinowski, T. (2019b, April 27). Landlord fined a second time over eviction of 795 College St. Tenants. *Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2019/05/27/landlord-fined-a-second-time-over-eviction-of-795-college-st-tenants.html

- Kalinowski, T. (2019c, August 26). Short-term rental rules won't solve housing crisis but they will help, city planner tells tribunal. *The Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2019/08/26/short-term-rental-rules-wont-solve-housing-crisis-but-they-will-help-city-planner-tells-tribunal.html
- Kaminer, M. (2019, July 5). In Toronto, an Industrial Stretch Has Its Breakout Moment. *The New York Times*. https://www.nytimes.com/2019/07/05/travel/sterling-road-toronto-museum-of-contemporary-art.html
- Kana, K. (2012). An experiment in urban regeneration using culture and art in Senba, Osaka's historic urban center, with a focus on the regeneration of urban space. *City, Culture and Society, 3*(2), 151–163. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ccs.2012.06.006
- Kane, L. (2017, December 17). "We see suicidal seniors": B.C. housing crisis forcing elderly into the streets. CTV News. https://www.ctvnews.ca/canada/we-see-suicidal-seniors-b-c-housing-crisis-forcing-elderly-into-the-streets-1.3725052
- Karacostas, C. (2017, October 4). University faculty to conduct city-wide gentrification study. *The Daily Texan*. http://www.dailytexanonline.com/2017/10/04/university-faculty-to-conduct-city-wide-gentrification-study
- Kasparov, G., & Greengard, M. (2017). *Deep Thinking: Where Machine Intelligence Ends and Human Creativity Begins* (1 edition). PublicAffairs.
- Katsarov, C. (2017, December 20). Toronto arts hub fights for right to occupy condo space. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/toronto-arts-hub-fights-for-right-to-occupy-condo-space/article37391532/
- Kaysen, R. (2014, August 30). Fined for Using Airbnb; Scheduling Open Houses. *The New York Times*. https://www.nytimes.com/2014/08/31/realestate/fined-for-using-airbnb-scheduling-open-houses.html
- Kaysen, R. (2016, December 2). Artists and Their Muse: Gentrification. *The New York Times*. https://www.nytimes.com/2016/12/02/realestate/artists-and-their-muse-gentrification.html
- Kayyali, D. (2016, August 23). *Big data and hidden cameras are emerging as dangerous weapons in the gentrification wars*. Quartz. https://qz.com/763900/surveillance-and-gentrification/
- Kayzar, B. (2016). Ephemeral Conciliation: Community-Based Art and Redevelopment. *Yearbook of the Association of Pacific Coast Geographers*, 78(1), 28–46. https://doi.org/10.1353/pcg.2016.0003
- Keatinge, B. (2016, May 3). How gentrifiers are fighting to reshape working class neighborhoods in their own image. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2016/05/03/how-gentrifiers-are-fighting-to-reshape-working-class-neighborhoods-in-their-own-image/
- Keatinge, B., & Martin, D. G. (2016). A 'Bedford Falls' kind of place: Neighbourhood branding and commercial revitalisation in processes of gentrification in Toronto, Ontario. *Urban Studies*, *53*(5), 867–883. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098015569681
- Keenan, E. (n.d.). Section 37—What it is, and why everybody's fighting about it: Keenan. *The Star.* Retrieved June 14, 2019, from https://www.thestar.com/amp/news/gta/2015/01/16/section-37-what-it-is-and-why-everybodys-fighting-about-it-keenan.html
- Keesmaat, J. (2017, December 13). *Jennifer Keesmaat: It's time to rethink Canada's housing system*. Maclean's. http://www.macleans.ca/opinion/jennifer-keesmaat-its-time-to-rethink-canadas-housing-system/amp/
- Keil, R. (2017). Suburban Planet: Making the World Urban from the Outside In. Polity.
- Kelly, K. (2017). *The Inevitable: Understanding the 12 Technological Forces That Will Shape Our Future* (Reprint edition). Penguin Books.
- Kelly, M. (2012). Owning Our Future: The Emerging Ownership Revolution (1 edition). Berrett-Koehler Publishers. Kelly, M., & McKinley, S. (2015). 7 Paths to Development That Bring Neighborhoods Wealth, Not Gentrification. YES! Magazine. http://www.yesmagazine.org/new-economy/7-paths-to-development-that-bring-neighborhoods-wealth-not-gentrification-20151111
- Kennedy, A. (2020, January 2). *Time for Toronto to decide whether it wants to keep its artists*. The star.Com. https://www.thestar.com/opinion/contributors/2020/01/02/time-for-toronto-to-decide-whether-it-wants-to-keep-its-artists.html

- Kennedy, M., & Leonard, P. (2001). *Dealing with Neighbourhood Change: A Primer on Gentrification and Policy Choices.* Brooking Institution Center on Urban and Metropolitan Policy and PolicyLink. https://www.brookings.edu/wp-content/uploads/2016/06/gentrification.pdf
- Kenney, A. (2018, February 20). *Forget "areas of stability." Denver is changing how it talks about growth.* Denverite. https://www.denverite.com/denver-tries-reset-city-planning-conversation-new-blueprint-48891/
- Kensington Market tenants reeling over rent hikes up to 50%. (2016, August 9). Metro News. http://www.metronews.ca/news/toronto/2016/08/09/kensington-market-tenants-reeling-over-rent-hikes.html
- Kent, E. (2017, September 6). Placemaking Week 2017: Building a Global Agenda for Open Cities Through Place-Led Development. *Project for Public Spaces*. https://www.pps.org/blog/placemaking-week-2017-building-global-agenda-open-cities/
- Kershaw, P. (2017, March 9). Pushing Back on Skyrocketing Housing Prices in Toronto. *Torontoist*. https://torontoist.com/2017/03/pushing-back-skyrocketing-housing-prices-toronto/
- Keung, N. (2017, October 4). Ryerson study highlights severe lack of visible minorities on corporate boards. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/immigration/2017/10/04/ryerson-study-highlights-severe-lack-of-visible-minorities-on-corporate-boards.html
- Khafagy, A. (2017, September 28). Gentrification on Steroids—Amazon is Coming to a City Near You. *The Indypendent*. https://indypendent.org/2017/09/gentrification-on-steroids-amazon-is-coming-to-a-city-near-you/
- Khandaker, T. (2015, April 24). Ryerson Bridging Divides event builds on Star series. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2015/04/24/ryerson-bridging-divides-event-builds-on-star-series.html
- King, R. L. (2016, September 13). The hidden pockets in Toronto where gentrification is really happening. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2016/09/13/the-hidden-pockets-in-toronto-where-gentrification-is-really-happening.html
- King, T. (2013). *The Inconvenient Indian: A Curious Account of Native People in North America*. Anchor Canada. https://www.penguinrandomhouse.ca/books/93028/the-inconvenient-indian-by-thomas-king/9780385664226
- Kingston Culture Plan. (2010). City of Kingston.
 - https://www.creativecity.ca/database/files/library/KingstonCulturePlan 2010.pdf
- Kinniburgh, C. (2017, August 9). How to Stop Gentrification. *The New Republic*. https://newrepublic.com/article/144260/stop-gentrification
- Kirschbaum, E. (n.d.). *Gentrification is changing Berlin. Officials are banning rent hikes for 5 years.* Latimes.Com. Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://www.latimes.com/world/europe/la-fg-germany-berlin-rent-increases-outlawed-20190620-story.html
- Kitchin, R. (2014). *The Data Revolution: Big Data, Open Data, Data Infrastructures and Their Consequences* (1 edition). SAGE Publications Ltd. https://uk.sagepub.com/en-gb/eur/the-data-revolution/book242780
- Klein, G., & Vega-Barachowitz, D. (2015). *Start-Up City: Inspiring Private and Public Entrepreneurship, Getting Projects Done, and Having Fun.* Island Press.
- Klein, M. (2017, March 1). Coffee and Gentrification. *The McGill International Review*. http://mironline.ca/coffee-and-gentrification/
- Klingbeil, C. (2017, October 31). Toronto eyes new tax class that could spell relief for small businesses. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/report-on-business/small-business/sb-managing/toronto-eyes-new-tax-class-that-could-spell-relief-for-small-businesses/article36777477/
- Kluge, A., Negt, O., & Hansen, M. (2016). *Public Sphere and Experience: Analysis of the Bourgeois and Proletarian Public Sphere* (Reprint edition). Verso.
- Knauf, A. S. (2016, September 7). *Two Artists Are Giving Out "Gentrification Citations" To Local Businesses, Including Uncle Ike's*. The Stranger. http://www.thestranger.com/slog/2016/09/07/24540129/two-artists-are-giving-out-gentrification-citations-to-local-businesses-including-uncle-ikes
- Knecht, L. (2018, March 21). When Artists and Tenants Join Forces in the Fight for Affordable Housing. D Magazine. https://www.dmagazine.com/arts-entertainment/2018/03/when-artists-and-tenants-join-forces/

- Kochan, T. A., & Dyer, L. (2017). Shaping the Future of Work: A Handbook for Action and a New Social Contract.
 MITxPress.
- Kochel, J. (2016). Small, medium and national: Capital art cultures. Art Monthly Australia, 294, 16.
- Kolson Hurley, A. (2016, January 18). Will U.S. Cities Design Their Way Out of the Affordable Housing Crisis? *Next City*. https://nextcity.org/features/view/cities-affordable-housing-design-solution-missing-middle
- Kopun, F. (2014, December 15). Cross-city tour reveals what divides and unites Toronto's neighbourhoods. *The Toronto Star*.
 - https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/15/crosscity_tour_reveals_what_divides_and_unites_torontos_neighbourhoods.html
- Kostov, A. B. (n.d.). *Street Art As the Omen of Gentrification*. Retrieved February 28, 2018, from https://openwallsgallery.com/street-art-gentrification/, https://openwallsgallery.com/street-art-gentrification/
- Kosut, M. (2016, September 13). We Are the Scene: Alternative Art Economies in Bushwick. *Metropolitics*. http://www.metropolitiques.eu/We-Are-the-Scene-Alternative-Art.html
- Kovach, J. (2018, December 28). Evans Contemporary gallery closing in downtown Peterborough. *The Peterborough Examiner*. https://www.thepeterboroughexaminer.com/news-story/9102651-evans-contemporary-gallery-closing-in-downtown-peterborough/
- Kozey, K. N. (2015). *Collective Efficacy, Threat, and Urban Change: Examining Social Control Forces in Areas of Gentrification*. https://doi.org/10.13016/M20S5G
- Kramer, A. (2019). Inside and Outside: A Meditation on the Yellowbelt. In *House Divided: How the Missing Middle can Solve Toronto's Affordability Crisis* (pp. 142–153). Coach House Books.
- Kramer, M. (2014, August 7). The Hamilton Arts Community is Changing Neighbourhood Planning. *Cities For People*. http://www.citiesforpeople.ca/en/story/the-hamilton-arts-community-is-changing-neighbourhood-planning
- Krase, J. (2012). Seeing cities change: Local culture and class. Ashgate.
- Kretzmann, J. P. (2006). Building Communities from the Inside Out: A Path Toward Finding and Mobilizing a Community's Assets. Acta Pubns.
- Kroth, M. (n.d.). *Victims of Gentrification, Meet Your Patron Saint*. CityLab. Retrieved October 3, 2017, from https://www.citylab.com/life/2017/10/mexico-city-santa-mari-la-juaricua/540855/
- Kroth, M. (2017, October 2). *Santa Mari La Juaricua, Patron Saint of Anti-Gentrification*. CityLab. https://www.citylab.com/life/2017/10/mexico-city-santa-mari-la-juaricua/540855/
- Kuka, A. (2017). Community Land Trusts: A Help or Hindrance to Community Development in the United States (No. 27). Stevenson Center for Community and Economic Development, Illinois State University. http://ir.library.illinoisstate.edu/scced/27
- Kukoski, M. A. (2017, September 20). The affordable housing crisis—A form of white supremacy. *The Cavalier Daily, University of Virginia*. http://www.cavalierdaily.com/article/2017/09/kukoski-the-affordable-housing-crisis-a-form-of-white-supremacy
- Kunsthalle Lissabon, Decrying Gentrification, Marks 10th Anniversary by Closing for a Year. (2019, February 22). E-Flux Conversations Frontpage. https://conversations.e-flux.com/t/kunsthalle-lissabon-decrying-gentrification-marks-10th-anniversary-by-closing-for-a-year/8819
- Kurth, J. (2019, June 18). *Thanks for making Detroit cool, artists. Here's your eviction*. https://www.bridgemi.com/detroit/thanks-making-detroit-cool-artists-heres-your-eviction
- Kurucz, J. (n.d.). *Vancouver artists stage protest, art show as tribute to disappearing gallery space*. Vancouver Courier. Retrieved July 11, 2019, from https://www.vancourier.com/news/vancouver-artists-stage-protest-art-show-as-tribute-to-disappearing-gallery-space-1.23632818
- Kwon, Y., Joo, S., Han, S., & Park, C. (2017). Mapping the Distribution Pattern of Gentrification near Urban Parks in the Case of Gyeongui Line Forest Park, Seoul, Korea. *Sustainability*, *9*(2), 231. https://doi.org/10.3390/su9020231

- La Grange, A., & Pretorius, F. (2014). State-led gentrification in Hong Kong. *Urban Studies*, *53*(3), 506–523. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098013513645
- L.A. Mayor's Affordable Housing Tool Put on Hold. (n.d.). Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/los-angeles-mayors-affordable-housing-tool-put-on-hold
- Ladendorf, T. (2016, January 26). The Group of Artists That's Winning Fair Pay By Targeting Nonprofits. *In These Times*. http://inthesetimes.com/article/18764/wages-for-arts-sake
- Lagendijk, A., van Melik, R., de Haan, F., Ernste, H., Ploegmakers, H., & Kayasu, S. (2014). Comparative Approaches to Gentrification: A Research Framework: Comparative Approaches to Gentrification: A Research Framework. *Tijdschrift Voor Economische En Sociale Geografie*, *105*(3), 358–365. https://doi.org/10.1111/tesg.12091
- Lalande, L. (2015, November 25). We Need to Talk About Decent Work. ONN. http://theonn.ca/need-talk-decent-work/
- Land Trusts: Local community solutions. (2016, July 13). The Ontario Association of Landscape Architects. https://oala.ca/ground_issue/ground-34-question/land-trusts-local-community-solutions/
- Lanescape: Toronto Laneway Housing Building Initiative. (n.d.). Lanescape. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://lanescape.ca/
- Laneway Suites. (n.d.). Evergreen. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from https://www.evergreen.ca/our-projects/laneway-suites/
- Laneway Suites: A new housing typology for Toronto. (2017). Lanescape and Evergreen. http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2017/te/bgrd/backgroundfile-104581.pdf
- Lange, A. (2012). Writing About Architecture: Mastering the Language of Buildings and Cities. Princeton Architectural Press. https://books.google.ca/books/about/Writing_About_Architecture.html
- Langegger, S. (2015). Right-of-way gentrification: Conflict, commodification and cosmopolitanism. *Urban Studies*, 53(9), 1803–1821. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098015583783
- Langegger, S. (2016). *Rights to Public Space: Law, Culture, and Gentrification in the American West* (1st ed. 2017 edition). Palgrave Macmillan.
- Larsen, S. M. (2011). Public Housing: Background and Issues (UK ed. edition). Nova Science Pub Inc.
- Larson, S. R., Dearing, J. W., & Backer, T. E. (2017). *Strategies to Scale Up Social Programs*. Diffusion Associates. http://www.wallacefoundation.org/knowledge-center/Pages/how-to-scale-up-social-programs-that-work.aspx
- Larsson, N. (2017, July 6). The final bar? How gentrification threatens America's music cities. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/jul/06/gentrification-america-music-cities-austin-nashvillenew-orleans
- Lathrop, D., & Ruma, L. (2010). *Open Government: Collaboration, Transparency, and Participation in Practice* (1 edition). O'Reilly Media.
- Latifi, F. (2017, October 4). Tempe neighborhood struggles to hold onto its identity, resist gentrification. *The State Press.* http://www.statepress.com/article/2017/10/sppolitics-tempe-neighborhood-struggles-to-hold-onto-its-identity-resist-gentrification
- Lauster, N. (2016). The Death and Life of the Single-Family House: Lessons from Vancouver on Building a Livable City (1 edition). Temple University Press.
- Lauster, N. (2018, June 13). How to Become a Resort City. *Home: Free Sociology!* https://homefreesociology.com/2018/06/13/how-to-become-a-resort-city/
- Lavanga, M. (2013). Artists in Urban Regeneration Processes: Use and Abuse? *Territoire en mouvement Revue de géographie et aménagement. Territory in movement Journal of geography and planning, 17–18,* 6–19. https://doi.org/10.4000/tem.1971
- Lawrence-Zúñiga, D. (2016). *Protecting suburban America: Gentrification, advocacy and the historic imaginary.*Bloomsbury Academic, an imprint of Bloomsbury Publishing Plc.
- Learn More About City Rising. (2017, April 20). KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/city-rising/the-story-of-city-rising

- Learnings from The City as a Commons series. (2017, May 3). Cities for People.
 - http://www.citiesforpeople.ca/en/blogroll/learnings-from-the-city-as-a-commons-series
- Leavy, P. (2015). *Method Meets Art, Second Edition: Arts-Based Research Practice* (2 edition). The Guilford Press. LeBlanc, D. (2008, November 21). *In constant exile, artists seek next colony*.
 - https://www.theglobeandmail.com/real-estate/in-constant-exile-artists-seek-next-colony/article20389963/?arc404=true
- Leblanc, D. (2015, September 30). Artscape Youngplace: Creative spirit haunts the halls of Shaw Street School. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/real-estate/artscape-youngplace-creative-spirit-haunts-the-halls-of-shaw-street-school/article26602842/
- Lee, J. (2015, October 30). Millennials can't afford Toronto living. Is it worth braving the GTA commute? *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/news-story/6063650-millennials-can-t-afford-toronto-living-is-it-worth-braving-the-gta-commute-/
- Lee, S., Linett, P., Baltazar, N., & Woronkowicz, J. (2016). Setting the Stage for Community Change: Reflecting on Creative Placemaking Outcomes. Slover Linett Audience Research, Mortimer & Mimi Levitt Foundation. http://levitt.org/ckeditor/userfiles/images/1478133733_Levitt_white-paper_setting-the-stage-for-community-change_creative-placemaking-outcomes-study_2016.pdf
- Lees, L. (1994). Rethinking gentrification: Beyond the positions of economics or culture. *Progress in Human Geography*, 18(2), 137–150.
- Lees, L. (2014). Staying Put: An Anti-Gentrification Handbook for Council Estates in London. London Tenants Federation, Just Space, Southwark Notes Archive Group. https://southwarknotes.files.wordpress.com/2014/06/staying-put-web-version-low.pdf
- Lees, L., & Melhuish, C. (2015). Arts-led regeneration in the UK: The rhetoric and the evidence on urban social inclusion. *European Urban and Regional Studies*, 22(3), 242–260.
 - https://doi.org/10.1177/0969776412467474
- Lees, L., Shin, H. B., & LÃ³pez-Morales, E. (2016). *Planetary Gentrification*. Polity.
- Lees, L., Shin, H. B., & López Morales, E. (2015). *Global gentrifications: Uneven development and displacement*. Policy Press,. http://www.library.yorku.ca/e/resolver/id/2658712
- Lees, L., Slater, T., & Wyly, E. (2007). *Gentrification* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Lees, L., Slater, T., & Wyly, E. (Eds.). (2010). The Gentrification Reader (1 edition). Routledge.
- Lee-Shanok, P. (n.d.). PAL Toronto marks 25 years of providing a place for artists to retire in dignity. *CBC News*. Retrieved February 15, 2019, from https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/pal-toronto-marks-25-years-of-affordable-housing-for-artists-1.4958953
- Lefebre, B. (n.d.). 'Northside' and gentrification: There goes the neighborhood Denver Center for the Performing Arts. Https://Www.Denvercenter.Org/. Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://www.denvercenter.org/news-center/northside-and-gentrification-there-goes-the-neighborhood/
- Lehoczky, E. (2019, June 27). *Of Tenants And Tentacles: "BTTM FDRS" Confronts Gentrification In Comic Horror Form*. NPR.Org. https://www.npr.org/2019/06/27/736317209/of-tenants-and-tentacles-bttm-fdrs-confronts-gentrification-in-comic-horror-form
- Lehrer, U., & Wieditz, T. (2009a). *Gentrification and the Loss of Employment Lands: Toronto's Studio District*. https://www.researchgate.net/publication/304627852_Gentrification_and_the_Loss_of_Employment Lands Toronto's Studio District
- Lehrer, U., & Wieditz, T. (2009b). Condominium Development and Gentrification: The Relationship Between Policies, Building Activities and Socio-economic Development in Toronto ProQuest. *Canadian Journal of Urban Research*, 18(1), Supplement pages 140-161.
- Leonhardt, A. (2017, October 10). Arts East NY to Present Art and Anti-Gentrification Workshop at... The Brooklyn Reader. https://www.bkreader.com/2017/10/arts-east-ny-present-art-anti-gentrification-workshop-amsterdam-placemaking-week/
- Les, L. (2016). *Anti-gentrification law—Could it work in the UK?* LexisPSL.
 - https://www2.le.ac.uk/departments/geography/geog news/documents/lexis-nexis-interview-lees
- Leung, L. (2016). The Creative Other: Marginalization of and from the Creative Industries. *The Journal of Arts Management, Law, and Society, 46*(4), 200–211. https://doi.org/10.1080/10632921.2016.1211050

- Levin, S. (2017a, August 21). "It's not for me": How San Francisco's bike-share scheme became a symbol of gentrification. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2017/aug/21/bike-sharing-scheme-san-francisco-gentrification-vandalism
- Levin, S. (2017b, December 12). She fought for her community as a Black Panther. Will gentrification force her out? *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2017/dec/12/oakland-gentrification-eviction-black-panther-francis-moore
- Levine, A. (2014). Toronto: Biography of a City. Douglas & McIntyre.
- Levy, D., Comey, J., & Padilla, S. (2006). *In the Face of Gentrification: Case Studies of Local Efforts to Mitigate Displacement*. The Urban Institute, Metropolitan Housing and Communities Policy Center. https://www.urban.org/sites/default/files/publication/50791/411294-In-the-Face-of-Gentrification.PDF
- Levy, D. K., Comey, J., & Padilla, S. (2006). *Keeping the Neighborhood Affordable: A Handbook of Housing Strategies for Gentrifying Areas*. Metropolitan Housing and Communities Policy Center, Urban Institute. https://www.urban.org/sites/default/files/publication/50796/411295-Keeping-the-Neighborhood-Affordable.PDF
- Lewington, J. (2013, November 18). School's out and reinvented spaces are in. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/report-on-business/industry-news/property-report/schools-out-and-reinvented-spaces-are-in/article15491681/
- Lewis, B. (2016). Introduction: The Gentrification Game. *Trotter Review*, 23(1). http://scholarworks.umb.edu/trotter_review/vol23/iss1/2
- Ley, D. (1986). Alternative Explanations for Inner-City Gentrification: A Canadian Assessment. *Annals of the Association of American Geographers*, 76(4), 521–535. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1467-8306.1986.tb00134.x
- Ley, D. (1997). The New Middle Class and the Remaking of the Central City (1 edition). Oxford University Press.
- Ley, D. (2003). Artists, Aestheticisation and the Field of Gentrification. *Urban Studies*, *40*(12), 2527–2544. https://doi.org/10.1080/0042098032000136192
- Ley, D., & Lynch, N. (2012). *Vancouver, 1970-2005: Divisions and Disparities in Lotus-Land: Socio-Spatial Income Polarization in Greater Vancouver, 1970-2005* (Research Paper 223). University of Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/homepage/vancouver-1970-2005/
- Li, W. (2019, June 17). Experts say Vancouver must prepare for a new kind of emergency—Gentrification. *The Star.* https://www.thestar.com/vancouver/2018/05/07/you-have-displacement-you-have-trauma-vancouver-needs-to-do-more-to-guard-against-gentrification-says-expert.html
- Lick, T. P. (2017, September 27). *The Paradoxical Nature of Gentrification in Long Beach's Gayborhood*. KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/city-rising/the-paradoxical-nature-of-gentrification-in-long-beachs-gayborhood
- Lieber, M. (2017). From "territories" to city centers: The ambivalent management of women's safety and gentrification. *French Politics*. https://doi.org/10.1057/s41253-017-0051-8
- Ligaya, A. (2017, September 29). Toronto housing affordability hits worst level ever measured in city, RBC report says. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/real_estate/2017/09/29/toronto-housing-affordability-hit-lowest-level-ever-measured-this-year-rbc-says.html
- Ligeti, A. (2019, October 25). Vancouver's arts community calls for action as cultural spaces close. The Gobe and Mail. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/canada/british-columbia/article-vancouvers-art-community-calls-for-action-as-cultural-spaces-close/
- Ligeti, A. (2019, December 6). Vancouver's first city-owned studio space opens as arts facilities continue to close. The Globe and Mail. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/canada/british-columbia/article-vancouvers-first-city-owned-studio-space-opens-as-arts-facilities/
- Lindeman, T. (2019, July 7). Nearly 40% of Toronto condos not owner-occupied, new figures reveal. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/world/2019/jul/07/toronto-housing-owner-occupied-canada-affordability
- Little, S. (2017, November 8). If people can't afford to work in Vancouver, what happens to the city? *Global News*. https://globalnews.ca/news/3851268/if-people-cant-afford-to-work-in-vancouver-what-happens-to-the-city/

- Litwin, K. (2017a, February 13). À Nous la Malting. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/a-nous-la-malting
- Litwin, K. (2017b, September 5). How Students Can Actively—And Easily—Fight Gentrification. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/how-students-can-activelyand-easilyfight-gentrification
- Liu, E. (2017). You're More Powerful than You Think: A Citizen's Guide to Making Change Happen (1 edition). PublicAffairs. https://www.amazon.ca/Youre-More-Powerful-than-Think/dp/161039707X
- Live panel recap: Is Hamilton really a haven for artists? (2018, September 18). CBC News Hamilton.
 - https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/arts-scene-panel-1.4828644
- Living Cities. (n.d.). Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://www.livingcities.org/
- Living wage by region—Ontario Living Wage Network. (n.d.). Retrieved February 25, 2019, from http://www.ontariolivingwage.ca/living_wage_by_region
- Living Wage Calculator—Living Wage Calculation for New York County, New York. (n.d.). Retrieved September 30, 2017, from http://livingwage.mit.edu/counties/36061
- Living Wage Canada. (n.d.). Retrieved September 30, 2017, from http://livingwagecanada.ca/
- Living Wage Foundation For the real cost of living. (n.d.). Retrieved September 30, 2017, from https://www.livingwage.org.uk/
- Living wage in Hamilton rises to \$15.85 an hour, group says. (n.d.). CBC News. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/living-wage-1.3851827
- Lloyd, R. (2002). Neo–Bohemia: Art and Neighborhood Redevelopment in Chicago. *Journal of Urban Affairs*, 24(5), 517–532. https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-9906.00141
- Lobenfield, C. (2017, October 12). Portugal's Out.Fest might be an antidote to Lisbon's rising tide of gentrification. *FACT Magazine: Music News, New Music*. http://www.factmag.com/2017/10/12/out-fest-barreiro-portugal-review/
- London's Housing Struggles. (n.d.). London's Housing Struggles. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from https://mappinglondonshousingstruggles.wordpress.com/
- Loriggio, P. (2017, August 14). 185,000 Jobs At Risk From Ontario's Minimum Wage Hike, Groups Warn. HuffPost Canada. http://www.huffingtonpost.ca/2017/08/14/ontarios-minimum-wage-hike-puts-185-000-jobs-at-risk-business a 23077393/
- Lorinc, J. (n.d.). 50 artists are working out of this soon-to-be-demolished building, where eviction is part of the deal. *The Star.* Retrieved September 12, 2019, from https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2019/09/12/50-artists-are-working-out-of-this-soon-to-be-demolished-building-where-eviction-is-part-of-the-deal.html
- Lorinc, J. (2008a). Cities: A Groundwork Guide. Groundwood Books.
- Lorinc, J. (2008b). New City: How The Crisis Of Canada's Cities Is Reshaping Our Nation. Penguin Canada.
- Lorinc, J. (2015, July 24). Rising rents, noise and health issues: Is Artscape failing its tenants who seek affordable livework studios? The Globe and Mail. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/rising-rents-noise-and-health-issues-is-artscape-failing-its-tenants-who-seek-affordable-live-work-studios/article25672400/
- Lorinc, J. (2019a, May 6). Want affordable housing? Then Ford shouldn't sell publicly-owned land. *Spacing Toronto*. http://spacing.ca/toronto/2019/05/06/lorinc-want-affordable-housing-then-city-shouldnt-sell-publicly-owned-land/
- Lorinc, J. (2019b, July 5). *The case for density, not single family homes.* The star.Com. https://www.thestar.com/opinion/contributors/2019/07/05/the-case-for-density-not-single-family-homes.html
- Lorinc, J., McClelland, M., & Scheinberg, E. (Eds.). (2015). *The Ward: The Life and Loss of Toronto's First Immigrant Neighbourhood*. Coach House.
- Louis, S., & Burns, L. (2014). *Arts & Equity Toolkit*. Neighbourhood Arts Network, Toronto Arts Foundation. https://neighbourhoodartsnetwork.org/tac/media/BMO-Learning-Room-Links/ArtsEquityToolkit.pdf?ext=.pdf
- Loukaitou-Sideris, A., Gonzalez, S., & Ong, P. (2017). Triangulating Neighborhood Knowledge to Understand Neighborhood Change: Methods to Study Gentrification. *Journal of Planning Education and Research*, 0739456X17730890. https://doi.org/10.1177/0739456X17730890

- Love Your City: Cultural Policy & Plan. (2008). City of Hamilton. https://www.hamilton.ca/city-initiatives/strategies-actions/love-your-city-cultural-policy-plan
- Low, S. (2016). *Spatializing Culture: The Ethnography of Space and Place*. Routledge Taylor & Francis Group. https://www.routledge.com/Spatializing-Culture-The-Ethnography-of-Space-and-Place/Low/p/book/9781138945616
- Lowson, G. (2015, January 2). How Hamilton is revitalizing its downtown to bring new life. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/building-blocks-for-a-new-hamilton-already-in-place/article22279390/
- Lubell, J. (2016). Preserving and Expanding Affordability in Neighborhoods Experiencing Rising Rents and Property Values. Cityscape: A Journal of Policy Development and Research, 18(3), 131–150.
- Lui, T.-L. (2017). Beneath the Appearance of Gentrification: Probing Local Complexities. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 41(3), 478–486. https://doi.org/10.1111/1468-2427.12497
- Lund Hansen, A., & Clark, E. (2016, September 5). *The right to freedom from displacement—Practical implementation and challenges*. Human Rights City Summit 2016, Sweden. https://skl.se/download/18.4c08281315804c0a2dd4a747/1478533055456/The-right-to-freedom-from-displacement-Anders-Lund-Hansen-Eric-Clark-final.pdf
- Lydon, M., Garcia, A., & Duany, A. (2015). Tactical Urbanism: Short-term Action for Long-term Change. Island Press.

M

- Macdonald, A., & Chai, S. (2007). The Effects of Gentrification on Artists in Two Vancouver Neighbourhoods. *Western Geography*, 17/18/19, 61–77.
- Macdonald, D. (2019). *Unaccommodating*. Canadian Centre for Policy Alternatives.

https://www.policyalternatives.ca/unaccommodating

- Maciag, M. (2015, February). *Gentrification in America Report*. Governing the States and Localities. http://www.governing.com/gov-data/gentrification-in-cities-governing-report.html
- Mack, E. A., Talen, E., & Koschinsky, J. (2017). Walkable Art: An Empirical Investigation of Arts-Related Businesses and Walkable Neighborhoods. *Economic Development Quarterly*, *31*(2), 149–163. https://doi.org/10.1177/0891242417690804
- Mackenzie, A. (2019, May 31). *These photographers challenge everything we know about gentrification*. https://www.sleek-mag.com/article/unseen-photography-gentrification/
- Mackenzie, S. (2017, October 6). *Meet Vancouver-based collective Chapel Sound*. Redbull. https://www.redbull.com/ca-en/meet-vancouver-collective-chapel-sound
- MacKinnon, E., & Pellerin, C. (2018). *More than Money: How social finance can build resilience in the arts sector.*Metcalf Foundation. https://metcalffoundation.com/stories/publications/more-than-money/
- MacKinnon, S., Teeple, K., & Dale, M. (2010). *Toronto's Visual Legacy: Official City Photography from 1856 to the Present*. Lorimer.
- Macklem, P., & Sanderson, D. (Eds.). (2016). From Recognition to Reconciliation: Essays on the Constitutional Entrenchment of Aboriginal and Treaty Rights. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Macon, A. (2017, November 7). *Dallas' Poverty Problem Is a Segregation Problem*. D Magazine. https://www.dmagazine.com/frontburner/2017/11/dallas-poverty-segregation-opportunity/
- MacPherson, S. (2017, September 5). *Our Place, Our Home: Belvedere Tenants Fight to Remain in Mount Pleasant*. http://themainlander.com/2017/09/05/the-belvedere-renters-against-evictions-in-the-wake-of-mural-fest/
- Madden, D., & Marcuse, P. (2017). The Right to the City: A Verso Report.

- Maga, C. (2011, May 3). *Toronto's New Culture Plan Is All Business*. Torontoist. https://torontoist.com/2011/05/torontos_new_culture_plan_released/
- Maimann, K. (n.d.). Breaking the bank? New branch designed specifically for artists. *Metro News*. Retrieved March 1, 2018, from http://www.metronews.ca/news/edmonton/2018/02/27/a-bank-branch-specifically-for-artists.html
- Makagon, D. (2010). Bring on the Shock Troops: Artists and Gentrification in the Popular Press. *Communication and Critical/Cultural Studies*, 7(1), 26–52. https://doi.org/10.1080/14791420903527772
- Making Community Benefits a Reality in Ontario. (2016). Atkinson Foundation. http://atkinsonfoundation.ca/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/atkinson_cbsummary.pdf
- Making Space: Developing and Sustaining Affordable Artists' Studios and Creative Workspaces. (2016). Creative United. https://www.creativelandtrust.org/assets/papers/Making%20Space.pdf
- Making Space for Arts and Culture: Draft Vancouver Cultural Infrastructure Plan. (2019). City of Vancouver. https://council.vancouver.ca/20190910/documents/ACCS-RTS13175-AppendixD-MakingSpaceforArtsandCulture.PDF
- Makris, M. (2015). *Public Housing and School Choice in a Gentrified City: Youth Experiences of Uneven Opportunity* (2015 edition). Palgrave Macmillan.
- Mallach, A. (2017, May 11). Lots of Maps, Little Insight in Richard Florida's Latest. *Shelterforce*. https://shelterforce.org/2017/05/11/lots-of-maps-little-insight-in-richard-floridas-latest/
- Maltzan, M., Idenberg, F., McLaughlin, N., & Sample, H. (2016). *Social Transparency: Projects on Housing*. Columbia Books on Architecture and the City. https://www.arch.columbia.edu/books/catalog/137-social-transparency-projects-on-housing
- Mancini, M., & Common, D. (2019, December 30). *Big-city housing crunch fuels "renovictions."* CBC News. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/renovictions-housing-shortage-1.5400594
- Mann, G. (2017). In the Long Run We Are All Dead: Keynesianism, Political Economy, and Revolution. Verso.
- Mann, S. (2010, July 1). Creative class struggle: Gentrification and sex work in Hamilton's downtown core. *Briarpatch Magazine*. https://briarpatchmagazine.com/articles/view/creative-class-struggle
- MapCraft. (n.d.). MapCraft. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://mapcraft.io/
- Mapping Gentrification in Ottawa. (2013, March 12). Under Pressure Ottawa.
 - https://underpressureottawa.wordpress.com/2013/03/12/213/
- Mapping Small Arts and Culture Organizations of Color in Oakland. (n.d.). Mapping Small Arts and Culture Organizations of Color in Oakland. Retrieved July 15, 2018, from http://mapartscultureoakland.org/
- Marche, G. (2015). What Can Urban Gardening Really Do About Gentrification? A Case-Study of Three San Francisco Community Gardens. *European journal of American studies*, *10*(3). https://doi.org/10.4000/ejas.11316
- Marche, S. (2016, July 4). Welcome to the new Toronto: The most fascinatingly boring city in the world. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/jul/04/new-toronto-most-fascinatingly-boring-city-guardian-canada-week
- Marchers drag soaps on strings to bring attention to gentrification. (n.d.). Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://bronx.news12.com/story/36492371/marchers-drag-soaps-on-strings-to-bring-attention-to-gentrification
- Marchiori-Wong, M. (2017). Improving Toronto's Business Improvement Areas and Considering Commercial Rent Control as Another Policy to Support Small Businesses. *Landmarks: The Undergraduate Geography Journal, University of Toronto, 3,* 56–63.
- Marcuse, P. (2009). From critical urban theory to the right to the city. City, 13(2–3), 185–196.
- Marcuse, P., & Madden, D. (2016). In Defense of Housing: The Politics of Crisis. Verso.
- Markusen, A., & Gadwa, A. (n.d.). *Creative Placemaking*. National Endowment for the Arts. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://www.artplaceamerica.org/view/pdf?f=public://pictures/whitepaper.pdf
- Markusen, A., & Gadwa, A. (2010). Arts and Culture in Urban or Regional Planning: A Review and Research Agenda. *Journal of Planning Education and Research*, *29*(3), 379–391. https://doi.org/10.1177/0739456X09354380

- Markusen, A., & Schrock, G. (2006). The Artistic Dividend: Urban Artistic Specialisation and Economic Development Implications. *Urban Studies*, *43*(10), 1661–1686. https://doi.org/10.1080/00420980600888478
- Marques, L., & Borba, C. (2017). Co-creating the city: Digital technology and creative tourism. *Tourism Management Perspectives*, *24*, 86–93. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tmp.2017.07.007
- Martin, R. (2014). Mediators: Aesthetics, Politics, and the City. Univ Of Minnesota Press.
- Martin, S. (2017, May 23). Why Toronto's housing market has a "missing middle." *CBC News*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/toronto-area-housing-market-has-a-missing-middle-new-report-says-1.4126751
- Martini, N. (2017). Capturing the Lived Experience of the City through Methodological Practice of Walking. In M. Smagacz-Poziemska, K. Frysztacki, & A. Bukowski (Eds.), *Re-Imagining the City: Municipality and Urbanity Today from a Sociological Perspective* (First edition, pp. 303–318). Jagiellonian University Press. https://doi.org/10.4467/K9748.40/e/17.7265
- Marvellous Grounds: Queer of Colour Spaces in Toronto. (n.d.). Marvelousgrounds.Com. Retrieved July 9, 2019, from http://marvellousgrounds.com/
- Maschaykh, U. (2015). *The Changing Image of Affordable Housing: Design, Gentrification and Community in Canada and Europe.* Routledge.
- Mason;, P. (2015). PostCapitalism: A Guide to Our Future by Paul Mason (0 edition). Allen Lane.
- Matchar, E. (2016). How Computer Scientists Are Using Twitter to Predict Gentrification. Smithsonian. http://www.smithsonianmag.com/innovation/how-computer-scientists-are-using-twitter-predict-gentrification-180958888/
- Mathews, V. (2004). *The art of ideology: Theorizing artists and gentrification in the space of Yorkville, Toronto.* http://ezproxy.library.yorku.ca/login?url=http://gateway.proquest.com/openurl?url_ver=Z39.88-2004&res_dat=xri:pqm&rft_val_fmt=info:ofi/fmt:kev:mtx:dissertation&rft_dat=xri:pqdiss:MQ99356
- Mathews, V. (2008). Artcetera: Narrativising Gentrification in Yorkville, Toronto. *Urban Studies, 45*(13), 2849–2876. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098008098209
- Mathews, V. (2010). Aestheticizing Space: Art, Gentrification and the City. *Geography Compass*, 4(6), 660–675. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1749-8198.2010.00331.x
- Mathews, V. (2014). Incoherence and Tension in Culture-Led Redevelopment: Incoherent culture-led redevelopment in Toronto. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, *38*(3), 1019–1036. https://doi.org/10.1111/1468-2427.12108
- Mathieu, E. (2019, February 28). 'My community, my sanctuary.' Six Toronto tenants fearing renoviction say they could lose more than their homes. The Star. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2019/02/28/my-community-my-sancturary-six-toronto-tenants-fearing-renoviction-say-they-could-lose-more-than-their-homes.html
- Mathur, A., & Srivastava, A. (2011). *Equity within the Arts Ecology: Traditions and Trends*. Centre for Innovation in Culture and the Arts in Canada.
 - $http://www.calgaryartsequity.org/uploads/5/6/7/3/56735027/cpa fequity within the artsecology-final-en_000.pdf\\$
- Matthews, P. (2017, September 3). Book Review: Gentrifier by John Joe Schlichtman, Jason Patch and Marc Lamont Hill. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2017/09/03/book-review-gentrifier-by-john-joe-schlichtman-jason-patch-and-marc-lamont-hill/
- Matys, F. (2017, June 5). *Minimum wage increase could spark rent hikes in Orillia: Ritchie*. Simcoe.Com. https://www.simcoe.com/news-story/7354172-minimum-wage-increase-could-spark-rent-hikes-in-orillia-ritchie/
- Maurrasse, D. (2014). *Listening to Harlem: Gentrification, Community, and Business* (1 edition). Routledge. Mayer, M. (2013). First world urban activism: Beyond austerity urbanism and creative city politics. *City, 17*(1), 5–19. https://doi.org/10.1080/13604813.2013.757417
- Mayor launches groundbreaking Creative Land Trust. (2019, February 6). London City Hall. https://www.london.gov.uk//press-releases/mayoral/mayor-launches-groundbreaking-creative-land-trust

- McBay, B., & Jardine, K. (2019, April 9). 221A: Cultural Land Trust Study Update. https://221a.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/2019-04-CLT Study-Slide Presentation.pdf
- McCarthy, J., & Wang, Y. (2016). Culture, creativity and commerce: Trajectories and tensions in the case of Beijing's 798 Art Zone. *International Planning Studies*, *21*(1), 1–15. https://doi.org/10.1080/13563475.2015.1114446
- McCormack, G. (2015). *The Servant State: Overseeing Capital Accumulation in Canada*. Fernwood Books Ltd. McCormick, E. (2017, October 2). Rise of the yimbys: The angry millennials with a radical housing solution. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/oct/02/rise-of-the-yimbys-angry-millennials-radical-housing-solution
- McDonald, P. R. (2017, September 7). *Top 7 Code Words for Gentrification in LA*. CityWatch Los Angeles. http://www.citywatchla.com/index.php/los-angeles-for-rss/13950-top-7-code-words-for-gentrification-in-la
- McDonough, L., Dinca-Panaitescu, M., Procyk, S., Cook, C., Drydyk, J., Laflèche, M., & McKee, J. (2015). *The Opportunity Equation: Building opportunity in the face of growing income inequality* (Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). United Way Toronto & York Region, EKPS Research Associates, University of Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/documents/2015/12/opportunity-equation.pdf
- McElroy, E. (2016, January 14). The anti-eviction blues: Audio reports from San Francisco's gentrifying streets. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/jan/14/anti-eviction-blues-audio-reports-san-francisco-gentrifying-streets
- McElroy, J. (2015, June 13). *Revitalization or gentrification? Strathcona braces for change*. https://globalnews.ca/news/2052805/revitalization-or-gentrification-strathcona-braces-for-change/
- McGillivray, K. (2017a, February 26). High rent could make Toronto a "generational ghost town." *CBC News*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/high-rent-could-make-toronto-a-generational-ghost-town-1.3999022
- McGillivray, K. (2017b, April 5). Young Ontarians struggling with income and housing, and it's not "bad luck." *CBC News*. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/generation-squeeze-ontario-economy-1.4054589
- McGlinchy, A. (n.d.). Austin Is Full Of Anti-Gentrification Ideas, But Most Wouldn't Have A Direct Impact.

 Retrieved February 28, 2018, from http://kut.org/post/austin-full-anti-gentrification-ideas-most-wouldnt-have-direct-impact
- McGrath, J.M. (2019, July 2). Why there's no help on the horizon for Toronto's housing crisis. TVO.Org. http://www.tvo.org/article/why-theres-no-help-on-the-horizon-for-torontos-housing-crisis
- McGrath, John Michael. (2017, July 14). *There's life outside Toronto, but leaving the city is harder than it used to be.* TVO. http://tvo.org/article/current-affairs/the-next-ontario/theres-life-outside-toronto-but-leaving-the-city-is-harder-than-it-used-to-be
- McGrath, M. (2016). Decatur, Georgia: Diversity, Gentrification, and the Art of Community Conversation. *National Civic Review*, 105(2), 25–33. https://doi.org/10.1002/ncr.21270
- McGraw, D. (2017, October 3). Free bus passes for workers: Columbus's big idea to relieve a congested downtown. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/oct/03/free-public-transport-downtown-workers-columbus-car
- McKee, Y. (2017). Strike Art: Contemporary Art and the Post-Occupy Condition (Reprint edition). Verso.
- McKeen, A. (2017a, October 4). National housing agency looks to Airbnb for help to boost number of affordable units. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/10/04/national-housing-agency-looks-to-airbnb-for-help-to-boost-number-of-affordable-units.html
- McKeen, A. (2017b, October 25). Where in the city do people struggle most to pay for their homes? *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/10/25/where-in-the-city-do-people-struggle-most-to-pay-for-their-homes.html
- McKeen, A. (2017c, December 28). Laneway suite proposal could offer relief amid Toronto housing crunch. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/12/28/laneway-suite-proposal-could-offer-relief-amid-toronto-housing-crunch.html
- McKenzie, F., & Fellow, B. (2013, December 6). The Arts Organization's Role in Addressing Gentrification. *ArtsFwd.* https://www.artsfwd.org/arts-orgs-address-gentrification/

- McKenzie, G. (2017, October 18). *Tales From L.A.'s Gentrification-Fueled Identity Crisis*. CityLab. https://www.citylab.com/life/2017/10/there-goes-the-neighborhood-los-angeles-podcast-saul-gonzalez/543075/
- McKinnish, T., Walsh, R., & White, T. K. (2010). Who Gentrifies Low-Income Neighborhoods? *Journal of Urban Economics*, 67(2), 180–193. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jue.2009.08.003
- McKnight, J., & Block, P. (2012). *The Abundant Community: Awakening the Power of Families and Neighborhoods.*Berrett-Koehler Publishers.
- McLaren, D., & Agyeman, J. (2015). Sharing Cities: A Case for Truly Smart and Sustainable Cities (1 edition). The MIT Press
- McLean, C. L., & PhD, R. K. (Eds.). (2011). *Creative Arts in Research for Community and Cultural Change*. Brush Education.
- McLean, H. (2014). Digging into the Creative City: A Feminist Critique. *Antipode*, *46*(3), 669–690. https://doi.org/10.1111/anti.12078
- McLean, H. (2018). Regulating and resisting queer creativity: Community-engaged arts practice in the neoliberal city. *Urban Studies*, 0042098018755066. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098018755066
- McLean, H. E. (2014). Cracks in the Creative City: The Contradictions of Community Arts Practice: Contradictions of community arts practice in Toronto. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, *38*(6), 2156–2173. https://doi.org/10.1111/1468-2427.12168
- McLoughlin, K. (2015, February 17). Unwittingly Becoming an Agent of Gentrification. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/unwittingly-becoming-an-agent-of-gentrification
- McNamara, R. (2016, June 20). Why Artists Make Better Landlords: An Interview with Akin Collective's Oliver Pauk and Michael Vickers. Art F City. http://artfcity.com/2016/06/20/why-artists-make-better-landlords-an-interview-with-akin-collectives-oliver-pauk-and-michael-vickers/
- McNiff, S. (Ed.). (2013). Art as Research: Opportunities and Challenges. Intellect Ltd.
- Measuring Cultural Engagement: A Quest for New Terms, Tools, and Techniques. (2014). National Endowment for the Arts. https://www.arts.gov/publications/measuring-cultural-engagement-quest-new-terms-tools-and-techniques
- Meja, B., & Saldivar, S. (2016, August 4). Boyle Heights activists blame the art galleries for gentrification. *Los Angeles Times*. http://www.latimes.com/local/lanow/la-me-ln-self-help-graphics-20160718-snap-story.html
- Mejia, B. (2016, March 3). Gentrification pushes up against Boyle Heights—And vice versa. *Los Angeles Times*. http://www.latimes.com/local/california/la-me-las-palomas-gentrification-20160303-story.html
- Mellander, C., Florida, R., Asheim, B. T., & Gertler, M. (Eds.). (2014). *The Creative Class Goes Global*. Routledge. Melo, C. (2015). Are We All in the Same Boat? Staging the "Invisible Majority" in the Streets of Toronto. *Canadian Theatre Review*, 161, 33–37. https://doi.org/10.3138/ctr.161.007
- Meltzer, E. (2017, October 3). What's so bad about gentrification anyway? Denverite. https://www.denverite.com/whats-bad-gentrification-anyway-42920/
- Meltzer, R. (2016a, December 10). Retail churn can bring both volatility and vitality to a neighborhood. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2016/12/10/retail-churn-can-bring-both-volatility-and-vitality-to-aneighborhood/
- Meltzer, R. (2016b). *Gentrification and Small Business: Threat or Opportunity*? 39. https://www.philadelphiafed.org/-/media/community-development/events/2016/research-symposium-on-gentrification/pdfs/meltzer.pdf?la=en
- Meltzer, R., & Ghorbani, P. (2017). Does gentrification increase employment opportunities in low-income neighborhoods? *Regional Science and Urban Economics*, 66(Supplement C), 52–73. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.regsciurbeco.2017.06.002
- Merriam, S. B., & Tisdell, E. J. (2015). *Qualitative Research: A Guide to Design and Implementation* (4 edition). Jossey-Bass.
- Meslin, G. (2017, April 28). *The Yellowbelt*. MapTO. http://www.mapto.ca/maps/2017/3/4/the-yellow-belt Metcalf, G. (2015). *Democratic by Design: How Carsharing, Co-ops, and Community Land Trusts Are Reinventing America*. St. Martin's Press.

- Metcalf, G. (2017, August 29). The Permanent Housing Crisis. SPUR. http://www.spur.org/publications/urbanistarticle/2017-08-29/permanent-housing-crisis
- Micallef, S. (2013a). Regent Park: A story of collective impact. Metcalf Foundation.
 - http://metcalffoundation.com/stories/publications/regent-park-a-story-of-collective-impact/
- Micallef, S. (2013b, March 15). Regent Park—A new report tells the story of how Toronto's \$1 billion public housing revitalization happened. Spacing. http://spacing.ca/national/2013/03/15/regent-park-a-newreport-tells-the-story-of-how-torontos-1-billion-public-housing-revitalization-happened/
- Micallef, S. (2017a). Frontier City: Toronto on the Verge of Greatness. Signal.
- Micallef, S. (2017b, July 21). Who has the right to thrive in Toronto? *The Toronto Star*.
 - https://www.thestar.com/news/qta/2017/07/21/who-has-the-right-to-thrive-in-toronto-micallef.html
- Micallef, S. (2018, November 9). Chinatown feeling pains of 'early transition' to gentrification, historian says. Toronto Star. https://www.thestar.com/opinion/star-columnists/2018/11/09/chinatown-feeling-painsof-early-transition-to-gentrification-historian-says.html
- Micallef, S. (2019, March 15). Can an art project create an affordable housing movement? One will try. Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/opinion/star-columnists/2019/03/15/can-an-art-project-create-anaffordable-housing-movement-one-will-try.html
- Micallef, S., & Zuber, M. (2010). Stroll: Psychogeographic Walking Tours of Toronto (1 edition). Coach House.
- Michaud, J. (2018, January 26). A Gentrification Story with a Happy Ending. The New Yorker.
 - https://www.newyorker.com/culture/culture-desk/a-gentrification-story-with-a-happy-ending
- Michels, J. F., & Michels, J. (2017). Permanent Weekend: Nature, Leisure, and Rural Gentrification. McGill-Queen's University Press.
- Mihailiuk, A. (2017, July 4). Condos Love Culture: New Arts Development Brings "Creative Placemaking" to Chinatown. The Mainlander. http://themainlander.com/2017/07/04/bc-artscape-condos-love-culture/
- MILES, M. (1995). Art and urban regeneration. Urban History, 22(2), 238–252. JSTOR.
- Miles, M. (2015). Limits to Culture: Urban Regeneration Vs. Dissident Art. Pluto Press.
- Millennial writes letter about her generation leaving Toronto due to real estate prices. (n.d.). Global News. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from https://globalnews.ca/video/3591288/millennial-writes-letterabout-her-generation-leaving-toronto-due-to-real-estate-prices/
- Miller, A. K. (2017). Displacement Matters: The Socioeconomics of Gentrification in Richmond, California. Senior Theses and Capstone Projects. http://scholar.dominican.edu/senior-theses/66
- Milton, J. (2016, October 31). Anti-Gentrification Groups Push For Community-Centred Spaces. The Link. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/anti-gentrification-groups-push-for-community-centred-spaces Minton, A. (2017). Big Capital: Who Is London For? PENGUIN GROUP.
- Miranda, C. A. (2016, August 4). 'Out!" Boyle Heights activists say white art elites are ruining the neighborhood...but it's complicated.' Los Angeles Times. http://www.latimes.com/local/lanow/la-me-Inself-help-graphics-20160718-snap-story.html
- Misra, T. (n.d.-a). An Online Tool to Predict Gentrification—And Fight Displacement. CityLab. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://www.citylab.com/cityfixer/2017/02/algorithms-that-predict-gentrification/516945/
- Misra, T. (n.d.-b). Where San Francisco Is Gentrifying, CityLab. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.citylab.com/housing/2015/08/mapping-gentrification-and-displacement-in-sanfrancisco/402559/
- Misra, T. (2017, February 17). *Using Algorithms To Predict Gentrification*. CityLab.
 - https://www.citylab.com/cityfixer/2017/02/algorithms-that-predict-gentrification/516945/
- Mississauga Culture Master Plan. (2009). City of Mississauga.
 - http://www.mississauga.ca/file/COM/ACMP_FullReport.pdf
- Mistry, A. (2017). Art in Transit: A pedagogic approach. Visual Inquiry: Learning & Teaching Art, 6(2), 149–164. EBSCOhost.
- MN, C. (2017, March 2). Keep It Local: Gentrification and Art in Minneapolis. It's Going Down.
 - https://itsgoingdown.org/keep-local-gentrification-art-minneapolis/
- Mock, B. (2016a, February 12). Can a City Ever Have Major Redevelopment Without Displacement? CityLab. http://www.citylab.com/housing/2016/02/baltimore-development-without-displacement/462387/

- Mock, B. (2016b, November 3). *In Search of Answers on Gentrification*. CityLab. http://www.citylab.com/housing/2016/11/in-search-of-answers-on-gentrification/506267/
- Mojadad, I. (2019, October 11). Walking the Fine Line Between Art as a Community Anchor or Fueler of Gentrification Next City. Next City. https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/walking-the-fine-line-between-community-anchor-or-fueler-of-gentrification
- Mojtehedzadeh, S. (2014, December 3). Precarious work further divides a divided city. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/03/precarious_work_further_divides_a_divided_city.htm
- Mok, T. (2019, June). Artscape Weston Common is Toronto's newest arts hub. *BlogTO*. https://www.blogto.com/arts/2019/06/artscape-weston-common-toronto/
- Molho, J., & Sagot-Duvauroux, D. (2017). From Global to Local Creative Dynamics: The Location Patterns of Art Galleries. In *Creative Industries in Europe* (pp. 43–64). Springer, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-56497-5 3
- Molina-Wilshaw, M. T. (2013). Where Have All The Flowers Gone?: The Displacement of Minorities In the Process of Gentrification. (1 edition). CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform.
- Molotch, H., & Treskon, M. (2009). Changing Art: SoHo, Chelsea and the Dynamic Geography of Galleries in New York City. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 33(2), 517–541. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-2427.2009.00866.x
- Mondry, A. (2017, September 18). *Detroit's equitable developers share strategies for making the city both prosperous and just*. Model D. http://www.modeldmedia.com/features/equitable-development-091817.aspx
- Monsebraaten, L. (2013, May 21). Condos becoming part of Toronto's affordable housing tool box. *The Toronto Star*.
 - https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2013/05/21/condos_becoming_part_of_torontos_affordable_housing_tool_box.html
- Monsebraaten, L. (2014, October 28). Toronto's poorest neighbourhoods chose Doug Ford. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/city_hall/toronto2014election/2014/10/28/torontos_poorest_neighbourhoods_chose_doug_ford.html
- Monsebraaten, L. (2015, March 31). Toronto council endorses artistic community-cultural hub for Weston. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2015/03/31/toronto-considers-artistic-community-cultural-hub-for-weston.html
- Monsebraaten, L. (2016, November 14). Kids suffer most as Toronto clings to title of child poverty capital. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2016/11/14/kids-suffer-most-as-toronto-clings-to-title-of-child-poverty-capital.html
- Monsebraaten, L. (2017, November 1). Toronto region becoming more divided along income lines. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/11/01/toronto-region-becoming-more-divided-along-income-lines.html
- Monsebraaten, L. (2020, January 2). Sean Gadon was Toronto's affordable housing guru. He's optimistic about the city's future | The Star. Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2020/01/02/sean-gadon-was-torontos-affordable-housing-guru-hes-optimistic-about-the-citys-future.html
- Montgomery, C. (2013). *Happy City: Transforming Our Lives Through Urban Design*. Farrar, Straus and Giroux. Montpetit, J. (2016, May 31). *How one Montreal neighbourhood has become a battleground in Canada's gentrification debate*. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/montreal/gentrification-st-henrimontreal-toronto-vancouver-1.3607655
- Moore, Q., & Chronicle, for the H. (2017, October 11). How to avoid gentrifying a neighborhood. *Houston Chronicle*. http://www.houstonchronicle.com/local/gray-matters/article/How-to-avoid-gentrifying-a-neighborhood-12269618.php
- Moore, R. (2015, June 28). London: The city that ate itself. *The Observer*. http://www.theguardian.com/uk-news/2015/jun/28/london-the-city-that-ate-itself-rowan-moore
- Moore, R. (2017a, June 12). Big Capital: Who Is London For? by Anna Minton review. *The Observer*. http://www.theguardian.com/books/2017/jun/12/big-capital-who-is-london-for-anna-minton-review

- Moore, R. (2017b, October 1). Automatic disdain for 'gentrification' is misguided if local lives are improved. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2017/oct/01/kneejerk-disdain-forgentrification-foolish-if-local-lives-improved
- Moore, R. (2017c, October 1). The Bilbao effect: How Frank Gehry's Guggenheim started a global craze. *The Observer*. http://www.theguardian.com/artanddesign/2017/oct/01/bilbao-effect-frank-gehry-guggenheim-global-craze
- Moore, R., Harewood, D., Hanley, T. W. L., Adonis, A., Bird, J., Scott, S., Hudson, K., & Barnes, M. (2017, June 25). Decent homes for all... Has the social housing dream died? *The Observer*. http://www.theguardian.com/society/2017/jun/25/dispossession-social-housing-crisis-documentary-thatcher-legacy-right-to-buy
- Moos, M., & Skaburskis, A. (2010). The Globalization of Urban Housing Markets: Immigration and Changing Housing Demand in Vancouver. *Urban Geography*, *31*(6), 724–749. https://doi.org/10.2747/0272-3638.31.6.724
- Moran, J., Schupbach, J., Spearman, C., & Reut, J. (2015). *Beyond the Building: Performing Arts & Transforming Place*. National Endowment for the Arts. https://www.arts.gov/publications/beyond-building-performing-arts-transforming-place
- More Moss Park Final Report: What We've Learned. (n.d.). Retrieved June 18, 2019, from http://www.moremosspark.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/MMP_FinalReport.pdf
- Moretti, E. (2013). The New Geography of Jobs (Paper edition). Mariner Books.
- Morgan, G., & Nelligan, P. (2018). The Creativity Hoax: Precarious Work in the Gig Economy. Anthem Press.
- Moskowitz, P. (2015a, February 5). The two Detroits: A city both collapsing and gentrifying at the same time. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2015/feb/05/detroit-city-collapsing-gentrifying
- Moskowitz, P. (2015b, December 20). Art in the Time of Gentrification: Can NYC's Culture be Saved from Its Economy? *Vice*. https://www.vice.com/en_ca/article/bnp4vm/art-in-the-time-of-gentrification-cannycs-culture-be-saved-from-its-economy-111
- Moskowitz, P. (2017, March 16). When It Comes to Gentrification, LGBTQ People are Both Victim and Perpetrator. Vice. https://www.vice.com/en_ca/article/nz5qwb/when-it-comes-to-gentrification-lgbtq-people-are-both-victim-and-perpetrator
- Moskowitz, P. (2017a). *How to Kill a City: Gentrification, Inequality, and the Fight for the Neighborhood.* Nation Books.
- Moskowitz, P. (2017b, September 11). What Role Do Artists Play in Gentrification? Artsy. https://www.artsy.net/article/artsy-editorial-role-artists-play-gentrification
- Moss, G. (2017). *Artistic enclaves in the post-industrial city: A Case study of Lawrenceville, Pittsburgh.* Springer Berlin Heidelberg. http://www.springer.com/gp/book/9783319552620
- Moss, J. (n.d.). Find a New City. *Jeremiah's Vanishing New York*. Retrieved March 3, 2018, from http://vanishingnewyork.blogspot.com/2010/05/find-new-city.html
- Moss, J. (2017a). Vanishing New York: How a Great City Lost Its Soul. Dey Street Books.
- Moss, J. (2017b, September 17). Bill's burden on gentrification. *New York Daily News*. http://www.nydailynews.com/opinion/bill-burden-gentrification-article-1.3498755
- Moss Park residents push back against The 519. (2016, April 8). Xtra. https://www.dailyxtra.com/moss-park-residents-push-back-against-the-519-70656
- Mould, O. (2015). *Urban Subversion and the Creative City*. Routledge.
- Mould, O. (2017, September 14). Why culture competitions and "artwashing" drive urban inequality. *Open Democracy*. https://www.opendemocracy.net/uk/oli-mould/why-culture-competitions-and-artwashing-drive-urban-inequality
- Mudhar, R. (2011, November 2). Artscape gets \$2 million for new Youngspace. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/2011/11/02/artscape_gets_2_million_for_new_youngspace. html
- Mueller, G. (n.d.). *Liberalism and Gentrification*. Retrieved November 1, 2017, from http://jacobinmag.com/2014/09/liberalism-and-gentrification

- Municipal Cultural Master Plan. (2010). City of Windsor.
 - http://www.citywindsor.ca/residents/Recreation/Documents/Municipal%20Cultural%20Master%20Plan.pdf
- Municipal Cultural Plan. (2014). Town of Midland.
 - http://www.midland.ca/Shared%20Documents/parks/MCP%20Final%20Report.pdf
- Municipal Cultural Planning: A Toolkit for Ontario Municipalities. (2011). Municipal Cultural Planning Incorporated. http://www.ontariomcp.ca/toolkits/MunicipalCulturalPlanning_AToolkitForOntarioMunicipalities_digital.pdf
- Municipal Cultural Planning: Indicators and Performance Measures Guidebook. (2011). Canadian Urban Institute. http://static1.squarespace.com/static/546bbd2ae4b077803c592197/t/54b3e63be4b027b160a1cbf9/1 421076027460/CUIPublications.MunicipalCulturalPlanning.pdf
- Murdie, R., & Logan, J. (2014). *Bibliography and Review of Neighbourhood Typologies with a Focus on Canada, the United States, and Australia/New Zealand* (Research Paper 233; Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). Cities Centre, University of Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/homepage/how-neighbourhoods-are-changing/
- Murdie, R., Maaranen, R., & Logan, J. (2013). *Eight Canadian Metropolitan Areas: Who Lived Where in 2006?* (Research Paper 229). Cities Centre, University of Toronto.
 - http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/homepage/how-neighbourhoods-are-changing/
- Murdie, R., Maaranen, R., & Logan, J. (2014). *Eight Canadian Metropolitan Areas: Spatial Patterns of Neighbourhood Change, 1981-2006* (Research Paper 234; Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). Cities Centre, University of Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/homepage/how-neighbourhoods-are-changing/
- Murdoch, J., Grodach, C., & Foster, N. (2015). The Importance of Neighborhood Context in Arts-Led Development. *Journal of Planning Education and Research*, *36*(1), 32–48. https://doi.org/10.1177/0739456X15599040
- Murray, G. (2008, March 16). To thrive, cities need many hands. *The Toronto Star*.
 - https://www.thestar.com/opinion/2008/03/16/to_thrive_cities_need_many_hands.html
- Murray, K. (2017). *Gentrification*. SAGE Publishing. http://businessresearcher.sagepub.com/sbr-1863-103843-2833123/20170828/gentrification
- Murzyn-Kupisz, M., & Dzialek, J. (Eds.). (2017). *The Impact of Artists on Contemporary Urban Development in Europe* (1st ed. 2017 edition). Springer.
- Musgrave, B. (2017, September 26). Are those new neighbors driving up your property tax bill? Help could be coming. *Lexington Herald Leader*. http://www.kentucky.com/news/local/counties/fayette-county/article175496271.html
- *Music Minds Matter.* (n.d.). Help Musicians UK. Retrieved October 19, 2017, from https://www.musicmindsmatter.org.uk/the-study/
- "My Neighbors Would Look at Me Like an Alien": Women of Gentrification. (n.d.). Rewire. Retrieved October 25, 2017, from https://rewire.news/article/2017/10/24/neighbors-look-like-alien-women-gentrification/
- *Myseum Intersections 2019—Neighbourhood Trust.* (n.d.). Retrieved February 16, 2019, from http://www.myseumoftoronto.com/programming/neighbourhood-trust/
- Mytnowych, N. (2016). Risk and Resilience: Models for Personal Finance and the Arts. *Canadian Theatre Review*, 167, 22–25. https://doi.org/10.3138/ctr.167.005

N

- N/A. (2 C.E., February 14). Reaction to Gentrification from the Artist Community. *More Art*.
 - http://moreart.org/reaction-to-gentrification-from-the-artist-community/
- Naidus, B. (2009). Arts for Change: Teaching Outside the Frame. New Village Press.
- Naldi, P. (2017, June 21). *Artist strategies and methods of resistance in the regenerated city.* 18th Nordic Geographers Meeting, Stockholm.
 - http://ualresearchonline.arts.ac.uk/11222/26/N8%20Artist%20strategies%20and%20methods%20of%20resistance%20in%20the%20regenerated%20city.pdf
- Nathalie Prezeau. (2017). *Toronto Street Art Strolls: A Neighbourhood Guide to Murals, Graffiti & Public Art*. Word-of-Mouth Production.
- Nathan, M., Kemeny, T., Pratt, A., & Spencer, G. (2016). *Creative Economy Employment in the US, Canada and the UK.*Nesta. http://www.nesta.org.uk/publications/creative-economy-employment-us-canada-and-uk
- National Housing Strategy. (2018). The Conference Board of Canada.
 - https://www.placetocallhome.ca/pdfs/Canada-National-Housing-Strategy.pdf
- National Land Trust for British Columbia. (n.d.). National Land Trust for British Columbia. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from http://ntlcbc.com/?page_id=26
- National Neighborhood Indicators Partnership. (n.d.). Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://www.neighborhoodindicators.org/
- NAVA. (n.d.). Fair Pay for Artists. NAVA. Retrieved September 30, 2017, from https://visualarts.net.au/advocacy/campaigns/artists-fees/
- Neavling, S. (n.d.). *Oh, the irony! Nonprofit displaces artists in Detroit to fight gentrification*. Detroit Metro Times. Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://www.metrotimes.com/news-hits/archives/2019/06/18/oh-the-irony-nonprofit-displaces-artists-in-detroit-to-fight-gentrification
- Needham, A. (2017, September 28). Punchdrunk's luxury rebrand is the theatrical version of gentrification. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/stage/2017/sep/28/punchdrunk-kabeiroi-luxury-brand-theatrical-gentrification
- Neigh, S. (n.d.). *Queers against gentrification*. Retrieved November 12, 2017, from http://rabble.ca/podcasts/shows/talking-radical-radio/2016/02/queers-against-gentrification
- Neigh, S. (2015, December 10). Gentrification in Hamilton: Some Initial Thoughts. *A Canadian Lefty in Occupied Land*. http://scottneigh.blogspot.com/2015/12/gentrification-in-hamilton-some-initial.html
- *Neighbourhood Action Strategy.* (2015, March 6). [Text]. City of Hamilton. https://www.hamilton.ca/city-initiatives/strategies-actions/neighbourhood-action-strategy
- Nelson, K. P. (1988). *Gentrification and Distressed Cities: An Assessment of Trends in Intrametropolitan Migration*. Univ of Wisconsin Pr.
- Nelson, R. (2012). Non-profit art spaces in Cambodia: Strength in diversity. Art Monthly Australia, 253, 22.
- NEST Collective and Studios. (n.d.). NEST Collective and Studios. Retrieved January 6, 2018, from http://nestcollectivestudios.com
- Neuendorf, H. (n.d.). "A Major Victory": Artists React to Amazon's Decision to Drop Plans to Establish a New York City Campus. *Artnet News*. Retrieved February 22, 2019, from https://news.artnet.com/art-world/artists-amazon-long-island-city-1466116
- New Arts and Social Innovation Program for Non-Profits in the Arts. (2018, October 16). Vancouver Foundation. https://www.vancouverfoundation.ca/whats-new/new-arts-and-social-innovation-program-non-profits-arts
- New Ideas for Old Buildings: Findings of the Creative Spaces and the Built Environment Forum, Disucssion Paper. (2016).
 - http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0006/281454/Creative_Spaces_and_the_Built Environment Discussion Paper.pdf
- New SF "Cultural Districts" Ordinance Aims to Counteract Gentrification. (2018, May 15). KQED. https://www.kqed.org/arts/13832148/new-sf-cultural-districts-ordinance-aims-to-counteract-gentrification

- New study identifies housing displacement occurring in Denver, recommendations to help residents stay in neighborhoods. (2016, May 18). https://www.denvergov.org/content/denvergov/en/denver-office-of-economic-development/newsroom/2016/GentrificationStudy.html
- Newman, A. (2018, February 20). *Australia pays fast-food workers \$20 an hour and the sky hasn't fallen*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/report-on-business/small-business/talent/australia-pays-fast-food-workers-20-an-hour-and-the-sky-hasnt-fallen/article38026876/
- Newman, K., Wyly, E. K., & University of Toronto: Centre for Urban and Community Studies. (2006). *Gentrification and displacement revisited: A fresh look at the New York City experience*. University of Toronto Centre for Urban and Community Studies.
 - http://www.citiescentre.utoronto.ca/Assets/Cities+Centre+Digital+Assets/pdfs/researchbulletins/CUC SRB31-NewmanWyly.pdf
- Newman, L. Z. (2015). Absent, Invisible, and Incoherent: Archiving Queer Women's Performance Futurities. *Canadian Theatre Review, 163*, 19–24. https://doi.org/10.3138/ctr.163.004
- News Release: Artscape Announces Leadership Appointments to Better Serve Toronto's Creative Communities. (2019, August 28). *Artscape*. https://www.artscape.ca/2019/08/28/news-release-artscape-announces-leadership-appointments-to-better-serve-torontos-creative-communities/
- Newsom, G., & Dickey, L. (2014). *Citizenville: How to Take the Town Square Digital and Reinvent Government*. Penguin Books.
- Newton, P., Meyer, D., & Glackin, S. (2017). Becoming Urban: Exploring the Transformative Capacity for a Suburban-to-Urban Transition in Australia's Low-Density Cities. *Sustainability*, *9*(10), 1718. https://doi.org/10.3390/su9101718
- Niagara Culture Plan. (n.d.). Niagara Region. Retrieved October 3, 2017, from https://www.niagararegion.ca/government/initiatives/culture-plan/pdf/CulturePlanWEB.pdf
- Nickle, D. (2019, June 11). Artscape Weston Common brings artists to the community through housing. *Toronto.Com.* https://www.toronto.com/news-story/9424763-artscape-weston-common-brings-artists-to-the-community-through-housing/
- Nickle, D. (2020, January 14). *Parkdale Community Hub plans will secure arts, services on Queen West*. Toronto.Com. https://www.toronto.com/news-story/9797838-parkdale-community-hub-plans-will-secure-arts-services-on-queen-west/
- Nicodemus, A. G. (2013). Fuzzy vibrancy: Creative placemaking as ascendant US cultural policy. *Cultural Trends*, 22(3–4), 213–222. https://doi.org/10.1080/09548963.2013.817653
- NION, Brand Hamburg (Initiative Not. (2010). Not in our name! Jamming the gentrification machine: A manifesto. *City*, *14*(3), 323–325. https://doi.org/10.1080/13604813.2010.482344
- Njegovan, B. (2017, December 17). Hamilton doesn't need real estate bargain-hunting Torontonians. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/opinion/hamilton-doesnt-need-real-estate-bargain-hunting-torontonians/article37361569/
- No Pride in Gentrification. (n.d.). Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://queertranscommunitydefence.blogspot.com/
- No Vacancy! Guide. (2009, June 7). *No Vacancy!* https://novacancyproject.wordpress.com/no-vacancy-guide/ Nonprofits pitching in on cultural land trust proposal. (2018, January 12). Austin Monitor.
 - https://www.austinmonitor.com/stories/2018/01/nonprofits-pitching-cultural-land-trust-proposal/
- Norman, L. A. (n.d.). *Acting Locally: How Artists Can Shape the Nature of Change in their Communities*. Arts Everywhere. Retrieved February 16, 2019, from https://artseverywhere.ca/2016/05/06/acting-locally-artists-shaping-change/
- Norton, W., & Walton-Roberts, M. (2013). *Cultural Geography: Environments, Landscapes, Identities, Inequalities* (3 edition). Oxford University Press.
- Noveck, B. S. (2015). *Smart Citizens, Smarter State: The Technologies of Expertise and the Future of Governing.*Harvard University Press.
- Now that it's undeniable: Gentrification in Hamilton 2015. (2015, July 1). *Anarchist News*. https://anarchistnews.org/content/now-it%E2%80%99s-undeniable-gentrification-hamilton-2015

0

- Oakley, K. (2015). Creating Space: A re-evaluation of the role of culture in regeneration (Cultural Value). Arts & Humanities Research Council.
 - http://eprints.whiterose.ac.uk/88559/3/AHRC_Cultural_Value_KO%20Final.pdf
- Oberlin, K. C., & Gieryn, T. F. (2015). Place and culture-making: Geographic clumping in the emergence of artistic schools. *Poetics*, *50*, 20–43. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.poetic.2015.01.001
- O'Brien, H. M., Sanchez Juarez, C., & Martin, B. (2017, June 19). *An Artists' Guide to Not Being Complicit with Gentrification*. Hyperallergic. https://hyperallergic.com/385176/an-artists-guide-to-not-being-complicit-with-gentrification/
- O'Brien, L. J., & O'Brien, L. J. (2016). "Artful Vandals": Urban Interventions, Street Art and Spatial Feminisms [Masters, Concordia University]. http://spectrum.library.concordia.ca/981775/
- Occupy a Living Wage. (2012, January 11). *Art21 Magazine*. http://magazine.art21.org/2012/01/11/occupy-a-living-wage/
- O'Connor, J., & Andrejevic, M. (2017, June 11). Creative city, smart city ... Whose city is it? *The Conversation*. http://theconversation.com/creative-city-smart-city-whose-city-is-it-78258
- O'Donnell, S. (2016). *Art as Activism: Displacement Prevention in the Twin Cities*. http://conservancy.umn.edu/handle/11299/183687
- Officials, N. A. of C. T. (2013). *Urban Street Design Guide* (3 edition). Island Press. https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-design-guide/
- Ogilvie, R. (2017, September 27). What's Going On: Tensions, and Solutions, in a Changing Oakland. KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/city-rising/whats-going-on-tensions-and-solutions-in-a-changing-oakland
- O'Keefe, D. (2018, March 1). No more overlooking renters' issues in Vancouver—We need a Rent Freeze now. *The Georgia Straight*. https://www.straight.com/news/1039326/derrick-okeefe-no-more-overlooking-renters-issues-vancouver-we-need-rent-freeze-now
- Olterman, P. (2019, April 4). *Berlin's rental revolution: Activists push for properties to be nationalised.* https://www.theguardian.com/cities/2019/apr/04/berlins-rental-revolution-activists-push-for-properties-to-be-nationalised
- On Right-Wing Lefties & Public Art Softening The Blow Of Rising Rents. (n.d.). https://scoutmagazine.ca/2016/09/07/tea-two-slices-on-right-wing-lefties-public-art-softening-the-blow-of-rising-rents/
- O'Neil, L. (2019a, June 13). *Toronto home prices are triple what the average millennial can afford.* BlogTO. https://www.blogto.com/real-estate-toronto/2019/06/toronto-home-prices-are-triple-what-average-millennial-can-afford/
- O'Neil, L. (2019b, September 27). Rent prices expected to soar in Toronto over the next few years. BlogTO. https://www.blogto.com/real-estate-toronto/2019/09/rent-prices-expected-soar-toronto-over-next-few-years/
- O'Neil, L. (2019c, October 9). Rent costs are growing two times faster than incomes in Toronto. BlotTO. https://www.blogto.com/real-estate-toronto/2019/10/rent-costs-growing-two-times-faster-incomestoronto/
- O'Neil, L. (2020, January 21). *Toronto is now less affordable to live in than San Francisco or London.* BlogTO. https://www.blogto.com/real-estate-toronto/2020/01/toronto-housing-market-now-less-affordable-san-francisco-london/
- O'Neill, L. (2018, February 20). *People in Toronto are afraid to move as rent prices skyrocket*. BlogTO. https://www.blogto.com/real-estate-toronto/2019/01/toronto-apartment-condo-prices-rising-afraid-to-move/
- O'Neill, L. (2019, August 15). *The average cost of a one-bedroom rental in Toronto is now \$2,300.* BlogTO. https://www.blogto.com/real-estate-toronto/2019/08/average-cost-one-bedroom-rental-toronto-now-2300/

- ONN. (n.d.). Decent Work. *ONN*. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://theonn.ca/our-work/our-people/decent-work/
- Onstad, K. (2019, December 17). The woman who built Queen West. Toronto Life.
 - https://torontolife.com/city/katharine-mulherin-the-woman-who-built-queen-west/
- Ontario Federation of Labour: Make It Fair. (n.d.). Make It Fair. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://www.makeitfair.ca/
- Ontario Living Wage Network. (n.d.). Ontario Living Wage Network. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://www.ontariolivingwage.ca/
- Ontario's Culture Strategy. (2015, September 21). Ontario.Ca. https://www.ontario.ca/page/ontarios-culture-strategy
- Ontario's Tourism Action Plan. (2016). Ontario Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport.
 - http://www.mtc.gov.on.ca/en/tourism/Tourism_Action_Plan_2016.pdf
- Ontario's Working Poor: Maps you'll never find at the gas station (OnPolicy). (2016). Canadian Centre for Policy Alternatives: Ontario Office.
 - https://www.policyalternatives.ca/sites/default/files/uploads/publications/Ontario%20Office/2016/07/CCPA%20ON%20OnPolicy%20Summer%202016%202.pdf
- Opillard, F. (2015). Resisting the Politics of Displacement in the San Francisco Bay Area: Anti-gentrification Activism in the Tech Boom 2.0. *European Journal of American Studies, 10*(3). https://doi.org/10.4000/ejas.11322
- Opportunity Dallas. (n.d.). Opportunity Dallas. Retrieved March 23, 2018, from https://www.opportunitydallas.org
- Orangeville's Cultural Advantage: Municipal Cultural Plan with Appendices. (2014). Culture Capital, Nordicity, GeoPraxis Inc. http://www.orangeville.ca/get-file/262
- Orderson, K. (n.d.). *Not in My Neighbourhood* [Documentary]. https://caribbeantalesfestival.com/project/not-in-my-neighbourhood/
- O'Reilly, N. (2017, March 19). Bill aims to stop unfair rent increases; Hamilton experts say it's not enough. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/news-story/7197571-bill-aims-to-stop-unfair-rent-increases-hamilton-experts-say-it-s-not-enough/
- O'Rouke, K. (2013). *Walking and Mapping: Artists as Cartographers*. The MIT Press. https://mitpress.mit.edu/books/walking-and-mapping
- O'Rourke, D. (2010, November 10). *To the Footsoldiers of Gentrification*. Toronto Media Co-Op. http://toronto.mediacoop.ca/story/footsoldiers-gentrification/5103
- Orpana, S. (n.d.). *Much a-Dough about Nothing? Donuts, Gentrification and the Loss of the Commons in Hamilton*.

 Raise the Hammer. Retrieved February 16, 2019, from https://raisethehammer.org/article/3484/much_adough about nothing donuts gentrification and the loss of the commons in hamilton
- Orta, C. A. M. (2017). mirARTe: Art, Resistance, and Life in East Los: A Comparative Study of Creative Resistance in East Los Angeles, California [Thesis, Georgetown University]. https://repository.library.georgetown.edu/handle/10822/1043765
- Osman, S. (2012). *The Invention of Brownstone Brooklyn: Gentrification and the Search for Authenticity in Postwar New York* (Reprint edition). Oxford University Press.
- Osman, S. (2016). What Time is Gentrification? *City & Community*, *15*(3), 215–219. https://doi.org/10.1111/cico.12186
- Ostroff, J. (2019). The Renaissance. *Re:Porter: The Journal of Porter Airlines*, 69. https://static.flyporter.com/Content/reporter/69.pdf
- O'Sullivan, F. (2016, January 13). The "gaytrification" effect: Why gay neighbourhoods are being priced out. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/jan/13/end-of-gaytrification-cities-lgbt-communities-gentrification-gay-villages
- O'Sullivan, F. (2016, September 13). London Will Set Up Special "Creative Zones" for Artist Housing. CityLab. http://www.citylab.com/cityfixer/2016/09/londons-plan-to-set-up-creative-zones-for-artist-housing/499823/

- O'Sullivan, F. (2017, September 27). *Mapping Where Europe's Population Is Moving, Aging, and Finding Work*. CityLab. https://www.citylab.com/life/2017/09/european-demographics-aging-employment-migration/540084/
- O'Sullivan, M. T. (2013). Home Is Where the Art Is: The Impact That Housing Laws and Gentrification Policies Have Had on the Availability and Affordability of Artist Live/Work Spaces. *Seton Hall Journal of Sports and Entertainment Law, 23, 461.*
- Otar, C. (2017, November 9). *Does Gentrification Help Or Harm Small Businesses*? Forbes. https://www.forbes.com/sites/forbesfinancecouncil/2017/11/09/does-gentrification-help-or-harm-small-businesses/
- Out, B. (2017, August 23). The Cultural Ramifications of Gentrification in New Orleans. *Shelterforce*. https://shelterforce.org/2017/08/23/cultural-ramifications-gentrification-new-orleans/
- Out There Waging Culture: The Ethnicity Effect. (2014, July 21). *The Art Gallery of York University*. http://theagyuisoutthere.org/everywhere/?tag=waging-culture
- Oved, M. C. (2014a, November 30). How do we cross Toronto's great divides? *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/11/30/how_do_we_cross_torontos_great_divides.html
- Oved, M. C. (2014b, December 29). Lessons from crossing Toronto's divides. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/29/lessons_from_crossing_torontos_divides.html
- Oved, M. C. (2015, April 11). Three paths to more mixed-income neighbourhoods. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2015/04/11/three-paths-to-more-mixed-incomeneighbourhoods.html
- Owner of rock bar The Hideout says gentrification killing the Queen West buzz. (2016, September 14). *CityNews*. http://toronto.citynews.ca/2016/09/14/owner-of-rock-bar-the-hideout-says-gentrification-killing-the-queen-west-buzz/
- Ozogul, S., & Tasan-Kok, T. (2016). *Fieldwork entrepreneurs in Toronto, Jane-Finch (Canada)*. University of Amsterdam and TU Delft. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2014/01/WP7-Toronto-Report-2H-Fieldwork-Entrepreneurs.pdf

P

- Pablo, C. (2019, June 19). First Nations homes included in Vancouver housing project at River District. The Georgia Straight. https://www.straight.com/news/1256826/first-nations-homes-included-vancouver-housing-project-river-district
- Paccoud, A. (2017). Buy-to-let gentrification: Extending social change through tenure shifts. *Environment and Planning A, 49*(4), 839–856. https://doi.org/10.1177/0308518X16679406
- Pagliaro, J. (n.d.). Under Premier Doug Ford, interest is growing in making Toronto more autonomous. *The Star.* Retrieved June 17, 2019, from https://www.thestar.com/news/city_hall/2019/06/17/under-premier-doug-ford-interest-is-growing-in-making-toronto-more-autonomous.html
- Pagliaro, J. (2017, December 18). Change will come slowly despite OMB reforms. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/city_hall/2017/12/18/change-will-come-slowly-despite-omb-reforms.html
- Pagliaro, J. (2020, January 7). *Toronto is now paying the price for a decade of low property taxes, report says*. Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2020/01/07/toronto-is-now-paying-the-price-for-adecade-of-low-property-taxes-report-says.html
- Pajević, F. (2017, February 17). We don't want no Silicon Valley the Canadian city fighting for a new kind of tech hub. CityMetric. http://www.citymetric.com/business/we-dont-want-no-silicon-valley-canadian-city-fighting-new-kind-tech-hub-2811

- Palen, J. J. (1984). *Gentrification, Displacement, and Neighborhood Revitalization* (B. London, Ed.). State Univ of New York Pr.
- Palermo, L. (2014). The role of art in urban gentrification and regeneration: Aesthetic, social and economic developments. *IL CAPITALE CULTURALE. Studies on the Value of Cultural Heritage*, *0*(10), 521–545. https://doi.org/10.13138/2039-2362/753
- Palermo, P. C., & Ponzini, D. (2014). *Place-making and Urban Development: New challenges for contemporary planning and design (e-Book)*. Routledge Taylor & Francis Group. https://www.routledge.com/Place-making-and-Urban-Development-New-challenges-for-contemporary-planning/Palermo-Ponzini/p/book/9781315885469
- Pallares-Barbera, M., Dot, E., & Casellas, A. (2012). Artists, Cultural Gentrification and Public Policy. *Urbani Izziv*, 23(s 1), 104–114.
- Palling, E. (2019, March 4). *Here Are The Unofficial Results Of Ontario's Basic Income Pilot Project*. HuffPost Canada. https://www.huffingtonpost.ca/2019/03/03/ontario-basic-income-pilot-improved-participants-health-happiness-employment-prospects-survey_a_23683221/
- Pandolfi, E. (2019, October 15). Could Dumping Permanent Performance Space Help with Theater's Affordability Problem? https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/could-dumping-permanent-performance-space-help-with-theaters-affordability
- Panne, V. V. (2017a, September 28). How One Community Is Using a Surprising and Successful Tool to Fight Gentrification. *AlterNet*. https://www.alternet.org/culture/housing-preservation-gentrification-east-harlem
- Panne, V. V. (2017b, October 3). How Harlem residents found a unique way to fight gentrification. *Salon*. https://www.salon.com/2017/10/03/a-community-using-a-surprising-tool-against-gentrification_partner/
- Panos, J. (2014, September 1). An Education in Gentrification: Full-throtle neoliberalism in Toronto. *Briarpatch*. https://briarpatchmagazine.com/articles/view/an-education-in-gentrification
- Paradis, E., Wilson, R. M., & Logan, J. (2014). *Inadequate Housing & Risk of Homelessness Among Families in Toronto's Aging Rental Buildings* (Research Paper 231; Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). University of Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/homepage/inadequate-housing-toronto-rental-buildings/
- Parijs, P. V., & Vanderborght, Y. (2017). *Basic Income: A Radical Proposal for a Free Society and a Sane Economy*. Harvard University Press.
- Paris, M. (Ed.). (2017). *Making Prestigious Places: How Luxury Influences the Transformation of Cities* (1 edition). Routledge.
- *Parkdale Arts & Cultural Centre: Case Study.* (n.d.). Retrieved June 7, 2019, from https://www.artscape.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/2018-03-02_ParkdaleACC_CaseStudy.pdf
- Parkdale Community Benefits Framework: Guide for Development without Displacement. (2018). Parkdale People's Economy. https://parkdalecommunityeconomies.files.wordpress.com/2018/11/parkdale-community-benefits-framework1.pdf
- Parkdale Community Economic Development. (2016). *Parkdale Community Planning Study: Building a founation for decent work, shared wealth and equitable development in Parkdale*. The Parkdale People's Economy Project. https://parkdalecommunityeconomies.files.wordpress.com/2016/11/20161121_pced_final.pdf *Parkdale Hub*. (n.d.). Retrieved June 6, 2019, from https://parkdalehub.ca/
- Parkdale Organize. (n.d.). Parkdale Organize. Retrieved February 15, 2018, from http://parkdaleorganize.ca Parker, O. P. (2019, March 25). Malls, bowling alleys and the places of our youth are disappearing. Where do we go for a nostalgic space? The Globe and Mail. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/life/home-and-design/article-with-the-closings-of-malls-bowling-alleys-and-the-like-where-do-we/
- Parris, A. (2019, June 21). Unapologetically Latinx and queer: Why I think everyone should be watching Vida. *CBC*. https://www.cbc.ca/arts/unapologetically-latinx-and-queer-why-i-think-everyone-should-bewatching-vida-1.5183989
- Paton, K. (2014). Gentrification: A Working-Class Perspective. Routledge.
- Patterson, Dean. (2017, September 12). Marchers in Brooklyn Map a Geography of Gentrification. *The Indypendent*. https://indypendent.org/2017/09/marchers-in-brooklyn-map-the-boroughs-crooked-geography-of-gentrification/

- Patterson, Duncan. (2007, November 30). The Wild Queen West. *Spacing Toronto*. http://spacing.ca/toronto/2007/11/30/the-wild-west/
- Patterson, G. (2017). *Arts-Based Neighborhood Revitalization Engaging Artists & Creative Entrepreneurs to Identify Policy Recommendations*. https://smartech.gatech.edu/handle/1853/58525
- Paul Andrew, Aubry, T., Belanger, Y., Bird, C., Birdsall-Jones, C., Bonnycastle, M. M., Brown, D., Cherner, R., Christensen, J., Franks, P., Farrell, S., Freistadt, J., Green, C., Greenop, K., Groot, S., Hodgetts, D., Kern, S., King, P. R. W., Klodawsky, F., ... Willetts, R. (2016). *Indigenous Homelessness: Perspectives from Canada, Australia, and New Zealand*. University of Manitoba Press.
- Pawson, C. (2018, February 21). "Ignored for too long:" B.C. NDP government takes aim at housing costs with tax measures. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/bc-ndp-2018-budget-housing-measures-1.4544097
- Paying Artists: Valuing Art, Valuing Artists. (n.d.). Retrieved September 30, 2017, from http://www.payingartists.org.uk/
- PDF Viewer. (n.d.). Retrieved June 27, 2019, from https://www.artplaceamerica.org/view/pdf?f=/sites/default/files/public/pictures/artplace_field_scan_housing_sherman_apr_2016.pdf
- Pearman, F. A., & Swain, W. A. (2017). School Choice, Gentrification, and the Variable Significance of Racial Stratification in Urban Neighborhoods. *Sociology of Education*, *90*(3), 213–235. https://doi.org/10.1177/0038040717710494
- Pearson, M. (2015, September 23). *Riverdale apartment residents worry about gentrification*. HamiltonNews.Com. https://www.hamiltonnews.com/news-story/5927238-riverdale-apartment-residents-worry-about-gentrification/
- Pearson, W. (2017, August 23). *Downtown needs real ambassadors, not a private security team.* Electric City Magazine. http://www.electriccitymagazine.ca/2017/08/downtown-ambassadors/
- Pedrero, C. (2019, April 25). Community land trusts a model for community-led land stewardship. Rabble.Ca. http://rabble.ca/columnists/2019/04/community-land-trusts-model-community-led-land-stewardship.
- *Peel Poverty Action Group.* (n.d.). Peel Poverty Action Group. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://ppag.wordpress.com/
- Pelley, L. (n.d.). Regent Park affordable housing lottery draws thousands—And highlights supply "crisis," advocates say. *CBC News*. Retrieved February 16, 2019, from https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/regent-park-affordable-housing-lottery-draws-thousands-and-highlights-supply-crisis-advocates-say-1.4841184
- Pelley, L. (2018, September 10). Small businesses "taxed out" across Toronto hoping for long-term solution. CBC News. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/taxed-out-toronto-1.4809759
- Pelley, L. (2019, May 12). East-end arts organization on verge of becoming "homeless," councillor calls on city to help. CBC News. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/east-end-arts-organization-on-verge-of-becoming-homeless-councillor-calls-on-city-to-help-1.5131145
- Pendall, R. (2017). A Building Block for Inclusion: Housing for Community-Level Diversity, Participation, and Cohesion. Metropolitan Housing and Communities Policy Center, Urban Institute.
- https://www.urban.org/sites/default/files/publication/93616/a-building-block-for-inclusion_0.pdf Perks, G. (2019, July 9). GORD PERKS: The risks of the financialization of housing. *Spacing Toronto*.
- http://spacing.ca/toronto/2019/07/09/perks-the-risks-of-the-financialization-of-housing/ Perry Abello, O. (2017, October 2). Here's How 1,379 Affordable Housing Programs Stack Up. *Next City*.
- Perry Abello, O. (2017, October 2). Here's How 1,379 Affordable Housing Programs Stack Up. *Next City*. https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/news-inclusionary-housing-survey-progress-limitations
- Perry, F. (2016, October 5). 'We are building our way to hell': Tales of gentrification around the world. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/oct/05/building-way-to-hell-readers-tales-gentrification-around-world
- Peters, A. (2019, March 11). 3 cities in the U.S. have ended chronic homelessness: Here's how they did it. Fast Company. https://www.fastcompany.com/90316607/3-cities-in-the-u-s-have-ended-chronic-homelessness-heres-how-they-did-it
- Petruziello, M. (2010). *Gentrification and the Arts on Mississippi Ave.: Creating Two Communities and Making Them Whole*. LAP LAMBERT Academic Publishing.

- Pflieger, G. (2008). The social fabric of the networked city (1st ed.). EPFL Press.
- Pflug-Beck, K. R. (2016, March 30). Racist landlords are making Toronto's housing crisis worse. *Ricochet*. https://ricochet.media/en/1049
- Pham, T. (2019, February 5). *From Affordability to Artwashing: An Inquiry*. Canadian Art. https://canadianart.ca/essays/from-affordability-to-artwashing-an-inquiry/
- PhD, P. L. (2017a). Research Design: Quantitative, Qualitative, Mixed Methods, Arts-Based, and Community-Based Participatory Research Approaches. The Guilford Press. https://www.guilford.com/books/Research-Design/Patricia-Leavy/9781462514380
- PhD, P. L. (Ed.). (2017b). Handbook of Arts-Based Research (1 edition). The Guilford Press.
- Phillips, A. (Ed.). (2012). *Social housing housing the social: Art, property and spatial justice*. Sternberg Press. http://www.sternberg-press.com/index.php?pageld=1379&l=en&bookld=274&sort=year
- Phillips, L. (2016). *Public Servants: Art and the Crisis of the Common Good* (J. Burton, S. Jackson, & D. Willsdon, Eds.; 1 edition). The MIT Press.
- Phillips, M. (2018). *Handbook of Gentrification Studies* (L. Lees, Ed.). Edward Elgar Pub.
- Phillips, R. (2004). Artful business: Using the arts for community economic development. *Community Development Journal*, *39*(2), 112–122. https://doi.org/10.1093/cdj/39.2.112
- Philp, D. (2018). A \$500 House in Detroit: Rebuilding an Abandoned Home and an American City (Reprint edition). Scribner.
- Pickford, J. (2018, January 15). *Tate Modern explores state of the art studios*. Financial Times. https://www.ft.com/content/3300c436-fa11-11e7-9b32-d7d59aace167
- Piette, J. (2017, September 23). *Anti-gentrification organizing heats up in Philadelphia*. Workers World. https://www.workers.org/2017/09/22/anti-gentrification-organizing-heats-up-in-philadelphia/
- Pigg, S. (2015, March 26). \$700-million arts-focused complex planned for Queens Quay site. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/business/2015/03/26/700-million-arts-focused-complex-planned-for-queens-quay-site.html
- Piketty, T. (2015). *The Economics of Inequality* (A. Goldhammer, Trans.; Tra edition). Belknap Press: An Imprint of Harvard University Press.
- Pinder, D. (2008). Urban Interventions: Art, Politics and Pedagogy: Debates and Developments. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 32(3), 730–736. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-2427.2008.00810.x
- Pinkster, F. M., & Boterman, W. R. (2017). When the spell is broken: Gentrification, urban tourism and privileged discontent in the Amsterdam canal district. *Cultural Geographies*, *24*(3), 457–472. https://doi.org/10.1177/1474474017706176
- Pipe, T. (2016, September 11). Gentrification And Art: It's Complicated. *The Anvil.* https://hamiltonanvil.wordpress.com/2016/09/11/gentrification-and-art-its-complicated/
- Pltter, J. (2016, June 5). A visit to the social housing community of my childhood. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/051cff98-29a3-11e6-8b8e-0a2c6093033d/
- Pitter, J. (2017, February 16). Spatial Entitlement—A.k.a. Your Right to Take Up Space. *Flare*. http://www.flare.com/culture/jay-pitter-essay/
- Pitter, J. (2019, February 8). *Yuly Chan on How to Defend a Neighbourhood*. The Tyee. https://thetyee.ca/Opinion/2019/02/08/Yuly-Chan-Chinatown/
- Pitter, J., & Lorinc, J. (Eds.). (2016). *Subdivided: City-Building in an Age of Hyper-Diversity*. Coach House Books. https://chbooks.com/Books/S/Subdivided2
- *Place Lab.* (n.d.). University of Chicago. Retrieved October 14, 2017, from https://placelab.uchicago.edu/
- Placemaking: What if we built our cities around places? (2016). Project for Public Spaces.
 - https://www.pps.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/Oct-2016-placemaking-booklet.pdf
- Pohjanpalo, K. (2019, July 21). *How Finland slashed homelessness by 40 per cent*. Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/news/world/2019/07/21/how-finland-slashed-homelessness-by-40-percent.html
- Pool, C. (2013, June 5). St. Henri Occupiers Face Eviction. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/st.-henri-occupiers-face-eviction

- Poon, M. (2010). *A Handbook for Vancouver Artists Seeking Affordable Studio Space* [University of British Columbia]. https://doi.org/10.14288/1.0102500
- Popper, G. (2019, March 5). How city hall is keeping needed change out of "stable neighbourhoods." *Spacing*. http://spacing.ca/toronto/2019/03/05/how-city-hall-is-keeping-needed-change-out-of-stable-neighbourhoods/
- Posadzki, A. (2017, February 8). Canadian families moving to escape urban housing prices. *Macleans*. http://www.macleans.ca/news/canadian-families-moving-to-escape-soaring-housing-prices/
- Post. (2015, February 12). Gentrification, housing at the core of Denver's 2015 strategic plan. *The Denver Post*. http://www.denverpost.com/2015/02/12/gentrification-housing-at-the-core-of-denvers-2015-strategic-plan/
- Pothier, M. (n.d.). Queers in the hood: How LGBTQ2SI+ folks can stand up to gentrification in Hamilton neighbourhoods. *BentQ*. Retrieved April 30, 2019, from http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:A0BSsiyDF3cJ:bentq.ca/queers-in-the-hood-how-lgbtq2si-folks-can-stand-up-to-gentrification-in-hamilton-neighbourhoods/+&cd=1&hl=en&ct=clnk&gl=ca
- Powell, N. (n.d.). *The Dublin Property Boom and Its Disappearing Artists*. CityLab. Retrieved July 11, 2019, from http://www.citylab.com/housing/2016/05/the-dublin-docklands-property-boom-and-its-disappearing-artists/484172/
- Powell-Twagirumukiza, N. (2017, May 16). *Here's How Queer and Trans People of Color Are Resisting Gentrification and Displacement*. Autostraddle. https://www.autostraddle.com/queering-the-land-how-queer-and-trans-people-of-color-are-resisting-gentrification-and-displacement-379320/
- Predicting Gentrification in the Era of Big Data. (2016, September 22). Community and Economic Development in North Carolina and Beyond: UNC Chapel Hill School of Government. https://ced.sog.unc.edu/predicting-gentrification-in-the-era-of-big-data/
- Predicting gentrification through social networking data. (2016, April 12). EurekAlert! http://www.eurekalert.org/pub_releases/2016-04/uoc-pgt041116.php
- Preville, P. (2020, January 22). What happens to a city when the next generation of teachers, cops, nurses and firefighters decide to leave? Toronto Life. https://torontolife.com/real-estate/what-happens-to-a-city-when-the-next-generation-of-teachers-cops-nurses-and-firefighters-decide-to-leave/
- Price, E. (2017, September 19). Home Lender Loftium Requires You List a Room on Airbnb. *Fortune*. http://fortune.com/2017/09/19/airbnb-buying-house/
- *Priced Out.* (n.d.). Priced Out: The Documentary. Retrieved November 1, 2017, from https://www.pricedoutmovie.com/
- Pritchard, S. (n.d.). Artwashing & gentrification (or the deeply interwoven web of arts & corporate interests). Colouring in Culture. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from
 - http://colouringinculture.org/blog/artwashinggentrificationcomplexweb
- Pritchard, S. (2016, September 13). Hipsters and artists are the gentrifying foot soldiers of capitalism. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2016/sep/13/hipsters-artists-gentrifying-capitalism
- Pritchard, S. (2017, June 17). *Artwashing: Social Capital & Anti-Gentrification Activism*. http://colouringinculture.org/blog/artwashingsocialcapitalantigentrification
- Pritchard, S. (2019a). Place Guarding: Activist art against gentrification. In *Creative Placemaking: Research, Theory and Practice* (pp. 140–156). Routledge.
- Pritchard, S. (2019b, February 9). Neoliberalism and the Arts. *Colouring in Culture*. http://colouringinculture.org/blog/2019/2/8/neoliberalism-and-the-arts
- Proano, N. (2016, December 5). Understanding the Anti-Gentrification Attacks in Hochelaga. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/understanding-the-anti-gentrification-attacks-in-hochelaga
- Procyk, S. (2014). *Understanding Income Inequality in Canada, 1980-2014* (Research Paper 232; Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). United Way Toronto/York Region and University of Toront. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/documents/2015/02/understanding-income-inequality-in-canada-1980-2014.pdf
- Project for Public Spaces. (n.d.). Project for Public Spaces. Retrieved October 10, 2017, from https://www.pps.org/

- Project Row Houses. (n.d.). Project Row Houses. Retrieved August 12, 2019, from https://projectrowhouses.org
 Projet Impact Collectif | Collective Impact Project. (n.d.). Centraide of Greater Montreal. Retrieved October 7, 2017,
 from http://pic.centraide.org/
- *Promoting Ontario Music.* (2013). Music Ontario. http://headwatersb2b.ca/wp-content/uploads/sites/7/2016/01/Promoting-Ontario-Music-Ontarios-Live-Music-Strategy.pdf
- Protesters target Cuchillo as another symbol of gentrification in Vancouver's Downtown Eastside. (n.d.). https://www.straight.com/news/398401/protesters-target-cuchillo-another-symbol-gentrification-vancouvers-downtown-eastside
- Provost, C., & Lai, S. (2017, September 28). "This is art, not a public disturbance": Turin's balcony concert is under threat. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/sep/28/turin-balcony-concert-survive-noise-complaint
- Pru Robey Consulting. (n.d.). Pru Robey Consulting. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://www.prurobey.com Przybyslawski, C. (2017, April 25). This Short Doc Highlights the Effects of Gentrification on a City's Music Scene. Thump. https://thump.vice.com/en_ca/article/8gpv53/toronto-cbc-diy-gentrification-documentary
- Pseudo-public space: Explore the map and tell us what we're missing. (2017, July 24). *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/jul/24/pseudo-public-space-explore-data-what-missing
- Public Consultations—Economic Development and Culture Divisional Strategy (2018-2022). (n.d.). City of Toronto. Retrieved October 29, 2017, from
 - https://www1.toronto.ca/wps/portal/contentonly?vgnextoid=61f1c4de41e26510VgnVCM10000071d 60f89RCRD&projectID=330
- PUBLICATION: RECENTRE Futures and Today & Yesterday. (2019, August 14). Trinity Square Video. https://www.trinitysquarevideo.com/publication-recentre-futures-and-today-yesterday/
- Pucci, M. (n.d.). Give me a Home Where the Undergrads Roam. *The Link*. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/give-me-a-home-where-the-undergrads-roam
- *PUSH Buffalo Annual Report 2018.* (n.d.). https://www.pushbuffalo.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/PUSH-AnnualReport2018.pdf

Q-R

- Queering The Map. (n.d.). Queering The Map. Retrieved July 11, 2018, from https://www.queeringthemap.com/Quiros, V. (2011). Neighborhood Transformation and Gentrification: A study of individual and community narratives of home, neighborhood and community transformation. LAP LAMBERT Academic Publishing.
- Quito, A., & Quito, A. (n.d.). Anti-gentrification activists took over Berlin's public theater and turned it into a 24/7 party. *Quartz*. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from https://qz.com/1087760/anti-gentrification-activists-took-over-berlins-iconic-public-theater-and-turned-it-into-a-247-party/
- Ra, D. B. (2014). Success of Urban Regeneration Regarding Gentrification&sustainability. LAP Lambert Academic Publishing.
- Rainford, L. (2018, October 11). *Toronto's Weston area revitalized by housing and transit developments*. https://www.toronto.com/news-story/8946043-toronto-s-weston-area-revitalized-by-housing-and-transit-developments/
- Ralston, S. (2017). Low-Rise Housing in Toronto and Lima in 1968: A Rejection of the Corbusian HighRise or Modernization through Appropriation? *Landmarks: The Undergraduate Geography Journal, University of Toronto*, *3*, 46–55.
- Ramirez, M. M. (2017). *Decolonial ruptures of the city: Art-activism amid racialized dispossession in Oakland* [Thesis]. https://digital.lib.washington.edu:443/researchworks/handle/1773/38633

- Rancic, M. (2016, April 4). *Council unanimously votes to make Toronto a Music City*. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/62c7e9ce-fa77-11e5-b88c-22000b078648/
- Rancic, M. (2019, May 21). Vanishing venues: New funding models favour festivals over small music clubs. SpacingToronto. http://spacing.ca/toronto/2019/05/21/vanishing-venues-new-funding-models-favour-festivals-over-small-music-clubs
- Rancic, M. (2019, November 20). *Toronto explores creating grants for music venues*. NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/172e65aa-0b0e-11ea-b371-1244d5f7c7c6/
- Rankin, K. N., Kamizaki, K., McLean, H., Canadian Electronic Library (Firm), Canadian Electronic Library York University, & University of Toronto: Cities Centre,. (2013). *The state of business in Mount Dennis: Disinvestment and gentrification in Toronto's inner-suburbs*. Canadian Electronic Library. http://ezproxy.library.yorku.ca/login?url=http://books.scholarsportal.info/viewdoc.html?id=/ebooks/ebooks0/gibson_cppc/2014-06-25/1/10863627
- Ratti, C., & Claudel, M. (2016). *The City of Tomorrow: Sensors, Networks, Hackers, and the Future of Urban Life.* Yale University Press.
- Ravallion, M. (2015). The Economics of Poverty: History, Measurement, and Policy. Oxford University Press.
- Rayner, B. (2017). Affordable-housing project in Regent Park envisioned just for musicians. *The Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/music/2017/06/12/affordable-housing-project-in-regent-park-envisioned-just-for-musicians.html
- R.E Millward. (2017). King-Spadina Cultural Spaces Retention Study: Strengthening the Creative Economy in Toronto's Downtown Core. R.E. Millward + Associates Ltd. https://www.toronto.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/8e62-King-Spadina Cultural Spaces Retention Study 2017 .pdf
- Reaching out to atypical workers. (n.d.). International Arts and Entertainment Alliance. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from https://www.iaea-globalunion.org/atypical-workers
- Real-time social media analytics for gentrification. (n.d.). Keyhole. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://keyhole.co/realtime/dADXE9/gentrification
- Reckdahl, K. (2017, January 11). Keeping Your Artists Close to Home. *Shelterforce*. https://shelterforce.org/2017/01/11/keeping-your-artists-close-to-home/
- Redhill, M. (2017, November). What the Giller Prize means to Michael Redhill. *The Globe and Mail.* https://www.theglobeandmail.com/arts/books-and-media/what-the-giller-prize-means-to-michaelredhill/article37069855
- Reece, J. (2004). *Technical Memorandum on Gentrification Issues*. Kirwan Institute for the Study of Race & Ethnicity, Ohio State University.
 - $http://www.kirwaninstitute.osu.edu/reports/2004/07_2004_Gentrification\%20 and \%20 Revitalization.pdf$
- Refusing Gentrification: Community Arts & Practice(s). (n.d.). Gardiner Museum. Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://www.gardinermuseum.on.ca/event/refusing-gentrification-community-arts-practices/
- Regan, P., & Alfred, T. (2011). *Unsettling the Settler Within: Indian Residential Schools, Truth Telling, and Reconciliation in Canada*. UBC Press. https://www.ubcpress.ca/unsettling-the-settler-within
- Reich, R. B. (2015). Saving Capitalism: For the Many, Not the Few (First Edition edition). Knopf.
- Reillier, L. C., & Reillier, B. (2017). *Platform Strategy: How to Unlock the Power of Communities and Networks to Grow Your Business* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Reiner, T. (2017). *Gentrification and Politics. Political Measures Against Gentrification Using the Example of Graz and Hamburg.* Grin Publishing.
- Relph, E. (2013). Toronto: Transformations in a City and Its Region. University of Pennsylvania Press.
- Renew Australia—Catalysing community renewal and economic development. (n.d.). Renew Australia. Retrieved December 18, 2019, from https://www.renewaustralia.org/
- Renew Newcastle: Copy the Model. (n.d.). Renew Newcastle. Retrieved December 18, 2019, from https://renewnewcastle.org/about/copy-the-model/
- Renner, K. (2010). Gentrification in SoHo, New York (1 edition). GRIN Verlag.
- Rent-control policy `likely fueled the gentrification of San Francisco,' study finds. (2017, November 2). *The Mercury News*. http://www.mercurynews.com/2017/11/02/rent-control-policy-likely-fueled-the-gentrification-of-san-francisco-study-finds/

- Rentlogic. (n.d.). Rentlogic before You Sign a Lease. Retrieved October 1, 2017, from https://rentlogic.com
 Report: The minimum amount it costs millennials to live in Vancouver in 2018. (800, 36:22). Daily Hive.
 http://dailyhive.com/vancouver/vancouver-millennial-cost-living-2018
- Rérat, P., Söderström, O., Piguet, E., & Besson, R. (2009). From urban wastelands to new-build gentrification: The case of Swiss cities. *Population, Space and Place*, n/a-n/a. https://doi.org/10.1002/psp.595
- Research Symposium on Gentrification and Neighborhood Change. (2016). Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia: Community Development Events. https://www.philadelphiafed.org/community-development/events/2016/research-symposium-on-gentrification
- RESEARCHER IN RESIDENCE: Holly Chang. (n.d.). Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://www.trinitvsquarevideo.com/researcher-in-residence-holly-c/
- Resources | Equity in Theatre. (n.d.). Retrieved October 14, 2017, from http://www.eit.playwrightsguild.ca/resources
- Resources & Tools. (2010, April 7). *Centre for Equality Rights in Accommodation*. http://www.equalityrights.org/our-publications/
- Revitalization News—Cape Town celebrates repurposing iconic waterfront grain silo as African art museum. (2017, October 1). *Revitalization News*. https://revitalizationnews.com/article/cape-town-celebrates-repurposing-iconic-waterfront-grain-silo-african-art-museum/
- Revitalization or gentrification? (2013, March 25). *Media, Culture & Society*. https://mediaculturesociety.org/2013/03/25/revitalization-or-gentrification/
- Revitalization without Displacement (A Livability Fact Sheet). (2014). AARP. http://www.aarp.org/content/dam/aarp/livable-communities/documents-2014/Livability%20Fact%20Sheets/Revitalization-Without-Displacement-Fact-Sheet.pdf
- Revolutionary Arts. (n.d.). Revolutionary Arts. Retrieved December 18, 2019, from https://revolutionaryarts.wordpress.com/
- Rex Murphy: The callousness of protest on display in Vancouver (with a happy ending). (n.d.). https://nationalpost.com/opinion/rex-murphy-the-callousness-of-protest-on-display-in-vancouver-with-a-happy-ending
- Ricci, S. (2019, October 11). *Montreal's Durocher Art Space At Risk* [The Link]. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/montreals-durocher-art-space-at-risk
- Rich, M. A. (2015, March 23). Arts Districts Without Artists. *Metropolitics*. http://www.metropolitiques.eu/Arts-Districts-Without-Artists.html
- Rich, M. A., & Tsitsos, W. (2016). Avoiding the 'SoHo Effect' in Baltimore: Neighborhood Revitalization and Arts and Entertainment Districts: AVOIDING THE 'SOHO EFFECT' IN BALTIMORE. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 40(4), 736–756. https://doi.org/10.1111/1468-2427.12376
- Richards, G. (2011). Creativity and tourism. *Annals of Tourism Research*, *38*(4), 1225–1253. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.annals.2011.07.008
- Richards, G., & Duif, L. (2018). *Small Cities with Big Dreams: Creative Placemaking and Branding Strategies* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Richardson, A. B. (2015). *Equitable cultural development: A best practices toolkit for inclusive and sustainable cultural development* [Thesis]. https://doi.org/10.15781/T21K88
- Rider, D. (2014a, November 28). Star series looks at Toronto: The Divided City. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/qta/2014/11/28/how do we unite torontos divided city.html
- Rider, D. (2014b, December 1). Mayor John Tory warns of risks of a divided city. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/city_hall/2014/12/01/mayor_john_tory_warns_of_risks_of_a_divided city.html
- Rider, D. (2014c, December 8). A tale of income inequality in five Toronto neighbourhoods. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2014/12/08/a_tale_of_income_inequality_in_five_toronto_neighbourhoods.html
- Rider, D. (2015a, January 28). Toronto's income gap continues to widen, finds U of T expert. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/city_hall/2015/01/28/torontos-income-gap-continues-to-widen-finds-u-of-t-expert.html

- Rider, D. (2015b, June 12). Gardiner vote reveals how Toronto is a divided city. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/city_hall/2015/06/12/gardiner-vote-reveals-how-toronto-is-a-divided-city.html
- Rizzi, P., Dioli, I., Graziano, P., & Bradbee, C. (2017). Urban regeneration through arts and culture: The case of a multicultural neighbourhood in a medium-sized Italian city. *Journal of Urban Regeneration & Renewal*, 10(3), 301–313.
- Roberts, C. (2016). Start Me Up: Why London Needs Open Workspaces for Creativity, Innovation and Growth. Institute for Public Policy Research.
 - https://www.creativelandtrust.org/assets/papers/IPPR%20Start%20me%20up%202016.pdf
- Roberts, N. (2019, December 12). Role of Art in Navigating Bushwick's Gentrification Minefield. *BKLYNER*. https://bklyner.com/bushwick-gentrification-arts/
- Robertson, I., & Cooper, C. (2011). *Well-being: Productivity and Happiness at Work* (1st ed. 2011 edition). Palgrave Macmillan.
- Robinson, M. (2016, September 22). Almost no one to earn more under Vancouver's living wage policy. *The Vancouver Sun*. http://vancouversun.com/news/local-news/almost-no-one-to-earn-more-under-vancouvers-living-wage-policy
- Rockbrand, B. (2019, May 30). *The Address Calls Montrealers to Take Action Against Gentrification* | *Fringe Arts.* The Link. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/the-address-calls-montrealers-to-take-action-against-gentrification
- Rockne Corrigan, D. (2019, August 6). Home truths, Part 1: Why affordable housing isn't just a Toronto issue. *TVO*. https://www.tvo.org/article/home-truths-part-1-why-affordable-housing-isnt-just-a-toronto-issue
- Rodenbeck, E. (2013, September 6). Mapping Silicon Valley's Gentrification Problem Through Corporate Shuttle Routes. *Wired*. https://www.wired.com/2013/09/mapping-silicon-valleys-corporate-shuttle-problem/
- Rodionova, Z. (2016, April 15). How Twitter and Foursquare can predict the next up-and-coming area. *The Independent*. http://www.independent.co.uk/news/business/news/london-gentrification-can-be-predicted-by-twitter-and-foursquare-say-cambridge-researchers-a6985526.html
- Roelvink, G. (2016). *Building Dignified Worlds: Geographies of Collective Action*. Univ Of Minnesota Press. Roelvink, G., Martin, K. S., & Gibson-Graham, J. K. (Eds.). (2015). *Making Other Worlds Possible: Performing Diverse Economies*. University of Minnesota Press.
- Rojas, J. (2015, April 7). Why Urban Planners Should Work With Artists. KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/artbound/why-urban-planners-should-work-with-artists
- Romero, R. (2017). Bittersweet ambivalence: Austin's street artists speak of gentrification. *Journal of Cultural Geography*, 1–22. https://doi.org/10.1080/08873631.2017.1338855
- Romu, R. (2019, September 18). Who's leading the way toward accessibility in Toronto's music scene? NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/a1803050-da5b-11e9-a62b-12f1225286c6/
- Rosario Jackson, M. (2015, March 13). *How Creative Placemaking Plays a Role in the Creative Economy*. KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/artbound/how-creative-placemaking-plays-a-role-in-the-creative-economy
- Rosario Jackson, M., Kabwasa-Green, F., & Herranz, J. (2006, December 15). *Cultural Vitality in Communities: Interpretation and Indicators*. Urban Institute. https://www.urban.org/research/publication/cultural-vitality-communities-interpretation-and-indicators/view/full_report
- Rose, K. (n.d.). Combating Gentrification Through Equitable Development. *Reimagine RP&E Journal*. Retrieved October 14, 2017, from http://www.reimaginerpe.org/node/919
- Rose, K., Hawk Daniel, M., & Liu, J. (2017). *Creating Change through Arts, Culture, and Equitable Development: A Policy and Practice Primer.* PolicyLink.
 - http://www.policylink.org/sites/default/files/report_arts_culture_equitable-development.pdf
- Rosen, G., & Walks, A. (2015). Castles in Toronto's Sky: Condo-Ism as Urban Transformation. *Journal of Urban Affairs*, *37*(3), 289–310. https://doi.org/10.1111/juaf.12140
- Rosenthal, S. S., & Ross, S. L. (2014). Change and Persistence in the Economic Status of Neighbourhoods and Cities. *Handbook of Regional and Urban Economics*, 5.
 - http://faculty.maxwell.syr.edu/rosenthal/recent%20papers/Handbook_Chapter_9_22_2014_Rosenthal_Ross%20-%20forthcoming.pdf

- Ross, A. (2017). The Industries of the Future (Reprint edition). Simon & Schuster.
- Ross, C. (2016). Exploring the Ways Arts and Culture Intersect with Public Safety: Identifying Current Practice and Opportunities for Further Inquiry—A Creative Placemaking Field Scan. ArtPlace America, Urban Institute. https://www.artplaceamerica.org/view/pdf?f=/sites/default/files/public/pictures/artplace_field_scan_safety_ross_apr_2016_updated.pdf
- Ross, D. (n.d.). *How Gentrification Is Killing Local Music Scenes*. Forbes. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from https://www.forbes.com/sites/dannyross1/2017/08/25/how-gentrification-is-killing-local-music-scenes/
- Ross, S. G. (2017). Development versus Preservation Interests in the Making of a Music City: A Case Study of Select Iconic Toronto Music Venues and the Treatment of Their Intangible Cultural Heritage Value. *International Journal of Cultural Property*, 24(1), 31–56. https://doi.org/10.1017/S0940739116000382
- Rothstein, D. S. (n.d.). Why Diversity Initiatives Rarely Make Gentrifying Neighborhoods More Equitable. *Next City*. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://nextcity.org/daily/entry/decatur-georgia-diversity-initiatives-fail-gentrification-equity
- Rotsztain, D. (n.d.). *The Urban Geographer*. Retrieved September 27, 2019, from https://theurbangeographer.ca/About
- Rousseau, M. (2009). Re-imaging the City Centre for the Middle Classes: Regeneration, Gentrification and Symbolic Policies in 'Loser Cities.' *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 33(3), 770–788. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-2427.2009.00889.x
- Roy, K. (2017). Make Housing Central: British Columbia and the Affordable Housing Crisis. Indyhan Books.

 Royall, E., & Wortmann, T. (2015). Finding the State Space of Urban Regeneration: Modeling Gentrification as a Probabilistic Process using k-Means Clustering and Markov Models. CUPUM 2015 International Conference on Computers in Urban Planning and Urban Management.

 http://web.mit.edu/cron/project/CUPUM2015/proceedings/Content/modeling/275_royall_h.pdf
- RPA Regional Plan Association. (n.d.). Regional Plan Association. Retrieved November 1, 2017, from http://www.rpa.org/fourth-plan
- Rucchetto, A., & Knights, C. (2017, February 1). Gentrification's toll on the health of long-term residents. *Healthy Debate: Opinions*. http://healthydebate.ca/opinions/gentrification-health-effects
- Rufrano, M. (2014). "Domed" and Whited Out: Arts Gentrification and the Negotiation of Public Space in Long Island City, NY. *ETD Collection for Fordham University*, 1–102.
- Ruggiero, A. (2014). *Gentrification Reconsidered: The Case of the Junction* [Major Paper, York University]. https://pdfs.semanticscholar.org/027e/183b56a5fc66d90968a3a7aaa70509fa8743.pdf
- Rugh, P. (2017, October 17). *Gentrification Prime*. https://indypendent.org/2017/10/gentrification-prime/Rushowy, K. (2017a, September 26). Arts, culture hubs to get property tax relief. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/news/queenspark/2017/09/26/401-richmond-getting-property-tax-relief.html
- Rushowy, K. (2017b, September 26). Toronto arts hub 401 Richmond getting property tax relief. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/queenspark/2017/09/26/401-richmond-getting-property-tax-relief.html
- Russell, J. (2016, September 26). *The People's Bank of Govanhill to roll out a number of exchange projects*. Glasgowlive. http://www.glasgowlive.co.uk/news/glasgow-news/peoples-bank-govanhill-first-exchange-11939836
- Ryan, J. R. S. (2017). Arts-Based Gentrification in Hamilton, ON. *Journal of Undergraduate Studies at Trent (JUST)*, 5(1), 61–67.
- Ryan-Collins, J., Lloyd, T., & Macfarlane, L. (2017). *Rethinking the Economics of Land and Housing*. Zed Books. Ryerson City Building Institute. (2018, July 24). Taxed Out. *Ryerson City Building Institute*. https://www.citybuildinginstitute.ca/portfolio/taxed-out/

- Sabonis, P., & Hill, M. (n.d.). *Community + Land + Trust: Tools for Development Without Displacement*. The Baltimore Housing Roundtable.
- Sadik-Khan, J., & Solomonow, S. (2016). Streetfight: Handbook for an Urban Revolution. Viking.
- Sadler, S. (2017). Review: Obsolescence: An Architectural History, by Daniel M. Abramson. *Journal of the Society of Architectural Historians*, *76*(3), 390–392. https://doi.org/10.1525/jsah.2017.76.3.390
- Saiz, A., & Salazar, A. (2017). Real Trends: The Future of Real Estate in the United States.
- Salone, C., Bonini Baraldi, S., & Pazzola, G. (2017). Cultural production in peripheral urban spaces: Lessons from Barriera, Turin (Italy). *European Planning Studies*, 1–21. https://doi.org/10.1080/09654313.2017.1327033
- Sandals, L. (2019, October 16). *Studio Spaces Disappearing in Vancouver's Eastside: Report.* Canadian Art. https://canadianart.ca/news/action-needed-now-on-disappearing-vancouver-studio-space-report/
- Sandercock, L. (Ed.). (1998). *Making the Invisible Visible: A Multicultural Planning History* (First edition). University of California Press.
- Sanneh, K. (2016, July 4). Is Gentrification Really a Problem? *The New Yorker*. https://www.newyorker.com/magazine/2016/07/11/is-gentrification-really-a-problem
- Sasajima, H. (2015, August 27). Cultural Aspects of Artist-led Gentrification in SoHo Between the 1950s and 1970s: A Field Analysis of the Agglomeration Processes of Art Venues. *The Ideal City: Between Myth and*
- Reality. Representations, Policies, Contradictions and Challenges for Tomorrow's Urban Life. RC21 International Conference, Urbino, Italy. http://www.rc21.org/en/wp-content/uploads/2015/08/000-Sasajima.pdf
- Saunders, P. (n.d.). Where Educated Millennials Are Moving. Forbes. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://www.forbes.com/sites/petesaunders1/2017/01/12/where-educated-millennials-are-moving/
- Savin-Baden, M., & Major, C. H. (2012). *Qualitative Research: The essential guide to theory and practice*. Routledge. https://www.routledge.com/Qualitative-Research-The-essential-guide-to-theory-and-practice-1st-Edition/Savin-Baden-Howell-Major/p/book/9780415674782
- Saxena, J., & Specter, E. (2019, February 26). Despite Amazon's Departure, The Future of Art in Long Island City is Hazy. *Garage*. https://garage.vice.com/en_us/article/3kg7z9/long-island-city-art
- Scalwag Magazine. (2019, December 14). *Paint It Black: Combating gentrification through the arts.* https://www.eventbrite.com/e/83848813057?aff=efbneb
- Schaffer Bacon, B., Yuen, C., & Korza, P. (1999). *Animating Democracy—The Artistic Imagination as a Force in Civic Dialogue*. Americans for the Arts.
 - $http://www.animating democracy.org/sites/default/files/documents/reading_room/Animating_Democracy_Study.pdf$
- Scherabon, H. (2016, November 30). *The art of gentrification: City data made beautiful.* The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/gallery/2016/nov/30/art-gentrification-patterns-data-visualisation-herwig-scherabon-
- Schlichtman, J. J., Patch, J., Hill, M. L., & Marcuse, P. (2017). *Gentrifier*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- Schmitz, A. (2000). Multifamily Housing Development Handbook. Urban Land Institute.
- Scholz, T. (2016). *Uberworked and Underpaid: How Workers Are Disrupting the Digital Economy*. Polity.
- Schrank, A. (2017, September 28). How an LA community is fighting back against gentrification. *Marketplace*. http://www.marketplace.org/2017/09/28/wealth-poverty/how-la-community-fighting-back-against-gentrification
- Schratt, A. (2010). Processes of Gentrification: A Survey of Brooklyn Residents. VDM Verlag Dr. Müller.
- Schuetz, J. (2014a). Do art galleries stimulate redevelopment? *Journal of Urban Economics*, 83, 59–72. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jue.2014.08.002
- Schuetz, J. (2014b, October 22). Art galleries may be a signal of future gentrification, but they don't cause it [Website]. LSE American Politics and Policy. https://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2014/10/22/art-galleries-may-be-a-signal-of-future-gentrification-but-they-dont-cause-it/
- Schulkind, R. (2017, July 5). Should we blame art for Brixton's gentrification? *New Statesman*. https://www.newstatesman.com/politics/economy/2017/07/should-we-blame-art-brixtons-gentrification

- Schulman, S. (2013). *The Gentrification of the Mind: Witness to a Lost Imagination* (Reprint edition). University of California Press.
- Schwab, K. (2017). The Fourth Industrial Revolution. Crown Business.
- Schwartz, M. (n.d.). *The Art of Gentrification*. Dissent Magazine. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from https://www.dissentmagazine.org/article/the-art-of-gentrification
- Schwartz, S. I., & Rosen, W. (2015). Street Smart: The Rise of Cities and the Fall of Cars (1 edition). PublicAffairs.
- Scoffield, H. (2020, January 23). *Could splitting mortgage costs with investors make housing more affordable? Canada's top banker believes it would.* Thestar.Com.
 - https://www.thestar.com/politics/federal/2020/01/23/could-splitting-mortgage-costs-with-investors-make-housing-more-affordable-canadas-top-banker-believes-it-would.html
- Scottee. (2014, February 3). UK arts: Reasons not to get involved. *The Guardian*.
 - http://www.theguardian.com/culture-professionals-network/culture-professionals-blog/2014/feb/03/uk-arts-reasons-not-involved
- Scutari, M. (2014). Three Reasons Why Creative Placemaking Represents the Future of Arts Funding. Inside Philanthropy. https://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:eAJ2pBL-Q7UJ:https://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/2014/3/31/three-reasons-why-creative-placemaking-represents-the-future.html+&cd=1&hl=en&ct=clnk&gl=ca
- Scutari, M. (2016). *The Future is Here: Artplace America's Latest Big Move on Creative Placemaking*. Inside Philanthropy. https://www.artplaceamerica.org/library/future-here
- Scutari, M. (2018, October 9). *Grand Experiment: Behind An Influential Funder's Big Bet on "Equitable Neighborhood Development."* Inside Philanthropy. https://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/2018/10/9/grand-experiment-behind-an-influential-funders-big-bet-on-equitable-neighborhood-development
- Scutari, M. (2019, May 30). *Displacement Fears: Arts Funders and the Dilemma of Urban Gentrification*. Inside Philanthropy. https://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/2019/5/30/displacement-dilemma-do-arts-funders-exacerbate-urban-gentrification
- Sears, K. (2017, September 22). Redoubling Its Efforts, an Artist-Lead Activist Group Asks Vulcan for Equitable Development. Seattle Weekly. https://www.seattleweekly.com/arts/redoubling-its-efforts-an-artist-lead-activist-group-asks-vulcan-for-equitable-development/
- Seattle Artist Coalition For Equitable Development. (n.d.). Retrieved October 18, 2017, from https://www.facebook.com/SeattleACED/
- Seligson, H. (2019, March 2). The New 30-Something. *The New York Times*. https://www.nytimes.com/2019/03/02/style/financial-independence-30s.html
- Senécal, P., Tremblay, C., Teufel, D., & Société d'habitation du Québec: Direction de l'analyse et de la recherche. (1990). *Gentrification or urban sprawl?: Central Montréal and surrounding area*. Société d'habitation du Québec, Direction g'en'erale de la planification et de la recherche, Direction de l'analyse et de la recherche.
- September 26, G. K. P. on:, September 26, 2017 | Last Updated:, & Mdt, 2017 9:30 Pm. (2017, September 26). Minimum wage hike could lead to 25,000 job losses: C.D. Howe report. *Edmonton Journal*. http://edmontonjournal.com/news/local-news/minimum-wage-hike-could-lead-to-25000-job-losses-c-d-howe-report
- Seresinhe, C. I., Preis, T., & Moat, H. S. (2016). Quantifying the link between art and property prices in urban neighbourhoods. *Royal Society Open Science*, *3*(4). https://doi.org/10.1098/rsos.160146
- Sevcenko, M. (2018a, March 1). *Un-gentrifying Portland: Scheme helps displaced residents come home*. The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2018/mar/01/portland-anti-gentrification-housing-scheme-right-return
- Sevcenko, M. (2018b, March 22). *Residency Program Supports Artists of Color Displaced by Gentrification*. The Skanner News. http://www.theskanner.com/news/northwest/26697-residency-program-supports-artists-of-color-displaced-by-gentrification
- Sewell, J. (1994). Houses and Homes: Housing for Canadians (First Paperback Edition). Lorimer.
- Sewell, J. (2015). How We Changed Toronto: The inside story of twelve creative, tumultuous years in civic life, 1969-1980. Lorimer.
- Sewell, J., & Jacobs, J. (1993). *The Shape of the City: Toronto Struggles with Modern Planning* (2nd ed. edition). University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.

- Shahidi, A. S. and F. V. (2015, April 25). Economic inequality is bad for our health. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/opinion/commentary/2015/04/25/economic-inequality-is-bad-for-our-health.html
- Shapiro, T. (2016, April 25). Why accessibility is fundamental to social inclusion: A case study with the Sistering community. ONN. http://theonn.ca/sistering-social-inclusion/
- Shapiro, T. M. (2017). *Toxic Inequality: How America's Wealth Gap Destroys Mobility, Deepens the Racial Divide, and Threatens Our Future.* Basic Books.
- Sharp, J., Pollock, V., & Paddison, R. (2005). Just Art for a Just City: Public Art and Social Inclusion in Urban Regeneration—Joanne Sharp, Venda Pollock, Ronan Paddison, 2005. *Urban Studies*, 42(5/6), 1001–1023. https://doi.org/10.108/00420980500106963
- Sharratt, C. (2019, February 7). Why Artists are Struggling to Make a Living From Their Art (and the Activists Fighting Back). Frieze. https://frieze.com/article/why-artists-are-struggling-make-living-their-art-and-activists-fighting-back
- Shaw, K. (2008). Gentrification: What It Is, Why It Is, and What Can Be Done about It. *Geography Compass*, *2*(5), 1697–1728. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1749-8198.2008.00156.x
- Shaw, S., & Sullivan, D. M. (2011). "White Night": Gentrification, Racial Exclusion, and Perceptions and Participation in the Arts. *City & Community*, *10*(3), 241–264. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1540-6040.2011.01373.x
- Shearmur, R., Carrincazeaux, C., & Doloreux, D. (2016). *Handbook on the Geographies of Innovation*. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- Shenker, J. (2017, September 26). "It's really shocking": UK cities refusing to reveal extent of pseudo-public space. The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/sep/26/its-really-shocking-uk-cities-refusing-to-reveal-extent-of-pseudo-public-space
- Shephard, T. (2019, August 20). Akin Lakeshore makes art studio space affordable in Etobicoke. Toronto.Com. https://www.toronto.com/news-story/9547923-akin-lakeshore-makes-art-studio-space-affordable-in-etobicoke/
- Sheppard, S. (n.d.). Why is Gentrification a Problem? Centre for Creative Community Development, Williams College. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from
 - http://web.williams.edu/Economics/ArtsEcon/library/pdfs/WhylsGentrificationAProbREFORM.pdf
- Sherman, D. (2016a). Exploring the Ways Arts and Culture Intersects with Housing: Emerging Practices and Implications for Further Action—A Creative Placemaking Field Scan. ArtPlace America. https://www.artplaceamerica.org/view/pdf?f=/sites/default/files/public/pictures/artplace_field_scan_housing_sherman_apr_2016.pdf
- Sherman, D. (2016b, May 26). 6 Things the Arts Can Do for Housing. *Shelterforce*. https://shelterforce.org/2016/05/26/6-things-the-arts-can-do-for-housing/
- Sherman, D. (2017, December 4). *Gentrification Can't Be the Theme of Rust Belt City Recovery*. Next City. https://nextcity.org/features/view/gentrification-rust-belt-recovery-buffalo-new-york
- Shkuda, A. (2013). The Art Market, Arts Funding, and Sweat Equity: The Origins of Gentrified Retail. *Journal of Urban History*, *39*(4), 601–619. https://doi.org/10.1177/0096144212443134
- Shkuda, A. (2016). *The Lofts of SoHo: Gentrification, Art, and Industry in New York, 1950–1980.* University of Chicago Press.
- Sholette, G. (1997). Nature as an icon of urban resistance: Artists, gentrification and New York City's lower east side, 1979-1984. *Afterimage*, *25*(2), 17–20.
- Sholette, G. (Ed.). (2013). It's the Political Economy, Stupid: The Global Financial Crisis in Art and Theory. Pluto Pr.
- Sholette, G. (2017). Delirium and Resistance: Activist art and the crisis of capitalism. Pluto Press.
- Sholette, G., Bass, C., & Queens, S. P. (Eds.). (2018). *Art as Social Action: An Introduction to the Principles and Practices of Teaching Social Practice Art*. Allworth.
- Short, J. R. (2017). A Research Agenda for Cities. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- Shrubsole, M. K. (2010). Gentrification and redevelopment: Planning, power, and politics surrounding urban transformation in Mimico, Toronto.
 - http://ezproxy.library.yorku.ca/login?url=http://gateway.proquest.com/openurl?url_ver=Z39.88-2004&res dat=xri:pgm&rft val fmt=info:ofi/fmt:kev:mtx:dissertation&rft dat=xri:pgdiss:MR80643

- Sidewalk Labs. (n.d.). Sidewalk Labs. Retrieved October 25, 2017, from https://www.sidewalklabs.com/ Sidnell-Greene, S. (2015, October 13). Displacement in Parkdale: Gentrification, Resistance and Change. Shameless Magazine. http://shamelessmag.com/blog/entry/displacement-in-parkdale-gentrification-resistance-and-change
- Siegel-Hawley, G., Bridges, K., & Thachik, S. (2017, March 4). How families from gentrifying neighborhoods can help break the cycle of school segregation. *USAPP*. http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/usappblog/2017/03/04/how-families-from-gentrifying-neighborhoods-can-help-break-the-cycle-of-school-segregation/
- Siegel-Hawley, G., Thachik, S., & Bridges, K. (2017). Reform With Reinvestment: Values and Tensions in Gentrifying Urban Schools. *Education and Urban Society*, 49(4), 403–433. https://doi.org/10.1177/0013124516643763
- Siepmann, D. (2014). Who is Creative Placemaking? New Music, Integrity and Community. NewMusicBox. https://nmbx.newmusicusa.org/who-is-creative-placemaking-new-music-integrity-and-community/
- Signorelli, A. (2017). Speculations on Postcapitalism: How Digitalization Is Disrupting Everything We Know About Modern Civilization (1 edition). CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform.
- Silver, C., Marques, L., Hanan, H., & Widiastuti, I. (Eds.). (2017). *Proceedings of the 6th International Conference of Arte-Polis: Imagining Experience: Creative Tourism and the Making of Place* (1st ed. 2017 edition). Springer.
- Silver, D. (Ed.). (2011). From the Ground Up: Growing Toronto's Cultural Sector. City of Toronto. http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2011/ed/bgrd/backgroundfile-41204.pdf
- Silver, James, & Silver, J. (2011). *Good Places to Live: Poverty and Public Housing in Canada* (1st edition). Fernwood Publishing.
- Silver, Jim. (2016). Solving Poverty: Innovative Strategies from Winnipeg's Inner City. Fernwood Books Ltd. https://fernwoodpublishing.ca/book/solving-poverty
- Sinclair-Puchtinger, A. M. (1991). *Gentrification in Canadian inner cities: An investigation of major factors (Montreal, Quebec, Toronto, Ontario, Winnipeg, Manitoba, Vancouver, British Columbia)* [Wilfrid Laurier University]. http://scholars.wlu.ca/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1358&context=etd
- Sinkewicz, A. (n.d.). Who Has the Right to Art? Canadian Art. Retrieved February 16, 2019, from https://canadianart.ca/features/who-has-the-right-to-art/
- Sinkewicz, A. (2019, June 20). *The Luxury of Making Art*. Canadian Art. https://canadianart.ca/features/the-luxury-of-making-art/
- Sisson, P. (2018, April 3). Why artist housing is just another kind of affordable housing. Curbed. https://www.curbed.com/2018/4/3/17192722/affordable-housing-artists-workforce
- Sketch. (n.d.). SKETCH Working Arts. Retrieved June 19, 2019, from https://www.sketch.ca/
- Skinner, J. (2016, November 8). Arthur Goes to Council: Gentrification and Performance Enhancing Develoment. Arthur: The Peterborough & Trent University Independent Press. http://www.trentarthur.ca/arthur-goes-to-council/
- Slater, T. (2003). Comparing Gentrification in South Parkdale, Toronto and Lower Park Slope, New York City: A 'North American' Model of Neighbourhood Reinvestment? (CNR Paper No. 11). ESRC Centre for Neighbourhood Research, University of Toronto. http://www.urbancentre.utoronto.ca/pdfs/curp/CNR_Parkdale-NYC-Gentrifica.pdf
- Slater, T. (2004). *Municipally managed gentrification in South Parkdale, Toronto.*" *The Canadian Geographer 43*. Slater, T. (2006). The Eviction Critical Perspectives from Gentrification Research. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 30(4), 737–757.
- Slater, T. (2009). Missing Marcuse: On gentrification and displacement. *City*, *13*(2–3), 292–311. https://doi.org/10.1080/13604810902982250
- Slater, T., & University of Toronto: Centre for Urban and Community Studies. (2005). *Toronto's South Parkdale neighbourhood: A brief history of development, disinvestment, and gentrification*. University of Toronto Centre for Urban and Community Studies. http://www.urbancentre.utoronto.ca/pdfs/researchbulletins/CUCS-RB-28-Slater-Parkd.pdf
- Slee, T. (2016). What's Yours is Mine: Against the Sharing Economy. BETWEEN THE LINES.
- Sloat, S. (2016, April 13). The Way to Predict Gentrification Through Social Media Data: Censuses give a poor impression of the socioeconomic standing of a neighbourhood. Twitter, meanwhile, does a pretty good job. Inverse: Innovation. https://www.inverse.com/article/14168-predict-gentrification-through-social-media-data

- Sloat, S., & 2016. (2016, April 13). *Social Media Data Reveals What Hoods Are Gentrifying*. Inverse. https://www.inverse.com/article/14168-predict-gentrification-through-social-media-data
- Slow progress on diversity at England's largest arts organisations. (2019, February 21). Arts Professional. https://www.artsprofessional.co.uk/news/slow-progress-diversity-englands-largest-arts-organisations
- Smart, A., & Smart, J. (2017). Ain't Talkin' 'Bout Gentrification: The Erasure of Alternative Idioms of Displacement Resulting from Anglo-American Academic Hegemony. *International Journal of Urban and Regional Research*, 41(3), 518–525. https://doi.org/10.1111/1468-2427.12493
- Smart City—Creative City. (2017, June 15). https://vimeopro.com/monasharts/smart-city-creative-city/video/221849596
- Smart Growth and Equitable Development. (2014, February 24). [Overviews and Factsheets]. United States Environmental Protection Agency. https://www.epa.gov/smartgrowth/smart-growth-and-equitable-development
- Smartmap. (2015, January 30). Urbanarium Society. https://urbanarium.org/smartmap
- Smee, M. (2017, September 20). New Regent Park project aims to help house struggling musicians. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/new-regent-park-project-aims-to-help-house-struggling-musicians-1.4297346
- Smee, M. (2020, January 7). *This Toronto landlord has only raised rent by \$100—Since the 1980s*. CBC News. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/this-toronto-landlord-has-only-raised-rent-by-100-since-the-1980s-1.5408903
- Smit, A., & Valiante, M. (Eds.). (2016). *Public Interest, Private Property: Law and Planning Policy in Canada* (Reprint edition). UBC Press.
- Smith, D. (2017, February 28). Forecasting gentrification in city neighborhoods, with R. Revolutions. http://blog.revolutionanalytics.com/2017/02/forecasting-gentrification.html
- Smith, J. (2019, October 23). Dramatic loss of Vancouver's art spaces drives Displacement Forum & Exhibition, put on by Eastside Culture Crawl Society. The Georgia Straight. https://www.straight.com/arts/1317106/dramatic-loss-vancouvers-art-spaces-drives-displacement-forum-exhibition-put-eastside
- Smith, M. D., & Telang, R. (2016). *Streaming, Sharing, Stealing: Big Data and the Future of Entertainment* (1 edition). The MIT Press.
- Smith, N. (1996). The New Urban Frontier: Gentrification and the Revanchist City (1 edition). Routledge.
- Smith, N., & Williams, P. (Eds.). (2007). *Gentrification of the City* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Smith, R. (2016, September 21). Battle over gentrification and art centre of debate to save London's Fabric. The Globe and Mail. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/arts/art-and-architecture/battle-over-gentrification-and-art-at-centre-of-debate-to-save-londons-fabric/article31987181/
- Smith, S. (2017a, July 30). Who is behind the anti-gentrification violence in Saint-Henri? CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/montreal/saint-henri-violence-gentrification-attacks-1.4225642
- Smith, S. (2017b, November 3). *Gentrification puts pressure on Saint-Henri schools to adapt to new social mix*. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/montreal/saint-henri-schools-gentrification-1.4385678
- Sneak peek: Montreal's neighbourhood roundtables. (n.d.). Cities for People. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://www.citiesforpeople.ca/en/blogroll/montreals-neighbourhood-roundtables
- Social and Economic Policy Research. (n.d.). Urban Institute. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://www.urban.org/index
- Social Housing Waiting List Reports City of Toronto. (n.d.). Retrieved February 16, 2019, from https://www.toronto.ca/city-government/data-research-maps/research-reports/housing-and-homelessness-research-and-reports/social-housing-waiting-list-reports/
- Social Impacts and Benefits of Arts and Culture: A Literature Review. (2016). Department of Canadian Heritage. http://publications.gc.ca/site/eng/9.851555/publication.html
- Social-Cultural Urban Frameworks (Policy Papers No. 2). (2016). Habitat III. http://www.unesco.org/new/fileadmin/MULTIMEDIA/HQ/CLT/pdf/Policy-Paper-EN.pdf
- Socio-Economic Status of Artists in the GTHA. (n.d.). Workers Arts and Heritage Centre. Retrieved February 28, 2019, from https://wahc-museum.ca/event/socio-economic-status-of-artists-in-the-gtha/
- Soirée de réflexion: « La gentrification à Hochelaga-Maisonneuve, un problème politique? Événement organisé en collaboration avec Quartier Hochelaga. (2017, May 30). *L'ESPIRIT LIBRE*.

- http://revuelespritlibre.org/extranet/calendrier/soiree-de-reflexion-la-gentrification-hochelaga-maisonneuve-un-probleme
- Solnit, R. (2002). Hollow City: The Siege of San Francisco and the Crises of American Urbanism. Verso.
- Solnit, R. (2016, May 3). Gentrification's toll: "It's you or the bottom line and sorry, it's not you." *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2016/may/03/gentrification-climate-change-sierra-club-san-francisco
- Some Thoughts.... (n.d.). Some-Thoughts.Org. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://some-thoughts.org/ Sonksen, M. (2019, September 20). Social Agency: Art, Gentrification and Reclaiming in Northeast L.A. Neighborhoods. KCET. https://www.kcet.org/shows/city-rising/social-agency-art-gentrification-and-reclaiming-in-northeast-la-neighborhoods
- Sorensen, A., & Okata, J. (Eds.). (2011). *Megacities—Urban Form, Governance, and Sustainability*. Springer. http://www.springer.com/gp/book/9784431992660
- Sorrel, C. (2015, November 20). *Berlin Models How Cities Can Push Back Gentrification And Keep Housing Affordable*. Fast Company. https://www.fastcompany.com/3053734/berlin-models-how-cities-can-push-back-gentrification-and-keep-housing-affordable
- Sousa, J. (2013). Building a Co-operative Community in Public Housing: The Case of the Atkinson Housing Co-operative. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division. https://utorontopress.com/us/building-a-co-operative-community-in-public-housing-4
- Spare Place. (n.d.). Retrieved December 18, 2019, from http://www.spareplace.com/
- Speck, J. (2013). *Walkable City: How Downtown Can Save America, One Step at a Time* (Reprint edition). North Point Press.
- Spencer, S., & Cox, A. (2017). Into the divide: Community identities and the visualisation of place. *Visual Studies*, 32(2), 97–110. https://doi.org/10.1080/1472586X.2017.1324251
- Sponagle, M. (2017, January 6). Why restaurant veterans are ditching Toronto for Hamilton. The Globe and Mail. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/why-restaurant-veterans-are-ditching-toronto-for-hamilton/article33533008/
- Spring, C. (2015, November 13). Gentrification and Displacement in Toronto's Downtown East. *The Media Co-Op.* http://www.mediacoop.ca/story/gentrification-and-displacement-toronto%E2%80%99s-downtown/34119
- SPUR Reports. (2015, June 18). SPUR. http://www.spur.org/reports
- Square Feet: The Artist's Guide to Renting and Buying Creative Space. (2011). Toronto Artscape.
 - http://www.artscapediy.org/ArtscapeDIY/MediaLibrary/ArtscapeDIY/ArtscapeMedia/documents/square feet 2011.pdf
- Squeezed Out: Airbnb's Commercialization of Home-Sharing in Toronto. (n.d.). http://fairbnb.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Fairbnb_Report_Feb_29.pdf
- SRNICEK, N., & Williams, A. (2016). *Inventing the Future (revised and updated edition): Postcapitalism and a World Without Work* (Revised, Updated ed. edition). Verso.
- staff, S. (2015, February 13). Four ways to bring Toronto together. *The Toronto Star.*
 - https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2015/02/13/four-ways-to-bring-toronto-together.html
- Stafford, K. (2017, September 19). New housing developments in Detroit now required to have 20% affordable housing units. *Detroit Free Press*.
 - http://www.freep.com/story/news/local/michigan/detroit/2017/09/19/detroit-housing-developments-affordable-housing-units/680627001/
- Standing, G. (2017a). Basic Income: And How We Can Make It Happen. Penguin.
- Standing, G. (2017b). *The Corruption of Capitalism: Why Rentiers Thrive and Work Does Not Pay.* Biteback Publishing.
- Standing, G. (2017c). Basic Income: A Guide for the Open-Minded. Yale University Press.
- Stanley, A. (2019, July 2). Food fuels Hamilton's gentrification. *The Globe and Mail*.
 - https://www.theglobeandmail.com/business/industry-news/property-report/article-food-fuels-hamiltons-gentrification/
- Starr, R. (2011, September 9). "Any colour you want" at the new Paintbox. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2011/09/09/any_colour_you_want_at_the_new_paintbox.html

- Starr, R. (2012, October 11). Daniels unveils latest condo project. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2012/10/11/daniels unveils latest condo project.html
- Starr, R. (2014, February 14). Regent Park is making new waves. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2014/02/14/cover_neighbourhoods.html
- State of the art: Is Vancouver driving away creative people? (2017, January 20). CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/vancouver-arts-creative-1.3942321
- Statistics Canada: Less Than Half of All Canadians Aged 25-54 Now Have Full-Time, Year-Round Jobs. (n.d.). *PressProgress*. Retrieved December 1, 2017, from http://pressprogress.ca/statistics-canada-less-than-half-of-all-canadians-aged-25-54-now-have-full-time-year-round-jobs/
- Statistics Canada: Percentage of Canadian Workers Earning Minimum Wage Has Doubled Since 1998. (2019, September 13). *PressProgress*. https://pressprogress.ca/statistics-canada-percentage-of-canadian-workers-earning-minimum-wage-has-doubled-since-1998/
- Steer, E. (2019, May 17). *How Can Artists Help Us Tackle Gentrification?* ELEPHANT. https://elephant.art/can-artists-help-us-tackle-gentrification/
- Steif, K. (n.d.-a). Exploring neighborhood change with longitudinal census data. Urban Spatial. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://urbanspatialanalysis.com/portfolio/exploring-neighborhood-change-with-longitudinal-census-data/
- Steif, K. (n.d.-b). *Urban Spatial*. Urban Spatial. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://urbanspatialanalysis.com/portfolio/exploring-neighborhood-change-with-longitudinal-census-data/
- Steif, K., Mallach, A., Finchman, M., & Kassel, S. (n.d.). *Predicting gentrification using longitudinal census data*. Urban Spatial. Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://urbanspatialanalysis.com/portfolio/predicting-gentrification-using-longitudinal-census-data/
- Stein, J. (2017, November 9). Writers and Filmmakers Take on Gentrification. Www.Counterpunch.Org. https://www.counterpunch.org/2017/11/09/writers-and-filmmakers-take-on-gentrification/
- Stein, S. (2019). *Capital City: Gentrification and the Real Estate State*. Verso Books. https://www.versobooks.com/books/2870-capital-city
- Steinmetz-Wood, M., Wasfi, R., Parker, G., Bornstein, L., Caron, J., & Kestens, Y. (2017). Is gentrification all bad? Positive association between gentrification and individual's perceived neighborhood collective efficacy in Montreal, Canada. *International Journal of Health Geographics*, 16(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s12942-017-0096-6
- Stephenson Jr., M. O., & Tate, A. S. (Eds.). (2015). *Arts and Community Change: Exploring Cultural Development Policies, Practices and Dilemmas*. Routledge Taylor & Francis Group.
- Stern, A., & Kravitz, L. (2016). *Raising the Floor: How a Universal Basic Income Can Renew Our Economy and Rebuild the American Dream*. PublicAffairs.
- Stevens, L. (2017, September 30). Anti-Gentrification Plan Pushes Forward. *Chicago News*. http://www.mychinews.com/news/anti-gentrification-plan-pushes-forward
- Stewart, S. (2017, March 13). Referendums Help Fight Gentrification. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/referendums-help-fight-gentrification
- Stewart, S., Milton, J., & Murad, A. (2018, September). *Montreal's Gentrification, Neighbourhood by Neighbourhood*. The Link. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/montreals-gentrification-neighbourhood-by-neighbourhood
- Stiem, T. (2017, September 27). "We stand to wipe out a whole era": How the 1970s could vanish from Vancouver. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/sep/27/wipe-out-era-1970s-vanish-vancouver
- Stigler, M. L. (2016). That's Just the Way It Is: Stories of Racial, Economic, and Educational Inequality Under Gentrification [Arizona State University]. ProQuest Dissertations Publishing. https://search.proquest.com/openview/1ec4cb1a9cf21a76c882e82d61934b64/1?pq-origsite=gscholar&cbl=18750&diss=y
- Stiglitz, J. E. (2012). *The Price of Inequality: How Today's Divided Society Endangers Our Future* (1 edition). WW Norton.
- Stimmel, C. L. (2015). Building Smart Cities: Analytics, ICT, and Design Thinking (1 edition). Auerbach Publications.

- Stock, N. (2017). Creative Placemaking: Art as a Genesis for Civic Transformation. *Artrepreneur*. https://abj.artrepreneur.com/creative-placemaking/
- Stone, Ben, & Nezam, M. (2017). Arts, Culture and Transportation: A Creative Placemaking Field Scan. ArtPlace America, Smart Growth America, Transportation for America. https://www.artplaceamerica.org/view/pdf?f=http://t4america.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Arts-Culture-Field-Scan.pdf
- Stone, Brad. (2017). *The Upstarts: How Uber, Airbnb, and the Killer Companies of the New Silicon Valley Are Changing the World*. Little, Brown and Company.
- Stone, J. (2019, February 26). Berlin set to hold referendum on banning big landlords and nationalising private rented housing. *Independent*. https://www.independent.co.uk/news/world/europe/berlin-landlords-ban-germany-private-rent-housing-referendum-vote-a8796471.html
- Storper, M., Kemeny, T., Makarem, N., & Osman, T. (2016). *The Rise and Fall of Urban Economies: Lessons from San Francisco and Los Angeles* (Reprint edition). Stanford University Press.
- Storring, N. (2014, October 29). Jane Jacobs on Gentrification. *Nathan Storring*. http://www.nathanstorring.com/2014/10/29/jane-jacobs-on-gentrification/
- Streeck, W. (2016). How Will Capitalism End?: Essays on a Failing System. Verso.
- Strengthening Canada's Communities. (n.d.). The Canadian CED Network. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://www.ccednet-rcdec.ca/en
- Struggling with the cost of rent? It's not just Vancouver. (2017, November 13). CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/struggling-with-the-cost-of-rent-it-s-not-just-vancouver-1.4397508
- Sturtevant, L. (2016, July 7). Can We Predict Gentrification? *Helping Hands Blog: Housing Association of Nonprofit Developers*. https://www.handhousing.org/can-we-predict-gentrification/
- Suarez, C. (2017, September 14). The Role of Artists in Gentrification: Linking the Art World to Resistance Movements. *Nonprofit Quarterly*. https://nonprofitquarterly.org/2017/09/14/role-artists-gentrification-linking-art-world-resistance-movements/
- Sullivan, D. M. (2007). Reassessing Gentrification: Measuring Residents' Opinions Using Survey Data. *Urban Affairs Review*, 42(4), 583–592. https://doi.org/10.1177/1078087406295828
- Sundararajan, A. (2017). The Sharing Economy: The End of Employment and the Rise of Crowd-Based Capitalism (Reprint edition). The MIT Press.
- Supporting artists. (2016, June 7). Australian Greens. https://greens.org.au/supporting-artists
- Suprovich, G. (2015). *The Minimum Wage in Canada* (Research Psper No. 54). Canadian Labour Congress. https://canadianlabour.ca/research/issues-research-minimum-wage-canada/
- Sussman, A. L. (2017, July 24). *How Artists Fought to Keep SoHo Rents Affordable—And Why It Matters Today*. Artsy. https://www.artsy.net/article/artsy-editorial-artists-fought-soho-rents-affordable-matters-today
- Sustersic, A., & Psibilski, L. (2005). Art Spaces and the Gentrification Process in East London. Revolver.
- Sutherland, L. (2017, August 10). Postcards from the collaborative economy. *ONN*. http://theonn.ca/postcards-collaborative-economy/
- Sutton, B. (2017, November 10). *Anti-Gentrification Activists Protest Laura Owens Exhibition at the Whitney Museum*. Hyperallergic. https://hyperallergic.com/411134/anti-gentrification-activists-protest-laura-owens-exhibition-at-the-whitney-museum/
- Suttor, G. (2016). *Still Renovating: A History of Canadian Social Housing Policy*. McGill-Queen's University Press. Swaminathan, A., & Meffert, J. (2017). *Digital @ Scale: The Playbook You Need to Transform Your Company* (1 edition). Wiley.
- Swanson, J., & Sagaii, S. (2017, November 30). *A National Housing Strategy to Maintain Homelessness for Decades to Come*. The Tyee. https://thetyee.ca/Opinion/2017/11/30/National-Housing-Strategy-Maintain-Homelessness-Decades-Come/
- Swanson, K. K., & DeVereaux, C. (2017). A theoretical framework for sustaining culture: Culturally sustainable entrepreneurship. *Annals of Tourism Research*, *62*(Supplement C), 78–88. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.annals.2016.12.003

- Syed, F. (2017, October 3). Minimum-wage earners in Toronto do not make enough money to thrive, report says. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/10/03/toronto-residents-do-not-make-enough-money-to-thrive-report-says.html
- *Symposium: Smart City-Creative City.* (n.d.). Eventbrite. Retrieved October 4, 2017, from https://www.eventbrite.com.au/e/34763468470?aff=efbneb

Т

- Tait, M., & Ladner, K. (Eds.). (2017). Surviving Canada: Indigenous Peoples Celebrate 150 Years of Betrayal. Arbeiter Ring Publishing.
- Takahashi, K. (2017). Toronto's Little Portugal: Gentrification and social relations among local entrepreneurs. *Urban Geography*, *38*(4), 578–605. https://doi.org/10.1080/02723638.2016.1176695
- Tapper, J. (2018, March 17). London will lose creative crown if rents keep forcing artists out. The Guardian. http://www.theguardian.com/artanddesign/2018/mar/17/london-losing-creative-eminence-high-studio-rents-force-artists-out
- Taşan-Kok, T., Bolt, G., Plüss, L., & Schenkel, W. (2017). *A Handbook for Governing Hyper-Diverse Cities*. Utretcht University, Faculty of Geosciences. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/DIVERCITIES-Handbook-Digital.pdf
- Tasan-Kok, T., & Ozogul, S. (2017). *DIVERCITIES: Dealing with Urban Diversity: The Case of Toronto*. University of Amsterdam and TU Delft. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/Divercities-City-Book-Toronto.pdf
- Tasan-Kok, T., van Kempen, R., Raco, M., & Bolt, G. (2013). *Towards Hyper-Diversified European Cities: A Critical Literature Review.* Utretcht University, Faculty of Geosciences. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/20140121 Towards HyperDiversified European Cities.pdf
- Tate, K. (2017). *Towards Equitable Placemaking: Incorporating Adaptive Reuse for Cultural Sustainability*. http://scholarsbank.uoregon.edu/xmlui/handle/1794/22491
- Taylor, C. (2017, March 21). The nonprofit sector as a champion for decent work. *Policy Options*. http://policyoptions.irpp.org/magazines/march-2017/the-nonprofit-sector-as-a-champion-for-decent-work/
- Taylor, N. (2019, January 16). *Evans Contemporary: Arts, Commerce, and the Downtown Core—Arthur Newspaper.*Trent Arthur. http://www.trentarthur.ca/evans-contemporary-arts-commerce-downtown-core/
- TechEquity Collaborative. (n.d.). Retrieved September 24, 2017, from https://techequitycollaborative.org/ Ted Rutland. (n.d.). Displacing Blackness. Retrieved June 10, 2019, from https://utorontopress.com/ca/displacing-blackness-2
- Ted Rutland, PhD. (n.d.). Selected Publications—Ted Rutland, PhD. Ted Rutland, PhD, Concordia University.

 Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://www.concordia.ca/faculty/ted-rutland.html#IDX_PUBLICATION
- Teitel, E. (2017, May 2). *Housing crunch is the bane of the LGBT community: Teitel.* Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2017/05/02/housing-crunch-is-a-bane-on-the-lgbt-community-teitel.html
- Telling Our Stories, Growing Our Economy: Developing a Culture Strategy for Ontario. (n.d.). [Discussion Paper].

 Ontario Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport. Retrieved May 2, 2017, from

 http://www.mtc.gov.on.ca/en/publications/Culture Strategy Discussion Paper.pdf
- Temin, P. (2017). The Vanishing Middle Class: Prejudice and Power in a Dual Economy. The MIT Press.
- Tenants protest "loophole" that allows landlords to break rent control caps. (2018, February 5). Building Magazine. https://building.ca/toronto-parkdale-rent-strike/

- Tencer, D. (2017, January 3). The Surprising Cities Canadians Are Leaving. *Huffington Post Canada*. http://www.huffingtonpost.ca/2017/03/01/canadians-leaving-major-cities_n_15080726.html
- Tencer, D. (2018a, May 8). 1 In 5 Canadian Renters Give Half Their Income to The Landlord. HuffPost Canada. https://www.huffingtonpost.ca/2018/05/08/canadian-rental-housing-index-shows-1-in-5-households-give-half-their-income-to-the-landlord_a_23430148/
- Tencer, D. (2018b, May 16). *Rental Rates Soar by Double Digits In Half Of Canada's Largest Cities.* HuffPost Canada. https://www.huffingtonpost.ca/2018/05/16/rental-rates-canada-april-2018 a 23436309/
- Tencer, D. (2019, June 1). Toronto is the fastest-growing city in the U.S and Canada and that's not good. *Huffington Post Canada*. https://www.huffingtonpost.ca/entry/toronto-population-growth_ca_5cf28f26e4b0e346ce7eef73
- Terrill, L. (2015). Beyond Communal and Individual Ownership: Indigenous Land Reform in Australia. Routledge. https://www.routledge.com/Beyond-Communal-and-Individual-Ownership-Indigenous-Land-Reform-in-Australia/Terrill/p/book/9781138853911
- Tetlow, G. (2016, July 10). Consumers are bearing the extra cost of living wage. *Financial Times*. https://www.ft.com/content/00d35978-4681-11e6-8d68-72e9211e86ab
- Thaden, E., & Wang, R. (2017). *Inclusionary Housing in the United States: Prevalence, Impact, and Practices* (Working Paper WP17ET1). Lincoln Institute of Land Policy. http://www.lincolninst.edu/sites/default/files/pubfiles/thaden_wp17et1_0.pdf
- The Affordable Housing Developers' View of NYC's Housing Conundrum. (n.d.). Retrieved November 1, 2017, from http://www.wnyc.org/story/affordable-housing-developers-view-nycs-housing-conundrum
- The Arts Intern Industry: The Case for Fair Pay. (n.d.). YPIA. Retrieved September 30, 2017, from https://www.ypia.co.uk/posts/the-arts-intern-industry-the-case-for-fair-pay
- The changing face of Centretown. (2012, August 15). Xtra. https://www.dailyxtra.com/the-changing-face-of-centretown-2912
- The Chinatown Art Brigade fights for housing rights in one of the most gentrified cities in America. (2018, July 12). *Creative Exchange*. http://springboardexchange.org/the-chinatown-art-brigade-fights-for-housing-rights-in-one-of-the-most-gentrified-cities-in-america/
- The Electric City Culture Council—A Space of your Own—Panel Discussion. (2014, April 2). https://www.voutube.com/watch?v=DNvXqwTblvO&feature=voutu.be
- The future of work. (n.d.). Retrieved October 1, 2017, from http://www.ilo.org/global/topics/future-of-work/lang--en/index.htm
- The "G" Word: A Special Series on Gentrification. (2015, February). Governing the States and Localities. http://www.governing.com/topics/urban/gov-gentrification-series.html
- The Housing Fix. (n.d.). Retrieved October 7, 2017, from http://thehousingfix.ca/
- The Mastering Of A Music City. (10:58). The Mastering of a Music City. http://musiccitiessummit.com/
- The Missing Middle Competition. (n.d.). The Vancouver Urbanarium Society. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from http://themissingmiddle.ca/
- The National CLT Network. (2012). *The Community Land Trust Handbook*. https://ccednet-rcdec.ca/en/toolbox/community-land-trust-handbook
- The National Living Wage and you. (2016, April 1). *BBC News*. http://www.bbc.com/news/business-33463231 "The North Pole." (n.d.). The North Pole. Retrieved September 30, 2017, from http://www.thenorthpoleshow.com/
- The Parkdale People's Economy Project. (n.d.). The Parkdale People's Economy Project. Retrieved February 15, 2018, from https://parkdalecommunityeconomies.wordpress.com/
- The Poverty Alliance—Scotland—Working together to combat poverty. (n.d.). Retrieved September 30, 2017, from http://www.povertyalliance.org/
- The Public Studio. (n.d.). *Art, Design & Gentrification: A Primer.* The Public Studio. Retrieved December 15, 2017, from https://thepublicstudio.ca/resources/do-it-yourself-series
- The Real Fight for Beauty—Not by Westbank. (n.d.). The Real Fight for Beauty Not by Westbank. Retrieved February 28, 2019, from http://www.therealfightforbeauty.ca/
- The Real Fight for Beauty—Video. (n.d.). https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1FBiFI6U8nE&feature=youtu.be

- The socio-economic status of artists. (2019, March 21). The Silhouette. https://www.thesil.ca/the-socio-economic-status-of-artists
- The Story of Your Apartment. (n.d.). WNYC. Retrieved November 1, 2017, from http://www.wnyc.org/story/unaffordable-scrapbook
- *The W.O.W. Project.* (n.d.). Wing on Wo & Co. Retrieved January 5, 2018, from https://www.wingonwoand.co/aboutwowproject/
- Theaster Gates to lead new cultural policy partnership at Chicago Harris. (2016, February 1). *UChicago News*. https://news.uchicago.edu/article/2016/02/01/theaster-gates-lead-new-cultural-policy-partnership-chicago-harris
- There Goes the Neighborhood. (n.d.). WNYC. Retrieved November 24, 2017, from http://www.wnyc.org/shows/neighborhood/
- There Goes the Neighborhood: LA, from KCRW and WNYC Studios. (n.d.). Retrieved November 24, 2017, from https://www.facebook.com/groups/ThereGoesTheNeighborhoodLA/
- Think Gentrification Is Bad? The Opposite Is Worse. (2017, September 13). *Mises Institute*. https://mises.org/blog/think-gentrification-bad-opposite-worse
- Thom Armstrong, Executive Director of the Co-op Housing Federation of BC, & Debbie Stewart, Vice President of Partnerships with the Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation. (2019, June 4). Building Our Way Out of Our Affordable Housing Crisis: What B.C. Can Teach Us About Maximizing the Affordable Housing Potential of Public Land & Non-Profit Assets [Presentation]. https://www.eventbrite.com/e/building-our-way-out-of-our-affordable-housing-crisis-what-bc-can-teach-us-about-maximizing-the-tickets-62012026641
- Thomas, D. (2017). *Placemaking: An Urban Design Methodology* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Thomas, M. (2017, October 24). Google's city of the future could be a cultural void. Here's how to fix it. *Medium*. https://medium.com/@matthardythomas/three-simple-ways-googles-city-of-the-future-can-get-culture-right-92604b022302
- Thomas, Raemi. (2017). A Change of Two Cities: A Comparative Case Study on Gentrification. *Scripps Senior Theses*. http://scholarship.claremont.edu/scripps_theses/983
- Thomas, Ren (Ed.). (2016). Planning Canada: A Case Study Approach. Oxford University Press.
- Thompson, D. (2020, January 16). Why Manhattan's Skyscrapers Are Empty. The Atlantic.
 - https://www.theatlantic.com/ideas/archive/2020/01/american-housing-has-gone-insane/605005/
- Thompson, F. M. L. (2001). *Gentrification and the Enterprise Culture: Britain 1780-1980*. Oxford University Press. Thompson, Marie. (n.d.). UK Music Venues and the Auditory Politics of Gentrification. *Dancehall*, *12*, 3–8.
- Thompson, Mitchell. (2017, March 20). Housing in the age of austerity: Toronto's war on the poor. *Canadian Dimension*. https://canadiandimension.com/articles/view/housing-in-the-age-of-austerity-torontos-
- Thompson, N. (2015). Seeing Power: Art and Activism in the Twenty-first Century. Melville House.
- Thompson, N. (2017). Culture as Weapon: The Art of Influence in Everyday Life. Melville House.
- Thompson, N. (2020, January 16). Federal government announces \$200 million for affordable rentals at former Honest Ed's site. Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2020/01/16/federal-government-announces-200-million-for-affordable-rentals-at-honest-eds-site.html
- Thomson, S. (2014, November 5). As "Gentrification" Turns 50, Tracing Its Nebulous History. Curbed. https://www.curbed.com/2014/11/5/10028070/tracing-the-history-of-a-word-as-gentrification-turns-50
- Thurber, A., & Christiano, J. (2019). Confronting Gentrification: Can Creative Interventions Help People Keep More than Just Their Homes? *Engaged Scholar Journal: Community-Engaged Research, Teaching, and Learning, 5*(2). https://journalhosting.ucalgary.ca/index.php/esj/article/view/68338
- Tianga, K. A. (2017, July 21). Art in the Face of Gentrification. *Shelterforce*. https://shelterforce.org/2017/07/21/art-face-gentrification/
- Tidwell, A. C., & Zellen, B. S. (Eds.). (2015). Land, Indigenous Peoples and Conflict (1 edition). Routledge.
- Tierney, J. (2014, December 11). How the Arts Drove Pittsburgh's Revitalization. *The Atlantic*.
 - https://www.theatlantic.com/business/archive/2014/12/how-the-cultural-arts-drove-pittsburghs-revitalization/383627/
- Tighe, R., & Mueller, E. (Eds.). (2012). The Affordable Housing Reader. Routledge.

war-on-the-poor

- Tilk, J. M. (1997). *Women and gentrification: Case study of Riverdale*. https://search-proquest-com.ezproxy.lib.ryerson.ca/docview/304399021?pq-origsite=summon
- Tirole, J. (2017). Economics for the Common Good (S. Rendall, Trans.). Princeton University Press.
- Tissot, S. (2015). *Good Neighbors: Gentrifying Diversity in Boston's South End* (D. Broder & C. Romatowski, Trans.). Verso.
- To Justify Land: Of Coercion, Complicity, and Consent. (n.d.). http://www.mediacoop.ca/story/justify-land-5-coercion-complicity-and-consent/36791
- Too much of a good thing. (n.d.). Urban Capital. Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://www.urbancapital.ca/too-much-of-a-good-thing/
- Toronto Arts Council. (n.d.). 2020 Arts Funding—Key Messages. Toronto Arts Council. Retrieved January 20, 2020, from https://torontoartscouncil.org/advocate/toronto-budget-2020/2019-budget-key-messages Toronto Arts Facts. (2016). Toronto Arts Foundation.
 - https://torontoartsfoundation.org/tac/media/taf/Research/Toronto%20Arts%20Facts/2016_Toronto-Arts-Facts.pdf
- Toronto Community Housing. (n.d.). *Regent Park: Social Development Plan*. Retrieved June 12, 2019, from https://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2007/ex/bgrd/backgroundfile-7300.pdf
- Toronto leads urban population growth. (n.d.). CBC News. Retrieved October 6, 2017, from http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/toronto-leads-urban-population-growth-1.1287051
- *Toronto Media Arts Centre.* (n.d.). Retrieved September 30, 2017, from https://www.tomediaarts.org/dispute#positive-momentum
- Toronto Music Strategy: Supporting and Growing the City's Music Sector. (2016). Toronto Music Advisory Council. http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2016/ed/bgrd/backgroundfile-90615.pdf
- Toronto Neighbourhood Map. (n.d.). Hoodmaps. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from http://hoodmaps.com/new-york-city
- Toronto Studio Commons. (n.d.). Retrieved January 6, 2018, from
 - https://www.facebook.com/pg/TorontoStudioCommons/about/?ref=page_internal
- Toronto's Vital Signs 2016. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://torontosvitalsigns.ca/
- Tourism and Gentrification in the Metropolis. (2015, February 24). http://calenda.org/318881
- Town Hall: Indigenous Arts Spaces A self-determined way forward. (n.d.). Eventbrite. Retrieved October 4, 2019, from https://www.eventbrite.ca/e/74331452375?aff=efbneb
- Town of Aurora Cultural Master Plan 2014-2019. (2014). Town of Aurora, AuthentiCity, The Planning Partnership. https://www.aurora.ca/Thingstodo/Documents/2014-05-20%20Staff%20Report%20PR14-022%20Attachment%201.pdf
- Townsend, A. M. (2014). *Smart Cities: Big Data, Civic Hackers, and the Quest for a New Utopia* (1 edition). W. W. Norton & Company.
- Tran, D. (2017, January 24). How Theatre Work Adds Up. AMERICAN THEATRE.
 - http://www.americantheatre.org/2017/01/24/how-theatre-work-adds-up/
- Transforming Hamilton Through Culture: The Cultural Plan 2013. (2013). City of Hamilton.
 - https://www.hamilton.ca/city-initiatives/strategies-actions/love-your-city-cultural-policy-plan
- *Transforming our world: The 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.* (2015). United Nations.
 - https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/post2015/transformingourworld
- Trapunski, R. (2017a, March 22). Can laneway homes take the pressure off Toronto's real estate market? *NOW Magazine*. https://nowtoronto.com/api/content/612ee2e8-0f16-11e7-8f03-0aea2a882f79/
- Trapunski, R. (2017b, May 30). Could Hamilton really be "Toronto's Brooklyn"? That's the concept the city's mayor, Fred Eisenberger, and condo developer Brad J. Lamb are selling. But are you buying it? NOW Magazine. https://nowtoronto.com/lifestyle/real-estate/could-hamilton-really-be-toronto-s-brooklyn/
- Tresca, S. L. (2015). Future Cities: 42 Insights and Interviews with Influencers, Startups, Investors. Seahorse Press. Truong, O. (2013). Commercial Gentrification in Parkdale.
- Tsing, A. L. (2015). *The Mushroom at the End of the World: On the Possibility of Life in Capitalist Ruins*. Princeton University Press. https://press.princeton.edu/titles/10581.html
- Tuan, Y.-F. (2001). Space And Place: The Perspective of Experience (25th ed. edition). Univ Of Minnesota Press.

- Tuckey, B. (2016, March 26). Accessibility a priority in modern designs. The Toronto Star. https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2016/03/26/accessibility-a-priority-in-modern-designs.html
- Tuckey, B. (2017, September 23). BILD members deliver complete communities, not just buildings. The Toronto Star. https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2017/09/23/bild-members-deliver-complete-communitiesnot-just-buildings.html
- Tunalit, T. (2019). Art and Gentrification in the Changing Neoliberal Urban Landscape. Association for Art History 2019 Annual Conference. https://forarthistory.org.uk/our-work/conference/2019-annual-conference/artand-gentrification/
- Turner, J. F. C. (1977). Housing by people: Towards autonomy in building environments. Pantheon Books. Turner-Williams, J. (2019, October 15). A City Can't Live Without Artists and the Working Class. Electric Literature. https://electricliterature.com/a-city-cant-live-without-artists-and-the-working-class/
- Twenty years on, Gallery 1313 continues to nourish Parkdale. (2017, September 15). The Globe and Mail. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/twenty-years-on-gallery1313-continues-to-nourishparkdale/article36280300/
- Twigge-Molecey, A. (2014). Exploring resident experiences of indirect displacement in a neighbourhood undergoing gentrification: The case of Saint-Henri in Montreal. Canadian Journal of Urban Research. https://www.thefreelibrary.com/Exploring+resident+experiences+of+indirect+displacement+in+a...-
- Tyeson, C. (2016, June 8). Greens Float The Idea Of Paying Unemployed Artists An Actual Living Wage. Pedestrian TV. https://www.pedestrian.tv/news/greens-float-the-idea-of-paying-unemployed-artists-an-actualliving-wage/

U-V

- Üblacker, J. (2017). Participatory Intervention, Urban Development, and Gentrification: The Example of the "We Are Neighbours" Project. In M. Smagacz-Poziemska, K. Frysztacki, & A. Bukowski (Eds.), Re-Imagining the City: Municipality and Urbanity Today from a Sociological Perspective (First edition, pp. 285–300). Jagiellonian University Press. https://doi.org/10.4467/K9748.40/e/17.7265
- UK's Labour Party Says Arts Council Should Only Fund Arts Organizations That Pay Living Wage. (2017, August 14). The Dallas Art Dealers Association. http://dallasartdealers.org/uks-labour-party-says-arts-councilshould-only-fund-arts-organizations-that-pay-living-wage/
- ULI UK's Urban Art Forum releases quide to help development teams harness the city's cultural potential. (2019, October 23). ULI United Kingdom. https://uk.uli.org/uli-uks-urban-art-forum-releases-guide-to-helpdevelopment-teams-harness-the-citys-cultural-potential/
- Understanding the Forces Driving the Shelter Affordability Issue: A linked-path assessment of housing market dynamics in Ontario and the GTHA. (2017). The Canadian Centre for Economic Analysis. https://www.cancea.ca/housing
- United Way. (n.d.). Rebalancing the Opportunity Equation. Retrieved June 14, 2019, from https://www.unitedwaygt.org/file/2019 OE fullreport FINAL.pdf
- Urban America Forward: Fair Housing and Neighborhood Opportunity. (n.d.). Centre for the Study of Race, Politics, and Culture of the University of Chicago. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from
- http://csrpc.uchicago.edu/programs/public programs/urban america forward/fair housing/ Urban Culture and Heritage (Issue Papers No. 4). (2015). Habitat III.
 - http://www.unesco.org/new/fileadmin/MULTIMEDIA/HQ/CLT/pdf/ISSUE-Paper-En.pdf
- Urban Displacement Project. (n.d.). Retrieved August 30, 2017, from http://www.urbandisplacement.org/ Urban Planning Software for Sustainable Cities. (n.d.). UrbanFootprint. Retrieved July 5, 2019, from https://urbanfootprint.com/

- *Urbanarium*. (n.d.). Urbanarium Society. Retrieved October 5, 2017, from https://urbanarium.org/ *Urgent Imagination: Art and Urban Development - Western Front*. (n.d.). Retrieved October 4, 2019, from https://front.bc.ca/events/urgent-imagination/
- U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. (2016). *Ensuring Equitable Neighborhood Change: Gentrification Pressures on Housing Affordability* (Insights into Housing and Community Development Policy). U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Office of Policy Development and Research. https://www.huduser.gov/portal/sites/default/files/pdf/Insights-Ensuring-Equitable-Growth.pdf
- Using Arts and Culture to Advance Equity and Inclusion: A resource highlighting communities utilizing arts and culture in multiple sectors to advance equity and inclusion. (n.d.). Inclusive Dubuque. Retrieved October 7, 2017, from https://www.artplaceamerica.org/blog/using-arts-and-culture-advance-equity-and-inclusion
- Vale, L. J. (2013). *Purging the Poorest: Public Housing and the Design Politics of Twice-Cleared Communities.* University Of Chicago Press.
- Valiante, G. (2019, June 2). *Montreal aims to find affordable-housing fix that has eluded Toronto, Vancouver.* CP24. https://www.cp24.com/news/montreal-aims-to-find-affordable-housing-fix-that-has-eluded-toronto-vancouver-1.4447927
- Valli, C. (2017a). *Pushing borders: Cultural workers in the restructuring of post-industrial cities.* http://www.diva-portal.org/smash/record.jsf?pid=diva2:1084525
- Valli, C. (2017b). Pushing forwards the gentrification frontier: How the art scene progresses gentrification in Bushwick, New York City. *Urban Studies*. http://www.diva-portal.org/smash/record.jsf?pid=diva2:1084523
- Valverde, M. (2015, November 17). How to consult in gentrifying neighbourhoods. *Spacing Toronto*. http://spacing.ca/toronto/2015/11/17/consult-gentrifying-neighbourhoods/
- Van Criekingen, M., & Decroly, J.-M. (2003). Revisiting the Diversity of Gentrification: Neighbourhood Renewal Processes in Brussels and Montreal. *Urban Studies*, 40(12), 2451–2468. https://doi.org/10.1080/0042098032000136156
- Van Gent, W. P. C., Boterman, W. R., & Hoekstra, M. S. (2016). State-sponsored gentrification or social regeneration? Symbolic politics and neighborhood intervention in an Amsterdam working class neighborhood (Working Paper Series No. 22). Centre for Urban Studies. http://urbanstudies.uva.nl/content/working-paper-series-working-paper-series-no.22.html
- van Kempen, R. (2013). *Hyper-Diversity: A New Perspective on Urban Diversity* (Policy Brief No. 1; European Policy Brief). DIVERCITIES: Governing Urban Diversity. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/DIVERCITIES_Policy_Brief_1.pdf
- van Kempen, R. (2014a). *Governing Diversity* (Policy Brief No. 2; European Policy Brief). DIVERCITIES: Governing Urban Diversity. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/DIVERCITIES_Policy_Brief_2.pdf
- van Kempen, R. (2014b). *Governance Arrangements and Initiatives: Utilising Urban Diversity to Create Positive Outcoems* (Policy Brief No. 3; European Policy Brief). DIVERCITIES: Governing Urban Diversity. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/DIVERCITIES_Policy_Brief_3.pdf
- van Kempen, R. (2015). *Living with Diversity* (Policy Brief No. 4; European Policy Brief). DIVERCITIES: Governing Urban Diversity. https://www.urbandivercities.eu/wp-content/uploads/2015/04/DIVERCITIES_Policy_Brief_4-FINAL.pdf
- van Klyton, A. C. (2015). Space and place in world music production. *City, Culture and Society*, *6*(4), 101–108. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ccs.2015.06.001
- van Koeverden, J. (2019, December 2). *Motherhood challenged Sylvia Nickerson to rethink her place as an artist in Hamilton* | *CBC Books*. CBC. https://www.cbc.ca/books/motherhood-challenged-sylvia-nickerson-to-rethink-her-place-as-an-artist-in-hamilton-1.5318677
- Vancouver amplifies support for arts and culture through new 10-year plan. (2019, September 11). City of Vancouver. https://vancouver.ca/news-calendar/vancouver-amplifies-support-for-arts-and-culture-through-new-10-year-plan.aspx
- Vancouver house prices pushing millennials out: Report. (2015, May 21). CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/vancouver-real-estate-prices-pushing-millennials-to-leave-city-report-1.3082426

- *Vancouver Mural Festival: The Present Is A Gift For Developers.* (n.d.).
- http://themainlander.com/2017/08/16/vancouver-mural-festival-the-present-is-a-gift-for-developers/
- *Vancouver Music Strategy.* (n.d.). City of Vancouver. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://vancouver.ca/parks-recreation-culture/vancouver-music-strategy.aspx
- Vancouver, C. of. (2018, July 11). *Community Amenity Contributions* [Text/xml]. https://vancouver.ca/home-property-development/community-amenity-contributions.aspx
- Vanishing Seattle. (n.d.). Vanishing Seattle. Retrieved October 18, 2017, from https://www.vanishingseattle.org Varady, D. P., Preiser, W. F. E., & Russell, F. P. (Eds.). (1998). New Directions in Urban Public Housing (1 edition). CUPR/Transaction.
- Vasquez, L. (2019, October 8). Fighting Gentrification with Creative Placemaking. The National Consortium for Creative Placemaking. https://www.cpcommunities.org/post/fighting-gentrification-with-creative-placemaking
- Vasudevan, A. (2017). *The Autonomous City: A History of Urban Squatting*. Verso. https://www.versobooks.com/books/2435-the-autonomous-city
- Vaughan, R. (2016, July 8). *POINT OF VIEW: Who makes up the 1%? In the arts, it's the bureaucrats*. CBC Arts. http://www.cbc.ca/arts/point-of-view-who-makes-up-the-1-in-the-arts-it-s-the-bureaucrats-1.3607715
- Vegh, S. (2017). *The Big Picture 2017 Arts Forum: A Report of the April 2017 Arts Community Consultation*. Arts Advisory Commission. https://www.hamilton.ca/attractions/culture/arts-advisory-commission-big-picture-2017
- Vella, E. (2017, May 11). Millennial pens open letter, says Toronto real estate prices too high. *Global News*. https://globalnews.ca/news/3590956/millennial-toronto-real-estate/
- Vendeville, G. (2013, September 23). Residents Want to Keep the Malt In St. Henri. *The Link*. https://thelinknewspaper.ca/article/residents-want-to-keep-the-malt-in-st.-henri
- Vermeulen, P. (2016). Gentrify Everything: New Forms of Critical Artistic Agency. *MaHKUscript: Journal of Fine Art Research*, 1(2). https://doi.org/10.5334/mjfar.11
- Vescera, Z. (2019, June 18). Vancouver arts community feeling sting of real estate 'renovictions.' *Vancouver Sun.* https://vancouversun.com/news/local-news/vancouver-arts-community-feeling-sting-of-real-estate-renovictions
- *Videos—Culture Media Economy Monash University Australia*. (n.d.). Culture Media Economy Monash University Australia. Retrieved October 4, 2017, from https://www.cmemonash.org/videos
- Vikander, T. (2018, April 13). Queer party organizers struggle to find space in Vancouver as prime venues shut down. Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/vancouver/2018/04/13/queer-party-organizers-struggle-to-find-space-in-vancouver-as-prime-venues-shut-down.html
- Vogl, C. (2016). *The Art of Community: Seven Principles for Belonging* (1 edition). Berrett-Koehler Publishers. Vona, V. (2016). *The role of art and artists in contesting gentrification in London and New York City* [Ph.D., King's College London]. http://kclpure.kcl.ac.uk/portal/en/theses/the-role-of-art-and-artists-in-contesting-gentrification-in-london-and-new-york-city(b7db0c51-6276-4094-8bce-77a72bab0c92).html
- Voon, C. (2017, September 12). *In Protest of Gentrification, Sydney Residents Turn Towers into Light Displays*. Hyperallergic.https://hyperallergic.com/399865/sydney-anti-gentrification-protest-waterloo-estate/
- Vowel, C. (2016). *Indigenous Writes: A Guide to First Nations, Métis, and Inuit issues in Canada*. HighWater Press. Vu. (2014, September 22). All right, we need to talk about nonprofit salaries. *Nonprofit AF*.
 - http://nonprofitaf.com/2014/09/all-right-you-guys-we-need-to-talk-about-nonprofit-salaries/
- Yuen, K. (2019, November 7). *Musicians want city to provide more affordable performance spaces for emerging artists*. CBC News. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/toronto-music-advisory-committee-pushing-for-more-diy-music-spaces-1.5349034
- Vyhnak, C. (n.d.). Successful Options for GTA home buyers. *The Star.* Retrieved May 17, 2018, from https://www.thestar.com/life/homes/2018/05/05/successful-options-for-gta-home-buyers.html



- *W A G E Working Artists and the Greater Economy*. (n.d.). Retrieved September 30, 2017, from http://www.wageforwork.com/home
- Wainwright, O. (2017, October 26). 'Everything is gentrification now': But Richard Florida isn't sorry. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/cities/2017/oct/26/gentrification-richard-florida-interview-creative-class-new-urban-crisis
- Walks, A. (2013). *Income Inequality and Polarization in Canada's Cities: An Examiniation and New Form of Measurement* (Research Paper 227; Neighbourhood Change Research Partnership). University of Toronto. http://neighbourhoodchange.ca/homepage/income-inequality-polarization-walks-2013/
- Walks, A. (Ed.). (2014). *The Urban Political Economy and Ecology of Automobility: Driving Cities, Driving Inequality, Driving Politics*. Routledge. https://www.routledge.com/products/9780415706155
- Walks, A. R., & Maaranen, R. (n.d.). *Neighbourhood gentrification and upgrading in Montreal, Toronto and Vancouver*. Retrieved July 3, 2019, from http://www.urbancentre.utoronto.ca/pdfs/researchbulletins/CUCS_RB_43-Walks-Gentrification2008.pdf
- Walks, A. R., & Maaranen, R. (2008). *The Timing, Patterning, & Forms of Gentrification & Neighbourhood Upgrading in Montreal, Toronto, & Vancouver, 1961 to 2001* (Research Paper No. 211). Centre for Urban and Community Studies, University of Toronto. http://www.urbancentre.utoronto.ca/pdfs/publications/RP211Walk-Maaranen-Gentrification1960-2001.pdf
- Ward, G., & Rwicher, M. (2017, October 26). *There goes the neighborhood: New community names crop up in gentrifying Nashville*. The Tennessean. https://www.tennessean.com/story/money/real-estate/2017/10/26/nashville-gentrification-neighborhood-nations-edgehill-salemtown-antioch/763566001/
- *Ward Profiles.* (2015, June 1). City of Hamilton. https://www.hamilton.ca/city-initiatives/strategies-actions/ward-profiles
- Warren, M. (2015, December 8). Affordable housing for artists aims to keep them in Toronto. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2015/12/08/affordable-housing-for-artists-aims-to-keep-them-intoronto.html
- Warren, M. (2017a, March 6). Why Generation Squeeze is tackling unaffordable housing. *Metro News*. http://www.metronews.ca/news/toronto/2017/03/06/about-generation-squeeze-housing.html
- Warren, M. (2017b, March 13). How Toronto's rental market is squeezing Millennials. *Metro News*. http://www.metronews.ca/news/toronto/2017/03/13/how-torontos-rental-market-is-squeezing-millennials-.html
- Warren, M. (2017c, April 5). Ontario economy leaving young people behind, says new report. *Metro News*. http://www.metronews.ca/news/toronto/2017/04/05/ontario-economy-leaving-young-people-behind-says-new-report-.html
- Warren, M., & Ngabo, G. (2019, November 10). How many condos are sitting empty in Toronto? One man investigated—And what he found surprised him. Toronto Star.

 https://www.thestar.com/news/gta/2019/11/10/how-many-condos-are-sitting-empty-in-toronto-one-man-investigated-and-what-he-found-surprised-him.html
- Washington City Paper's Handbook for the Responsible Gentrifier. (n.d.). Washington City Paper. Retrieved November 5, 2017, from www.washingtoncitypaper.com/news/article/13042449/washington-citypapers-handbook-for-the-responsible-gentrifier
- Wasielewski, A. (2018). *Made in Brooklyn: Artists, Hipsters, Makers, Gentrifiers*. Zero Books.
- Wasps Artists Studios. (n.d.). Retrieved January 8, 2020, from https://www.waspsstudios.org.uk/
- Waterloos' Culture Plan: A Catalyst for Culture 2014-2024. (2014). City of Waterloo.
 - http://www.waterloo.ca/en/contentresources/resources/government/Waterloos_Culture_Plan_A_Cat alyst for Culture 2014 2024 Final Report circ..pdf
- Watson Pelaez, M. (2017, August 24). *The Global March of Gentrification*. Inequality.Org. https://inequality.org/research/global-march-gentrification/

- Watson, W. (2015). *The Inequality Trap: Fighting Capitalism Instead of Poverty*. University of Toronto Press, Scholarly Publishing Division.
- We need to transform housing politics: Treating homes as commodities has caused crisis, sociology prof says. (2019, April 23). In *The Early Edition*. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/housing-crisis-politics-commodity-david-madden-1.5107257
- Webb, D. (2014). Placemaking and Social Equity: Expanding the Framework of Creative Placemaking. *Artivate: A Journal of Entrepreneurship in the Arts*, 3(1), 35–48.
- Webb, E. (2016, July 11). ArtChangeUS@ Design For Equity. *Arts in a Changing America*. https://artsinachangingamerica.org/artchangeus-design-equity/
- Webber, L. G. (2017). Gentrifying the Commons // Commoning Gentrification. *Arts Everywhere*, 1. http://artseverywhere.ca/2017/05/25/gentrifying-the-commons/
- Weibel, P., & Zentrum für Kunst und Medientechnologie Karlsruhe. (2015). *Global activism: Art and conflict in the 21st century.* ZKM, Center for Art and Media,.
- Weiner, Y. (2020, January 5). Rising Star Jason A. Rodriguez: "How we can decrease gentrification by expanding, lifting and adapting our community with the arts" Thrive Global. https://thriveglobal.com/stories/rising-star-jason-a-rodriguez-how-we-can-decrease-gentrification-by-expanding-lifting-and-adapting-our-community-with-the-arts/
- Weinland Park project rises over neighborhood. (2015, April 13). *The Lantern*.
 - https://www.thelantern.com/2015/04/weinland-park-project-rises-over-neighborhood/
- Welch, T., Warkentin, J., & German, M. (2017). Scaling Up Joint Ventures between Social Housing Providers and Private Sector Builders. Evergreen.
 - $https://www.evergreen.ca/downloads/pdfs/2017/HAL_Scaling_Up_Joint_Ventures.pdf$
- Welcome to the QGIS project! (n.d.). Retrieved September 28, 2017, from http://www.qgis.org/en/site/
- Wells, J. (2018, September 24). Where have you gone James North? Hamilton's iconic arts district spawned Supercrawl and is rapidly changing. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/news-story/8900385-where-have-you-gone-james-north-hamilton-s-iconic-arts-district-spawned-supercrawl-and-is-rapidly-changing-/
- Wells-Smith, G. (2018, November 5). Priced Out. *The Dance Current*. https://www.thedancecurrent.com/news-article/priced-out
- West, G. (2018). Scale: The Universal Laws of Growth, Innovation, Sustainability, and the Pace of Life in Organisms, Cities, Economies, and Companies (Reprint edition). Penguin Books.
- West Queen West Triangle: What Happened? (n.d.). [Urbanspace Gallery]. Retrieved October 28, 2017, from http://www.urbanspacegallery.ca/event/triangles-who-builds-toronto/west-queen-west-triangle-what-happened/
- Wetherell, S. (2017). Richard Florida is Sorry. *Jacobin*. https://jacobinmag.com/2017/08/new-urban-crisis-review-richard-florida
- What do we lose when spaces for artists disappear? Rosina Kazi tells us what it means for our communities. (2019, July 11). In *Q*. CBC Radio. https://www.cbc.ca/radio/q/thursday-july-11-2019-the-strumbellas-peter-frampton-and-more-1.5206778/what-do-we-lose-when-spaces-for-artists-disappear-rosina-kazi-tells-us-what-it-means-for-our-communities-1.5206823
- What Gentrification Means For Washington's Artists. (n.d.). *The Kojo Nnamdi Show*. Retrieved July 15, 2018, from https://thekojonnamdishow.org/shows/2018-07-12/what-gentrification-means-for-the-regions-artists
- What Happens When Real Estate Meets Social Impact. (2019, November 7). Future of Good.
 - https://futureofgood.co/what-happens-when-real-estate-meets-social-impact/
- What is Gentrification? (2003, January 17). *POV Flag Wars: American Documentary Inc.* http://archive.pov.org/flagwars/what-is-gentrification/
- What is the living wage? (2014, November 2). *BBC News*. http://www.bbc.com/news/business-20204594 What we heard across Canada: Canadian Culture in a Digital World. (2017). Ipsos Public Affairs.
 - https://www.canadiancontentconsultations.ca/What-we-heard-across-Canada-Canadian-Culture-in-a-Digital-World

- Wheeler, B. (2017, March 24). Hot real estate market forcing landmark musicians out of Toronto. *The Globe and Mail.* https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/hot-real-estate-market-forcing-landmark-musicians-out-of-toronto/article34417869/
- Wheeler, T., Fish, N., & Eudaly, C. (2018). A Plan for Preserving and Expanding Affordable Arts Space in Portland. https://www.portlandoregon.gov/fish/article/667747
- White, C. (n.d.). New Property Tax Class to Bring Relief to Arts and Culture Hubs. Urban Toronto. Retrieved June 13, 2019, from https://urbantoronto.ca/news/2018/05/new-property-tax-class-bring-relief-arts-and-culture-hubs
- White, H., & Lees, L. (2015). Why We Can't Afford to Lose it: Local Authority Housing in London Protects the Poor from Homelessness. University of Leicester. http://ch1889.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/11/Canweaffordtolosethem-FC2.pdf
- White, R. (2016). Planning Toronto: The Planners, The Plans, Their Legacies, 1940-80. UBC Press.
- Whiting, J., & Hannam, K. (2016). 'The secret garden': Artists, bohemia and gentrification in the Ouseburn Valley, Newcastle upon Tyne, UK. *European Urban and Regional Studies*, 24(3), 318–334. https://doi.org/10.1177/0969776416643750
- Who Can Afford to Be A Starving Artist? (n.d.). Createquity. Retrieved January 4, 2018, from http://createquity.com/2016/06/who-can-afford-to-be-a-starving-artist/
- Whose Art? Our Art!: How could art meaningfully contribute to social justice struggles? (n.d.). Concordia University Events. Retrieved February 28, 2019, from http://www.concordia.ca/content/shared/en/events/offices/vpaer/oce/2019/02/05/2019-02-05 whose-art-our-art.html?null
- Why it matters 9,000 churches and religious spaces will close over the next 10 years. (2019, May 27). In CBC News Hamilton. CBC. https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/churches-closing-1.5150876
- Whyte, M. (n.d.-a). A Queen West arts centre's failure to launch. *The Star*. Retrieved May 17, 2018, from https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2018/04/29/a-queen-west-arts-centres-failure-to-launch.html
- Whyte, M. (n.d.-b). Soaring rent threatens Sterling Road's creative vibe. The Star. Retrieved February 19, 2019, from https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2016/01/31/some-sterling-road-artists-facing-steeper-rents-plan-to-move-on.html
- Whyte, M. (2010, May 15). Artistic transformation for long-closed Shaw Street School. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/2010/05/15/artistic_transformation_for_longclosed_shaw_st_reet_school.html
- Whyte, M. (2013a, November 18). The Koffler Gallery: Uptown Comes Downtown. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2013/11/18/the_koffler_gallery_uptown_comes_downtown.html
- Whyte, M. (2013b, November 20). Shaw Street School reopens as Artscape Youngplace. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2013/11/20/shaw_street_school_reopens_as_artscape_youngplace.html
- Whyte, M. (2013c, November 23). Artscape Youngplace: School is now in session. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2013/11/23/artscape_youngplace_school_is_now_in_session.html
- Whyte, M. (2015a, April 4). Drawing the line on cultural development in Toronto. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2015/04/04/drawing-the-line-on-cultural-development-in-toronto.html
- Whyte, M. (2015b, June 15). Group sues city over cancelled Queen West arts hub. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2015/06/15/group-sues-city-over-cancelled-queen-west-arts-hub.html
- Whyte, M. (2016a, October 23). Skyrocketing commercial rents purge reluctant artists from Toronto's west end. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2016/10/23/skyrocketing-commercial-rents-purge-reluctant-artists-from-the-west-end.html

- Whyte, M. (2016b, December 15). 401 Richmond arts haven facing huge tax hike. The star. Com. https://www.the star.com/entertainment/visualarts/2016/12/15/401-richmond-arts-haven-facing-huge-tax-hike.html
- Whyte, M. (2017a, January 31). City moves to save 401 Richmond and other cultural institutions. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2017/01/31/city-moves-to-save-401-richmond-and-other-cultural-institutions.html
- Whyte, M. (2017b, February 3). Akin Collective buys artists space and time. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2017/02/03/akin-collective-buys-artists-space-and-time.html
- Whyte, M. (2017c, April 3). Relief for 401 Richmond tenants on the way, city hopes. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/2017/04/03/relief-for-401-richmond-tenants-on-the-way-city-hopes.html
- Whyte, M. (2017d, June 15). Time running out for deal to save 401 Richmond. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2017/06/15/time-running-out-for-deal-to-save-401-richmond.html
- Whyte, M. (2017e, September 26). Good news for 401 Richmond—But what took so long? *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/2017/09/26/good-news-for-cultural-institutions-but-what-took-so-long.html
- Whyte, M. (2017f, December 18). For Toronto arts spaces, a creative tax break takes shape. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/analysis/2017/12/18/reprieve-seen-in-torontos-new-tax-break-for-arts-spaces.html
- Whyte, M. (2018, February 13). Toronto's new property tax subclass is a limited gesture but a first step toward the city we want | The Star. Thestar.Com. https://www.thestar.com/entertainment/visualarts/opinion/2018/02/13/torontos-new-property-tax-subclass-is-a-limited-gesture-but-a-first-step-toward-the-city-we-want.html
- Whyte, M. (2020, January 14). "My Parkdale is gone": How gentrification reached the one place that seemed immune. *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/cities/2020/jan/14/my-parkdale-is-gone-how-gentrification-reached-the-one-place-that-seemed-immune
- Wierzba, T. (2014). *Transforming Downtown St. Catharines into a Creative Cluster* [Brock University]. https://dr.library.brocku.ca/bitstream/handle/10464/5802/Brock_Wierzba_Tomasz_2014.pdf?sequence__1
- Wilde, K. (n.d.). 3 Things You May Not Know About Artists Rights in Canada. *Guelph Arts Council*. Retrieved September 30, 2017, from https://www.guelpharts.ca/3-things-you-may-not-know-about-artists-rights-in-canada
- Wilkins, C. L. (2007). *The Aesthetics of Equity: Notes on Race, Space, Architecture, and Music* (First edition edition). Univ Of Minnesota Press.
- Williams, G. (2019, April 25). As Rents Rise, Artists are reviving the idea of the Medieval Guild. *The New York Times Style Magazine*. https://www.nytimes.com/2019/04/25/t-magazine/craft-guild-la-friche-zaventem-ateliers.html
- Williams, R. Y. (2004). *The Politics of Public Housing: Black Women's Struggles against Urban Inequality* (1 edition). Oxford University Press.
- Willis, I. by S. (2015, July 28). Bow Arts chief: We must ensure affordable places for artists to work. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/culture-professionals-network/2015/jul/28/bow-arts-affordable-places-for-artists
- Willis, S. C. (2016). Artistic Expressions Amidst Gentrification: Reclaiming Identity and Authenticity in Gentrified Public Spaces [Roosevelt University]. ProQuest Dissertations Publishing. https://search.proquest.com/openview/ad07550899a95d991a8edc5ad88dd8b1/1?pq-origsite=gscholar&cbl=18750&diss=v
- Wilson, K., & Mantie, R. (n.d.). Inspiring soulful communities through music: Connecting arts entrepreneurship education and community development via creative placemaking. *Artivate: A Journal of Entrepreneurship in the Arts*, 6(2), 32–45.

- Wilson, P. (2014, September 9). WILSON: New king at cotton castle on Sherman North. *The Hamilton Spectator*. https://www.thespec.com/living-story/4837869-wilson-new-king-at-cotton-castle-on-sherman-north/
- Winikoff, T. (2017, February 7). We don't pay visual artists properly that needs to change. *The Guardian*. http://www.theguardian.com/artanddesign/2017/feb/07/we-dont-pay-visual-artists-properly-that-needs-to-change
- Winkless, L. (2016). *Science and the City: The Mechanics Behind the Metropolis*. Bloomsbury Sigma. https://www.bloomsbury.com/uk/science-and-the-city-9781472913210/
- Winsa, P. (2010a, January 28). Century-old school to become arts centre. *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/qa/news/gta/2010/01/28/centuryold_school_to_become_arts_centre.html
- Winsa, P. (2010b, January 29). New life for Shaw St. School as studios for artists. *The Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/qa/news/gta/2010/01/29/new_life_for_shaw_st_school_as_studios_for_artists.html
- Winsa, P. (2019, July 5). Here's what you'd need to earn to buy a mid-priced home in your Toronto neighbourhood—And what a typical family there earns (Hint: Not nearly enough). *Toronto Star*. https://www.thestar.com/amp/news/gta/2019/07/05/heres-what-youd-need-to-earn-to-buy-a-mid-priced-home-in-your-toronto-neighbourhood-and-what-a-typical-family-there-earns-hint-not-nearly-enough.html
- Winship, L. (2019, February 11). Dancing in the street: Could choreographers build better cities? *The Guardian*. https://www.theguardian.com/cities/2019/feb/11/dancing-in-the-street-could-choreographers-build-better-cities
- Winter, J. (2017, December 13). *Toronto development threatens to scatter artist community*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/news/toronto/toronto-development-threatens-to-scatter-artistcommunity/article37323583/
- Winters, C. (2017). Shop Here, Not There: Science Says Reducing Inequality Is Almost That Simple. *YES! Magazine*. http://www.yesmagazine.org/issues/solidarity/shop-here-not-there-science-says-reducing-inequality-is-almost-that-simple-20171120
- Wise, L., & Gould, A. (2011). *Toronto Street Names: An Illustrated Guide to Their Origins* (2 edition). Firefly Books. https://www.fireflybooks.com/catalogue/adult-books/history/history-regional/product/10522-toronto-street-names-an-illustrated-guide-to-their-origins
- Wolff, T. (2016, April 28). *Voices from the Field*: 10 *Places Where Collective Impact Gets It Wrong*. Nonprofit Quarterly. https://nonprofitquarterly.org/2016/04/28/voices-from-the-field-10-places-where-collective-impact-gets-it-wrong/
- Wolk, A. (2015). Over The Top: How The Internet Is (Slowly But Surely) Changing The Television Industry. CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform.
- Wong, J. (2010, September 12). Regent Park: Revitalization or gentrification? *The Toronto Star.* https://www.thestar.com/news/qta/2010/09/12/regent_park_revitalization_or_gentrification.html
- Woodwards Anti-Capitalist Society. (2017, December 16). Fight For Affordability | Local groups hold alternative tour of Westbank's 'Fight For Beauty.' The Mainlander. http://themainlander.com/2017/12/16/fight-for-affordability-local-group-plans-alternative-tour-of-westbanks-fight-for-beauty/
- WorkInCulture. (2019). *MakingItWork: Pathways toward sustainable cultural careers*.
 - $https://www.workinculture.ca/getattachment/FYI/WorkInCulture-Connects/May-2019/WorkInCulture-Releases-Culture-Sector-Career-Susta/MakingItWork_Pathways-(May)-(1).pdf.aspx?lang=en-CA$
- Workshops: Financial Aspects of Renting, Leasing, and Licensing Space. (n.d.). Social Purpose Real Estate Collaborative. Retrieved January 8, 2020, from
 - https://www.socialpurposerealestate.net/events/RLO Workshops
- Workspace that Works. (2017). Future of London.
 - https://www.creativelandtrust.org/assets/papers/Workspace%20that%20works.pdf
- World Cities Culture Report 2018. (2018). BOP Consulting.
 - https://www.creativelandtrust.org/assets/papers/World%20Cities%20Culture%20Report%202018.pdf
- Woronkowicz, J. (2015). Art-Making or Place-Making? The Relationship between Open-Air Performance Venues and Neighborhood Change. *Journal of Planning Education and Research*, *36*(1), 49–59. https://doi.org/10.1177/0739456X15597759

- Wright, C. (2019, June 27). City Hall's culture map can help keep London creating, Assembly hears. *OnLondon*. https://www.onlondon.co.uk/city-halls-culture-map-can-help-keep-london-creating-assembly-hears/
- Wu, C., Ye, X., Ren, F., Wan, Y., Ning, P., & Du, Q. (2016). Spatial and Social Media Data Analytics of Housing Prices in Shenzhen, China. *PLOS ONE*, *11*(10), e0164553. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0164553
- W.W.A.S. at the Vancouver Tenants Union Convention. (n.d.). http://polly-anna.ca/activity/wwas-vtu-convention Wylie, B. (2019, February 16). Sidewalk Toronto: Rhetoric, Narrative, and Deceit. Medium.
 - https://medium.com/@biancawylie/sidewalk-toronto-rhetoric-narrative-and-deceit-bb995fa5d1db
- Wynn, J. (2016, May 12). Why cities should stop building museums and focus on festivals. The Conversation. http://theconversation.com/why-cities-should-stop-building-museums-and-focus-on-festivals-57333
- Wynn, J., & Deener, A. (2017, October 11). INSIGHT: Have big cities hijacked the gentrification debate? *My Statesman*. http://www.mystatesman.com/news/opinion/insight-have-big-cities-hijacked-the-gentrification-debate/sFHx3dpcGtSBegmEoDN83H/

X-Z

- 'X' Marks the Spot Where Inequality Took Root: Dig Here. (2015, August 5). *Economic Opportunity Institute*. http://www.eoionline.org/blog/x-marks-the-spot-where-inequality-took-root-dig-here/
- Yawar, M. (2016, October 26). *Hamilton homebuyers being priced out of city: Experts*. CBC News. http://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/hamilton-homebuyers-priced-out-moving-to-brantford-st-catharines-cmhc-1.3822092
- Yelland, T. (2017, October 5). "Rent control vs. Housing supply" is the debate landlords and developers want us to have. Torontoist. https://torontoist.com/2017/10/rent-control-vs-housing-supply-debate-landlords-developers-want-us/
- Yeung, M. (2017, April 6). The Young Artists of (a Gentrified) Hamilton. *The Silhouette*. https://www.thesil.ca/young-artists-gentrified-hamilton
- Yoon, H., & Currid-Halkett, E. (2015). Industrial gentrification in West Chelsea, New York: Who survived and who did not? Empirical evidence from discrete-time survival analysis. *Urban Studies*, *52*(1), 20–49. https://doi.org/10.1177/0042098014536785
- Young, B. (2019, May 13). A radical quick fix for Toronto's housing crises. *NOW Magazine*. https://nowtoronto.com/news/housing-crisis-toronto
- Youthful Cities. (n.d.). Youthful Cities. Retrieved January 9, 2020, from https://www.youthfulcities.com
- Yu, B. (2017). Chinatown Art Brigade: Resisting gentrification through the power of art, culture and stories. *Visual Inquiry: Learning & Teaching Art*, 6(2), 173–178. EBSCOhost.
- Yu, S. (2015, October 21). Arts-themed high-rise community coming to Queens Quay. *The Globe and Mail*. https://www.theglobeandmail.com/life/home-and-garden/real-estate/sales-start-for-arts-themed-lighthouse-tower-on-queens-quay/article26907490/
- Zarsadiaz, J. F. D. (n.d.). *Why Gentrification Is So Hard to Stop*. CityLab. Retrieved October 3, 2017, from http://www.theatlanticcities.com/jobs-and-economy/2014/02/why-gentrification-so-hard-stop/7708/
- Zavestoski, S., & Agyeman, J. (2015). *Incomplete streets: Processes, practices, and possibilities*. Routledge,. Zebracki, M. (2013). Beyond public artopia: Public art as perceived by its publics. *GeoJournal*, 78(2), 303–317. JSTOR.
- Zen, R. (2017, July). *As Austin's creative spaces disappear, artists look to city code rewrite, city grants for help.* The Daily Texan. http://www.dailytexanonline.com/2017/07/07/as-austin's-creative-spaces-disappear-artists-look-to-city-code-rewrite-city-grants-for

- Zheng, S., & Kahn, M. (2011). *Does Government Investment in Local Public Goods Spur Gentrification? Evidence from Beijing* (No. w17002). National Bureau of Economic Research. https://doi.org/10.3386/w17002
- Zhong, S. (2016). Artists and Shanghai's culture-led urban regeneration. *Cities*, *56*, 165–171. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cities.2015.09.002
- Zielenbach, S. (2000). *The Art of Revitalization: Improving Conditions in Distressed Inner-City Neighborhoods* (1 edition). Routledge.
- Zuk, M. (2015, September 9). Rent Control: The Key to Neighborhood Stabilization? *Urban Displacement Project*. http://www.urbandisplacement.org/blog/rent-control-key-neighborhood-stabilization
- Zuk, M., Bierbaum, A. H., Chapple, K., Gorska, K., & Loukaitou-Sideris, A. (2017). Gentrification, Displacement, and the Role of Public Investment. *Journal of Planning Literature*, 0885412217716439. https://doi.org/10.1177/0885412217716439
- Zuk, M., & Chapple, K. (2015). *Case Studies on Gentrification and Displacement in the San Francisco Bay Area* (p. 159). Centre for Community Innovation, University of California. https://www.urbandisplacement.org/sites/default/files/anti-displacement_full_report_11.15.pdf
- Zukin, S. (1987). Gentrification: Culture and Capital in the Urban Core. *Annual Review of Sociology*, *13*(1), 129–147. https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev.so.13.080187.001021
- Zukin, S. (1989). Loft Living: Culture and Capital in Urban Change. Rutgers University Press.
- Zukin, S. (2016). Gentrification in Three Paradoxes. *City & Community, 15*(3), 202–207. https://doi.org/10.1111/cico.12184
- Zukin, S., & Braslow, L. (2011). The life cycle of New York's creative districts: Reflections on the unanticipated consequences of unplanned cultural zones. *City, Culture and Society*, *2*, 131–140.

Profile



Cultivating progressive ideas and untapped potential in the arts into exceptional, everyday shared realities for collective impact on-the-ground and in-the-cloud.

ArtsPond is a changemaker of a different sort.

Devoted to radical inclusivity, our mandate is to strengthen the potential of artistic expression to nurture healthy human ecosystems that cultivate equity and social cohesion by boosting **social**, **spatial**, **economic**, **and digital justice** and other urgent systemic issues in under-served communities across Canada and beyond.

Purposefully, we foster cooperative actions fusing values and practices from community-engaged arts, human-centered design, evidence-based action and applied research, social innovation, social finance, and collective impact as a means to uproot intractable systemic issues from gentrification and economic inequality to the digital divide.

Cultivating a more creative and open society, we intentionally adopt collaborative practices **crossing cultural**, **economic**, **geographic**, **political**, **social**, **and technological boundaries**. We actively enable and celebrate the perspectives of diverse **interdisciplinary**, **intergenerational**, **intercultural**, and **interability** voices. We do so with the assumption that the full spectrum of humanity is better together than we are apart, and community-engaged creativity is a crucial element to bolster and intertwine the best in us all.

Founded as a grassroots entity in 2014, and federally incorporated as a non-profit in 2016, ArtsPond's major actions currently include I Lost My Gig Canada (economic justice), DigitalASO, Artse United + Hatch Open (digital justice), and Groundstory + Groundtrust (spatial justice).



Groundstory is a collective impact effort to uproot the adverse effects of gentrification on the arts in the Greater Toronto to Hamilton Area. Groundstory asks the question, "What would it take for 75% of arts and culture workers to feel satisfied with their shelter, studios, and spaces of public engagement by 2030?" Phase 1 activities from 2017 to 2020 included regional focus groups and human-centered design workshops, an international literature review, national impact survey, Round the Block spatial justice podcast, and more.



Groundtrust is a youth-led initiative promoting awareness and innovation in the evolution of social purpose real estate solutions in the arts in Toronto and across Ontario through shared learning online. Phase 1 actions from 2020 to 2022 feature research and dissemination of literacy toolkits, podcasts, webinars and workshops on community land trusts and other models that prioritize public good over profit. Groundtrust's objectives are to promote the capacity of impacted youth leaders and community groups to envision and realize affordable, artsled social purpose real estate projects rooted in their communities for public benefit.



ArtsPond.com @ArtsPond8